THE BRITISHJ LAND COMPANY PLC

We create
Places
People
Prefer

Annual Report
and Accounts 2017

Il

i

i

Al

|

AD2 21/08/2017 #182 ’

COMPANIES HOUSE

Registered company number 621928



We are a leading UK commercial
propeity company focused on high
qualwlty retail and London offices

- Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all our stakeholders

We do this by creating Places

People Prefer

Key metrics for the vear
Portfolio valuation EPRA NAV per share!
{proportionally consolidated®)
s139n  915p
2014: £14.585n 014-919p
Underlying £PS Carbon intensity reduction
lindex scare since 2059)
378p 44%
2016:34.1p 2018:40%
Total accounting return’ IFRS profit before tax
2.4% s195m
2018: 14.7% 2016: £1,331m
* See Glossary for definitions.
For more information Feedback
We value your feedback.
You will find links Please contact us at:

throughout this Report to
guide you to further reading
or relevant information.

For more information
visit our website
www.britishland.com

Qur corporate website
www.britishland.com/
contacts

Follow us on Twitter
@BritishLandpLC

B

Dividend per share Undertying Profit!
29. 2p £390m

2014 28 34p 2014: £363m

Tétai property return’ iFRS net assets
3.1% £9446m
2014: 11.3% 2014 €9.6V9m

IFRSEPS Customer satisfaction®
18.8p 8.1/10
2018: 1. 2p 2016: 7510

Integrated reporting .

We integrate social and environmental information throughout this
Report in line with the international Integrated Reporting Framework.
This reflects how sustainability is integrated into our placemaking
strategy, governance and business operations. Dur industry-leading
sustainability strategy is a powerful tool to deliver lasting value

for all our stakeholders.

For more information visit www.britishland .com/sustainability




Places People Prefer
Gumangdwmvtrmunentms:deandout,
using our scale and placemaking expertise

Customer Orientation

We use our insight into customers’
needs and identify major long term
trends lo Ccreale environments in
tune with changing lifestyles.

anltal Eﬂimenc}
Disciplined use of capitat

We allocate our capilal, manage
our hinances and partner with

like-minded organisalions lo deliver

susiainable long term value.

Right Places

Creating great environments,
inside and out

We design engaging. susizinable
places which bring peeple logather
through the right mix of occupisrs,
sarvices and activities.

Expert People

The knowledge and skills to deliver
We employ Expert Peopte and
work wilh specialist partners

1o ereate insight, develop skills
and build capability.
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Presentation of financial information

-The Group linendal statements aré preparad under
*FRSWhmhe&umsmlaﬁlsmmﬂmﬁmad :
tunds are shown 25 3 single Line item on the income
statement and balince cheet and all subsidizries

are consoligaled ar 10035,

Ma considars the busi principally on
apmpm'mummdniatedhasasmwmg
the sirateqy, determiring annual priorilies, making
mvestment and finencing decsions and reviewing
performance. This indudes the Group's share of
pm‘immresandflmdsmalme—by -line basis and
exciudes aon-controlling interasts in the Gmup ]
subsidianies. The financial key performance &

are alsn presented on this basis. Reler o the Finandial
review for a discussion of the IFRS resulls,

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017 1



Steatedic Reprore

BRITISH LAND AT A GL ANCE

Our placemaking expertise delivers
buildings and environments that reflect
the way people work, shop and live

. Retail Highlights ’
Total portfolio Our Relail portfotio is focused on a netwerkof — — 1.3 million sq fi of teilings and renewals
We provide buildings and eavircnments aulti-let Regionat and Locat cenires, reflecling 11% ahead of ERY
which cater to the changing needs of the gddern consumer lifestyles. We provide high _ . &
people who use them. Gur propesties quality reiail and leisure with best in class Multi-l=t ERV up 2£%
bring businesses and people logethar, Serwres meeling a renge of constmer needs. We - Portiolio vatuation down 1.8%
they are functional and authentic with provide places to shop, eat and be enteriained; G - . o ﬁ‘ N
the right mix of occupiers, services and phaces which are convenienl and accessible €1 billion of capital activity. ng

our fozus on our multi-let portiolio

activilies and wa use qur placemaking ang which connact with local communilies.
framewaork to enhance nat just individual :
buildings but the overall environment

£191bn- | §2;9bn

assels under managemeant

¢13 90

British Land ownad

of Roor space

£636m-

conlracted rent

W

98%3 Our portiolio has the
g poteriial to resch

gocupancy fate

8. 3 of he population

weighted average unexpired lease termn

Drake Circus :
/ Our Regional centre in Plymouth, This yza
on ils tenth anniversary we extended our
To read mere information aboul gur * ownership by acquiring the New George
performance, go to pages 28 to 37, Streel Estate linking the retail centre and

the proposed leisure scheme, erthancing
aur control of the environment and praviding
hurther scope lor assel rnanagement,

* ndudes 100% of the assets gumed by www britishland.com/OrakeCircus

1he Group's joinl ventures and funds.
! wgﬁ;;:;&xmmlm Il':';s To read mare informaticon about our
interests in the Group's subsidiaries. Retail portfolio. goto pages 32 o 34.

* See Glussary for definiians.
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Offices
Our Offices portfolio is fycused on cur London
compuses vhich also include a mix of retail,

Highlights
- Exchanged on the sale of 50% interest
in The Leadenhsll Building for a headline

leisure and residential 1p create atiractive price of £1.15 billion {100%)

and engaging environrhents. They reflect -
eite sy o et~ {700
to a2 broad range of occupiers. Dutside our LRe yeat
canmpuses, we ¢wn 3 number of high quality ~ Over 730,000 sq it of leilings undes ofier
standzlone bulldings inwell-connectad and or in advanced negeiabions
well-rnznaged locations_ T g : ioe down 0.7%

£8.5bn

%'995

Cluste’

§
M alne 2z

65000

people work across our
Offices partfotio

100 Liverpool Street, Broadgate

Our plans at 100 Liverpoot Street significantly
increase the retail offer a1 Broadgate and provide
high quality, Rexible workspace appealing lo a
broad range of occupiers. This redevelopment,
al the gateway to the campus, adjacent to the new
Crossrail station progresses our vision to creale
aworld-class, vibrant, mixed use destination

at Broadgate.

werw britishtand. com/100LiverpoolStrect
To read more information about vur
ifices portfolic, §o 1o pages 351037

! Following disposal of 50%, interesi in The Leadenhall
Burlding completing alter the year and.

1,200

different orqanisations, ramging kom
intermational brands to lnczd start-ups
arz based a1 our properties.

Our places are increasingly

mixed use

Agruss aur portiolio, we are broadening the
mix of uses to batter reflect people's chamging
lifestyles. Gur ptans will add cnemas, hotels,
events space and broader commesczl uses, in
addition to an expanding retad and Jining ofler.

Canada Water

We are developing our masterplan lor Canada
Watar, qur 46 acre opporiunity in L ondon, which
wilk be a mixed use urban centre from the start.
Working with the London Borough of Southaark
and the local community, our praposals fealure
green and community spaces and a netwark of
pedestrian links and walerways, drawing on the
heritage of the area. Our plans inctade a bnoad
mix of potential uses including retail. leisure,
entartainmeny, higher education and workspace
atongside up 1o 3,500 new homes.

www.hritishtand.com/CanadaWater

Eden Walk

kden Walk, our 538,000 sq it mixed use,
regeneralion scheme in Kingston upon Thames
will comprise 40 new retail and restaurant units,
380 new homes and 35000 sq f of high quality.
modern and Rexible olfice space, aswell as

a cinema and public spaces for events.

www.britishland.com/EdenWalk
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Srentegic Reporr

_CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

- We have led our sector in a number
of outstanding deals reflecting the
quality of our portfolio

John Gildersieeve
Non-Executive Chairman

Tetal accounting return'

2.4%

2016: 14.7%

Dividend per share

292

2015: 28 34p

>33%

‘woman s represanlalion across Exmontive
Commilles mambers. aad dwect reports”

Q%% ’

of all eleciriotywe purchase comes inam
[ ble sources, working tawards 100%
as an RE 100 partner

! Please see the Glossary for definiion.
r :I "- Al s [ o —_— . Y} 3

2008,

Nol many peapte predicted the politicat
gulcomes seen aver the last 12 months, not
only in the UK. but around the warld. it was
certainly an eventful year.

Bui goud businesses became stronger when
they are put to the test and | am delighted to
report that, despite uncertainty caused by the
UK’s decision to teave the EU. we have not only

.demanstrated the resilience of our business

but also shown how our strategic approach
enables us torespond to such issues.

In the weeks lollowing the EU relerendum
ther2 was a peak of uncertainty around \he
ullirnpacts that would be felt by businesses
and the UK as a whote. For us in very broad
lerms, we considered the potential impact
on consumer confidence affecting our retail
business and what the result could do

to business canfidenice, in particutar the
chaice of global organisations lo locate
large parls of Ibeir businesses in London.

4 British Land | Annual Repert and Accounts 2017

Dur sirategic approath is based on tong
term traiuds. We treck consumer and occupier
expeciations and key themes impar fng our
barsiness b0 ensure we atidress these in treating
‘Places People Prefer. As theworlds of work and
Isiwre become increasingly connected this
hars led b our as5eis haotming more mixed use,
o that people ¢ah fulfil the neads of multipla
demangs on their Gme. Our Londen office
campas approach 2rd multi-let retail centre
focus has proved Lo be 3 real differentiator
in bhis respecl, creating nol only outstanding
budldings bt enabling us o make substantial
improvements to the overall environments
i which they sit.

Mary of purimestments over the yaar have
baen to sinecture our portiolio arcund these
themes and of course work on the majority
of them started before 23 June 20156 We had
alrawdy positored aur Basiness o respond.

S0 daspite the uncerizinty causad, Beatish Land
has performed well and | would like 0 thank
everyone who works for and with us for their
conbribubion during this unpredictable time.
Underlying Profit [or the year was €399 mitlion
up 7.4% The valuation of cur portinlio was
marginally down 1.4% with EPRA NAY dawn
Just 0.4% at 915 pence per share with both
eoupier and investor demand remaining

good over the year. Significantly. valuation
performance in the second hall was stronger
than the firsL

Tree Board has recommended a fourth quarter
divadend of 7.3 pence per share making a tolal
of 79.2 pence for the year. Together with the
mavernenl in nel assel value, this brings total
Iccounting retur (o 2.7%. We have proposed
a first quarter dividend of 7.52 pence per share
and 30.08 pence for the financial year ending
31 March 2018 representing a luriher 3%
increase, signalling our confidence in

growsing income over the medium terrn.,

Lastyear! comrnented thal racro-ecotomic and -
politica! risks had affected the FTSE 100 Shares
in real estate have been significantly impacted by
unoertainty. As a largely donnestically focused
business eperating in sterling. UK REMs are more
exparsed to the implications of Brexit on the UK
econosmy than the majority of the FTSE 100.
Experience also shows that gaps between
share price and reporied values expand during
times of uncertainty and there conlinues to

he a wide range of views on the potential

impact of the UK's decisian to teave Europe -

0n o markets.

So while our business is m good shape we
adknowledge thal the emvironmend is more
uncer tain. We have led our seclor in 3 number
of gutstanding deals reflecting the quality

of our portiolio. Just a couple of weeks afler
the EU ceferendum we exchanged on the sale
of Deenharns’ lagship store on Oxlord Street
Tor ££00 million. on terms agreed belore the vote.
And in March 2017, together wath our W partners



Oxtord Propartes, we exchanged coniracts for
the sale of The Leadenhall Building for 3 headiine
price of £1.15 billion, the mns{expamhﬂdmg
wsoﬂdmﬁeﬁlyd Lendon.

We've 2iso had goad letting actialy over the year;
‘solid evidence thal our praperties are deliwering
what our customens want. As a resuit our porifolio
is virtually futl al ¥8%. In a changing warld,
sustainable places are becoming intressingly
sought after and continye lo areate value as they
are both resilient and well positioned o respond
to changing customer neads W are proactively
desigring new buildings with 2 fecus on health,
wellbeing and productivity of the consumers,

and employees who will use those buldings.

In addition, initiatives to detiver our Local Charter
make positive local contributions and help our
places become part obbheir local communities,

As the Government s Minimum Erangy
Efficency Slandands have the potential 1o affect
property values, our awsnd-winning elficancy
programme has posiioned our portiolio

well and we have become a partner of REWI0,
committed to using 100% electricty from
renewabhle sources. Gur larget for 3% of our
U¥ supplier workiorce o be apprentices by
2020 also aligns with Government ambilions
and our Supply Chain Charter supparted

aur first Modern Slavery Act Disclosure.

We continue Lo be recognised for our leading
stance on sustainabilily issues, fellowing our
2016 Queen’s Award for Enterprise: Sustainable
Development. Qur industry-leading energy and
carben reductions resulied in British Land being
named European Seclor Leadzr in the 2016
Global Real Estate Sustainabilily Benchmark For
the third year running. and winning the CIBSE
Test of Time Award 2017 We have cut energy
intensity by 35% and carbon intensity by 44%.
across aur portfolio since 2009, as we make
sirong progress towards our challenging 55%
reduction largel by 2020.

Details of the changes to our Board and
Commitlees during lhe year, and since

the year end, are set out in the governance
reports which bagin on page 60.

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chairman

For the Chairman's governance review,
see pages 60 to 5.

Global Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark 2014 - European sector
leader for retail/offices {listed)

Highlights of the year

1

1.3m sq ft of lettings

across our Retail portfolio,
11% ahead of ERV

Attracling new Gccupiers, upsiang
exisling retailers and increasing .
leisure and food & beverage.
Continuad sutperformance of Jootfall
and sales growth benchmarks.

Exchanged £1.5bn of asset
sales, 9% ahead of valuation
Inctuding our 50% interest in

The Leadenhsll Building for £575m.
the £400m disposal of Debenhams,
Oxdord Street and £2265n of superstores,
reducing superstore waighling in the
porifolio to £3.

Established our Bright

Lights skills and employment
programme for our suppliers,
oceupiers and |

communities

ncludes 70 placements an our Starting

Qut in Retail programme, with 75%
moving into long term employment.
1.7% apprentices in our lier 1 supply
chain pilot study as we work lowards
our 2020 arget of 3%.

British Land | Annual Report snd Accounts 2017

2

Progressed 1m sq it

of lettings across our

Office portiolio

273,080 sq ft of lettings completed
with over 700,509 cq it undar offer or
in advancad megotiations; this indudes
140 050 5 1 of lettings at 7 Clarges
Street and 4 Ksngdom Sireel shortly
after completion on lerms 2haead of
pre-reforendum ERVs.

Progressing our development
pipeline with 2.3m sq it of
planning consents secured and
a further 1.3m sq ft submitted
Includes glanning secured at

Eden Walk_ Blossom Street

and 2&3 Finsbury Avenwe and
submissions for Meadowhall

Ledsure and 1 Trilon Square.

4]}



Strstegic Repart

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Our results reflect the significant
demand from both occupiers and
investors for the places we create

Chris Grigg
Chizf Executive Officer
We have delivered good resylis despite
Underlying Profit growth' challenges in our markets lotlowing the EU
. referendum. Our markets were stronger
7 4‘y than many anticipated and our strategy. which
. (4] positions us to henefit from long term trends,
to £3%0m (2014: £383m) " { is delivering. Rising consumer expectations.
: the blurring of work and teisure lime and the
transforming impact ol technology are the
Valuation mowvement! key themes shaping demand for our space.
’ Nearly one year after the EU relerendum, we
_l 49] . see clear signs that the impact of these irends
. (4 is accelerating, driving polarisation in our
0 6% reduction in EPRA NAV per share! - markets. Our teasing performance has been

g§ood, contributing 1o strong earnings growh;
we have intensified our focus onwhgre our
Customer satisfaction’ placemaking expartise can enhance value,

i : attracting 3 broader range of occuprers: and we

' have sold welt, providing the capital lo exploit
. oppurtunities we have within our pertfolic.

{2016 79M0) Our strateqy is \o diflerenliale our space
by providing places which reflect people’s
changing lifestyles. We use our placemaking

0 915p 12094 919p)

c ty progr beneficiaries expertise Lo creale gresl environmenis bath
' inside and outside our buildings — creating

3 5 Flaces People Preler. This ungerpins our

. i focys on aur mutti-let retail properties and

including jobseakers, apprentices our Londan campuses which are increasingly

and schoolchildren [2016: 29.500} enined use.
Investiment markets were waaker in the first
hall, reflecling unceriainty both before and

" Please see bhe Glossary for definiGons. alter the EU referendum. but improved in
the second half as the UK economy proved

6 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

resitient. Ovaradl, our EPRA net asset value was
dpan purst 0.4% bo 915 pance par share. Retad and
Oifices valvations were down 1.8% and 7%
expansion in the first half but medest contraction
in the second half. Oyr dispesais provide clear
evidence t support these valuations.

Our portfolio is virtualty full with occupancy

af 98% Despita the low level of vacancy, we
signed 1.7 million sq it of leltings and rensvels
i the year, on average 8.0% ahead of ERV. In
both the retai 2nd office markeis we are secing
an inaeasing focus on the best gpace in the
best locations.

n Offices, where the resull of the EY
referendum created greater uncertainty, w2
have seen oocupiers continuing to comamit, but
often after tonger and more thoughtful decisien
making processes. OQur teasing performance
W3S strong; with space let oF tlerms renewed
on 277.000 s it of space in the year, on average
1.£% ahead of ERY. This included the resnaining
space at The Leadenhail Building and Marble
Arch House Al 7 Clarges Streat, the office
space was ovar 80% lel just four months alter
faunch. In addition, we have 700,000 sq it of
space under offer or in advanced negolialions.
aaress our development pipeline. This indudes
102,000 55 it 2t 4 Kingdom Sireel where 2imost
80% of the office space was under offer within
aweek of completion in April 2017, on termis
ahead of pre-referendum ERYs_and 1 Trilon

e where we are under offer on 316,080
5q trepresenting all of the office space on’
the proposad redevelopment.

Gur focus on Londonh remains. We expact London
o contirwse as a leading global ity refleciing its
diverse pool of intellectual capital and reputation
for inngvation, as well as ils culture, language
antl strong regulatory and legal framework.
Our aclivity this year is testament 1o the quality
of our space which reflects the needs of today's
occupiers. By providing space which reltects
the evolving way people are working and

" blending their work and leisure twne, we help

our occuers allract and retain key talent.

Our newest spaces are more lleble, caiering
{0 the demands of byg and small companies with
the oplion of shorter leasa 1erm arangements.
This year, we wall be launching a branded Rexible
workspare offer which enables us 1o caplure
incremental demand from the increasing
number of small businesses taking space in
London as well as meeting a grawing need
amongst our existing accupiers for Aexible
space for specific projects and teams._ We have
already agreed our first flexible workspace
letting at 2 Finsbury Avenue, extending our
relationship with an exisling occupier at
Paddington Central for their digital leam.

In Retail, demand remained firm in the year,
ddspile wider uncertainty for consumers and
relaiders alike. We let more space on belter
terms i6 3 wider range of occupiers than in the
previous year. This arnounted to 1.3 rmillion sq ft
of leasing, on avarage 10.8% ahead of ERV.
Consumer spending was resilient in the months
following the EU referendum, bul weaker sales



data in recent months suggests that consumerns
are becoming mane cautious with higher prices
impaciing disposable mcomes. Relaftersarealss
aniiapaiing 2 more challenging environment,
with import cost inflation, higher biusiness rates
in some areas and the National Living Wage
putbing pressure on mangns.

These dynamics have increasad refailers’ lorus
on space which allows them to rade prolitably
across a cange of channels. Our Regionat and
Locat portiotio supports thei strategy. Our
Regional cantres provide a broadas offering,
suited to targer, R2gship stores and atiracting
visitors from & wide catdunent for a tonger
dwell ime Qur Local centres are convenient
and accessible 2nd so they work well for cick
and collect and more targeled shopping trips,
aswell as providing a renge of amevitias for
local commundies. Gur placemaking aciviies
and our community engagement encourage
new and repsal visits to gur sites and this has
driven continued i both
fooliall lzhaad of bendhmark by 249 bps) and
retailer in-store sales growih [220 bps sheadl.

We have madz good progressoncur |
davelopment pipeline. As wall as completions

at & Kingdorm Streel and lhe offtces elament of
Clarges, we cormsmitted Lo e redevelopment

of 100 Liverpool Street 2t Broadgate anduarks
commenced there in Decamber. UBS have now
vacated 800.000 sq 6 of space across the campus
on cornpletion of thesr cocupancy of 5 Broadygate.
totaied at the gateway to cur Broadgate
campus and adjacent to the new Liverpool Street
Cruossrail station, this develepment progresses
our vision te create a world class. mixed use
destination at Broadgate providing a range of
space, inctuding significant additional retail
and restaurants.

Gross investmant activity since the start of

the year totatied £2.0 billion and incleded the
exchange of cur 50% interest in The Leadenhall
Building, which is due to complele tatér this
month, refleciing gur disciplined approach lo
capital allocation. This project has delivered
annualised relums of 25% for us and our J¥
partnar since our comemitment in 2010 and
demonstrates how our standalone office
properties provide liquidity, allowing usto
develop and trade opportunistically. Gn the
retail side, we sold €881 million of single-tet
and non-core retail assels, including
Dehenhams, Oxford Street for £400 million

and £225 millzon of superstores, reduang the
weighting of superstores within our portfolio

to 4%. Our £195 maittion of acquisitions were
focused on adjacencies o existing haldings,
notably the New George Street Estate in
Piymouth I£64 millien] which complements
Orake Circus and t0-40 The Broadway

[£49 million), adjacent to Ealing Broadway.

The nel impact of aur activity was a 7.4%
increase in Unterlying Profits to £390 million.
Lie-for-like income growth of 2.9%, together
with lower knance costs reflected in a further
reduction of aur weighted average interest rate
ta 3.1%, has mare than afiset the impact of
disposals. Diluted underlying EPS was up

10.9% at 378 pence per share. The final
dividend paymant wilt be 7.3 pance par share,
bringing the full year dividend to 29.2 pence per
share, an increase of 3.0% and contribwsting ko
a tolal accouniing return of 27%. The Board

-is propasing 2 quarterty dividend of 7.52 pence

per share or 30.08 pence for the cormng year,
afurther increase of 3.0%. The impact of recent
sales and expines on future prohils, our g
payaul ratio, and the uncertain environment
influenced the Board's thinking, aswell as lfwe
opporiunities that we have withén the portfolio

to grow income over the mediur term.

The impact of cur invesimen! activity has been
to reduce our proportionally consolidatad LTV
10 29.9% at March 2417 frem 32.1% in March
2016. This fabls further to 26.9% pro forma

for the sale of The Leadenhall Buiding. With
our completed developments substandially
L2t and good progress on ptanning and pre-let
discussions across the pipeline, we are )
well placed to exploil the eptionaiily we have

to create valuz and grow income. We have
identifizd near lerm and medium term
opportunities that enable us to apply our
development and placemaking expertise

in prograssing the delivery of our strategy.

Last week, we obtained approval from

the | ondon Borough of Camden on the
redevetopment of 1 Tnton Square at Regent's
Place, whers we are under offeronallof the
office space. We expeci o commit to this, as
well as refurbishments of 135 Bishopsgate and

1 Finshury Avenue at Broadgzte in the coming
months with an assocdiated cost of c.C300 mathon.

Looking further ahead, our medium term pipsline
covers a range of uses, including office-led
develapment in London and retail and mixed use
development 3aross the countr'y. notably Eden
Walk in Kingston where wa received planning
permission for our 538,090 sq ft mixed vse
regeneration during the year. We will maintain
an appropriaie level of develapment risk: for
our office-ted developmenls commitmenl s
tikety to be influenced by the progress of pre-tet
discussions. We have a disaplined approach
to capital atlocation and retain flexibitity to
respond to the changing erwironment.

Inaddilion, we are making progress at Canade
Water where we are working closety with key
stakeholders induding the London Borough of
Southwark. We held our lourth public consuliation
in May 2017 and are targeting submissien of

a planning applicalion around the end of this
financial year. We have held discussions with
awide range al potential occupiers and have
been encouraged by the response.

British Land received the Queen's Award lor
Enterpnise in 2016, the UK's highest accolads
for business suctess. One year on, wa are
conlinuing to deliver strong economic, soaal
and environmental performance. Gur indusiry-
leading energy and carbon reductions resulled
in British Land being named European Sector
Leader in the Giobal Real Estate Sustainability
Benchmark for the third year running and n
the COP Climate A List, we rank in the top 9%

of glchzl comparies leckling dimate dbang'e_
Wa have izunchad Bright Lights, our skitls

ard empleymens programme helping avaga
range of prople indo work within our indusiry.
That isclsdes vrihin British Land. | was atse
particuiardy piacsed to 2nnounce that we had
vpdated our policy en Sharad Parental Pay to
provide equsl enhanced benzfits for alt parenis,
meeemgﬂedrmwemprmmmg the
development of a diverse and inctusive team,

Outlook

| orking furwrard, the piciure is a mixed ona.

The Brexit process has bagun bt encertaindy
vl contimees for semne considerable time. Though
the UK econommy has performed well since the
vote, v can expad mere inflalion and intreasing
pressure on disposabla inoomes. This will impact
opmner behaviour and retafier profitabity,
Longan oooupiars, particularly finanoal
insitulions, are makting confingzncy plans bl
Msawﬂemﬂg&dmﬁﬂemﬂmm
Our conwarsakions with ccoupiers telf us that
atange magprity continee ke valua Londen and
belizve in its place 35 2 giobal centre, as we do.

Although we are seeing husinesses taking
longer to commit and being more thorough in
assassing eplions, we see polarisation of both
goougier and mvestor demand accelerating with
an increasing lenus on the best quality space.
Cur resulls show that our space conlinuss to be
attractive to ocoupiers and investors alike, with
sireng leasing across the portfolio, profitable
Ewnocalc and material sutperformance an

our Retzil operating metrics. This reflects the
centinuing execulion of cur stralegy. providing
space thatl respands to changing lifestyles

&nd really fulfils customers’ needs.

In this unczriain envirorment, we expect lo
benefit from the resilience of cur business, the
tuality of our pertfolio and the sirength of car
finances. We altso look ferward with cautiows
oplimism as we belteve that we can generate
incremental returns by allocating cagital o
gevelopment apportunities we have created,
whitst keeping rick al an appropriate level and
Rexibility to respond to changes in our markets.

Chris Grigg
Chiel Execulive Officer

For more information on Our business
model. see pages 10and i1,

For more informalion on gur 2017
full year results presentation see
v hritishdand com/results

For more information on gur approach to -
sustainability see www.britishtand.com/

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017 7



serutegic Kepurt

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

QOur privorities for the year ahead

Customer Oriendation
- Further develop customer insighis
- - Deliver tachnology driven inngvations

Right Places

- Deliver next steps of the
Broadgate Masterplan

- L e =Y “ P ! wal! ::‘

-~ Deliver Mlexible warkspace offer

Capital Efficiency
- Beat budget and achieve leasing targets
— Recycle capital to improve returas

Expert People

- Promote an inclusive, performance
* driven culture
- Create a mare customer focused
organisation

with Chris Grigg

How is British Land
responding to BREXIT?

We run British Land to take advantage of
long term trends i also to be resilient,
s6we are positioned to operale in a range
of markel conditions - property is a cyclical
business. The quality of the assets we

own ang the strength of our finances

sarve us well as we face the polenhal
chalienges of Brext.

8 ) British Land | Anaual Repart and Accounts 2017

Brexdi is just one factor impaciing cur
markets. Technology is at the heart

of many far-reaching changes we are
seeing. I London, Brexit is acoeterating
the trends we are already responding
to: how peaple work and live, the growih
i creabive and lech indusines, and

the retative decline in demand (rom
traditional banks.

We continue 1o believe in London in the
tong lesn and are encouraged by the
demand we are seeing from occupicrs.
LT s for our buildings since

the vate. However, we have planned

for 3 period of uncertainty: we have
mogerated our speculative development
risk and have conbinued fo diversify oor
office occupier base. We have made gond
progress on teasing discussions and this
puts usin 3 streng position 6 commit

to new developments to generate
incremental relsrms, while keeping

risk at a sensible level.

Sales over the {ast year, including

The L eadenhall Building, have reduced
our leverage further putbng us ina
strong position lo take advaniage of
investment opportunities we have
created within our portfolio,



66

Understanding these
different stakeholders
and the reusons why
they prefer one location
to another is what
creating Places People
Prefer is about.”

What mikes Eritish Land different?

Our values

Our values uniderpin evernything we do.
They are:

Do what is right, Work efficiently
ot what is easy a5 one team
Make commercial Make things.
decisions that create happen
longtermvalue -

ILis the combination of 2lt these things there longer too. Gur new Leisure Quarter

which makes us different. ' at Glasgow Fort comprises restaurants,
We have a clear purpose at British Land o green public spaces and children’s pocket
areate Places People Prefer and this drives You talk a lot about customer parks in which to gather. socialise and

the business. We have s relentless focus
on customars so we create the places
theywanl; not just individual buildings but
exiernal environments too — it's samething
Irefer to as ‘inside and out’. And, we have
the scate and capabilities to deliver on

this {ong term approach.-

This means we invest heavily in data and
insights to understand whal custorners
realty wanl. informing where we allocate our
capital. This ensures our properlias raflect
the changing way people live their lives and
provide what businesses need Lo thrive.

Byinvesting in well located schemes

we can create greal spaces atongside the
bread range af amenities, experiences ang
services people want as their work and
home lives becoming increasingly blurred.
This is why our London campuses and
enulli-let retail centres are becoming
more diverse and mixed use.

Our operational scale. expertise and

tong lerm approach mean we have the
capacity and skills to make the investments
"required and to deliver the benefits.

focus — why is this important fo
a property investment company?

Successiul businesses understand and
deliver what thair customers want. For
us the interesting conversation has been
defining who our cystemers are. IU's not
just the husingsses who lease space at
our retail cenlres and offices but slso0

the people who work in them, the people
who choose lo shop 2nd spénd time there
and the local communities who kive in
and around tham. Understanding these
different stakeholders and the reasons wiy
they prefer cne location o anether iswhat
treating Piaces Peopte Brefer is absut.

An cutsianding place calers for all and
often increases tha connection batween
thein_ H your customers prefer your place
then your b iswell positioned for
success. Fhat's why we focus onlong termn
trends affecting howwe work, shop and
live and invest in our properties to ensure
they remain relévant 1o our customers,

This means people not anlywant lo be in
and around our properlies but want 1o stay

play. More car parking was also added
in response lo shopper leedback. This,
with other investments, is changing the
demegraphic of peagle shopping at

the cenire and the retailers we altract.
[n turn, looifalt has continwed o inciease
and this is fuelling rentat growth.

‘We are changing our London campuses too.
Broadgate, once home Lo predominznity
large City financial inslitutions, is becoming
a seven-day-a-week tocation. itis the
largest pedestrianmsed commmercial space
in London and is responding ko the changing
reeds of office oocupiers, beneliting from
its posilion in a dynamic pari of Landan

and the opening of Crossrail. The way we
are configuring buitdings and ffering more
Rexible space en more flexibie terms mean
wa are already appealing to a wider range
of socupiers. By adding more resiaurants,
shops and evenls we are broadening the
appeal well beyond the employees of the
businesses based there.

For more on Chris’ views see
www.britishland.com/CEOblog

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017 9



Sreacesiv Repart

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We apply our placemaking expertise to our

high quality portfolio to generate enduring
demand from a broadmrngeofogcupwrs

How we create value

We apply our placemaking
expertise to create great places
Jor modern lifestyles. These
are Places People Prefer.

Inputs

t > Capiial Efficiency
Wa finance our business with a combination of
equity and debt. We manage the batanca to adjust
the scale gnd risk profile of the Company.

Qur scale brings operalional elhcencies, influence
and access o opportunities. as wall as the capadty
{o invest in our portfolio,

We have choices over how o allocate our Capital. We can
invest in the existing portfclio, develop new properties or
purchase properties. We evaluate the prospective returmns of
each oplion toinformn our aliacation of capitel. We 2le congider
returning surplus capital lo shareholders.

. Customer Orientation
We can choose to sell properties to erysiallise the value that we We understand our
create. This provides capital for reinvestiment into oppoertunities with cust * nreferences
greater praspeclive relurns for shareholders. We maonitor gpportunities oulers P N
1o dispose of assets which are not aligned with our strategic priorities and identify major long
or do nol meel our Felum aspirations on an ongoing basis. term trends impacting our
) ) o markets, to ensure that
For more infermation on Capital Efficiency see'pages 22 and 23. the plaws we e te 1
: operate respond to people’s
changing lifestyles.
Expert Peaple
We have proven expertise in the areas required to deliver most For maore information on Customer
valye from our porifolio. As weil as established property skill sets Orientation see pages 16 and 17

such as assel Manag t and develop . we are invesling
in capabilities required to ensure our properlies meel the changing
ways that peaple work, shop and live including data analytics

and insights, markeling and customer service.

For more information on Expert People see pages 28 and 235,

44 000

> Our relationships and partpers CUSIONMET Sutweys each

: Qur relationships with a range of stakeholders yearto m whal our
H i : R pears ©

: including our cuslomers, invesiment partners and employees want from

: and the communities in which we aperate are our places

key 10 our success.

For more inforrmation on our stakeholders

rppitaanten

: see page 15,
............................ et nhnaheeaee e Ao eateeseea s et s em st ens s s e st s s na ettt tm et emesrasrmesnnee) PESRIVE for our stakehalders §
> reinforce our relationships

10 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts ?i)l?



‘Outputs

Financial performance - :
Rental incoone from our pregerties, lass
operaling 2nd nance cosls, s recognised
’ . as our Undeviying Profil As a Reat Estate

&N investmani Trust (REM we are required o
‘ distriberte 21 beast 70% of t2x exernpl property
ivvestod in enhanting income o Mdmas dwn‘la‘ads_
environments, acrass the

portfolin in the Last year Otiher income, expenses and movements

i the valustion of our preperties translate
o movament in our nel asset value.

Far smoro mifnrmatinn on our foancial

perforthance see 370 £2.
Right Places We have assembled a high o=
Our understanding of quality portfolio on a large
long term trends and our scale. We locas on mualti-let
customers has driven a retail across the UK and -
focus on places in well office-led campuses in London
connected locations where ‘which are increasingly mixed
we can control the broader use. Our customer focus
environment to deliver and our actions to enhance
a better t:xpenence..“’e our places drive endnrmg Pusitive outcomes
apply our placemaking demand for our properties for our stakeholders :
framework to create from a broad range : - Dividends and long tesn capital
Places People Prefer. of occupiers. growih for shareholders
- Enjuyable. corwvenient expericnces
Fl_:r more information on which promote wellbeing for the
Right Places see pages 1810 2). users of our properties -
- Improving sales performance
and productivity for our occupeers

-~ Altractive sustainable emvironments,
evenis, jobs and skalls development

We benéfitﬁomourmleﬁnd

for our local communities
operate our assets over the long - Profitable, collaborative business
term to create sustainable for ous suppliers
- Enjoyable. challenging, rewarding
value for all stakeholders. work for our employees

................................. fludo

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017 11



Serxtediv Report

MARKET TRENDS AND HOW WE ARE RESPONDING - i

Our business is positioned to
benefit from long term trends

Key long term trends

'lheb'](’sdmngmgmlemglohalmrkets -
London will remain a leading glebal Gy, but well face near lerm encerlainty as the lerms on
which the U lzaves the EU are negotiated. e may see moreased pressune on employment
in finanoiat services and related seclors as businesses assess whether London 2nd the UX
remain the besl location for them. The wealer currency ransiates to kigher inpul costs for
retaiters, with consumars potentially facing lower disposable noomes as inflation increases.

Population growth and urbanisation

The UK populalionis azpec[ed to grow frosn 65 miltion in 2015 ta aver 74 million in 2040,
Much of the inarease is expecied o be i its largest dities, particularty London, where
there is an increasing emphasis on attracive mixed wse environments.

Transfornmtive impact of technology

Technolegy is not anty driving changes in how we work and shop. il is having a profound impact

on the space we accupy. The ability to work remaotely changes how we use office space, increasing
the demand for lexible and co-working space. in responsa to online, redaiters are developing
sophisticated omni-channel strategies, and are using tedhaology o respond o changmg
consumer hehawour

Evolving workier and consumer expectations

The distinction between work and leisure ime is increasingly blurred so people expect a
range of amenities and services, and 2 choice of laisure and entertainment activities to lorm
an integrat part of the places where they work. shop and live_ This is increasing demand for
mixed use environments which are wait integrated with local communities and provide a
superior and differentiated offer.

Wellbeing and sustainability

People’s wellbzing is strongly influenced by the places where iheyspend time. Increasingly,
companies are focusing on providing warkspaces whach promote wellbeing and increase
productianty. The quality of workspace has become a tool ta atiract and redain key tatent and
retailers are choosing to locate their stores in environmenis which encourage customer loyalty.
There is als0 a growing expectation that bulldings should reflect environwnental concerns.

N
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How we are responding

For more information on Qur
stralegy see pages 14 and 15.

66

We focus on our customers and curate
the environment inside and out using
our scale and placemalking expertise.”

Investing in London

The impact on London of the UK's departure from the EU is untlear, but its capacdily to svolve

is well established. We belizve ths! the ease of domg busmess, s ntetlechsal copital. cdlture,
diversity and reputation for infrovation underpins Londan's long term appeal a5 a globat business
and cultural centre. S8% of our portfolin is located here_and £4 billion of our assels arz in

dose proamity te Crosseail stations, reflecting the importance of well-connected space to

our customers.

closer to our customers -
Our strategy is fecused on our occupiers and their cusiomerns and employees. We have investad
in the skills and resources we need to better undersiand their prelerences. la Relail. our data
prolites tha demograghics of loca! catchunenis and our shoppers. as well a5 whan and how
people use our centres, highlighting the potential of each scheme. In Ofhces, we sunvey office
workers and engage with key decision makers (rom a range of businesses, providing important
insight into how (o IMmprove our work Spaces.

Creating great environments

Across our business, gur strategyis lo control the wider environment on both our multi-let

relail cenlres and our London campuses. enabling us to deliver places which are attractive and
authentic but also flunchional and efficient. Gur environments are designed 1o reflect people’s
changing lilestyles, where the distinclion between work and leisure lime is increasingly blurred.
We target a miz of occupiers and services which reftect the tocal caichment and provide evenls
which enliven our places and bring communities together.

Maintaining a flexible development pipeline

Development has been an impor tant driver of returns and we have assembled a pipeline

of apportunities across a range of uses. In the more vncertain environment, our appetite for
speculalive development has moderated, butwe are well placed to grogress our plans when
the time is right. The majority of the development opportunities in our partiolio enhance
exisling assels.

Promoting health and wellbeing

We are focused on delivering snvironments which proraote wetibeing and improve productivity.
Social places, green spaces and iniiatives whach encourage active living, such as cycle racks
and fitness cenlres are incorporated where possible and wellbeing activities form an important
part af our evenis prograrnme across bath our Retail and Offices portiolios. Al 130 Liverpool
Skreet, we are targeting the WELL Building Standard which supports wellbeing inngvations
that help create healthier, more productive offices.

Far more information on sustainability
see www. britishland.com/sustainability

British Land | Annusal Report and Accounts 2017 13



Seratedie Hepurt

OUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

QOur strategy
determines bow we
create Places People
Prefer and informs
our annuad priorities Customer Orientation
to changing lifestyles
" For our pricrities for the - Emandmeuseofdalaamimlyucs
year ahead go to page 8. to drive insight
’ - Lewverage technology 10 dzvelop high quahly
For more information on value-added services for our occupiers
how we performed in the - Develop our brand to be recognised
1asl year go lo page 26 and 27. lor creating Places People Prefer
Pluces
People

Our sustainabitity locus areas are Capita] E[ﬁciency
aligried to our stralegic priorities: . .
Disciplined use of capital

- Recydle capilal Lo maximise performance
- Manage our development exposure and

ellbei ; . . financial leverage while rmaintaining
W Commiunity the benefits of scale .

Future- Skﬂlannd

Creating Places This generates

Right Places

Creating great environments,

tnside and out

- Forus on mixed use, lifestyle real estale

- Position gur places to zppeal to a wder
range of occupiers

- Investin existing assels 2nd emarging
locations which henefit rom regeneration

~ and growth

Expert People

The knowledge and skills to deliver

- Mawlain and enhance key slulls sets,
particularty in techaology, customer service
and insights

— Promote aninclusive and diverse cullure

- Leverage expertise through cross-team
collabaration

Together with an

People Prefer long term growth optimal capital

For more information see drives enduring in rents and
worw britishtand. : .
in"a'.;";."""‘ com/ demand for our capital value
properues

14 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

structure this
delivers sustainable
long term value




Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all our stakeholders
WedothzsbycreatmgPlacesPeoplePrqfer

Invmtment pariners
- Access lo high Quality
real estale

- Access to our data-driven
insights and capabilities

- Asset management and
development skills

- Strong relationships
including with local authorities
and communities

- Scale of investment
and financing

Investors
. — Acoess i high quality,

3

. liquid real estate invesiment
- Siable, growing dividend

= Susiainable long term reqsms

" For muore information on
our financial performance
golo pages 3910 &2,

Suppliers

- Afundamental role as partners
in delivering placemaking

- Reqular communication
and transparency

- Consistent commercial terms
for profitable partnership

- Shared insights, innovaltion
and skills development

Far our Supply Chain Ghacier
ge to www britishiand.com/
suppliers.

HETS

- High quality, vibrant
ervironmenls which drive
footfall and custemer toyalty,
2nd encourage emgloyee
rotantion .

- Flexible spate which can
adapi to changing needs

- Affordable and effident buildings

For mare information
on our Major 6CCupiers,
see the table on page T88.

-

Local commmmities
- Inclusive places with a
sense of community

— Meaningful tocal relationships

— Facilities and services that
cormect with and enhance
the overall area

— Places which suppari
local jobs and skills

For our Lacal Charter ga
to wwwe.britishland_com/
community

Consumers
- Conveniente and amix
of ocoupiary
- QOutstanding cusiomer
services and lacilities
- High quatily environmeanis
which promote wellbeing
— Chuoice of leisure and
entertainment activilies
To read more on Customier
Brientation go to pages
16and 17.

Emplovees

- Potential to develop skills
and opportumhes

= Working wath some of the
bes! people 3cress the most
exciling projects in the sector

- Aninclusive environment

- Opportunities o make
a positive difference

To read moie on Expert
Peaple go to pages 26 and 23,
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Stratesiv Hepore

OUR STRATEGY - CUSTOMER ORIENTATION

wiatin

Customer Orientation

Responding to

changing lifestyles

We use surinsight into customers’ needs and
identify major long tern trends to create
environments which reftect changing lifestyles

Who are our customers?

Our customars are Lhe end users of our
properties as well as our occupiers. We engage
with the peaple who visit our Relail centres and
our Office properties, as well as the employzes
and residents who work and live, in and around
them, to provide buildings and environmants
which meel their changing needs.

How we uaderstand our customers.
Qur insight leam gperates across the business,
collecting and analysing data (¢ develop our
understanding of who our customers are, how
thay hehave, whal they experienca and what
lheir preferences are. This knowtedge and the
long lerm trends impacting our business {set
out on page 1210 13]inform our approach

{for each asset within our porilolio.

In Retail we use this informabion lo understand
Ihe preferences of people visiling our cenlres
and others within our catchments. This helps
us 1o balance our space appropriately betwaen
retail. leisure and food & beverage and quides
which brands we should be targeting. it provides
valuable feedback on what people like about our
services and environments and whaere we can
improve_and helps us assess the impacl of
enhancemnents we underiake. We collect data
on trading and occupancy cost ratios so wecan
identify cccupiers who are under or over Lrading
and locale them in the most approprizie space.
For each centre, we are able to map the shopper
missions the centre serves and understand

the potential range of consumer jourreys it can
capture. This inferms our vision of how to position
the centre and what changes we should make
to profitably grow footfall and consumer spend
for our occupiers.

The rrain structural shift impacting UK speading
habits in recent years has been the increasing
role of the internet. We creale places that enable
our accupiers to trade prolitably across a renge
of channels. To help us better understand the
role of physical space in each channet, we
parmered with retail consultancy GlobalData

to quaniify the True Value of Stores.

16

Understanding our
Retail customers

- Wa collect geographic and
" demographic data on ocal

calchments, including online
data from .3 mitlion individuals

— We collect operational dala including

_footall, dwell lime and sates on the

majority of our multi-let assets

— W underlaka 40,000 shopper
surveys each year

— We collect data from c.12 million visits
te our Retail centre websites each year

Our research [shown in the chart below] shows
that dick and cotlect and store browsing boosts
phyysical sales by 5%. rising to 9% for non-
grocery spend. Click and cullect customers are
ncredibly valuable because they spend around
50% more than the average shopper, including
spend in addition lo the ilems being cotlected.

89

of all UX retal sates touch a physical store

Frue Value of Stores reseanch

£
]
2
g
2
3
[+

Physdsmm Chickand  Onlinesates T vl
Coltect ol stores

ses  browsed
ngore

As well as benafiting frem this, retailers alse
save on delivery casts and creale 2ddional
opportenities to angage consumess. The
wolume of dick end collect ransacions

in the UK is lereczst o double over the nextt
five years. Owr Loca! cemires already caplure
&56% more ditik and collec] ransacons

the combinabion of convenient lozations,
free car pariting and quality environments
appeal 1o the dick and collect shopper.

T Qffioess our focws is on understanding
perspectives on the workplace of leday's office
warkers. This year we launched the Office
Agenda, 2 websile wheare vwe engage with
senior dearsion rmatkers amongst current and
prospective corupiers on issues which matter to
them. Today's cooupiers see thar workspace as
a tool to attract and retain kzy talent so our first
avrea of focus was on'what made a greal place lo
waork, with particul2r ennphasis on “millennials’
whao will be the pnncipal users of our space oves
the coming decades. Our survey of over 1.000
affice workers revealed that tacation and
transport tinks were the most important
factors, and in London, 93% of millennials said
the ‘buzz’ of a location was also important
Acound 9% of Landon millennials want food &
beverage and retail opliens nearty, Alusirating

£53bn £4bm

BY% o total netal

Online sales Ontine  Malorderand  Votalezad
not broased pwqﬂay TV Shagaping Sales

-2 Total online sales

> Onlline safas of stare gperalions,

=¥ Uiz that touches bhe skae

Scance: GloballatyfPrish Land, Juy 016

For more information see www.britishland com/TrueValueofStores
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Understanding our

Office customers

- We surveyed 1,000 office workers
and decision makers ehwhal makes
a great place to work and a furthar
1080 on "smart” office technology
- We syrveyed 1,500 visitors and 250
employees across our Carmpusas on
their experience
- We measure footfall aoross our campusezs
- We run lorus groups with existingand
prospeciive oooupiers aboul what they
need from a campus

just how closaly wark and sedat ves roe
overiap. This insight supports eur fecus en
ampus envirenmants with a mix of retail and
teisure uses and influences the way we design
ang configure nevs buildings.

Surveys acnoss Qur CaMpises wese also
supportive of cur approach. Custemer
satisfaction tevels were high scoring £ out of 5,
with architaecture and landscaping, owersil -
atmasghere and safety all scoring particularty
well. The combined net promoter score for alt of
. our campuses {a measure of willingness among
alfice workers to recommend their place towork)
was above the benchmari for London. We will
moniter this on an engoing basis o assess our
performance in meeting custorirer neads.

Looking forwand, technology is prirading

the capacity to make our buildings 'smarter’,
with systems that can adapt automaticalty. for
example moderating lighting and temperature
te individuat needs. This was the second area
of facus in the Office Agenda and our surveys
shawad that 87% of dedision makers would
require smart lechnology in their office next
time they moved, This will be a focus for us

in the coming years and we will be making

104 Liverpoot Streel "smart from the start’.

The Qffice Agenda is available at
http://otficeagenda.britishland.com

British Land workplace sarvey:

tnsght provided by our dals atirattad
oTCupiers W new termats.and lotations.

To read about how we create places
which reftect customer preferences
using our placemaking framework,
goto pages 18lo 21

How we engage with our occupiers
We aim to develop collaborative lang term
relationships with cur oocupiers. We have a
structured diznt relatipnshin rmanagament 3
programme and are happy lo share our insights
on consumer behaviours and today's worklorce
weith cur customers. This is particularty
benelidal in leasing discussions aswa
position aur assets o appeal lo a breadar
range of occupiers.

in Retail we use our detailed vnderstanding

of lorat calchmenis, demographics. spending
pattems and consumer greferances o effactivaly
larget new occupiers. Acress our portiolio, we
=n idenbify areas where retailers are ynder-
represented, and where our catchments match
the profite of their target shapper. Combined
with persuasive footfall and sales data, and the
modern, 2itrsclive efrironinents at our centres,
we are siecassfully attracling occupiers

1o gaographies and retait formnats in which
they have not previously operated.

in Offices we have established a consistent
approach to aur relationships wilh all levels

of occupier: from our day-to-day contacts

What makes an ideal office?
- =1
2 g —
H * s [
- < o [ee]
" s 3]
-
¢ .
- - . | [ -
Location Sofety & Publi: Commamal  Burz Mearby
Security  tranesport areas ntaion food &
. - beverage
WAl @ London Millennials 5

From a survey of oeer 1.090 UK ol woskers com@sitad in Decersber 2005 and Janusty 0014

5
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Reflecting castomer feeds

At Blasgos Fort, we have responded to austonar
fmedaack bymoreasng a7 park capatiiy andg the
mdmh@nmf@mm

throusgh te key sirategic decision mahers. We
share trends we have identified 2nd research
we have collecied around how workers would -
llkelnanddause hair office space. This helps
our oocupiers mew e changing needs of
teday's worklerce and improve their everall
wellbeing. lnmﬂrnsappmd\h@psus

Lo refine cur amn proposition.

One new area of fecws for usisTieable -
warkspace. Techavology is driving change @
people’s warking peiterns, areating dennarid
for quality space which s Rexible in tarrns of
both the confiquration of the physical space and
the lease arrangements. Our campus-based
office portfelio positions s veell to address
this growing need. whether in respect of small
and expanding businesses or larger companies
requiring added Rexbiity. We have established
a small in-house teain 2o deliver agamest these
needs, soin fune 2017 we will iaundh our st
flexible workspace at Broadgate with plans

to roll out this offer across eur campusas. -

Broadgate Estates
Wa provide a consislent and high sandard
of customer service 20ross our portiolio

through our property management compary

‘| Broudgate Estates, which is responsible for

the day-lo-day operalion of our assets as wall
as those of third parlies. In autumn 2016 we
campleied the iransition of the management of
our Retail assets to Broadgate Estales Having
a single organisation responsible for all assets
enables us to rapidly caplure and ransfer best
practice learnings across mar porifolio. Warld
Hosl' training and accreditation has been rolled
out across our campuses and mualii-lel retait
centres, improving the quatity of customer
service across the portfolio. Further initiatives
to enhance the experience of customers at our
places are planned.

For more information en Broadgate Estates,
go to www.hroadgateestates.co.uk
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OUR STRATEGY - RIGHT PLACES

Right Places

inside and out

We design engaging, sustainable places
which bring people together through
the right mix of accupiers, services
and activities.

Our strategic focus

Together with the long term rends

(see pages 12 and 13) we have identified,

il i5 our understanding of cur customers
that guides our strategic focus on creating
Places People Prefer.

n Retail cur approach reflects our-
understanding of the copsumeyr, S0 we
provide places where people can shop,
eal, and be entertainad; places which
are corveniend and 2ccessible, and which
connect with local communities. We dlassily
our multi-let retail cenires as Regronal’
which attract visitors from a wade catchment,
and "Local which reflect the needs of
local communities. Qur research tells
us that convenience is Llhre most imporiant
consideration in any shopping np. so we
conceniraie on assets which are well served
by public infrastruciure and where parking
is widely available. Our strategy is to com
and operate assels which are the preferred
destination for the journeys they serva within
" thesr caichments. We are aclive in disposing
of single-fet retail assets which don't
provide oppor tunities lor us 1o deploy
our placemaking expertise.

1n Offices our main focus is on office-led
campuses which also include & mix of retail,
leisure and residential 10 create atiraclive
and engaging emvironments. They reflecl

the lifestyle of today's workforce and appeat
1o 3 broad range of occupiers. Tegether our
three London campuses, Broadgate, Regeal's
Ptace and Paddinglon Centrat account for
78% of our olfice portiolic lfollowing the sale
of The Leadenhall Buildingl. We 2{so own
standalone assets and small clusters of
assets in slyong locations wilh well-managed
environments. These provide liquidity in the
QHices partfclio. allowing us fo develop and
trade more opportumsticalty.

QOur strategic focus

Offices

Lifestyle oniendated rixed use offices

uses
Large, office-led mixed use
lifestyle campuses :

Standalone
Single assets and small clusters

The importance of London

We expect London la remain a teading
global City. it plays hosi 10 an ecosystem
ol nlerrelated busi 5 and ils uniq
attractions inctuding the ease of doing
business, its intetlectual capitat, culiure,
divarsity and repulation for innovation
underpin its long term appeal. We belreve
it will continue to benafit from population
growth and urbanisation. driving long term
demand for our places. In \he months
following the EU referendum several
teading global businesses from a range
of sectors, including technology and
finance, realfirmed their commiltment lo
London with significant teases. prowding
a sirong vote of confidence in the City.

Deploying our capital

Our focus on Right Ptaces informs our
investment decisians - whal to acquire,
what to develop. which capital projects to
invast in and what to sell. All properties

that we purchase must be aligned with our
strategic focus and have the potentiat to
meet the evolving needs of changing lifestyles,
We are active in selling those properties
wilhin our portfolio which do not meei these
criteria. Development and capital projects
are the main ways that we can enhance

our properties to better meel customers
ewlving demands and have been an
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Retail

Muyta-lel ifestyia cenires
Regional :
Attracting visiors from awide
catchmen fpr a planned trip

Local
Filling into tha dadly life of local communilties

importam doiver of relurms. We discuss
our approach to rnanaging our capital further
in Capital Efficency’ on pages 22and 23.

Creating Places People Prefer
Our undarstanding of our customers

helps us assess the potential of our assets.
For eathassel, we creale a business

plan of how o achieve that potential.

Cur placemaking framework provides

"a consistent approach o enhancing

aur assels as We Connect, We Design,
We Enhance and We Enliven_

C ctis about praviding places which
are corwerent and easdy accessible. with
car parking or public ransport nearby; it is
atso about connecting with people through
our branding and markeling and leveraging
lechnology lo engage with users of our
places efficiently and with impact. Importantly,
il i5 also about our connections within the
community 3nd accupiers, We work with
community organisations, local people and
employers to ensure our places meet their
needs and faster a sense of community.




6 ,

Right Pluces is about identifying the best locations
and using our placemaking expertise to deliver
Places People Prefer.”

Retail
Regional : Local
Missions mdude leisure-dominated Missions indude tocal neighbourhood
Irips, family doy aut and the big ' shepper, convenient leisure and singte
licket shop itemn pick-up
Typically >30 occupiars Typically 15-30 occupiers
Footfalt >10 million, spend Footfall often <8 million, spend
»>£100 million per annum <£108 million per annum
Drive-time >20 minutes Drive-time <15 minutes
Dwrall >80 minutes ~ Dwell <60 minutes

Retail offer covers mullipte categories Retan offer covers mulliple categonies
with depith of choice in each - and includes tocal services ang
amenities

Significant ieisure and foud & beverage,  Convenient leisure and food &

e.g. restaurants, cnama beverage, e.g. gym and coffee shops
Offices
The benefits of campuses The role of standalone assets
- Our campuses account for 78% - Small clusters and more
of our Offices portfolio opportynistic single site assets
- Oliice-led, mixed yse enviroriments - Strong locations within
rellecting changing lilestyles ' well-managed envirgnments
- Placemaking enhances and entivens - Benefit from regeneration or
emironments. appealing to a broader infrastructure improvements
range of occupiers - Provide future refurbishment
- Benelit from strong and improving and development potential
mfrastruciure

- Shorter investment time horizon
- Provide & range ol flexible providing portfolio liquidity

accommodation for occupiers ~ Provide grealer location Hexibility

- Drive long term growth through for occupiers
development
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publac 2rt vstatiation creatad rom dozens of
mudth-cotayred umbrelias, halping to entiven
SouthBate. our Regimna retadl centre in Bath. lnits
Forst wesdk, Satos and foatifall 21 SoedhGate increasad
oy 207, M veers. exjoyed by fre ilion people and
s & papdar fiture on sotiA media, reaching
e than 280,000 Twezier usars and 40,000
Fatehook users.

Qur focus en design is about orealing places
witich are hoth functional and attractive, and
which cormplement the surrounding area.

We cansull extensivaly with local peogle before
any developmeant. At Canada Waler for éexample
we lavnched our fourth public consultation

in May lhis year ahead of submitling planning.

Tha next siep in cur framewark is 1o enhance
our places with the right mix of uses - refail.
oifice, residential, places lo eal, dnink and be
enfertained and to t@rgel an ocoupier mix which
is appropriate for Iha catchment. We use our
data te guida everything fram the accupiers we
arget to Lheir oplimal location at our schemes. -
It 2iso informs where and how we invest in
enhancements to secure the best return.

Finzlly our programme of events, the
hospitatity we show our customers and the
distinctive features of our properiies enliven
ourbuildings and their environments, making
them: places people enjoy visiting, spending
time and returning to. Qur partnership with
orpanisations such as tha Mationat Literacy
Trust both strengtheas our links with local
communities and helps entiven our spaces.
Our wark with the Mew Diorama Theatre at
Regent's Place is a good example of howwe
are engaging with local communities at cur
campuses. We have made more than 40,000
sq ftof rauearsal space available to them on
atamparary basis, creating one of the largest
performing arls spaces of its kind in tondon.
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OUR STRATEGY - RIGHT PLACES

Placemaking is how we create
- attractive and engaging real estate
— We
Connect

Communication Accessibility Community
Digital conrveciinky, branding [ Kence Suppar ting conumaEEies
and markeling and actess tor local people

oommumity prejects
The Regent's Place Comaramity
Fund, a joint invtiative batween
has invested £30,000 this year in
2 jobis club for paaple al risk
of hamalessnass, 3 hezlth dulb
for tha over 405, mentoring lor
dants and accessible th
performancas for local residesds.
0.
52A)
of our London
assals are dose lo
Crossrail Siatons
new brands

Gur F40 million refurbishment of
Meadowhatl is.on track 1o complete
by the end of 2G17. The tmprovements
hawve already helped albract now
brands to Meadowhall intluding
Neal's Yard, Nespresse, Haves &
Curtis, Flannels and Ghast London.

We —

Design

121 young caress from our corfrtestes

eqpinrad thelr craativity ihis year through

QUT aWATH-WONE aTi-space inillative
with aris chanity Cresle. Theywarked
mwmma: Eden Walk
in Kingston, Paddinglan Cantral,
SouthGate in Bath, Sunrey Quays,
Wistedey in Fareham and 2% our hasd
office td defiver orealive aclivitees,

N enlivening o plates.

909%

of owr car parking
spaces are free

improvements driving performance
. Wemibnihmmde

asenesolnmlsmdudmgome
designed by locat sch

ERV growth in the year loliowing
coripletion of the warks was 14%.

P

en.

Prumeting weltheing
Form Allthenti(:ity Function W\alhave completed our ;':_an;gr_amme gl p:lac
Effident and eflective  How our users feel and Facililies FEQT N s a1 Paddi en
buntdmgs and spaces and salety Uumed to conada with the taynch ol & Kengdom

Street. Landscaped areas and outdoor seating

areate places to relax and spend tine cutside the 4
office and an ar\ installation “Message from the

Unsean World™, a ribute to compuier scieniist

Alan Turing. now spans the width of Bishops

Bridge Road enlivening the space undameath

the bridge.

interact with the space
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Over 10%

target retad_food & beverane afocation

W al Broadgak. CurTenity bess an 4% oL
—_— e —_— Abvoater ramge of uses
e pliates Jor the redaveloproend of
- ) Livarpoat Strest a1 Breatyate
e witt 2t $IL050 sq i of retall spae
mdwng 2 roilopresiam=nt.
11 pevwrbrands (o s pant of the
Ciy, 2 i Instrument= increating
Ocvcupier mix - Segment mix  Oceapier service ;mm@dm
. Oooupiars and Balance of different Supporting octypiars and Brozdgate.
CAMNQUS communily segmants and uses Britich Land value add
Upgrading the offer
Since acqiring Eafing Broadway
in TOTY, v b co-dat 35% of the
mﬂbmmﬂmm
Branads Strerizd by the enfiamnced
* envirenmeni folinwing our €53 meiiom
. refhurbishanant such as Swiggle and
Clas Ohison We hove ransfommed the
m&ﬁwwﬂhmmm
Vigsst Limeyerd, Turtle
Bayandﬂm&alﬂm
Innoralting to drive footfall

Tieis year we expandad "Eats lrom the
. Soreet’_ o1s peg-12p dining cimeen! which
. saw ihe British Land Roulemaster bus visi
‘ . 10 of cur Regional and Loce! retail ceitres
serving the bestin British strest food.
Thie concapt was extendad Later in the year,
with ‘SGreat Stylé, a fashion and beauty
event, whith ran a0rss Saven relail centines.
Mlmtnmswmmunrmiuﬁnmgm
Leisure offering. and create more dynanmarc
SHOpping eMAronNmEnis.

Bringing peaple together .
Seasonal evenls at Broadgate .

induded ice skating at Chrisimas,
which attracted 24.000 skaters and
live screening o sporting eveats,
ovr the sumener, such as the
Otympics and Wimbtedon. Cur
regularevents include Bmadgate
Live, gur weekly music session

and our artisan food markets
which are held twice ronthty.

Leveraging technaology to entertain
Wa launched Freezy's Chitsimas Adventure,
anapp-based children's game, 21 21 Regional
and Lol centres across our portolio.
’ The virtual present hunt ran ovar six
We veeehks and was ane of the Uis targest ever
. - - augmented reality games in relail propesty.
The app was downloaded 3lmost 4,000 times

Customer service Events = Memorable expericnce
N On site hospitality Bringing pecpe logeiter Creating Lasting, positive
and customer senice and atiracting isitors Imgressions
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OUR STRATEGY - CAPITAL EFFICIENCY

Capital

Disciplined use of capital
We allocate capital, manage sur finances

and partner with like-minded organisations -
- to deliver sustainable fong termovalue.

Capital allocation

We take a disciplined approach o allocating
our capilal. We forecas! returns for each of
our properties annually and we are active

in selling assels with lower prospeciive
returns, providing capilal for reinvestment
into opporiunities with greater retumns for
shareholders. Assels with luwer prospective
returns are generally those where we do not
have the opportunily to apply our placermaking
expertlise lo create value. This indudes single~
Let retail assets and those assets where the
greatest opportunities for us to add value hawe
already been realised, such as completed,
well-let developments. These properties are
often altractive Lo nvestors who wish to take
2 more passive approach o property awnership
or who altribule greater valus to stable income
over 3 longer time horizon.

We have thoices over how lo invest our capital
and assess the returns availabte both on
opportunities within the portfolio and a2oquiring
niew groperties. Often investraernts withan the
portfolio, or acquiring properties adjacent to
our exisling holdings, result in complementary
benefits, enhancing returns. This is particularty
the case on our campuses. Risk on invesiments
within the portfelio is alsn moderated by

our existing knowledge ol properties and
stakeholders such as cccupiers and

planning authorities.

Oevelopments have delivered some of our
strongest returns, bul are inherenily higher
risk, particutarty when pursued on a speculaive
basis. We manage our development exposure
carefully, limiting it to 15% of the total portiolio
by valuewith a maxirmurn of 8% to be developed
speculatively [i.e. withoul a pre-let or salel
atanytime.

Our development exposure maves within this
range depending on our appetite in the prevailing
markel conditions. Reflecting the uncertainty
leading up to the EU referendurm and sinceits
resull our speculative development exposure
has moderated to just 4%.
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The scale and nature of our portfolio and

our acltions to create optionality in the last

few yaars mean thal we have a range of value
enhancing development opportunities available
to us. We believe that we will manimise returms
over the medium tern by retaining Aexibility

o pursue many of these opportunities when
market damand justifies it. The benelits to
sharshoiders of 3 more immediate capital
retum are an important consideralion for

the Board and this is assessed periodically
longsidz other uses of capital.

For more information on our development
pipetine, see tables on pages 29 to 31.

Debt and leverage

Wa employ beth debt and aquity linancing.
We manage the mix belween them to balance
the benefits of leverage, including a greater
tncome return, againsi the nsks_ induding

a magnification of the impact of property
valuation movements. Loan ta value {LTV|
on a proportionally consolidated basis

is our pnmary measure of leverage. We
aim to manage our LTV through the property
cycle such that our financial position would
rernain robust in the event of a significant
fall in propertly velues. This means we do

not adjust our approach lo leverage based
on changes in property marketyields. -

The scale of cur business, the qualily of our*
assels and the security of aur rental stream
enable us o access a broad range of debt
finance on attractive terms. We raise debt
from a variety of sources across a spread

of maturities to ensure the Group and its
joint ventures and funds are appropriately
financed with actively managed refinancing
risk. We atso maintain significant undrawn
revalving {oan fadililies to provide flexibility
and support current and future requirements
of the business.

For mare on our approach to financing,
see pages 43 to 45 for our Financial
policies and principles.
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Over the last five veurs
we have sold £4.8 billion
of assets and reinvested
£4.2 billion in acquisitions
and developmnents

better aligned with our
strategic priorities.”

Supersiore sales

Ve have comlimeed o tispose of supersipnes
with £226 mificn of sates since biarch 2016
Standiziome supersivres are now 4% of

our paxtiodio, down frem 13% i 2012

Recyxding capital

We sold Oebenhems’ flagship Oxbord Sirael store
for E400 méllion in _hdy 2015 on terms agreest shead
of the referendum. This dispasal veflacis the resadis
of our capital allozration protess and oue siralegic
{ocus on mulii-let assets where we can oonirol

the wider emdronmnent.




Invesiing in partnership

Togather with GIL our prnt ventufe
parnar w 3re wesiing in Broadgate
to craatea vihranl. warld dass, mxed
use Gestinaniooi In 2015we compleied

the red

2of Broadgate Cirde

e in 2013, UBS tonk oocapation of
5 Broadgate We have ey osmmencad

40

of as5etsin juint venhures and unds

Crystatlising value from development

Along with our partners Oxford Properties, we

exchanged onthe sale of The Leadenhatl Bullding this

_ year. Thesdacision o sell reflacted that the greatest
value creation opportunities from development and

' lezsang had been realised. The price, which was
ahead of valuation, cryslallised an annualised IR
of 25% since aur conemitment to develop in 2010

and demonstrates investors’ continuing appetite

{or well Let, well located budidings n London.

Sl.5bn

assels sold since March 2014

Making sensc of BREEAM

. mmmmmmmﬂ

to achieve BREEAM Excrllent sustas s
oh o office schermes is less than Wedda!yn
and construction msks. in our axperience, rlidngs

with sirong sustanaiily ratings are exswar ko el
and athieve highar aooupancy levels. We aton beliove

that they parformn hetter over e, providag high
qualllyqnczsumwmuﬁzwdlhangsldae

4msqft

of BREEAM Excellent offices, shops.
homes and lesurs space

s348m

Reducing our footprink
W are Ritting 24,000 sq i of solar

panzlsal Serpenting Green, Petzrborough,

follewing the success of a pilot at

St Stephen's, Hull This instaliation
is expected to generaie 3 return on
imvestmen! of 13% over 23 yearsand
save 3.300 tonnes of carbon_ aswell as
reduting relianie on the Natienal Giid.

ufatlelectrijtyuﬁepurchaseacmss
o portiolio comes hrom rencwable
sources, working lowards 1005% as

an RE100 parther

Strategic partnerships :
We use strategic parinerships to adueve
benefits of scale and spread risk_Armmd
£0% of our cwned assets by value are in Joint
verlyres amd funds, induding Broadgate

and Meadowhall Within these struciures,
we typically provide asset managesnent, .
developmenl, corporate and finance services,
for whichwe earn {ees. enhanzing our overall
returns and strengthening our relationships
with partrers, key cuslomers and suppliers.

Energy. efficient by design

We focus en achieving high sustainability
standards on our devetopments, opthmising
energy efficency and generating renswahile
energy on site, rather than buying effsels for.
cartan neutrality. Our approach delivers cost
savings for sccupiers, well managed buildings
for the people who work. shop and bve in
thern and better assels for invesiors. We have
delivared ensrgy savings for occugiers of

£13 million aver six years, al the same time

as optimising lighting, temperatures and air
qualily for wellbeing and efficiency. We are
also improving energy modelting and piloting
Seft Landings to dose the gap between
efficient design and performance.

For enore information on
carbon reduction. see page 38.
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OUR STRATEGY - EXPERT PEOQPLE

Expert People

The knowledge and skills
to deliver

We employ Expert Peopte and wark
with specialist partnecs to create insight,
develop shills and build capacity.

Our 650 employeas are split between British
Land and our progerty managzment business
HBroadgate Estates. The scale of our operations
has enabled us to aitract an expert leam, with
the range of capzbilities required to own and
operate real estate suocessiully, and respond
to the changing naads of our markels. We
have access to 2 broad network of contacts,
spanning occupiers, planners, Goveramen!
and {ocal avthurities. strateqic partners

and investors, sowa see many of the mast
atiraclive investmen! epportunities as well as
parinering and funding possibilities. We work
closely with indusiry experts and spaialists
50 we devetop buildings which benefit frem
the latesl lechnclogies and provide spaces
that pramole wellbeing and productivity.

Our people strategy (ocuses on creating
a team whao can deliver Places People Prefer.
Nurturing talent and supporling development
it an important part of the culture at British
Land. We have a formal annual appraisal
pracess for each member of our team and

p alk ernploy to progress their
careers with personat development plans.
We operale a range of online resources to help
employees develop their skils and wark with
Cambridge University to run a Leadership in
Real Estate programme. Forty of our slaff have
benefited from this programme since il was
launched in 2014. We are also rolling oul
training focused on piching and negoliating
skills, recognising Lhe importance of thece
aspecls o cusiomer engagement as well
as people managennent. Thas year we have
embedded new capabitities, particulartyin.
customer-focused research and marketing,
where we are using daia analylics 1o generate
insights into customer behavicur 2and digital
resources to keep them up to date with
activilies around the portfolio. We are invesling
in technology across the business, upgrading
our core operational systems, and using
artificial intelligence solutions to help ensure
our network is better protected. We are mindful
of cyber secunity and have enhanced our
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sacyrity position as well as rolling oul cyber
awgreness raining acrass both British Land and
Broadgate Estates. As our business becomes

-| increasingly mixed use, we are also improving

the way we work acress our leams leveraging
shatls from different parts of the business,
3aruss the whole. Gur Insight tearn now works
across the portfolio and we are increasingly
inlegraling opar AUONS aCrTss bur CoFe Le3m
at Brilish Land and Broadgale Estales in
functions such as technolegy. HR and finance.

We are focused on areating a cullure which
encourages diversity and inclusion, so the policy
throughout British Land is 1o employ the best
carudidales avalable in every position regandiess
of sex, race, ethnic origin, nationality, colour,
age, religion or philosophical befief, saxual

1 orientation, marniage of oivil parinershia,

pregnancy, materity, gender reassignment
or disability. We are a member of Peopte

in Property. a forum tor Human Resources
directors in real estale, and a signalory to
their guidelines on diversity and inclusion in
recruitment. We are also wocking towards the
Mational Equality Standand, which sats out
equality, diversity and inclusion critena against
which businesses are assessed anmually.

For the second year running, Chris Grigg
was ranked in the top 20 Alty Execulives by
Outstanding and the Finanaal Times and
we are pleased that BL Pride, gur leshian,
gay, bisexual, ransgender [LGBT] and allies
network established in November 2015
marched in the 2016 London Pride Parade
m suppaort of the Albert Kenmedy Trust.

Our women's network had a very successhul year,
hosting four career management warkshops
lor wamen, as well as {our In Conversalion’
evenis which are open to everyone. Parentat
leave coaching has been intreduced and the
mentoring scheme we pitoted last year for
waomen has now been rolled out across the
company, offering guidance and support 1o both
male and female employees. We curnently have
three female Directors on the Board, Lucinda
Bell, Chief Financiat Officer, and Lynn Giadden
and Laura Wade-Gery, both Non-Execulive
Direciors. As at 31 March 2017, 47% of
employees across British Land and Broadgate
Estates were lemate, including three aut of 10
of our Executive Committee. This placed us in
the tap 20 of FTSE 100 companies having at
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3%

up 3% o7 cur AKX supplicr warklorce by 2020

teast I3% women s represendation agoss
Executive Committee members and their direct

reparts as reporied in the Hampton-Alexander
Review in Movember 2086,

Promaoting heatth and wellbeing across the
besiness is an inporant part of our culture.
Thes year we launched 3 Wellbeng Committee
wiich wall focus on mantal health and personal
walibeing and we have ypdated our policy on
Shared Parental Pay o provide equal enhanced
benefits for ail parents following the birth o
adoption of a child. We 3150 sel out new flexible
working guidelines and are lzveraging
technology ie enhance both productivicy

and ernployee wellbeng. We encourage

the recrsitment of undemrepresented ethnic
rhinarvses through our support [or initiatives
such as Pathways to Property, Budding )
Brunels and UrbanPlan UK. These schemes all
enoourage young people from awide range of
backgrounds lo consider careers in real estate.
Our volunteering programme olfers our staff
opportunitiss to connect with locat communities
and devetop their skills, particularly through
skills-based vok ring lor ple as charity
trustees and school govamnors., 0% of British
tand staff took part in volunleenng activities
and 16% undertook skills-based volunteering
throughout the year.

Both British Land and Broadgate Estates
participate in the "‘Best Companies’ survey
published n The Sunday Tames. This survey
prowmdes an objective measure of employee

'
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Being an apprentice at
Meadowhall and then
progressing into a penmanent
role here, every day is
different and I am always -
Jaced with something

new, which I enjoy.”

Chloe Simmonite, Customer Service
Assistant at Meadowhall

Deweloping future tatent

Over 100 apprendioss have worbeed
on the construction of Clarges
and 4 Kingdom Street through
aur Brighi Lighis skilisand
smployment prodgamme

E i areativ
We antared 3 new design partnership
with the Aoye! College of At the wartd's

-.n-eartand AQN UNIverSily.
challenging to prod :a‘eal\ve
resp to devel
aaosswpoﬂluha‘l’hﬁywmeﬁsl
of a three year partnarship. has seen
students considar opportunitias to i b
in the residential and office markets.

Providing h'ammg, slu'lls ard emn‘ltrymtm

We delivered Bright Lights Starling Outin
Raiail and Hospitatity in parinership with our
reiail and leisure oboupiers and The Source
Skills which we established

with Shetfield City Coundlin 2003.

15%

of Bright Lights relail anf haspitatity
trainees progressed indo esnployment

satisiaction and vatuable feedbsck on howwe
can lotus our actions in this area lo improve
further. As parl of our continuous programme

of employee engagernent, both British Land

and Broadgate Estates host company mestings
where directors update the leamn on business
aclivities, finandal resulis and strategy. )
Caolleagues al atl levels of the business are
ofiered the opportunity to parucipate in our
weell-established all-employee share schemaes,
abgning thear interasts with those of sl eholders.

We have long recognised the importance of
devetoping the skitled worklorce of tomonrow
for our business and markets. Through our
Bright Lights sklls programme, we pariner
with occupiers, suppliers and local authonities
o support apprenticeships, tramning, work
experience, inllernships and emplayment sl
our places_ We suppart the Pathways to
Property scheme,_ and are pleased to have
rearyited one of the graduates to join our com
graduate scheme, starting in Sepltembear 2017.
Over 21,500 peaple benefited from gur skills,
employmenl and educational inibatives this
year. Qur Supply Chain Charier seis out 12
piinciples we require our supplizrs lo work
towards and we pariner with occupiers and
suppliers on fair working practices including
the Living Wage Foundation,

Our respect for human righls is embadded
in how we do business. We are a signatory

I to the UN Gtobal Compact which supperts a

core set of values, including human rights, and

have iade apprapniate disdosuresin respect

of the Modern Slavery Act. We are also a

member of APRES, an action programme on
mspmsﬁie anﬁ ethical sourdng across the

Broadgate Estates
Group tolal

Read more about our Expert Peopie and
their vizws 3t weew britishiand com/blogs
To read rore abour skitls davelopment

go o warw britishland com/fskills

For car Supmily Chain Charter go to
wowlritishiand com/suppliers

For more inkrenation on the Board
of Directors see pages 54 te 59

For our Miodarn Slarvery Act Disclosure
90 to wwe hritishiand romfmsa

Top 2.,.0

of FTSE 100 Commpanbes honang al beast 33% women's
repreSantalion Toss eXecutive committes meambers
] direct repiots, as reporied in the Hampton-
Alexander Revices, Novermnber 2016

Hedping wornen succeed
DU peIRen's Netwaril ited Tomersa00n
e\aﬂsﬂlﬂmm CEO of High Spead |,

Founder of Genderbuzz

ha Stromberg,
and architect Arnanda Levete, who designed

the Musewn of Art, Architecture and
Tedwnology in Liskon and the entrance.
gallery and cowatyard of the VEA.

Supporting vulnerable young people
We partner wilth ihe Albart Kennedy Frust,

We sponsor a room in their sate house

and this year seven British Land volunteers
spent tme al the sale house helging with
decorating and gardening.

British Land | Annval Report and Accounts 2017
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Stratediv Report

OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

How we performed
over the past year

Our priorities in the year were

Customer Orientation
- lmprove undarsianding
of our customers:
- Provide spaces reflecting
evolving customer needs

Right Places

- Use placemaking
to deliver improved
customer experience

- Accelerate delivery of
oulti-tel Regional and
Local hifestyle retail
Progress Canada Water
vision and masterplan

Capltal Efficiency
Oeliver hudget

~ Progress developments
alongside material pre-lels

- "Contnue 1o sell singte-let
and non-core Retail

Expert People

- lmprove Company
organisational
effectivenass. i

- Embed placemaking
across the business

What we have achieved

- Auracting retater and leisure eccupiers b new
fermats and new locations

- Providing the Rexiilily for existing ocoupeers o upsize

- 30,000 cuslomers surveyad as par1 of o True Valee
of Stores research

-~ Around £0.030 shopper surveys conducted across
our Retail portfolis each year

- Nearly 4000 olfice warkers surveyed on their
perspectives on the workplace

- 1.7m sq i of leasing across Retail and Offices_ 8% ahead
ol ERV

- Over 700,000 <q i ol space under offer or in advanced
negotialions across alfice developments

- 85000 sq It of space let on a short term or meamvhile
basis, which enliven our campuses and address lease
expiries while preserving oplionality for redevelop

- Progressing cur vision al Broadgate: on site a1 100
Liverpool Sireet {520,000 sq i); planning submitted
on a refurbishment of 1 Finsbury Avenue 288.000 sq fi]
and 135 Bishopsgate (325,600 3q (1), with increased retail
and leisure provision ai both; planning achisved on a
redevelopmeant of 2&3 Finsbury Avenue [563.000 sq 1§

- Entire 310:000 sq it of office space under oifer fora pre-let
at 1 Triton Sqmre redudoymenl_ Regem s Place

~ Public reatm impr letad al Padding
Central ahead of taunch of 4 K:ngdom Streat

~ Inlhe West £nd, office space al our recently compieted
developments at § Kingdom Streel, 7 Clarges Sureel
and Yalding House are now around 80% let or under
oifer at rents ahead of pre-referendum EfVs ena
nel effective basis

- 74% increase in Undertying Profit to £E390m
- E15bn ol asset sales exchanged 9% ahead of valuation
~ [£881m retall disposats including E4G0m
Oxford Street and £226m superstoras, increasing
rrwalli-et % of retaft portiolio ko 78% [March 2016: 71%)
~ Sate of our 50% Witerestin The Leadenhall Building,
ahead of valuation (E1.15bn, 100%)
- Acquisition of New Gearge Sireet Estote, adjacent
to Orake Circus and proposed leisare scheme
- Acquisition of 10-40 The Broadway adjacent
1o £aling Broadway Local retail centre
- Intreased our ownership of Hercules Einit Trust
to 76.5% [2016: 75.39%)

~ Drganisalional design initiatives and IT improvements
implemented to wnprove efficiency

-~ Cornbining British Land and Broadgate Estates
resgurces inlo Centres of Excellence lor Technology.
HR and finance operalions, leveraging best praclice
and generating efficiznties

- Bright Lights skills and employ progra
taunched, working with our occupiers and suppliers
to buitd peopie’s skills and help them find employment

- 29 people benefited (rom pitching and negotiating training

- Continuing forus on creating an inclusive culiure which
celebrales diversily: successiul year lor our Women's
HNetwork and BL Pride with Wellbeing Committee
formed in the year
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Qur objective
Deliver sustainable long term
value for all our stakeholders

~ Office Agenda wabsite launthed o engages with key
decision makers at curent and gotential cooupers

- Commenced fit oul of 25.000 5q 11 of fexable
workspace pitot 2t Brosdgate br the digita! keam
of an exisking vocupier

~- Comumitted 1o both ihe WELL standard for
Wellbeing and the WiredScore Platinum rating
for internal connectivity and mfrastruchurs at
160 Liverpoot Sireet

- B&% shopper score for perception of wellbeing
at our Retail assets and 8%% vecupier score lor
sense of pnde in olfice space at cur compuses

- Planning submilted on 322.000 sq ft Leisure
Hall at Meadowhall: on track o complete £40m
relurbishment before the end of 2017

—  Planning achieved for 538,600 s¢ I rixed use
re-developrnent of Eden Walk, Kingston

- Completed Glasgow Fort letsure quarter and on
site with 3 leisure extension at New Mersey, Speke

- Progressing ptans at Canada Water with public
consullation in May 2017; on track to submil
planning around the ead of the Ginanciat year

- Applying our Local Charter <o qur places
become part of their local communily

- £1.7m community programeae benehiting 35600
people [2014: €1.7m and 29,500} incleding children

pbseekers

- Augl d reality ga TUsS retail
porrbllu and established programme of
evenls at our Campuses

- LIV reduced 1o 29.9% {26.9% proforma for sale of
The Leadenhall Buitding] Irom 32.1% at Mavch 2016:
na requirerment to refinance uniil early 2021

- 2.3msq N of planning consents secured with a
further 1.3m sq fi of planning applications submitted

- 93% ol developments on track 1o achieve BREEAM
Excelient for offices and Excellent gr Vary Good Inr :
retail [2014: 82%; 2020 mrget: 100%]

- 39% reduction in landlord energy intensity and 66%
reduction in carbon idensity versus 2009, index Scored
£2016: 38% and 40% respectvely; 2020 target: S5%|

- 98% of waste diverted from land il (2015: 98%;

2020 target: 100%)]

~ Ranked in the top 20 of FTSE 100 companies having
at least 33% women's representation across Exco
and direct reports. per Hamplon-Alexander Review

- 100% of employees and 72% of supplier workforce

" atour managed propertes paki the Living Wage
Foundation Wage [2016: 1009 and 72% respectivety]

~ 1.7% apprentices in pilol study of lier 1 suppliers and
3.1% for tier 2 develgpment suppliers {2020 largel: 3%)

- 90% British Land employee voluntzering and 14% skills-
based volunteering in local communitios {2014: B4%
and 16%:; 2020 argets: Y% and 209 respectivety]

— Policy on Shared Parental Pay updated to provide
equal enhanced benefits to all parents

For definitions see Glossary on pages 177 to 179




Our KPis — how we measure up ' Risk indicators and incentive measures

Total acconnting return (TAR) @ - Tol2d accounting reiurnis our overallmeasure  Risk indicators we monitor:

of performance. It is the dividead paid plus ~ Forecasi GOP
the growth in EPRA NAV per share - The margin betwaen propertyyields
2;“7. 27% ~ During the year, we generateda TAR of 2. 7%, ang long term barrowing costs :
— Our dividend increased by 3.0% to 29.2 pence - Property capit2! growih and ERY
0 YA par share and cur EPRA NAY decreased by . groweh forecasts
2015 24 5%, 3.4% 10 915 pence per share

Management compensation linked to:
-~ Total acrounting return relative to relevant

comparalor greups
Custonter satisfaction ' @ Sustainability performance @ Rnsk indicators we monitor:
Ouiof10 - ’ * Consumer conlidence
- Dow Jones Sustainability index World - Employment foracasts for

51 and Europe 2016: 95th percentite relevant seclors
- ETsEdGood 206, 5t percenle - Markeletbog s ocancis

: - Global Reat Estate Sustainability Benchmark expiries, speculative devetopment]
8 Fu =

5 ropsan Sector Leader Diversified Management pensation linked m.

- Company repeaation with all stakeholders

We extensively survey the users ol our places We us2 industry-recegnised indices to track cur 1 Ny A -
t0 assess our performance and identify sustainability performance. We were pleasad ~ Supporting the delivery of sustainability
opportunities for improvemant, to have been awardad the Queen's Award for objectives
Enlerprise: Sustainable Development 2014,
Total property returns @ Specalative developmeny comnljunm.t Risk indicators we monitors
. -, Property capitatrelurnand ERV
vs PO % of standing irvestments growih lorecasts

I 2% <150bps ar% - {,ﬂﬂlamﬂ;@m;mdm'wmmewm
2016 11.3% in ine 2016 £0.5n I8 agy, ~ |rogressofdewslopments against plan
aa  Wasagerent compenseton inked o

- *130bps : ; £.602 - Total propeviy returns relative to tPD

- Ezecutign of argeled aoguisitions

We have underperformed the IPD benchmark Oevelopment supports value and future income 1

this year reflecting our Lack of exposure to growth, byt adds risk, We keep our committed and disposals o, .
Indusirial. the strongest performing category. Our development expasure at less than 155 of our - - Progress on key projects including
Retail 2nd Offices portfolios each outperformed investment portlolio, with a maximur of 8% developmants

their respective benchemarks by 20 basts points developed sgeculatively.

and ¥ basis points respectively.

Loan to value (LTV} ' Weighted average interest rate’ @ Risk indicators we enonitor:

- proportionally consolidated - proportionally consohdatcd -~ Covenanl headroom

- Period until relinancing is required
- Percentage of debt at fuced interest rates

Management compensation linked ta:
- Execution of debt linancings.

~ Progress on strengthening the dividend
We manage our leverage such that LTV should Gur low cost of finance supports our
not exceed a maximum threshold if market financiat performance and we have
yields were to rise to previous peaks. had success in reducing it
Best Companies survey ‘ The Best Campanies survey published by .Risk indicators we monitor:
) . The Sunday Times provides an extensive and - Unplanned executive departures
m7 . One towatch objective measure of employee engagement o
. Management compensation linked to:
Qne star . - Quality of peaple and management renewal

Une star

Links to repuneration
Long-term @ Annual For our Remuneration Report

incentive Plan Incentive award see pages 73to 88, For how we manage risk in delivering
Qur strategy see pages 46 to 53.
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Our high quality portfolio continues
to generate strong income streams
with high occupancy and long leases;
we also have optionality to create
value from our development pipeline

Market and strategy .

Itis nearty one year since the UK voted to

the European Union, In that time, the 2conormy
has oulperformed expectations, with GBP
projections lor 2017 revised upwards to an
average of 25 and unemployment below 5%,
its lowest in over &0 years. However, we have
entered a prolonged period of uncertainty and

_ businesses will face a number of headwinds.

Mindful ol this background, bul facing a clear
need to move forward, occupiers are continuing
to make decisions, but plans are taking longer
to come lo [ruition.

This is reflected in our markels. IPO capitat
return fell 2.4% in the three months immediatety
following the referendum bul since then, six
monihs of positive capital returns totalling
2.0% have partially reversed this position.

On the investment side, overalivolumes are
down year an year. Howaver, London offices
saw a pick-up in activity towards the end af
2014, and mormentum was sustained into 2017,
with a number of high profite transactions,
concluded at tight yields, generatly ahead of
valuation. This included our exchange of The
Leadenhall Building, which demonstrates the
continuing appeal of high quality, well located
progerties in London. in retail. aclivity has
been subdued with a lack of quality stock being
broughi to the market. This has resulted in
limited transactional activity in mutli-let retail,
although leng term, secure income assels
remain attractive to a range of investors.

We expect Brexit-related headwinds to impact
our accupaticnal markets. In offices, it witl be
some years belore we have clanty on the impact
of proposed requlatory changes which may
affect occupier demand. particularly in financiat
services. However, demand from more creativa
seclors, which has accounted for a growing
share of aclivity in recent years, has hetd up
well, and we are encouraged that anumberof -
leading global companies have reaffirred their
commitment to London since the referendum,
Vacancy rates have risen from low levels lo
marginally above long term averagesin both the «
City and West End following recent development
completions. We expect further supply to apply
downward pressure on market rents, bul

our experience loday 1s that the right space in
strong locations continues te command rents
around pre-referendum levels. Central London

28

£139bn

portiolio valuation

3.1%

total property return

1.1%

ERV growth

-1.4%

valuation movement

8.3 years

weighted avarage unexpired lease lerm

989

occupancy rale

449

carbon intensity reduction since 2009
findex scorel -

development is forecast to be a1 elevated
levels, but we are increasingly seeing plans
being deferred or cancetled. and a significant
proportioh of the supply proposed in 2019
and 2020 remains uncormmatted.

Retaiters are [acing a more challenging
envirohment with cost pressures from a
number of sources including the National
Living Wage, business rales in some areas

and imporl casl inflation. These lacters wifl
heighien their focus on the best space, where
to date, dermand has held up weil. On the
consumer sade, confidence will be vulnerable
io political and economic uncerlainties and we
have seen some evidence of softening retail
spend in the first part of 2017 with inflation
impacling disposablz income.

Our view is that Brexit will accelerate
polanisation in our markets. lnrecent years
wae have positioned qur husiness o benefit
from the kong term trends driving demand
for space, by providing places which reflact
people’s changing lifestytes. Our dala-driven
approach o understanding how people use aur
properties guides investment and placemaking
activilies across our portfolio, as well as our
approach to largeting an increasingly broad
range of oocupiers, We provide places with

2 blend of uses and a mix of services in
attraclive environments, accomrodating

the praferences of our occupiers, thair
cusiomers and employees. This is most
elfective where we control the wider
surmoundings, underpinning our focus

on cur multi-et retail properties and

our London campuses.

Portfolio performance

Qur portfolic saw a valuation fall of 1.4% over
th# year. The decline of 2.8% in 1he firsl half
was primanily due to oulward yield shift of

19 bps. This was partially offset by avaluation
increase of 1.6% in the second half when yietds
moved inwards by 5 bps and we benefited

from the impact of sales, particularly our

50% interest in The Leadenhall Building which
exchanged in the year: Valualions were also

supported by conlinuing ERV growih.

The value of our Retail portfolio was down 1.8%
reflecting total outward yield shift of 14 bps,
with 18 bps movement in the first hali pariialty
offset by 3 bps contraclion in the second hali.
We saw variation within Retail, with the strongest
ERV growth on our rulli-let portfolio at 2.4%.
Thus was 2.5% at our Local cenlres. marginally
ahead of our Regional centres at 2.3%. We

saw a valuation fait on superstores of 5.2%.
rellecting a faltin ERVs of 4.0%. bul a stronger
performance across our cther single-let assels
with valuations up mere than 5%. This reflected
the sale of Debenharns, Gxford Street and
lease exiensions and rent increases agreed
across our Homebase portfolio.

Oltices were down 0.7% with outward yietd
maovement of 15 bps for the full year, as 21 bps
expansion in the first half was partially offset
by 6 bps contraction inihe second half. We saw

Valuation ERY  Total property

Valualion movernent growth return

Year ended 31 Manch 2017 m % % - %
Retail 6,654 118) 16 a5
Offices & Residential 7019 0.5l 0% 30
Canada Water n [10.8] 0% {8.1)
Total 13,940 11.4) 11 a1
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the largest valuabon falls on assets with aear
term expiries, particularty thuse properties
varated by UBS at Broadgate. Comversely,
UBS’s new building 5 Broadgate gained invatus
benefiting from a lony lease with RPI Uinked
uplifts. The value of The | padanhall Building
atse increased reflecting the sale price
agreed 24% above valualion.

The value of Canada Water fell 10.8% reflacting
the valuer's reassesement of development
risk and returns, particularly on residential,
as well as planning and leasibility costs

not recovered. This &6-acre regeneration
opportunity is velued at Cé eillion per acre.
The next major value creation step is exgeded
fio be on securng planmng.

Our portfolio outperformed IPD at the sector
leved, with Relail and Géfices 40 bps and 40
bps zhead on a capital relurns basis, Overall
we underperformed the IPD universe which
comprises 20% indusinial 2ssels which
performed well this year, by ll[lbpsnna
capital return basis and by 150 bps en a

total return basis.

Iovestment and development activity
The gross value of gur investment activity
sirce 1 Agril 2016, as measured by our share
of acquisilions, disposals, capital spend on
developments and other capital projects was .
£2.0 billion, This includes €15 billion of sales on
awrage 3 ahead of valuation, al an aversgs
yield of £%. Net divestment was E1.1 billion.

Offices sales included our 50% interest in
The { eadenhall Building, which exchanged .
in March for a headtine price of £1.15 bitlion
[1008). The sale, to C C Land, is conditionat
upon C C Land shareholder approval. A Speaal
General Mecting of the shareholders 6f CC
Land has been convened on 18 May 2017

" to approve the lransaction. We expact the
transaction te camplete shortly therealter.
This ransaction is 2 good example of how
our standalone office assets provide tiquidity

allowing us o develop and trade opportunistically.

Al our carnpuses we focus on detivering -
suslainable reluras over the long tervn.

In Reiait, wa made £881 million of disposals,
3% ahead of valuation, comprising E709 million
of single-let properties and €172 mitlion of

$200n
iﬂlﬂs.sbn
£0.5bn

1. 4m sq ft

latings and renevals

+89%

lettings and revewals ahead of ERY

multi-l2t assels which were not alignad

with our strategic goals. The langest sale was
Debenhams. Oxford Streat for a price of £400
millicn. We sold £226 million [£410 million gross
valuel of superstores including £114 million as
parl of gur Tesco IV swap transaction which
ezchanged and cormpleted alter the yoar end,
resuliing in the termination of the (ast of our
five Tesco joint ventures. In aggregate, aur
Tesce juint ventures delivered 2n annualised
return of over 0% since the first one was
eslablished in 1997. Over the (351 five years, we
have now sold aver €900 million of superstores,

educing their weighling in the Retail portfolie .

Iram 22% 10 8% and in the overalt portfolio
frarn 3% to 4%. Multi-let retail now accounls
for 7856 of the Relail portfolio increasing from
71% at the start of the year.

We have progressed sales al each of

our residential schemes with £56 million
exchanged over the year, on average 4 5%
ahead of valuation with a further £27 million
.reserved at prices in line with March 2017 .
valuations. Szles 2t Aldgate Place were
exchanged at prices in tine with valuation,
leaving just one apartment 1o sell At The

Retail Offices Recidential  Canada Wator Tozal
From 1 Aprit 2016 . &m Em CE&m £m &m
Purchases® 187 - - 8 195
Sales*? (881} {609 (561 - [1.548)
Development Spend . 2¢ 132 21 0 183
Capital Spend "N 1’ - - 109
Net Investment 1583 1459) (35 W nesw
Gross Investmeant 1179 759 T " 2013

On a propartionalty consolidated basis including the Group's share ol joinl veniures and fuivds

' indudes £43m acquisilions and £116m disposals that exchanged 2nd completed post year end as part
of the Tesco IV swap ransaction resulting in a net (Fm disposal of superstore assets; also indudes
a further E4%vn acquisition that exchanged and comnpleted postyear end.

! O which. £575m Offices sales and £19m Resi

ial sales ¢

leling post year end.

Hempel Cotlection, sates accalerated Tallowing
the taunch in March 2017, and a reduction in
prices by 10%. Al Clarges, Mayfair we inlend (o
market the remaining 11 agarirmanis lollowing
completion in late 2017 bul we agreed the sale
of one of the larger apartmants in the year ahead
of valvation following a one-off appmoach. This
acimty reduces our residanlizl properties to
sall to £218 rdltion of which £150 midlion is

at Clarges.

Qur £195 million of acquisitions in the year were
focused on-adjacendes to existing holdwngs,
rotably our £4£ mullion acquisition of tha New
Gzorge Sireel Estate in Plymouth which lies
between Drake Circus and our propesed lewsure
scheme and our £49 million purchase of 10-40
The Broadway. Eating which is adjacent to aur
Ealing Broadway Local retail centre. In both
cases these acqursitions complement and
enhance our existing plans.

Development spend totalled £143 million m the
year Wa completed almost 200,000 g fiof office
space at & Kingdom Street, Paddington Cantral
and 7 Clarges Street and 187 apartments

at Aldgate Place [Phase H and The Hempel
Collection. Capitat expanditure enhancing our
assels was E10? million, induding extensions
and unit reconfigurations at cur mulli-let relad
assels with directly assodiated income uglifls.
W2 have owvested £44 million mmproving our retail
environments, notably at Meadowhall which
awcounted fer £23 million, as part of our £50
million (100%) refurbishment This cemplates

3t the end of 217, and is lhe most significant
mvestmert inthe Centre since it opened in 1990,
easuring that it conlinues to meeat CORSUMETs
evolving expectations. We are already seeing 2
good response from occupiers with 37 tong term
lettings and renewals signed here in the year.

We have also invasted £5 million enhangng the
public reatm al our London Campusas, primarily
Paddington Ceniral, as part of 3 £12 million
inveslinent grogramme.

Following development completions, our
speculative development exposure has reduced
to below 4%. This is well within our imernal

sk threshatd for speculative development.
This threshold was reduced lo 8% of overall
porifolio value from 10% in the year, reflecting
a moderation of our appetite for speculative
development risk given uncertainty in gur
markets, Qur most significant commitment

is 100 Liverpood Street at Broadgate: totalling
520,000 5q ft_ including 90,600 sq ft of retail.

H és due to compleie at the end of 2019, with
cosls to come of £152 million [British Land
share) We also commenced a 66,000 sg it
{eisure development at New Mersey, Speke
which is largely pre-let and expect lo complete
the residential element of Clarges, Mayfalr
Later this year.

Construclion cost forecasts continue Yo

_suggest a slowdown in the rate of growth over

this ysar and next, despite increasing pressure
on inpul costs. Jur experience suggests that
cosl inflation is marginally lower than il has
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Steategic Repact

PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Developirenms
Brtsh Land share
Canrent Cosl tn ERVYlef Resdenbal SpRc

Sqft e canglste ERY ° underciier  exthanged dee?
AT Narch 27 o Im m Om tm £m k-]
Completed in yaar 439 343 37 15 n -
Committed &0 572 218 21 1 278 %
Near termn 1053 385 338 &3 il - &%
Medium term 30381
Canada Waler 5.500
Bna ¥ coesitadatod basis induding the Broun's share of joint vantures and hmds lexoep! area
which is sharan ar $00%).

' Spenate develnpment is defived as. valuation plus costs 1o come Less parcentage pre-soldfpre-tetas a

WMWMWW“

bean over the last lwo years. However, we
continve 10 lake a caulioys view and mainksin
prudent allowances within projact budgets
1o reflect specific sectors and tocations. 0%
of the costs on our cominitted developmant
programme have bean fixed.

Our divestments. lotalling 1.5 billion this year,
our planning activity and progress on leasing
discussions improve our optionality and leave
us well placed 1o make timaly decisions on
commitmenis in our development pipeline.
Our compleled devetopmanis are subslantially
let, with almost B0SE of the office space at

4 Kingdom Street under offer, and over 80% of
lhe office space at 7 Clarges Streei tel. Leasing
discussions gn our committed pipeline are
progressing and we are under offar on al of
the office space at our proposed redevelopment
of 1 Trilon Square. This activity enables us

10 progress devalop s whilst keeping
speculative comnitments at an appropriste
leval We setured planning consants tolalling
2.3 mitlion 5q h in the year across the portfolio
and submitted planning applications on a further
1.3 miltion 5q K. This prowdes for a ruch wider
range of ophortunitias in the near and mediurn
lermn than we had at the start of the yead.

In our near \erm pipeline, we expect to commil
to the refurbishments of 1 Finsbury Avenue’
288,040 sq ftf and 135 Bishopsgate {325,000

sg 11} al Broadgale. in the coming months
following receipt of planning and 2greement
with aur jaing venture partrer. Gur plans at boih
include increasing relall and leisure space by
88,000 sq R including 2 cnema and rool terrace
being added o 1 Finsbury Avenue. Royal Bank

- of Scotland will be surrendering their lease at
135 Bishopsgale in June 2017 ahead of expiryin
2019 and we will receive a paymenl of £34 miltion
[106%] compensating for the remaining lease
terin and dilgpidations; we are already seeing
good intesest on a significant portion of the space
here. At 1 Triton Square we are currently under
affer on all of the office space, and hawe receved
approval fram the London Borough of Camden
for our redevelgpment. Subject to completion of
the planning process and the pre-tel, we expect
o cammil and te Start on site in March next year-
This will coincide with the expery of short term
leases agreed to mamntain opbonality for the
redevelopment of this site while mitigating
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holding costs. On the retail side, we are refining
our plans for 2 104,000 sq ft leisure scheme at
Drake Cerous in Pymouth ang we expact to slart
o0 site next year. in lotal, these commitmanis
amount to £338 million of spend and would lake
our specutlive developmend commualment to §%.

Looking further shead. our mediuvm term
pipeling covers a range of uses, including
office-led development in London, and retall and
mixed use developments across the country and

at Canada Water. The majority of these projecis.

are income producing. induding 283 Finsbury
Avenue and Eden Walk] or are held at low cost
|Blossom Street and the propesed leisure
scheme al Meadowhatl] providing us with

reat optionality on the timing and nalure of our
commitment. The {otal potential cost associated
wilh these opportunities is £1.4 billion plus
Canada Water. Wa will maintaint an appropniale

1 level of developrment risk, and so on our

office-led developments. commitrent 15 likely
to be influenced by the progress of pre-let
discussions. We have a disciplined approach
o capilat allocation and relain the flexibility
to respand Lo the changing ervironment.

Qppartunities al our campyses intlude the
105,000 5q 1t Gateway Building 3t Paddington
Ceniral where we are in advanced negoliations
wilh an operatos for 3 boutique hotel an the site
of the curreni managernent suite. We expect
to proceed if these discussions are successful,
subject lo planning. We are atso working to
enhance the exisling consent far a 240,006 sq ft
office bullding al the site ol 5 Kingdom Sireet.

In the meantime, we have let space on a short
term basis to Pergola Paddingion Central,
who are crealing an 850-capacily pop up dining
concept which benefits the broader campus.
Al Broadgate, we have secured planning for 3
543,000 5q it redevelopment of 283 Finsbury
Avenue; UBS have vacated 2 Finsbury Avenue
and we have secured short term lettings on 0%
of this space whilst their lease at 3 Finsbury
Avenue remains in ptace fbreak in tate 2018].
Looking further forward. we expect to lake
vacant possession of 1-2 Broadgate in surmmer
201% and are working up our plans for a 375,000
sq [Lschema which wall inctude a substantial
retait element. At Blossom Street, we have
secured fulk consent on a 340,000 sq ft oifice-led

mixad use development.
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Gur reias epportunilies sduds a 372,600

sq {t leisure extension al Meadowhall We have
subrnitied our plans and expect a dedsion over
e summer with 2 veewe to sartng on site in
2018, Dor plans ervisage a mylti-leved Leisure
Halt with dining and erdertamiment gplions
alongsde hegh gquatity intemal and external
spaces for events and community use,
tncluding new restawrants, a nEw Cnems,

caié ceurt and gym.

Eden Waik s 2 538,000 sq It mixed use,
reganeralion scheme in Kingston, which we
oo i Jaind venbure with USS. in Merch 2017, we
achisved ¢ for our develapment, which
intludzs 40 new retail and restzaurant units,
38 nevy hemes and 35,800 sq it of high quality.
madern and Rexible office space. Ow proposal
will create an estimaled 400 additional jobs for
local people. We are progressing our plans to
SBCUTE VITATK possession of e sile, and expect
to commence devalopment in 2017, butin the

e the sch s income producing
wilh 2 yiatd of 3.4%.

Canada Water is the most signthcant
devalogment opportunity in owr medium term
pipeline; the shopping cenlre and leisyre scheme
remain income progucing with a yisld of 2.8%.
W are werking dinsely with the | ondon Borough
of Southwark, the Greater London Authority,
Transpaort for London and the tocal community
& our masterpian for the 46 acre site, with plans
for up te 5.5 million sq ft of space across a wide
range of uses. This includes 2 million sq it of
warspace and 1 million sqft of retail and leisure
space alongside educational 20d cultural uses
ang up to 3,500 new homes. These wall include

a mix of affordable and market priced housing
as well a5 a more targated provision, including
Studeni acoommodation. The ravised masterplan
integrates prindples of suslainability and
welllheing which will oreate a new urban.

centre for London. Qur atlive programme

of engagerment with the tocal commuynity and
other slakeholders wcludes our fourth public .
consullation which started earlier this month
and we are targating submission of a planning
application around the end of the hinancial year.
We will evaluate phasing of the project and
potential funding straciures as we move closer
ta sacuring ptanning. In the meantime, wa have
been engaging with 3 wide range of potential
occugiers and are encouraged by the interest. In
tha short term, wa have created an exciting new
events space al the Prirdworks 1o raise the public
profile of the area and to generale income, as
wall as tesiing the appetite for this kind of lacility
within our plans. The space has atready played
host te Secrel Cinerna and Mulberry in London
lashion waek, and now regularty hosts cultural
events. n total, almost 160,090 pegple have
attended even!s there.

More detils on Lhe pndl’nln. property
performanice, individuol developments and

T assetssold and acguired during the year

- can be found in the detaled supplementary
tables on pages 162to 171.




Our actions this year have
posttioned us to exploit
opttonaluy we have created
in our development pipeline

Committed

100 Liverpool Street. Broadgate

520,000 sq ft

Campleting: 2019

Office led dewelgpment at lheqalewayoéw&oadga‘le
campus, adiycent 10 new Sareet Crossrail

station. mmwemmﬂndmﬂamam

Ctarges, Mayfair lresidential)
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1ents
Completing: 20617
Mired use development compiising 34 tukury
- apartments of which 60% pre-sold [by valuel,
11 apariments to sell on completion,

“

New Mersey, Speke (leisure)

66,000 sq it

Completing: 2018
Leisure extension, $4% pre-tet and anchored
by an H-screen Cineworld,

Near term

1 Finsbury Avenue, Broadgate

288,000 sq ft

Target commitment: 2017

Relurbishment with a rnix of retail and leisure at
ground floor. including a cinerna, with more flexible
office space on tha upper Roors and roof terrace.

1 Triton Square, Regent's Place

366,000 sq ft

Target commitment: 2017

Redavelopment of existing buitding adding 125000
5q It of olfice space. Underolfer for pre-lel of entire
office space,

Drake Circus, Plymouth (leisure)

104000 sq it

Jarget commilment: 2018
Leisure exiension will include a 12-screen Cineworld.
13 restavrand urits and 420 car park spaces,
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Medium term

Gateway Buildmyg, Paddington Central

105,000 sq £t

Target planning sutwnission: 2017
memwmmmm
a naw use o Paddington Central.

e retadl and resid T q mwch of
the orsginat fabese of the anldings.
Canada Water
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RETAIL PLACEMAKING

Weve had a successful year. We have
leased well, our operational metrics
continue to outperform and weve
grown our rents, particularly where

we have invested

Charles Maudsley
Head of Retail and Laisure

Our Retail business has had a successful
year. evidenced by our cc d strong
leasing, our operational melrics which are
outperforming and our ERY growth which is
ahead of the market, particularly where we
have invesled. This is our lenth consecutive
year of outperformance on a totak returns
basis. This is leslament to our sirategy.
which is to create outstanding places for
modern consumer Lfestytes.

The growth of online has driven polarisation
inretail, as occupiers are increasingly fecused
ah the best, and the most appropriate space
to profitably grow sales across all channels.
We expact this wend {0 acceleraleinthe
corming years, as retailers face a range of
headwands such as cost inflation and weaker
consumer spending while the terms on
which the UK leaves the EU are negoliated.
For many of our occupiers, the best space
means a number of lagship or “hub™ stores
supplemented by a network of more convenient
outiets which ensure suffident coverage and
are an important part of online fulfilmemt
networks, including click and collect. This
mircars our strategy in Retail whichis lo
operate bath Regional cenlres, attracling
visitors from a wide catchment lor planned
trips, with a breadth and depth of retait and
leisure, and Local centres which [itinto the
daily life of communties and are more
canvenienl and accessible.

Retail highlights of the year

- Our Retail portfolio

£0.6bn

989%

occupancy rate

{eass length to first beeak
312m
annual footfall

Our porifolio has the
poltential toreach

60%

of the population

Source: CACH Retail Foolprint 2016
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Local — Mayflower, Basildon

156,000 sq ft
3m

annua! faotfail

Regional - Fort Kinnaird, Edinburgh

560,000 sq ft
13m

annaal bootfall

Growing food & heverage and leisure

across our muiti-let portdolio
10
8
K
G
& 4
2
(1
March March March March March
2013 2004 2015 2018 m7

Our focus is on our cooupiers and thair
cuslamers and we use a range of sources to
urdderstarnd needs. We angage with consumers
direcily through shapper surveys and colleck
data on their enline interachions, generating
inzighty; aboul hows, when and whase geeple
like to shop. This guides everything frem our
investmenl in the portiolio &i the cccugiers:

we are targeling, enabling vs (o pesition our
cantres ta be the best in their calchment, for
the range of shopper missions they serve. A
high level of customer services is 2 kay element
of our offering and we new manage cur retail
assets in-house threugh Broadpate Eslates:;
this transition was completed in the year end
we have been very pleased with how this has
enabled us to deliver a consistent and 2 high
standard of service across our roiail portiolio.

This year, feotfall and in-store seles hulich
exdude dick 2nd cellect ard the boost o enfine
Irom physical stores), culperiormed their
henchmarks by 240 bps and 220 bis respectively,
but both were flst averall. Differing dynamics
were evidenl across our portfolio, with foatiall
at our Regional cenlres down 1.9% bull sales up
0.3% illustrating how people are visiting these
fargar centres less frequently, bul spending
more. Al gur Local centres, footfall was up 2 1%
but in-store sales were down 0.7% refiecling
greater click and collect usage al these sites
which is not induded wilhin in-store sales. Qur
True Value of Stares research, conducted in the
yearwith retail consullancy BlehalDala duchrated
the important role physical stores playin boosting
sales across other channets, induding dick and
collect. On average, dick and collect ysage is £6%
greater al our Local centres than the national
average and click and gollect customers spend
around 50% more than the average shopper.
This outperformance illustrales thatina
polarising markel, our centres are attracting a
dispropoertionate share of consumer demand.

This year, despite a more uncertain irading
envirgnment, and with the portiolio virtuatly full

I a1 98%, we Lot more space, on belter terms. o

awider range of occupiers than in the previous
year. Letlings and renewals totalling 1.3 million
sq frwere signed in the year, on avarage 10.8%
zhead of ERV. Our Regional centres accounted
tor approx:malely two-thirds of this aclimly but
both Regione! and Local centres achieved leasing
lerms which were strongly ahead of ERV.

Dur leasing caovered a broad range of sectors,
but we were particularly successiul in fashion,
homewares and [ood & beverage which
accounted for 25%, 27% and 15% of leasing
respectively. Reflecting our customers’
preferences, our plans are to increase the
teisure and fogd & beverage allocation 2cross
aur portlolio from the current position of 10%
lup from &% four years agol, and we made goed
progress on this in the year with 133,000 sq ft of
tenings. We are particularly pleased that several
of our aecupiars have chosen cur assets for their
first owt of town locations including Thadkhun,
Wahaca, Smiggle. Superdry, Chardes Ctinkard
and Pret-A-Manger. This success reflects an
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portieio entvening our spaces and
Ninfos with Wecal cormanunities. This is the sith year

ofl our partrsrah.

ancreasingly sephisticated pilching process
which beverages aur insights 1o halp prosgective
ocoupiers undersiand cur offer and positioning
vaithin eur catciunments. A number of operaters,
indudng Primark, JD Sports, Sports Direct and
Sehwih chose to tecate more of their fagship
shiores with us in fe year, by adding to their
existing space al cur Regional cenires. At our
tecal centres, we saw new leltings to Wilko,
River Island, Nande's and more community
forumed accupiers such as Explore Learning
and kecal gyms. We are slso appealing to more
premiem brands, particularty where we have
iwested and Meadowhall is 2 good example of’
this. Neal's Yard, Naspresso, Hawes & Curtis,
Plannsts and GhestiLondon all signed in the
yaar as ow (60 million [HI0%] refurbishment
prograsune nears campletion.

Thes strong demand for our space is reftected in
the re-letting of 90% of the 247,000 sq It of space
relsmned o us foliowing BHS administration,
wirith long term keases at levels significantly

i eEXCess of previaus passing real.

Like-for-like rental growth fexcluding
surender gremiurns) was 2.0%, driven by our
sirong leasing activity as well as rent reviews
with over 120 reviews setlled on average 3.4%
ahead of passing rent and ahead of valuation
assumplions. This year we renewed eight
Homebase leases, totatling 283.000sq ht
extenging the lease term lo 15years, increasing
renls and providing a significant capitat uplift
for eur single-1at portfalio_

ERV growth acress our multi-let properties
was 2 A%hand this perfarmance provides strang
evidence that our strategy is working. Investrment
in Gur assets, guided by cur insights has driven
demand for our space. bringing our portilia io
near full occupancy, 2nd generating the demand
tension needed to drive rents. We are particularty
pleased the! ERY growth acruss assets benefiling
from our imestrment was 3.29h, which was ahead
of tha postiolio average. At Coltchester ERY
growih was naarty 14% followang comptetion of
our £6 million investment Lo improve the public
reatm there, including a new playground, the
additton of public art and reconliguration of

the car park.
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(44

The changes British Land is making to its centres will

mnake them some of the very best around. The concept

of continually updating the experience, improving the
public realm and getting the balance right between
retail and leisure is so important. The investinent

in their assets is spot on.”
Timothy Melgund, CEO Paperchase

Enlivening our places

Events such as the live screening of spocts, thealre and i,

drive footfall to our centres induding SouthGate. Bath

I3.5%

total property return

-1.8%

valuation movament

16x

£1.2bn

Qross investment activity

¢881m

retail disposals at average yietd of & 3%

T90Kw

of solar panels across five centres,
withmore planned

34

Development spand in the year was £20 million
andincudad a new letsure quarter al Slasgow
Fort, with four new restaurants and a mult-
siorey car park adding 400 spaces and increasing
car park capacity by over 3056 ko accommodale
growing visitor numbess. This followes leisure
and retail exiensions in 2013 and 2015 which have
underpinned improved operational performance
at the centra. The centre is now ranked top in
its category by CACl in Scotland. Dur leisure
extension at New Mersey, Speke, where
construction comrmenced this year will add

an 11-screen cnetna. pre-tet to Cinevorid.

andl six reslavrant units, significantly enhancing
the teisure offering 21 this centre. Opening

in summer 2018, we have already pre-let
restavrants to Wagamama's. Nando's and TG!
Friday. This year we achieved plannisg consents
on 840,000 sq ft, covering a range of activity from
large mixed use developrments tu small-scale
Fnproverneats o existing properties, providing
oplionality for the ure.

This year. capital spend in lhe Relail portiolio
totatled £91 milbion of which just over hall were
initiatives delivering an immediate increase in
wnoormne. The remaindsr were initiatives (o enhance
environments with longer term benelits far

our ascets. The refurbishment programme st
Meadowhall was the most significant of these,
accounting lor £23 million (British Land share].
This is part of our £60 mitlien [100%] upgrade
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1.3msqft

of retad lattings and remawals

% |

i=ilings 2nd renesals ghaad ol RV

foaifall grpath 2head of e bamOhrari

220bps

in-share Sates growth shaad of the bepafmark

70

vk phacameents with o OTCURErS €0 qur
Slarting oar in Relad proge partat
Bright Linhis

of exr cenlres providing Orsiamers aith
augmentad reality games during tha yeaer

46%

more click and callect usage 2t our Lecal
centres than the natien! ayerage

completing in late 2017. At Teessula, we are on
site with a £30 million refurbishment programme
to coincide with the centre’'s 25th anniversary,
Our improvements focus on the public reatm
and customer service facliies and will dsliver
more flexible space for our ocoupsers.

Qur insighl has also guided our placemaking
activities across the poritelio. This year we
staged a virtual Chrisimas presen honk at 218
Local and Regional centres, the largest ever
avgmented reality game in UK retail property.
Eats from the Street, showeasing the best i UK
sireet food returmed to ten of our cantres and we
launchad Street Style a fashion and beauty event
which ran across seven of our assets. Gur Young
Readers Programnne, run in partnership with the
National Literacy Trust and redall aocuplers, is in
its sixth year and we are pleased thet wver 5,000
children look part this year. Dur Brigh Lights
skills programme providad work placements
with our retad and leisure ocoepiers for 70 bocal
unernployed young peaple of which 75% maved
inte permranent jobs soon afler: Indlatives sich as
these help enliven our places, aliracling new and
repeat visitors o our centres and foster strongar
connections with local communsties and our
occupiers. The people who live in and around cer
assets are an important part of our caichment
and their loyalty is increasingty relevant as
custanmers have greater choices around how
and where they shop.




OFFICES PLACEMAKING

Weve had a strong year. We have made

good progress letting space across our

development pipeline and our campuses
are appealing to a broader range of
occupiers than ever before

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residentiat

Our Offices business has had a sindng year.

The porticlio is virtually full and we have enzde
good progress lelting space a00ss our recenily
compteiad, commilted and near ferm pipetine.
In line with our strategy te create culstanding
places for modern professional and consamar
lifestytes we 2re increasing the mix of yses
SOFOSS QU Campuses, 1o appeal to a broadar
range of oroupiers.

OHice take up in central Londen has been led

by the lechnolegy and media sectors, which
are now the most signthcant component ef
demand, accounting for nearty ane third of
activity in 2016. With its poet of intamaltionat
talent and reputation for innovation, London

has proved ta be a magaet for these new

and growing companies. Thas trend is
driving 3 change in the type of space which

i5 succeeding, with 2 growiing emphasis on
Rexibility, co-working and wellbeing. aswell
as enviropments which are compatidle vith
the way people’s work and lersure ime ovarlzp.
Finantial services acoounted for under 289
of 1ake up. less than hat! the figure in 2010.
This trend may accelerate further with
regulatory and policy changes follovwing Brext,
but the feedback we have is that the preference
of inandial services companies is lorelain the
majority of their operations in London becavse
overwhelmiingly this is where their emplayees
want lo live and work.

£6.3bn!

portiolio valuaton [British Land sharel

98v%

otrupancy rate

4.8 years

leasa length 1o hirst break

* Prolorrna lor sale of
The Leadenhall Building.
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OFFICES PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

QOur campuses
Broadgate (50% interest)

Regent’s Place

Paddiﬁgton Central

Standalone
7 Clarges Street, Mayiair

Qur siralagy focuses on providing the right
space the right services, and the righi
envirenments to meet this broader specinpm
of demnand. We have engaged more aciively
with the users of our space, and this year,
lsunched the Qifice Agenda’ an online
platformn where we share key insighls with
warkers and deasion makers on tepical issues
including the role of real eslate in attracting
and retaining talen! and 'smart’ offices.

Our surveys of nearly & 000 offica workers
and deasion makers provided valuable
insight into whalt makes a great place to
work, helping our sccupiers refine their
office shrategy and enabling us to better
reflect their needs.

At the portfolio levet, this includes broadening
the range of uses on gur campuses with a
higher allocation o retail and leisure, as well
as delivering more Rexible office space with
Roorplates which are easily divisible, enabling
us to larget a wider range of occupiers. At the
campys level, we are applying our placemaking
tramework by enhancing and enlivaning our
assels with a comprehensive programme ol
events mouding exhibitions, artinstallations,
concerts, wellbeing aclivities, pop-up shops,
bars, markels and restauranis, and live
screening of sporis, theatre and fitm. Wa also
partner with our occupiers on communily
iniiatives, such as the Regent's Place
Community Fund. where our partnership

with secupiers has invested £30,000 this year
to support tocal community projects, making a
positive difference and strengthening our links

-with local communilies. We survey occupiers

across our campuses and our resulis show that
satisfaction levels are high, and have improved
aver Lhe last two years, particularly amongst
key decision makers.

66

They aren’t just landlords.
They take a real interest
in the campus.”

Harry Tsakalotos, EBRD
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The success of aur approach «s demonsirated
by our leasing aciivly, which this year totalled
272000 =g I, 1.4% 2head of ERV. 33,000 sy it
retated o retail, eisure or communily space.
We have let a further 85,000 sg Tt on a short
armn of mesnwhile haos, adding uses which
enliven our campuses and address lease
expirres while presarving opionality for
redevelogrnent. We were pleased that a
number of cur mager ocTupiers re-commitied
2 our campuses in the year. including
Facebook who have agreed lesms 1o further
extand their ocoupation of 106,000 sg ft at 10
Brock Streel. At 20 Triton Street. Dimensional
Fund Advisors have agreed to a re-gear, taking
their lerm to 10 years [original expiry June
2020) with an additionat 12,900 sq H and
Credit Agricole have agreed 1o extend their
140,000 sq fi leasa at Broadwalk House from
2019 o 202%. This activity, 2s well as the final
tettings at Marble Arch House and The
Leadenhall Building has increased like-Jor-ltike
renl across the office portfolio by 4 5%. -

We are also letiing well aross gur recently
completed and fear lerm pipeline whilst
successhilly expanding our mix of uses. At

4 Kingdom Street. Paddingion Central, we
ware 2imosl 0% under offer on the office
space within a waek of completion in Apel.

in aggregate, these leases are on terms 3%
ahead of pre-referendum net effective ERVs .
and aver 25% ahead of eur Investrient
Committee assymplions at comrmitmenl in
2014_ We have signed a lwo year lease with
Pergola Paddinglon Centrat for an 850-capacity
pop-up dining destination on the site of 5
Kingdom Street. The venue will feature some
of London's maost pogular restasrants and
bars. including Pally & Bun, DF / Mexico and
Raw Press aod the offering wall change each
season. Al Broadgaie. we are addressing
wvacances at 2 Finsbury Avenue with 70,000
<q ft of shert term lettings, including to
Theaire Dalicalessen. a fintech company

and an archilecture practice.



W staried on site at 100 Liverpoal Sirest in
the year. It sits at the galeway lo our Broadgste
camaus, edjacent lo Liverpool Steel stakion
where the rst Crosseail sevvices will
comnmendce ned yaar It oreers 524 G sq it
lan intrease of 140,000 sq fi] and i< dasigned
to be divisible into units as small as 3 6 sq it
with shared fadiities catering to demand from
smaller businesses. 90,000 sg i is aierated
1o retail and restavranis, and we are
committed to both the WELL standard lfor
wellbeing and the WiredScore Platinum rating
for internet connectivity and infrastrecivre.
This development is 2 good llustraten of
our strateqy in Offices to daliver buildings
which rneet evolving customer needs and
appest to a broader range of ocoupiars. |
The redevelopment is expected {o more

than doubte rents at the building.

The next phase of development wilt see the
mix of uses conlinue to evotve. Qur revised
plans for 2 288,008 sq It refurbishrnment at

1 Finshury Avenue indude 3 dnerna, relail
and restauranis at ground floor, 2nd our
prupogals at 135 Bishopsgate altocate 43,000
sq It to retail. We have submitted plans for
refurbishment of these buildings, and arein
discussions with prospeciive occupiers on
nearty half of the combined space. We expact

279000 sq it

lettings and renewals

+1.4%

lettings vs ERV

s1.15bn

headline sale price of The Leadenhall Bullding
oo%l

¢150m |

devetopmeant and Eapilalspend

700000 sq it

of tetlings under. offer or in advanced
negoliations ACross sur campuses

0 vornimil io both refurbishments in the
coming rmonths with an assocated cost of
£90 million. M Paddington Central, we are

' in advanced nagoliations with an operator

o pre-{et a bouligue holet and all day dining
concegl on the Sic of the existimg Monaye nanl
sufte [the Gateway Buildingl. AL Regent's Place
we are pleased that we are under offer on
310,000 sq AL representing all of the office
space at our proposed redevelopment ol

1 Triten Square. and received approval from
the London Borough of Camden last waak.

Tiws means that acress our campuses,

we are under ofler or in advancad negoliations
on gver 700,001 sq It ol space with significam
discussions ongoing across the London
business with potenbal occupiers on a further
850,000 sq It of space, which could rigger
jurther developrnent commibments.

As part of our cempus offering we will

sharity launch 2 branded Rexible workspace
offer which enables us to capture incremental
demnand from the increasing nurmber of small
businesses Laking space in London as wall

as meeling a growing need amongst our
existing orcupiers for flexible space for specfic
prajects and teams. Qur firsl Aexible dealis
on 25000 sg it a1 2 Finsbury Avenus, exlending

our el attonstEp with 2n ensling coOuser -

at Paddingien Cendral, who naed additiznal
strengihens existing rélationships ard altrects
ew COCUHHETS 10 GUT Campys, polentially our
£ore aotupiars of the hukaré. YWe have allocated

31 4 Kingdom Street. 2nd we have commenced
fit-cut eoross BB.080 s i,

Fallowing the exchange of The | eadenhall
Building, our stzndalens office partiatio
acooants for 22% of Gifices. AL 7 Clarges
Street, the 53,000 sg i olifce eloment of cur
mixed vse develepment o Mayfay, we were
pleasad thal over BOT of the space was It
or under olfer fust fowr meaths ziter its
launch in Soptember. We achieved an
average rant of £113 psf, on terms indine
with pre-veferendum net effactive ERYSs.
guatity office spaoe in Londan. At Yalding
House (22.000 sq it} we have Lot four of the
six Roors and 2re under offer on the Rnal
two_ L ke The Leadenhali Building. these
are buildings where we can develop and
rade oppertunistically, io provide liguidity
in our porifofio and enhance returns. |

g ORIT X \p B
Pargola, an 850-seatar outdoor dining concapt at Paddington Ceatrat,
wall host some of London's mast popular bars and restaurants.,
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Strategiv Report

CLIMATE RELATED PERFORMANCE

In a changing climate, our futureproofing
programme creates conunercial opportunities
and helps us anticipate regulation, resource
constraints and stakeholder expectations

Carbon reporting

We aclively manage greenhouse gas emissions
aaruss our business. Qur energy efficiency
programma has saved occupiars £13 million
gross over six years and we're committed to
usng 100% electricity from renewable sources.

British Land was included in the COP
Climate A List of the top 93 of global
companies tackling dimate change.

Qur targal lo cut carbon intensity by 55%

by 2020 versus 2009 {index scored} exceeds
saence-based targets, reflecting our support
for the COP21 commitment to limit global
warming to 2°C.

We have reported on all emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006
IStrategic Report and Directors™ Reporis)
Regulations 2013, These sowrces fall within our
consoldated financial statement and relate to
head office artivities and coalrolled emissions
from our manaqed portfolio. Scope Vand 2
emissions covers 97% of cur mulii-lel managed
portiolio by value. We have used purchased
energy consumption data, the GHG Protocol
Corporale Accounting and Reporting Standard
[revised edition] and emission factors [rom the
UK Govermment's GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reparting 2016,

Scope 1 and 2 emissions intensity {(tounes CO»¢)

Year ended 31 March

N

Emission from combustion of fuels has
increasad by 1% lamely due to weather
alfecting gas use in Offices. Emissions from
purchased electricity has decreased by 12%.
targety due 1o changes in UK grid emission
factors ang chvanges in aur portfolic.

For consistency with previous years, cibon
data in this Report is calculated using

the location based methodology. Wahen the
markel based methodology is applied, our
carbon emissions reduce by 280K onnes,
lactoring in that mosl of the electricity we
purchase comas from renswable sources
IREGO backed].

As lhe graph opposite shows, Scope 3 emissions
assaciated with our places are significantly
arger than the Scope 1 and 2 emisgions that

we have more influente over. Scope 3 emissions
come from activities that we den't dwecity
manage, such as wisitars ravelling by car

o shopping destinalions, occupiers’ energy
use in the space they lease lrom us and the
manufacture ol construction materials for
developments. By understanding and manitoring
Scope 3, we identify and preparz lor future fisks
from shifls in 2nergy and carbon reguelation
and, al the same time, take stéps o reduce
our impact on climate change.

2007 2016 il

Per m? - Offices Inel lettable areal
Perm? - Retail: enclosed
Per parking space - Retail: open air

0.069 0075 ons
0.087 0.073 0374
0084 0053 0106

Par Cm - Gross rental and related income from managed portlolio! 6739 79.48 -

- Absolute Scope 1 and 2 emissions (tonpes CO»e)

Year ended 31 Mardh

. M7 mé 22

Combustion of fuel: Managed portfolio gas use and fuel yse

in British Land owned vehicles

7348 7.284 5154

Operatio.n of facilities: Managed portiolia refrigerant 1055 from

- avr conditioning

281 G644 -

Purchase of electricity, lnat.steamandooolingfordurm use:

Managed portiolio electricity use

M9 IO 41185

' Gross Rental Income IGR] from the managed portfolio comprises Group GRI of £442 milbon [7016: £451 milbon],
plus 100% of the GRI geaerated by joint ventures and funds of £437 miltion (2015: £451 million]. less GRI
generated by assels outside the managed porifolio of £259 miltion {2014: €315 miliion).
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Qur carban footprioy?

BSwpel 0I3%
OSoope-2  085%
BSoopel  TR.EY%

' Based an 2002 and 2036 date.

For market basad data, see our
Systainability Accounts 2017 at
werw britishland.com/data

Opportunities and risks

We commissioned a review of dimate related
apportunities and risks in 2017. Qur portiolois
vl posioned through our falureproofing tocus.

Opportwnities inclutde:

- Anticipating occupier demand for climate
resihent properties

- Delivering enargy and carbon cosl savings
{2017: C13m gross)

- Generating on site energy [2017: 2. 588MWhi

- Quiperforming Building Regutations
{2012-2017- 21.2% better on average]

Risks include:

~ Risiog energy costs

- Energy and carbon laxation, such as
the CRC Energy Etficiency Scheme

- Climate {egislation, such as Minimum
Energy Efliciency Standards [2017: 4%
of portfobio at risk

~ Flood risks, impacting on asset value
and wmsurance costs (2017: 3% of
portfolio high risk]

- Cuostingeases linked with carbon-inlensive
conslruction matenals

For our full methodoloqy, explanation
of changes and PwC's independent
assurance, see our 2017 Sustainabitity
Accounts al www.britishland.com/data




FINANCIAL REVIEW

It’s been an active year with £2 billion

of capital activity, increasing financial
it ” idting flexibility to §

in opportunities within the portfolio

Lucinda Bell
Chaet Financiat Officer
Underiying Prolit'® IFRS profit before tax

378y 2920,

Undertying camings per share! Dividend per share

915y £9.8Sbn

EPRAne! 2ssel value per share? {FRS nel assels

299%  3.1%

Lyss ‘Weighted average interest rate®

2. 4%

Totat accounting returm'

! See Glossary for definitions.

2 See Tablz Bwithin supplemenlaryd-sdnsurelu-reoonuluahuns*
twiFRS matncs.

? See Nole Z withwn Fnancial statements hor caloulation .

¢ See Mole 17 within finandal sitements for caloutation
and reconciiation lo IFRS metnics. .

* On a progor tionally consolidated basis including the Group's
share of joint ventures and funds i

Overview

We delivered a good sel of resulls espedatly n the context of an
uncertain environmant, with Undarlying Profit growth of 7.4% and
undertying edrnings per share {EPS) growth of 10.9%.

EPRA net assat value par share [INAV] decreasad by 0.4% reflecting 2
portiolio valuation fall of 1.4% on 2 propertionally consolidated basis. Il
also includes the impact of no longar treaking the 1.5% convertible bond
as ditulive, as e share grie was below the exchange price of 493 pence
al the year end. Exchuding this adjustmeni, NAV decreased by 1.7%

We have been active, with £2.0 billion of gross capital activity |€1.1 bilion
0f net capiial aclivity]. This coraprses £1.5 billien of dispesals of pomarity
single-let Retail assets and owr 50% interest in The Leadenhall Building
which completes after the year end, We have reimsested £0.3 biltion in our
develapments and capital expenditure across the portfolio, and made
£0.2 bitlion of aoquisiions, pramarity of assets adiacent to exsting holdings.

The net proceeds from this actaity imarovs our finsnczl resitience and
provide capacity for reinvesiment inlo our porifolio, particslarly en the
hroad range of developinent opportunities within osur xisting pipeline.
The proportionally consolidated laan to value ratio [L TV} has decreased
10 29.9% from 32.1% al March 2014, Our actions have reduced the
proporiionally consolidated weighted average inlerest rate o 3.1%
Trom 3.3% at March 2016. Adjusling for the receipt of proceeds from
the sale of our 50% interest in The Leadenhall Building, LTV is 26 9%
and the weighted average inlerest rote s 3.4%.

Underlying Profit increased by 7.4% to £390 million: the impact of net
sales has been more than offset by like-for-like rental growth_ financing
activity and a reduction in administrative expenses. The Group's operaling

" cast ratio has reduced by 100 bps to 15.6% 12015/14: 16.4%).

IFRS profit betore tax for the year of £195 million is lower than the prior
year profit of {1,331 miltion, primariy due to the negative property
valuation movement in the year.

As previously announced in May 20116, we increased the dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2017 by 3.0%. Looking forward to next year
we inlend o increase the dividend by a further 3.6% to 30.68 pence
per share. with a quarterly dividend of 7.52 pence per share.

Presentation of financial information

The Group financial staternents are prepared under IFRS where
the Group's interests in joint ventures and funds are shown as a
single line item on the income statemen! and balance sheet and
all subsidiaries are consolidated a1 100%. :

Management considers the business principatly on a proportionally
consolidated basis when setting the strategy, delermining annual

-pricrities, making irvestment and financing decisions and reviewing

performance. This mcludes the Group’s share of joint ventures and
funds on a line-by-line hasis ang excludes non-controlling interesis
in the Group's subsidiaries. The Kinancal key performance indicators
are also presented on this basis.
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Srragedic Report

FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

A summary incoma slatemnent and summary balance sheet which
recondle the Group intome statements to British Land's interesis

on apreportionatly consolidaied basis are indluded in Table Awithia

the supplemeniary disdosures.

Managament monitors, Undertying Profil as this mare acourately
reflects the Group's firgndal performante and the undertying recurring
performance of our core property rental activity, as opposed to IFRS
rnetrics which include the non-cash valuatioh movernem on the proparty
portfolio. it is based on the Best Praclices Recommendations of the
Eurnpean Public Real Estale Association [EPRA} which are widely

used alternale melrics to their IFRS equivalents.

Management aiso monitors EPRA NAY as this provides a transparsnt,
and consisient basis 10 enable compasison bateean Lunopean property
companies. Linked lo this. the use of Total Accounting Return atlows
management to monitor return to shareholders based on mevements
in a consistently appliad melric, being EPRA NAY. and dividends paid

Loan o value [proportionally consolidates! is 3lsa momtored by
managament as a key measure ol the level of debt employad by the
Group o meet ils stralegic objectives. along with a measurement
of risk it also allows comparison to other proparty companies
whea similarly monilor art report this measure.

Income statement

1. Undertying Profit 4

Undertying Profit is the measure that is used inlermally lo assess
income performance. No comparny adjustiments have been made in the
current or prior year and therefore this is the same as the pre-tax EPRA
earnings measure which includes a number of adjustments to the IFRS
reported profil before tax. This is presented below on a proportionally
consolidaled basis: ’

2018 2017
Saction E&m &m

Gross rental income 554 &43

Properly aperating expenses 1341 133)
Met rental income 11 &0 810

Met lees and ather income ’ 17 17

Administralive expenses ’ 13 1941 1]
Nel financing costs } 1.2 {180l 1151}
Underlying Profit 383 90

Non-controlling interests in Underlying Profit 14 14
EPRA adjustinents' 954 (209]
IFRS prufit before tax 2 133 195

Undertying EPS . 1.4 34 378p

IFRS basic EPS 2 1312p 188p

Dnndend per share 3 Z36p 29.20p

! EPRA adjust ts consist of & trent and devel t

revatuations, gainsflosses on invesiment and rading property di

changes in the fair value of financal instrements and associated close out
mﬁshnesenemsarEpmmdmme “capital and nther’ catumn ol the
o d income s,
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1.1 Net rental income (€mj

e

Capital
adialy

Lilefmdke Egpiizsen LeaSmel m7
derial - Gauel

The £10 million decrease in nat rental income during the yearwas the
result of like-for-like growth and teasing of developments pariiaily
oifsetting the impact of capital activity and lease expiries.

Lixe-for-iZe rental income growsth wes 2.9% excluding the impatl of
surrender premia. Retail growth was 2.0% [1.6% indluding the impact
of survender premial. This was driven by slreng leasing activity. asset
managamert activities. such as splitting units. and additicnal wenover
ang car park income.

Olfice and Residentiat ike-for-like growlh was & 5% just over half

of this was due to the lelting up of mmpleled developments that are
noew in the ike-for-like portiolio, pradominantly The Leadenhasli Buitding
and Marble Arch House which are bolh now tull The remainder is
attrbulable to strong rent review acivity, particularly at Regent's Place.

{ ease expiries retaling lo properties in our developmenl pipeline .
reduced net remts by €8 miltion, induding £3 mithon at 100 Liverpeal

‘Sireet where we are on site and £3 million at 1 Triton Square which

is under offer lor redevelopment on a pre-let basis: wa have received
approval lor this development from the London Borough of Camden.
The successiul letting of our recenity compieted development
programme provided £10 million of additional rent this year.

Thus brings the net innpact of dwelopmenls on net rental income

to £2 millon.

Looking ahead to next year, we expect transaclions compleling

pesi year end o reduce revd by €18 mithion and lulure lease expiries
relaling lo properties in the development pipeline o reduce rent

by £6 mitlion. Renial income growth will be driven by the letting

up of developments and fike-for-like growth.

1.2 Net financing costs l€m)




Financing costs were £29 million lower this year.

Debt related rensaclions over the 1351 two years, including the {338
million zero coupon convertible bond, reduced costs by £16 million this
year. In the corrent year, we used sales proceads to repay unsecured
revolving aredit tacifities and we compleled the earty repayment of the
£2%5 mitlion TBL Pruperties Limited secured loan. We agreed one year
exlensions on a tolal of £1.4 billion of cur vnsecured faclities and agread
a new E108 million bilateral facility. Qur liability managemant, which

is NPV positive, reducad NAV by 4 pance per share.

Our approach to inlerest rate management remains an important factor
in reduding interest costs. The decision to keep a portion of our debt at
Rosting rates has seen us benefit from lower market rales which has
resulted in 2 reduction in financing costs of £9 million. The propariion
of our projected debt held at fixed rales is 60°% en average over the

nex five years_ At 31 March 2017, our debt pro forma for the sale of the
Leadenhall Building was 78% fixed on a spot basis.

1.3 Administration expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by £8 million this year as a resull
of managing down our cast base and lower variable pay. The Group's

operating cost ratio has reduced by 100 bps to 15.6% {2015/18: 16.6%].

1.4 Underlying EPS

Underlying EPS was 37 8 pence {2015/18: 34 1 pence] based on Undartying
Profit after tax of E390 million [2015/14: £363 miltion). The increase wm
undertying EPS of 10.9%is more than the increase in Undertying Profit

of 7.4% as the 1.5% convertibla bond is no longer dilutive. As the share
price was below Lhe §93 pence exchange price at year end, no dilution
adjustment was made [2015/14: £6 million interest addad back and
shares increased by 578 million], in line with EPRA guidance.

2. IFRS grofit hefore tax

The main difference hetween IFRS profit before tax and Underiying Profit
s that il includes the valualion movement on investment and development
properties and the fair value movements of financial instruments.

In addition. the Group's invesimenis in joint ventures and funds are

equily accounted in the IFRS income statement but are included on

a proporlionally consolidated basis within Underlying Profil.

The IFRS prolit before tax for the year was £195 million, compared
te a pralit before Lax For the prior year of £1.331 mitlion. This reflecls
the vatuation mavement on the Group's properties which was

£760 million tess than the prior year and the valuation movement

an the properties held in joint ventures and funds which was £338
million less than the prior year, in both cases resulling from oulward
yietd shift and a lower level of ERV growth in the current year.

IFRS basic EPS was 18.8 pence per share, compared to 131.2 pence
per share in the prier year, driven principally by property valuation
movements. The basic weighted average number of shares in issue
during the year was 1,029 million [2015/14: 1,025 million).

3. Dividends .

Inline with the intention announced in May 2016, we increased the
dividend by 3.0% for the year to March 2017 which gives a full year
dividend of 29.20 pence per share.

The fourth interim dmd‘énd payment for (he quarter ended 31 March 2017
will be 7.30 pence per share. Payment will be made on 4 Augus! 2017
Lo shareholders on the register at clase of business on 30 June 2617,

The increase in Uriderlying EPS of 10.9% resulted in a reduction
in the dividend pay-out ratio to 77% [2019/14: 83%).

Inproposing the dividend for the coming year. the Board took inlo account
the current markel environmen!, our t2rgel payout range and dnivers of
next year's profits. R is the Board s inlention to incraaze the dividend by
3.056 in 2017118 to 30.08 pence per share, with a quarierty dividend of
752 pence per share. refleciing confidence m our abfldy lo grow income
over the madium larm.

Balance sheet

2014 amr.

SeClitn tm £€m

Properiies a? valuation 14,648 13940
Othar non-currenl asseis 128 158
. 14786 14,096

Oiher el current liabilities 1Z577 364
Adjusted et debt 6 575 16,229)
Other non-cuirent lizbiliies (20] (11}]
EPRA netassets lundiluted) 9476 9478
Diution impaci of convertthle bond 408 -
EPRA netassets [diluted) 10074 9498
EPRA NAV peor share X & 9W9p.  NSp
Nohmrnmlling interesls” S ' 2m7 255
1.5% converiitle bond dilution oo -
Other EPRA adjustments’ . (3320 {zr}
IFRS nat assets S 7.619 9476

! EPRA nal assels exclude B2 mark-lo-mankel on effective cash Row hadges and
related delil adjustnenis, the mark-to-marked an the converfible bonds as well
as defered taxation on propesty and derhative realvations. They indede the
valugtion surplus on treding propérties and are adjusied for the dlutive impact
of share oplions. 2015/16 also includes an adjustrment fer the dilutive impacdt of
the 1.5% cenwertibta bord maturing in 2017, Mo dilution adjustment is made for
the £350 million 2ar0 coupon convertible bond maturing in 2020, Datails of the
EPRA adjustments are included in Table Bwithin the supplemantary disclosures.

4. EPRA net asset value per share lp]

- .
R 2

22

e YT I action  bord
ment  mend osts  diion
tiversal

The 0.4% decrzase in EPRA NAV per share reflects a valuation dechine
of 1.4%. Values fell by 2.8% in the first six months, {ollowed by an upward
revaluation of 1.6% in the second half of the year. The movement in the
year reflected outward yizld movement of 15 bys, partially offset by ]
ERV growth of 1.1%. Net sales exchanged of over £1.5 bitlion, including
Debenhams, Oxford Street and The Leadenhall Buitding, provided a
positive contribution 1o the portfolio capital return of §.9%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Relail valuations ware down 1.8% with cutward yizld movement of

14 bps partially offset by ERY growth of 1 §%; the mulii-lel portiolio saw
strongar ERV growth of 2.£9%_ driven by good teasing aclivity. Further
information on Retalt valuation performanca can be found on page 32.

Oihce and Residenhial valuations were dowan 0.5% with eutward yield

‘movernent of 15 bps partially oifset by FRY growth of 0.5%: We agreed
the sale of The Leadenhall Building at a price 24% ahead of the 30
September 2014 valuation and the valuers have recngmsed the majonity
of this increase in the 31 March 2017 valuation. Further information on
Othce & Residential valuation performance can be lound onpage 35.

The 4 pance impact of finance transaction costs primarly relates to early
repayment of lerm debt ang termination of associaled ntarest rale swaps.

There is 3 12 pence benetii to EPRA NAV due (0 the reversal of the

1.5% convectible bond dilution indudaed in the 2015/14 results. As the
share price was below the §93 pence exchenge price at year end, no
dilution adjustment was rmade [2015/16: C400 mitlion debt deducted from
nel assel valus and dituted number of shares increasad by 57.6 mitlion].
Excluging this adjustmant, NAY decreased by 1.7%.

5.1FRS net assets

IFRS nel ass21s at 31 March 2017 were £9.476 million, a decrease of
£143 million from 31 March 2018. This was primarily due to IFRS profil
belore tax of £195 million being tess than the dividends pald in the year
of £296 million.

Cash flow, net debt and financing
4. Adjusted net debt {Em}

200 wmm Na Diidends (Rher UBS 217

merd cashirom
and operalions
Gxpex

payment

' Adjusted nzi debt is 8 proportionalty consolidaled measure, i represents the
Group net debl as disclosed in Note 17 and the Group's share of juint venture
and funds’ nt dedt extluding the mark-to-marke: on effeclive cash Row hedges
and related debr adjustments and ron-controlling inlerests. A reconciliation
between the Group net debi and adjusied net deblis included in Table A within
the supplementary thscloSures.

Captlal aclivity reduced debl by £0.5 billion in the year. Compleled
disposals during the year included the sale of Debenhams, Oxford Sireet
for 400 millton, a portlolio of non-cere Relail assels for £191 million and
eight superstores totalling £111 million [British Land sharel. Acquisitions
completed in the year included the New Gearge Sireet Estate in Plymouth
for £64 million which will now be managed as an wtegraled part of

" Drake Circus. Other inves ts inctuded development expendilure
of £187 million and capital expenditure of £74 miilion related to assel
management on the standing porifolio.
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"Nel divestment induding transaclions comgpleing aiter the year end

increased e £ 1.1 billion. This indudes the expedtad complalion of the
sate of The Leadenhali Building sale for £575 million (Brilish Land share]
and the completion of the Tesco JV swap ransaction resulling in a net
divestment of E73 million of supersiore assats.

We received a £10 million capiia] papment recesved in December 20%
from UBS in refabion to the development and ecoupation of 5 Broadgats,
and subsequant axit of 100 Liverpsat Srea), inciuding 8-10 Brosdgate.

7. Financing -
Group Propas by dated

11 any ' 014 7
Nai deblfadusted natdzbt'  €3.617m £3,094m 2, 765m  €4,223m
Prirdipal amounl
of gross debl £3.552m £3,069m £5.08%m  €4,520m
Loanto value 2% N258% 321% 299%
Weighted avarage .
interestrale 2.6% 2.48% 3.3% 3%
Interest cover 33 45 K1) 3.6
Weighted average .
debt matunty 72yzars §9yoars Blilyears 7.7years

' Group dataas presented o note 17 of the finanoal stataments. The proportonatly
consolidated fiqures nduds the Groug's share of juint venture and huds’ el debh
and exchude the mark-to-markel on elfaciive cash fow hedges and related dati,
adjustmants and non-controlling ierests.

The balance shest remains resilient. LTV and weighled average interest
rate on drawn debt were reduced and interest cover improved, Qur
proportionally consolidated LTV was 29.9% at 31 March 2017, down 220
bps from 32,19 al March 2016 mainly reflecting the impact of dispasals.
Fhis reduces by a lurther 300 bps 1o 26 9% pro torma for the sate of The
Leadenhall Building. Note 17 of the inandial statements seis out the
calcutation of the Group and proportionally consolidated LTY.

The strength of the Group's balance sheet is reftected in British Land's
senior unsecured credit rating which continues to be rated by Fitch at
A- with the Gutlook upgraded 1o Positive’.

Qure proportionally consolidaled waghted avarage interesl rate reduced
to 319 at 31 March 2017 from 3.3% at 31 March 2016 This reftects

3 6D bps reduction principally as a resuli of our financing activity

and decisions, partially offset by a vise of 40 bps due to repayment

of cheaper Racilities with sales proceeds received. This increases

to 3 4% pro forma for the sate of The Leadenhall Building

Qur weighted average debt rmatusity is eight years.

British Land has £1.8 billion of committed unsecured revolving banking
facililies. Of these facilities, €1.7 billion have maturities of mare than
two years and £1.3 billion was undrawn al 3t March 2017. Based onour
current commitrments, these facilities and scheduled debl maturities,
we have no requirement to relinance until early 2021 regardiess of
whelher our convertible bonds are cash or equity seitled.

Further information on our approach to financing is provided in the
Financial policies and principles section on pages 43 1o 43,

Lucinda Bell

Chiel Financial Officer




FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding
which enables us to deliver our

property strategy

Leverage

We manage our yse of debl and equily finance
to balance the benefits of leverage against the
risks, including a magnification of property
valvation movernents. A lean to value ralio
LTV ) measures aurleverage. primariy an

a proportionally consolidated basis including .
eur share of jeint ventures and furids and
excluding non-controlling interesis. AL3§
March 2017, our propartionally consolidated
LTV of 29.9% was higher than the Group
measure of 22.6%.

We aim lo manage cur LTV through the proparty
cycte such thal our finandial position would
remain robust in the event of a signilicant fall
in property values. This means we do not adjust
our approach to leverage based on changas

in property markel yields, Consegquently oyr
LTV may be higher in the tow point in the

cycle and will trend downwards as market
yizlds tighten.

Debt finance

The scate of our business combined with the
quality of gur assets and rental income means
that we are able to approach a diverse range of
debt providers to arvange finance on attractive
terms. Good access {o the capital and debt
markels is a competilive advaniage, allewing
us I take apportunities when they arise.

The Group's approach to debt financing far
British Land is lo raise funds predominantty on
an unsecured basis with our standard financiat
covenants {set out on page 45). This provides
Rexibitity and low operational cosl. Our joint
ventures and funds are each financed in
‘ring-fented’ structures wilhout srecourse

to British Landg for repayment ang are

secured aon the relevant assels.

Presented on the {ollowing page are the
five guiding principles that govern the way
we structure and manage debt.

Monitoring and controlling our debt
We musitor cur debt reguirement by focusing
principally on curvent and projected borrowing
levels, available faciliias, debt malurity and
interest rate axposure. We undertake sensitivity
anatysis to assess the impacts of proposed
transaclions. movements in interest rates

and changes in proparty values on key batance
sheet, liguidity and profitability ratios. We

also consider the nzhs of 3 reduction in the
availability of inance, including a lemporary
disruplion of the debt markeis.

Basad on our current cammitrents and
available fadlites, the Group has no requirement
to refinance umill early 2021 firespective of
whaiher the setitement of the 1.5 2012
cormvertible bond is wilth equity or deht).

British | and's committed bank facilities total
£1.8 billion, of which £1.3 bilion was undravm

_at 31 March 2017,

For more on managing our risks, including
financial nisks, see pages £4 1o 53,

Managing interest rate exposure

We manage our interest rate prafite
independently from our debt, considering the
sensilivity of underiying earnings to movements
in markel rates of interest over a five yzar
period. The Board seis appropriale ranges-

of hedged debt over thal period and the

lenger lerm. ’

Our debt finance is raised at both fixed and
werable rates. Derivatives [primarily interest rate
swaps and capsl are used to achieve the desired
interest rate prolite across proportionalty
consotidated net debt. Currently 60% on average
of projected net debt is hedged over the next Rve
years, with a decreasing profile over that period.
The use of deraralives is managed by a Derivalives
Commiltee, using detegated authority from the
Board. The interest rate managernent of joint
ventures and funds is considered separately
by each entily's Board, taking into account
appropriate factors lorits business.

es .

Counterparti
Wa menitor the oredit stending of sur

munterparties tp minimise eur risk exposure

in placing cash depasits and arranging
derivatives. Regular revw

are madz of the

extarnal mzzd‘rt:atmgs of the counderperies.

Cur palicy i= to have no matesial vnhedged |
nel assels or liatliies denominated in
foreign cnrrencies.

Foreign corrency

When atiradlive terms are available, thé
Group may choase bo borrow in currenties
other than Sterling, and will fully hedge the
foreign currency exposure. ’
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FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Our five guiding principles

GUT SOUICES
of finance

maturity
of debt

Maintain

Maintain

Maintain

We monitor finance markets and seek to access differen sources of finance when the rel 2 markel condilionrs are favoarable
16 roe=t the neads of our business and, where appropriate. these of eur joini ventures and funds. The scele and quality of ow
business enabies us ko access a broad range of unsecured and secured, recourse and nen-Tecowse dabl

W develep and maintsin long lerm relationships with banks and debl investors. We aim to awoid relizace on particular sounces

of funds and borrow from a large umber of lenders from ditferant sectors in the market 20ress 3 renge of geographical areas.
with 2 tolal of 30 debt providers in bank facilities and private placements alone. We work to ensure thai dabt providers understand
our business. adopling a Iransparent approach to provide sufficien! disdosures 10 enable them to evaluate their exposure within
the overall contex! of the Group. These factors increase our atiractivensss lo debt providers, and in the last five years we have
arranged £4.6 biltion [Brilish Land share £3.9 billion] of new linance in unsecured and sacured bank logn facibiies, US Private
Placemenis and comvartible bonds. In addition wa heve existing tong dated debantures and seosiifsation bonds. A Eunopean
Mediem Term Note programme has also been maintained ta enable us to 2otess Sterlingfuro unsecured bord markets

when i s appropnate for our business,

£4.5bn

total drawn dait (proportionally © idated]

The maturity profile of our debt is managed with a spread of repayment dates, reducing cur refinanang sk in respacl of timing
and market conditions. We monitor the various debi markets so that we have the ability (o acl quickly e 2rrange riew finance
2s opportunities arise which meet our business needs. As a resusit of eur linzncing activity. vwe are comfortably 2head of cur
preferred refinanang date horzan of nol less than two years.

The cssrent range of debt malyrities is within one to 19 years. In accordance wilh cur usuzl practice, we expect (o refinance
facilities ahead of their maturities. '

4.4 years

avarage debit raturity proportionally consotidated]

in addition to our drawn debt, we atways aim Lo have a good level of undrawn. committed, unsecured revolving bank faciliies.
These [adlities provide Rnancial liquidity. reduce the need to hold resources in cash and depasits, and minimise costs arising
from the ditference between borrowing and deposit rates, while reducing credit exposure.

We arrange these revolvinq credil fadilities in excess of our commitied and expected requirements (o ensure we have adequate
finanaing availability to support business requirements and new opporiunities.

£1.3bn

undrawn revolving oredit facilities

Bur facﬂmes are siructured to prowde valuable Tlexibility for investment aclivity execution, whether sales, purchases,

itS or asset g W initiatives. Dur revolving credit facililies provide full operationst Aexibility of drawing and
repaymenl {antt cancellation if we require] at short nolice without additional cost. These are arranged with standard lerins and
financial covenanis and generally have maturities of five years. Alongside this unsecured revobang debt our secured term debl in
debentures has good asset security substitution nights, where we have the ability to mave assets in and gut ol the security pool.

£1.8bn

{otal revolving aredil laalies

We use both debt and equity financing. We aim to manage LTV through the property cycte such that our financial posilion would
remain robust in the event of a significant fall in property values and we do nol adjusi our approach Lo leverage based on changes
in property market yields.

We manage our interest rate prolile independently from our debt, setting appropriate ranges of hedged debt over a five year
peris)d and the longer term,

299% A 3.6x

LTV {proports lidated] semor unsecured interes! cover {proportonalty consolidatedd
creditrating .
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Group borrowings .
Unseruned financing for the Group inc
bilaterel and synditated revolving bank fedlitfes
fwith indtiat tesns usully of five years, often
extengabie); US Privale Placemenis with
maturities up o 2027; 2nd the comwertible
boengs maturing in 2017 and 2020,

Secured debt for the Group (excluding debt

in Hercutes Unit Trust which is cover=d und=r
‘Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds’i

is provided by debentures with longer maturities
upla 2_035

Unsecured borrowings and covenants
The same financial covenants apply acToss
each of the Group's unsecured fadlities.
These covenants, which have been consistently
agreed with all unsacured lenders since
2003, are- .
= MNet Borvreings not o exceed 175%

of Adjusied Capital and Reserves
- NetUnsecured Borrowings nol to

excezd 70% of Unancumbered Assels

No income of interest cover ratios apply
to 1hese fadlities_ and there are no other
unsecured debt inanciat covenants in
the Group.

The Unancumbered Assets of the Group, not *
subject to any securily, stood at £6.6 billion
as at 31 March 2017,

Although secured assets are excluded

from Unencumbered Assets for the covenant
calculattons, unsecurad lenders benefit from the
surplus value of these assels above the relzted
dabtand the free tash Row from them. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, these assets
generated £49 million of surplus cash afier
payraent of interest. [n addition. while

" investrnents in joint ventures do aot form part
of Unencumbered Assels. cur share of Ires
cash Rows generated by these venlures are
reqularly passed up to the Group. -

Uns_ecured financial covenants
Al 21 March

Secured borvowings

Secured debt with recourse to British Land is
providad by debentures st fixed interasi raies
with long maturities and limited amortisation.
These are secured against a combined pool of
assels wilh common covenants; the value of
those assets is requirad to cover the amount
of these detientures by a minimum of 1.5 times

| and net rentet income must cover the interest

at leasi once. We use our rights under the
debantures to withdraw, substitute or add
properties [ar cash collataral] in the security
pool. in order to manage these cover ratios
eflectively and deat with any assel sates.

Secured debt without recourse to Brilish
Land comprises a fixed rate dabenture of £30
million for BLD Property Holdings Ltd te 2020
secured by a small portfolio of propertias.

The £295 mullion secured bank loan for TBL
Properties Limited land ils subsidiaries) was
repaid earty on 30 September 2016,

Borrowings in our joint ventures and funds
External debt for our joint ventures and

funds has been arranged through teng dated
securilisations or secured bank debl, according
to the requirements of the business of
eachvenlure.

Hercules Unit Trust and its joint ventures have
term loan fadilities maturing in 2019 and 2020
arranged for their bysiness and sacured on
property portiolios, without recourse to Bratish
Land. These loans include LTV ratio iwith
maximum levels ranging from £0% Lo 65%}
and income based covenants.

The securitisations of Broadgate [€1.416 milbion],
Meadowhall {£670 million) and the Sainsbury's
Supersiores portfolio [£367 million), have
weighied average maturities of 1.4 years,

9.7 years. and 3.9 years respectively. The key
financial covenant applicable is (o meel interest
and scheduled amortisation {equivalent to 1

a4 M5 2004

213
% % % % k]

Net borrowings te adjusted capital and reserves’

N 40 38 34 29

Nel unrsecured borrowings to unencurnbered assels? 23 3 28 29 F{]

Highest during the year 1o 31 March 2017,
'A%
T 29
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wmes cover); there are no LTV covenants.
amartsation with the balance oulstanding
redutEng lo 2pproxknately 20% to 30% of

the arignal zmount raisad by expected final
There is no obbgation en British Land to
remedy any breach of these covenants in the
deit arrengament of joint ventures and funds.
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Stratediv Report

MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY

Effective risk management is
integral to our objective of delivering
sustainable long term value

Lucinda Bell
Chair of the Risk Commilies

For British Land, effective risk management

is a cornerstone of delivenng our strateqy

ard integral 1o the acthievement of our ohiecliva
of delivering suslainable leng term value. We
maintain a compreh risk management
process which serves to identify, assess and
respond o the principal risks {acing our
business,_ including those risks that could
threaten the Group's sotvency and liquidity, as

well as.identifying emerging risks. Qur approach |

is no! intended to eliminate risk entirely, but
nstead to geour nsk exp €5 ACress
the business, whilst ai the same time making
the mosl of our opporiunities.

Our risk management framework
Our inegrated approach combines a top
down strategic view with a complemeniary
holtorn up aperational process autlined in
the diagram on page 47.

The Board is responsible for the overalt
approach o risk management with a particular
focus on determining the nalure and extent

of exposure to principal risks it is williag to
take in achieving ils strategic ohjectives.

This is assessed in the context of the core
strengths of our business las surmmarised on
the right] and the external enwironment in
which we operale - this is our risk appelite.

The Awdit Commiltee takes responsibsity for
overseedw) the effectiveness of nsk management
and injernal controt sysiems on behalf of the
Board, and also advises the Board on the
principal risks facing the Group inctuding these .
that would threaten ils salvency or biquidity.

The Executive Directors are responsible for
délivering the Company’s sivalegy and managing
categorises our risks inlo external, sirategic
and operational risks and the Risk Comnmittee
lcomprising the Executive Directors and chaired
by the Chief Financial Officer] is responsible for
managing the prinapal Asks in each categoryin
vider lo adhweve the Group's performance goals.

Whils responsibility (or oversight of risk
management rests with the Board, the effective
day-1e-day managament of risk 15 embedded
within our aperalional business unils and
lorms an integral part of how we work. This
bottofn up appreach ensures potential risks
are identiliod al an early stage and escalated
as appropriale with mitigabions put in place

1o manage such risks. Each business unit
maintains a comprehensive risk register which
is reviewed quarterty by the Risk Commiltee,
wilh significant and emerging risks escalated
to the Audit Committee.

To read more about the Board and
Audit Commiltee’s risk oversight,
go to pages 65 and T0.
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British Land core strengths

High quality partiolio focused on
mutti-let redail across the UK and
office-led casmpuses in London
Placernaking to create Places
People Prefer

Customer orientation lo respond
to changing lifestytes

Diverse and high quality occupier base
High occupancy and long lease
lengths provides secure cash Rows
Mixed use developraent expertise
Ability ta source and execute
altractive investmernt deals
Efficient capilal strutiure with good
access to capilal and debl markets
Sustainability embedded in

our strategy

To read more about Our business
model, go to pages 10 and 11.




Our risk appetite
e N o _ Changein
internal risks Enctuting curfent oplimal threshaids) nthe year
@ thvestmant - Execulion of targeted acquisitions and disposals in " @
strotegy time with plan loverseen by Imvestment Comunities)
— Review of overall portfoliv prospeciive performance [IRRs]
- Pertenlagen!purt!oﬁoin‘mnmseclms
@ Development - ‘Tolatdeve{upnmmred%ofport(oﬁo
strategy - Speculslive development exposure <B3b of pertiolio '
{2013 <10%}
- Progress on exaoution of key dzvelopment projects
. againsiplan
@ Peopfe - Unplanned ezecutive departures @
- Employee engag t { Best Companies” surveyl
(&) capuat - LIV should nol exceed a maximum threshold in an @
structhure economic dovwntum if market yields were lo rise to
previous peak levels
- Covenant headroom )
@ Finance - - Perioduntil refinanding is required of not less than @
strategy two years
~ Percentage of debi at Ineed interest rates over next
five years
@ income - Marketlellingriskimludingvacandes.upcmning @
austainability expiries, and breaks and speculative developmant
~- Weighted average unexpired lease lerm
- Loncentration of exposure 1o individual ocoupiars
of sectors
Ouwr risk management framework
Top dowm Bolttom up
Sirategir rick managemant Dperational risk management

Review éxternal ervironment /\

Robust assessment of principal risks ) )
- BOARIV Assess pfiectivenass of risk

i i AuDI
Sel risk appeule_ and parameters OMINTTEE rnar‘agemina systems
Deterrmine strategic action points Report an principal nisks

\/ and uncertainlies
Wdently principal ks T T

Direct delivery of stralegic actions RISX . Consider completeness of
in line with risk appetite Friiihicod identified risks and adequacy
DIRECTORS of mitigaling actions

Monitor key risk indicators
Consider aggregation of sk

\_\/ exposures across the business
Execute strategic actions ’/\

Report on key risk indicalors Report current and
BUSINESS emerging risks
UNITS

Identify. evaluate and
miligate operational risks

\—// recorded in nisk regisler

s
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Our risk appetite

Tha Graup's risk appelile is reviewsad annually
as par} of the annual straieqy review process
and approved by the Seard. This evalvation
guides the actions we ke in axecuting our
strategy. We have identifiad a suite of Key Risk
Indicaters IKRIs) 1o menitor the Group's risht
profile {25 summarised an the leftl, which

are reviewed quariesty by the Risk Comumittes,
w ensure thal the activities of the business
reinain within our righ agpetite and that eur
risk exposure is well matched o changas in
aur business and our markels. These include
the most ggnificant judgemants affecting
our risk exposure, ndyding our assel
selection and investment strategy; the tevel
of eorupatonal and developmani exposure
anif our financial leverage.

The Board has considered the Group's risk
appetite in light of the outcoma of the UK's
refeyendum on conlicued membership of -

the EL). Qur strategy, which is based on

lonyg teren drends, endures; we had 2lready
posttioned tha business for 2 renge of oulcomes
with modest davelopment exposure, high

.occupancy and robust fnances. However, we

have a range of tactical levers to address the
evalving pelitical and economic uncertainties.

We have mederated our developman! activity,
reflecting increased uncertainty. We reduced
our internal risk metric for the maximum
we will deeslop speculatively from 10% of
the periolio to 8%, although our current
exposure is much tower al £%.

Qur inangal position is strang; cur
proporticnalty consolidated LTV has reduced to
22.9% reflecting asset sales and our finangng
has an average term of eight yaars on drawn
debt wath no requirement to refinance untit

sarty 2021,

The Board considers that the Group's

risk appelite is appropriate to achieve
our strategic objectives. Our business is
both resilient and well placed to capture’
value in the long term.
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING QUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Our risk assessnient

N
. Ney sirategic sk

risks affected  inyear
External risks
@ Econornic @g@

auitook

Polibcal and
@ poiivcatan DL®

outlook

c reial
@ Coromere 8® -

demand s

! =

OF i 9 ®8 5

tenant delault .
Oz © @

Ca hi
Opmo,  ©2 ©
Internal risks
@Inveslmenl @g@ @

stralegy ‘
Devalopment g@ — ~

strategy . — >
(3) People 29 (T Mote: Tha alimee Rlusirates principa risks which by are thase which hve the 3

mmmmmmsmwmwmwm

Clapil?l " ® Key

il Strategic priorities Change year on yesr
@ :m @ @ (@) Customer Drientation @ Unchanged

' g ‘ Right Places Increased
L"féiﬁlma., L® (®) Capitat Elfficiency Reduced
&8s Expert People

- Qur changing risks and focus
The Board has underiaken a robust assessment
of the principal risks and uncertainlies that the
Group is exposed Lo in light of the long term
trends we are facing (see pages 12 and 13l and
inlightof the EU relerendum resull. Several of
our printipal risks are elevated as a result of the
increased political and economic uncertainty
{as shown by the risk heat map abovel.

Locking lorward, risks that also could be
impacled while the terms and timing of exit are
negoliated, and patentially beyond are: investor
and accupier demand, availability of finance,
execution of investment strategy and income
sustainability. We resnain mindful of pokential
headwinds going lorward and our risk appelite
and tactical decisions will reflect the evolving
environment lo ensure the business refains
both resiient and well positianed to capture
upside in the future.
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AMlso, several of our principat risks have evolved
in nature; the regulalory eavironment is now
recognised within a broader "Political and
Requlatory Outlook” risk; and the ‘Gevelopment
Strategy risk has been expanded to include
development cost inflation.

Other areas of fecus Eor the Risk
Committee during Lhe year included:

- Culture

- Cyber security

- Assel level crisis plan

- Fraud and whistieblowing

- Effectiveness review ol our risk process

During the year, we have undertaken an
elfectiveness review of our risk management
process, as well as aninternat audit. Qur risk
management process appropriately
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supports the eflective management

of risks, whilst maintlaining a praciical
approach and meeting the requirernents
of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

We have built on our exishng process by
embedding risk management discessions
in the relevant business vnit management
commitiees and provided training for our
risk specialists across the business.

This year we hosted a major civil contingences.
exercise simulating a large scale criticat
incident at one of our multi-let retadl assets.
This was underiaken with support from several
police forces, hira and ambulance and gther
national agencies and enabled us to tes! our
capabilities and preparedness in the event

| ot a significant emergency.




The principat risks facing British Land are
summarised on pages 50 to 53, including
an assessment of the potential impact and
likelihond ang how the risks have changed
in the year, logether wath how they retate
lo our sirategic prionties.

The Strategic Repart was approved by
the Board on 15 May 2017 and signed
on its behalf by: 4

Lucinda Bell
Chief Financial Olficer

Vinbility statement

Assessient of prospects

The Group's annua! corparate planning
process indudas ths cernglehon ot a strategic.
revievy. reassacsing the Group's risk appatite
and updating the Group's iorecasts.

Tha Grogp's strategy proviias the focus lor
our shaws] prionties ard is fermeally revizwed
annually, This provess s ted by the Chiel
wcasdes the active engagernent of the Board.
Pari of the Board's nale & 10 considar whathar
I#Ewatajyla.kaewmiemunt of the
Group's pranipal risks. The latest updates

to ihe strategie plan znd Group's nsk appetite
were agnroved by the Board in March 2007,

The strategy and risk appatite drive the

_Group's forecasts. These copver a five year

perisd 2nd ronsist of 2 base case forecast
which indledes commitied ransattions enty,
and a forecast whixch also intudas noe:
cemmitied ransactiens the Board apeds
the Graup to make in e with the Group's
shrategy. A fve yoar laracast i considered 10
be the optimal balance between the Group's
leng tenm businzss medel lo create Places
Peopie Prefer and the fact that praperty
inveslment is a long term business dwith
weighied average lease tengths and debt
malurites in excess of five years), offset by the
prograssively unreliable nature of forecasting
i later years, partoslanty given the historically
cydical nature of the UK property industry.
Assessment of viahility

Fer the reasons outlined ahgve, the period aver

" which the Directors cansider iz feasible and

appropriate to report on the Group's wability
is the five year period to 31 Manch 2022,

Tie assumptions underpinning these forecast
cash Rows and covenant compliance forecasts
were sensilised to explors the resilience

of the Group ta the poteniial impact of the
Group's significant risks, or 3 combination

of those risks.

The principal risks lable which foltows en
pages 50 to 53 summarises those matters
that could prevent the Group from delivering
onils strategy. A number of these principal
risks, because of their nature ar potential
impacl, could atso threaien tha Greup's
ability Lo conlinue in business inits current
form i they were to ocour.

The Directers patd particular attention te the
risk of 2 delerioration in economic oulleak
whech could impact property flundamenlals,
indudirig invester and occupiar deinand which
wauld have a negative impact on valuations,
and give rise to a reduction in the availability of
finance The remaining principat risks, whilst
having an impact on the Group's business
maodel, are nol considered by the Directors

o have a reasonable likelihood of impacting
the Group's viability over the five year period
1031 March 2022.
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Tha . i { were décinned
10 be severe but plausible; and to take full
accousd of the availabliity of mitgating actizns
hat could be takaen o ool or reduce the
impact or ocowTente of the underlying risks
redating tn a single ‘downiiurn seenaTin”

Dumﬁmnmemmmcouﬂwkkey
assumpiions indirding sorspancy, woid
. parieds, rental growih and yiclds were

sensitised in the ‘downiurn scenziio’ o

raflect raasonably likely levels ascomated

with 2n ecenomic dewnburn, svcheding:

- arefudiicn in ococugiar demhand, with
3 fall in oocupancy rate of 5% and
Offeces and Retalt ERY dedines of -
29% and 5 respactively

~ areduction in investment property
dernend 1o the level seanin the lask
severe dovenlurn in Z308/2009, with
cutwerd yield 12 20 8% net el yield

— . Restricted availabity of finance: besed

on e Grogp's Eran] comsmiments and
available laclites there & Ro requiremant
to refinance until early 2021. In the normat
oourse of business, fnending is armanged in
advance of expected requiremants and the
Direciors have reasonable confidence that
additional er reptacemnent deb! facilifies wil
be put in place. In the "dovwnizn scenarte.
the fallewving sensilivity of this assumgstion
wats conducted:
- aredyclion in the awailabdity of

finance, for tha final b years of the

five year agsessment in lzndem with

the Group's refinandng dale

The cutcome of the ‘downturn scenaria’

was that the Greup's covenand headroom
based on existing debt li.e. the levet by which
imvestmesnd groperly values would have to kall
before a findndal covenant breach occurs)
decreases from the current 58%.10, atils
lowast teval. 114%, indicaling covenands on
exishing facilities would not be breached.

in the 'downturn scenario’, mitigating
actions would be required to enable the Group
to meet its fulure liabitities at the /efinancng
date, principally through asset sales, which

" would altow the Group to continue 1o meet

its liabilities over the assessment period.

Viability statement

Having considared the forecast cash flows

and covenant compliance and the impaci of the
sensitivities in comnbination i the “downturm
scenario’, the Directors confirm thal they have
areasonable expectation that the Group vl

be able to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the period

to 31 March 2022

Going concern

The Directors also considered it appropnate
to prepare Lhe linancial statements on the
gring concern basis, as exptained in the
Governanca review,

To read more information or going
concern, go to page 5.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

External risks
Risks and How we moniter
impaets and manage the risk

-(‘.fhangci.n

the vear

The Risk Committee neviews the aconomic

1 and

Foouomi: muxmtdmte -

outhook L hwhith we dperate quartariy 1o
mmratspmsu-tmts Mmammmeslemm
and opportunities in property ook justity a re of the risk
and finanding markets and the appetite of the business
busivesses, of our sccupiers _ I ds z "
vrhich canimpact bath the o/ ;:z:;udslu ‘m;ﬁL)P
delivery of gur strateqy and confidsnee, interest rates and inflationfdeflat
our finanGal performance. -

are considared, asnellasmh'almgm
and gmensnent policy updatas

Ve stress test our business, plar against

3 deemtum in econoenic curtdook to ansure

eur fiandal pasition is sufficantty fisxihle

and resiliant

O resiliand business modal focuses on a high
and robasl finances

Whilst we are hal able to influence the outcome

putat regulatory es, including of sigaificant politecal 2venis. we do lake the
. - thededsion toteave the EU, uncertainty related to such events and the range
outlook brings risks prindpallyin of possible outcomes intu accoum whan making
bwo aTeas: strategic mraestment and finanding decisions
- reluclance of mvestors Internalty we rewiew and munitor proposats and
and businesses to make mgu\gpdncyandleg:slahmmmnmux
wwEsiinend and ooopational  Lake the necessary stepst
deaisions whilst the oulcomz Mwm&mﬂzaﬁsm
o remaing uncertain and mammmaiwzarembne!edmﬂm
- ondetermination of the policy and reg

ofpobl:catmnlsw'hen agpmpna!e.we
aclmﬂmﬂuerlndustry ipants and

spedific policies representative Sodies 1o contribate to the
:: ::\::m int:'codumd, debate an requlatary changes
particularty those which
direcityinpact real estate

Commensal Reductionin investor demand

The Risk Cunmrtteeremm the property market

property for UK real estate may resuit quartertyto any changas to the
- in falls in asset valuations and markel vuttook present risks and opportunities
:z]nmm“ could arise from variations in: which should be reflected in the exzcution of
- lhe health of the UK econoeny 01y sirategy and our capital allocation plan. The
.d Commiltee considers indicators such as margin
-~ theatiractiveness of between property yislds and barrowing costs
investment ih the UK and property capital growth forecasts which are
- avilabiity of finance and considered alongside the Commitiee members’
- relalive stractiveness knowizdge and experience ol markel acihaty
of othar asset dasses and trends
Welocus on prime assets ang seclors which
we believe will be tess susceplible owes the
mediurn term 1o a reduction in occupier and
investor demand
Strong relmnshps with agenis and gdirect
wvesiors active in the market
Wem'essleslw_busnessglanl‘urme
elfect of a change in property yields
Key -

Theux yhast & rob
lared detier than many exparted iowing the EU

P ot imnger i
the secnmd hall of 2016, atbel we hve seen same
mdMWmﬂmme&ﬂm
of 2017 There is Coptiarsmg assacalad
wih tine LS Futurre &0 framn he U and other
GEngoiRe s

Wia remam mindfd of posensial besdwinds and
mmmwmmmm
et ik e o 10 markel
i, s both
mammmmmmmnmm
the futiore.

L

) There ramains. Fhout the nature of

Vi are confident fhal Ihe narral resittance of our
business, with i< long Leases, high sooupancy and
robust imandal pastion, egether with tha achons
we have taken, leaves cur busness well pasitioned.

lrvestinent volismes were lower in 2016, although
therehasheen 2 pick-up in activity thore recantly,
offices,

by the refatively wide yicld gop bedvween pioperty
yizids and jong eavn interesl raies. furthar
suppocted by QETeRCY Movements.

The markel for the: most altraclive assets remains
liquid and in ihe central London office market there
have been a nusmber of high profile ransactions
incliding our sale of The Lesdenhall Buitding.

Prirnz yields have remained broatily stable,
aithough mariet pricing is becoming incraasingty
polansed with same softening m dernand for more
Secandary assels. We have continued 1o be active
anf seocesshully enthanged on the Sale of £1.5 billion
of assels, owerall P56 ahead of valvation.

Change from Last year Our principal Key Risk Indicalors
i are highlighted within ‘Howwe
Risk rehas i sed monitor and manage the risk”.

@ Mo signifscant change mn risk exposure
Risk exposyre has reduced
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Risks and How we monitor Change in
impacts and manage the risk the year
Occupier iy income, rental - The Risk Commiltes reviews indicators of mrﬁaﬂ.mmtﬁmmmﬂvm
demand growth and capital performante oocupser demand quaredy noyding conaumes wiaE unertEy Bom consumners o reledars alike.
corid be athversety afie confidence surveys, and employment and ERY Hmrﬂaiasmhmqamm
and teamt 4y gening occupier growth furecasts, alongside the Committes emvironmasnt with tost pe h
default demandand ocougpier follures members’ knowiedye and experience of oooupiar dmmmmmwma
- ing from variations n pians, rading parformante znd leasing artivity recend busk retes reval wrgport oost
the heatth of the UK economy i GG exacution of duT stratagy saflalion due to the weakening pount and from the
ard ceorespanding weakening hawe uality, divarsified oorigier hase retprremEns of estabiiching arnni-chaneel platferrs.
af consumer confistence, xmémmdmwmmd These pressanes wszn thal relglars e inoreasigly
bisieSs attraty angt ovaupiers or sectors. We parform rigorous cocugiar Fevoursing an e st profisatile stores, where they can
imeestment. ' covenant chistks aheed of approving teats ird ah grome sales with lower cooupancy costs. Gur continsad
Changing consemes and an ongoing basis so that we Can bz proactive in upgrading of ermiranmvents 31 our el properties
business prattizas induding ging axposuTe 10 Weaker OOTUpiaTS and targetad engagement ealth ooosgers, posiions
the growth of internet refefing. _ gagaing engagement with bur oocupiers. Trrough uswell 1o benell Sem inareasing patarisation.
?é’;‘f':,,‘”; 'mem‘"tﬁf“ o Key Qocupier ACCAUM prograrmma we wark While occupier demand in the London officz market
bl WWWW‘““"‘W“M s boon more caubios post-reiorendum, fake-up
nawlegﬂamam!a!im meet their evolvimg requirements Pzt gcied up with averall take-up over the year in line
tocations may resadl in eartier T sustainability strategy inks action on ovtupier with e kan year swerage. London's hraad appeal
han anticipated albscls health and waltbeing. enargy effidancy. commwumily maans ik demnand has continuad  eriginate from
of our budings if evalving and sustainable design ko gur business siraegy. T arenge of nduslries incheding ssrong demand fram
acoupiar 2nd regulatory O sociel and environmental targels helpus the creatve and technolagy saciors. We have seen
caquirements arenel mval. muqﬂywﬂhnewteg:ﬂahma:ﬂnspmdm mmmmmmmmww
iple. we axpect all memmm
oﬂicedwelopnmlstnszREEAMEn.ﬂlﬂn . this to 2pply dovurerand pressEe on marke: rents;
hoawvever arcaiieratig polarisation lerds higher
quiiny plares will prixide sisppor for rends i the
best lecatons.
Aswdlasmwmglalwy changes arising
Trozn e URCS dapartune knom the EU, such as
Pnigration controls and passposting. office ooCupiars
20 fate challenges as thay adapt te economic.
social and echnolegy changes. Our Fotus s on Landon
campuses which prowide attractive and engagi
emironments and are inpreaskgly Reible to suit the
ch and scate of cantral London
dﬁmmﬂmmmwﬂlmhﬁmﬁl
o amy shift in demand.
Avnilability Reducedmailabiltyoffinance - bormowing rates and real estate aredit Thare has beaen markes volaidity
annd cost ©  mayadwerselyimpatt ahdity to availabllity are monitored by the Risk Committes U mao-eonomie 2 politcal wnoertzinkies.
refinance debt ardfar drive up quartestyand reviewed regularty in arder to guide Howaver, there remagins good avallabdlity of fmance
of inanee oot These tactursmay atso aurfnanding actions in exsauting our strategy in Jabt and capital markets lsecued and unsecured}
resull in weaker imvestor _ envand projacted i U RETTs 2nd ather gised guality real astate
demand for real estate. We stor our LTVand our debl mwmmm-@s
requirements using seversl intemally generated diffecult tn ab:
Regulation and capitat costs reparts locused g1 borrowing tevels, debimaturity, & more tn otz )
of lenders rnay increase oost avaitable Brtiies and intarest rate exposure i N - .
finange, L ! P We have contisned 1o achieve allradive: linancings and
o . - Wemainlain goodiong term relationships with agread one year extensions on 3 ot of £1.4 bllion of
our key finanding parinars wmmreﬂlﬂbaadayaedanmtlwm
~ The scale and quality of our business enables belateral laclity inthe year:

disaster or power shortage
m’ldmrety(ﬁs‘upl global
markets finctuding property
and financel and cause
significant damage and
disruption to British Land's
portfolio and operations.

us b 200esS 3 diverse range of sources of finante
with a spread of repayment dates. We aim atways
o have a good tevel of undrawm, comrmtted,
mmmdmlvmgiacihuastnmsurem

have Aability to suppon

hmreqmremmlsandnppwluums
We work with indusiry bodies and other relevant

arganisations to participate in any debate
on emerging finante regulations where our
interests and those of our industry are affacted

We mainlain » comprehensive crisis response The Home Dffice threat lzvad rom international

plan acrass all business unils as well a5 3 terTerism rematns *Savere’, Qur business continuity
haad offioe business continuity plan plans and assel emargency procedures have been
The Risk Committee moniters the Home Office reviewsd and enhanced where appropriate. .

terrorism threat levels and we have access " . CL
10 security \hreal infortnation servicas Wa 3ra mindful of cyber security risks and have

anhanced our secwity position as welk as valling

Asset emergency procedures are regularty - ot cyder swarenass Wwaining across hoth British
revimied and scenario testad, Physical Land 2nd Broadgate Esiates. We conlinyz io
security measures are in pLal:eai properties ' moniler the cyber ihreal landscape induding
and development sites mennpmwwmpplydamanﬁany

Our Sustainability Commillee manilors . m\pln:anmsd new regutations.

environmental and climate change risks.
Assel risk dssesaments gre camiod oyt 1o
assess a range of risks including security.
food, envircnmentat, kealth and satety
We have implemented corporate cyber security
which are supp} byincident
managa'nenl disasier recovary and business
cantinuity plans, all of which are reqularty reviewed
to be able to respond to changes in the threat
landscape and organisatiohal requirernents
We also have appropriate insurance in place
acrass the porifolio .
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Stratevie Hepuarr

PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED

Internal risks
Risks and How we monitor
impacts and manage the risk

Change in

the vear

Imvesdmrent  Inorder omeetour stralegic - Qurinwestment sirategyis detormined to be

wrategy objectives we aim to invest consistentwith our targe! risk appetite and is based

N in and exil from the right on the evaluation of the external emvirenment
wﬁ properiesaltherighttime.  _  progrecs againet the stratagyand conbineing
executives: Underperformance could alignment with ois nisk appebite & discussed
ChrisGrigg,  resultfrom changesin at each Risk Committee with reference to the
Chartes market sentiment as wellas property markers and the axternal econamic
Manedsley, inapprogriate determination ermAronmen

Tan Roberts and execution of our

property
imvestment strategy, incduding: - Tha Board carTias out an anaual strategic revievy

- seclor selection Group's current and pruspedive azsel partfalio
L . - Indiﬁmmdacﬁmamsdﬁmm

- - timing of investment and robust risk evalual soen by o
drvestment decisions

Committee including consideration of r=tutns.

~  expasaure to devalopments relative lo figk adpuctad hurdle rates

- asSHl Wnanl region - Revizw ol prespectie performance of ixdivideal
concantration assets and their business plans

- o arrang ~  We foster collaboraiive retationshizs wilh

our co-nwestors and enter inde oumership
agrearments which balance the interests
of the partias.

Development Development provides an - Wemanagewrleuelsdmziandmdame

strategv opportunity for duelnmm.nl exposuTe as a proportion of the
but usually brings with it imestmant portfolio vatue within a terget renge
Responsible  oevatedrisk. - taking into account associated risks and the.
executrves: irmpart on key financial nrairics. This s monitored
ChrisGrigs, oot '.""""‘“““q'““"' quarterty by the Risk Committes along with
Charles around which schernes to progress of developments against ptan
Maurisley, develog, the timing of the - Priorto commilting to a devel L, the Group
Tim Robarts development, as well as the undertakes a detailed agpraisal overseen by our
erecution of these projects. Invesiment Commitize inciydmg consideration
Developmenl strategy of returns relative to risk adjusted hwrdle eles
addresses several development ~  Pre-lels are used to reduce development letling
fisks that could adversely impact nsk whare considared appropriate
undertyingincome and capital  _  Competitive tendering of consiruction contracts
performacce induding: and, where appropriale, xed prite coniracts
- dovelop lelting exp e  ealeredinto .
- construction iming ~ Detailed selection and dose mwmtoring of
and costs lincluding cenbraciors inctuding covenant reviews
constructioncostinflation) . Experienced development management team
- major conlractor faflure closely mnpimrs dasign, construction and
- adverseplanningjudgements  overall delivery process
- Earlyengagernent and strong relationships
wilh planning authorities
- Wealso activaly with the cof
mwh-drmopmle.asdetmledmourLuz!
Chartes, lo ensure that our activities
consider Lthe interests of all stakeholders
- Wemanage environmentat and social risks aross
aur development spply chain by engaging with
aur supphiers, including through our Supply Chain
Charter, Sustainability Brief lor Developments
and Heatth and Salety Policy
Key
Change from last year Our principal ¥ey Risk Indicators

are highlighted within Heow we
maonitor and manage the risk”.

Risk exposur2 has increased
@ No significant changa in risk exposure

Risk exposure has reduced
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Whilsi the outtank in our markets wal remain
unceriain lar soms rne, we have an envduring
sirateqy which is based on long term trends and
this pasitians our high quality postfalic to benelit
frovn inoreasing pelansation and to attract a
broadas range of accupiers. in line with our
forus on ifesiple oriented real exiate: we have
recydiad capiial to maximise retoms and we
are gatting doses to out Cusiomers.

Du'l\gmeywwemm'pdmnﬁumd
Spa As a1 9% o hustion. We have hean
disciplined in our activity, with £195 mellion
dmm&mMR
wmmwmgmwmmm
capial spend on dop P alcing.

Deudopmemhasbemalnmmmum
d 2 pipeline of devels

upponunmawull lheoptnnallty w pmgresswlm

apmmmm!y&%ﬂﬂamldnﬂemprm
P P the pipets

mmwmmu\a&emwdmms

an our developrents gamng lorverd.

For more on our development programme,
sespages 29te 31, .




Change in ‘ .

which underpin a stabile and
wﬂ yruwirg dividend and provide
executives:  the platform from which to
- LydndaBell,  growthe business. '

Chartes We consider susiainability
Manudsley, of ourincome streams in:
Tirn Roberts

~  eyacutionof investiment
sirategy and capital
recyding, notably tirning
of reinvastment of sale
proceeds

— najureand struciure -
of teasing actilty

- mnakure and tming of
assel managament

development activity

1o modek the impact of propased ransathons

- Pro-gctive assel mansgement zppmoach o
malniamslrmgncmpmrbne-uaﬂammr
sur rarket letting exposure including vecancias,
vpouming expirres and breaks and specdative
dmhwwﬁasw!aswrwmm
. unexpiredlease term

~ Wehave a high quality and diversified ottupier
base and monitor concentration of exposure
Lo individual occupiers or sectors

- W are proactive in addressdng key lease breaks
and expiries lo minimise periods of vaczncy

- We actively engage with the communities
‘in which we operale, as detaitedin our Locat
Charter, \o ensure we provida bufidings that
meel the needs of all relevant stakeholders

‘Risks and How we monitor
impacts and manage the risk the year
People A ber of aitical b - OurHR straingy s desighad tn mindnise Exprart Potple is one o the four core loous areas
processes and decisions lie rizk through: of our swategy. We ampowar our perple o make
wﬂ i the hands of a few people. - indorrmed and SAflled recnitment protesses, dﬁmﬂdﬂmm&n@ﬂﬁmw .
eXRCUE 5 ther of i PG
NP Fathae 1o reonst, develop _ andt heve htrofocd 2
Churis Grigy an6 reiin staff and Oirectors mm&m crgenisations] effectivenass atross the busitess
wiiith the fight <xals and SUTCTSSON PRannn i S and to promais wellbeing and frazlih, incheding
expatiance may result in - Teghly compelitve compansation and benshis uilertng enbhanced Shared Paremial Py |
significant : - paople develops ang traingng R exmpinyaes.
:r-qwam::addm - Thersks d-th Alsnweaean&ﬂmaaaim;aumewhd:
My in tom & 2 WWW@MM Wﬁmmmmmm
l L Sﬂ]l @ ﬂll m‘& Mﬂﬂa& Ew’y
pert € laimhmmams.mmmahsmma
number of unplanned execulive deparmres Fod mone on or Expert Peopte,
n gddition Lo conducting exit inkervizws Sove pagos 25 and 25
U - Wz enage vath gur suppliers ¢ make dear our
FRGIATEmas i manageg ey rsks induding
haeatth and safety, fraud &nd hribery and other
sosial aml emvirmEnental risis, as deiefed i
ouT Supply Chaln Charter
Capital Our captal shructure ~ Wemanage eur use o] deht and equity finanoe 10 Baﬂmvmﬂ:aelnﬁmsmnmshmmzLNam
structure ’ recognrses the balance batlance the banafits of leveraye anainst the nishs, rate on drawn debt have
A r 3 inclyding a magnificalion of the Enpact of property r:ﬁmmmmcmhasmm The tmpaci
—levesnge okandReabdaiy. valuation mavaments of investrrent activity in the year was 2 nel decrease
Respansihle - Leverege magnifies - Waaim lo manage our LTV through the progesty n debd of £0.5 billion. The sirength of tha Group's
emcutives: Gapilat raturas, both cyda such that v finendial position wadls reres batance sheel & rellectad in our saniar snsecured
Lucinda Belk pasiive and negative TodarstUin the event of a sigrificand E2llin property oredit ramn wiich was realfirmed by Fitch at
- Aninmeaseinl - valyas, This means we do not 2t aur spproath A~ ared Gationk vars upgradad to Positiee”
e Crmr g
an bernrerding - We mamage our invastman] actvity, the sioe 2rd e 3tds.
and mayincrease hnmgofwhldltanbeunmaswdlasw
fnance costs o ensure that o
I.Tvleualmm'lsappmmute
~ wWet and achizve benelits of
scalevmaespmadmgmknuu;ghmmm
and lunds which are typically partly financad
by dabt without recourse fa British Lamnd .
Finance Finance strategy - Wehmﬁvekzypmup!esgmagw&m Given Uhe quality of our business_ we have conlinuad
strategy addresses ricks both to which are foyed logethes bo g 0 achdeve atractive finandngs which improse
b . condi salvency and in this area: dmﬁwmdﬁmm 2amings and bguidily. As well as baing well priced,
Responsible profils generated. maturity of debl portiotic, maintain guitily, our financing is robust with an average term of eight
executives: Eailure ln redi ina intain flexibality, and maintain strong balance years on dravwn debl and no requirement tor the
Lircinda Bail ; may resultina shaet metrics Group to refinance uniit earty 2021 Gur commiltad
sharage ol unds tosustain®~~ - We monitor the period until refinancing is required. bank faclities total £1.8 billion of which £1.3 bittion
the egerations of the b which is a key determinant of finencing actvity, and weas undraon ai 31 March 2017
or repay faclilies as they regularty evaluate the finandial covenant headroam . .
R For mue fnancal policies,
fall — Wa are commilted to maintaining and enhancing mma'gf‘i
relalionships with gur key ﬁnam:mg paTiners
- Weafa mindful of retevant ik
wmd-hasmepmenmummpadnmmym
we finance the Group
Income We are mindful of maintaining - We undertake comprehensive profil and cash l)aspﬂelﬂaem‘tmmy memamydmrwﬂom
Wula]ﬂ]n\ sustainable income streams Row lorecasting incorporating scenario anatysis has continued to attract strong

mwddﬁslmthgmdleasngpaﬂwmame.
Qur incorme streams are secyre; underpinned

by a high quatity, diverse accupier base with 78%
crtupancy and 2n yverage lease tength of 8 3years.
Ve atEvelymanage the impact of our investmant
siralegy and oifice lease eApiries on our IRCOMN2
profite. Leoking forward, wie're conscious of poteniial
headwings for our occupiers. however we contnue
to expect our high quality portfolio to benefit from
mraasmgpdama:lm
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Governance and
remuneration

Board of Directers

Chairman’s goveimance review

Qur governance structure

Governance review

Report of the Audit Commitiee

Report of thz Nomination Commillee

Remuneration Report . .
Letter from the Chairman of the Remunaration Committee
AtaGlance '
Annual Report on Rernuaeralion

Oirectors’ Report and additional disdoesures

Directors’ responsibility statementl

SouthGate, Bath kright]
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Governanee

BOARD Of DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy

and leads British Land to achieve

long term success

About the Board

Board Compaosition as at 31 March 2017

Board of Directors

Il Non-Executive Chairman
U trdependent Non-Executive Birectors
¥ Exequtive Blireciors

-Directors’ core arens of expertise!

Propeny Y
Finance !
Retail and consumer

Public seclor

acatemic )

* Some Directors are represented in maore than one calegory.

Executive Directors” appsintments

50% 50%

appeinted internally appointed externally

Lengih of Non-Execuiive Directors’ tepures.

underayoors |
It byears [ i)
v yoars ]

Board Committee membership kev
© ruai

G Remuneration

Commiltee member Commitlee member
° MNomination O Chairman of a
Commitlee member Board Commitlee
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Non-Executive Chairman

John Gildersleeve @

Appointad as a Mon-Executive Birectorin Seplemmber 2008 and as
Chairman ar 1 January 2013,

Skills and experience: John is deputy chairman and senior independent
director of Spire | tealthcare Group ptc and deputy chairman of TalkTalk
Telecom Group PLE. He was formerty chairman of Carphone Warehouse
Group, New Look Retail Group, EM! Group and Gallaher Group; a
non-executive director of Dixons Carphene plc, Lloyds TSB Bank PLC,
Vodafone Group and Pick n Pay Stores [South Africal and an executive
director of Tesco plc. (B39,

Execative Directors -

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

Agpointed to the Board in Januacy 2009.

Skills and experience: Chris has more than 30 years’ experience in

the real eslate and financial industries in a range of leadership roles.
Uniil Novamber 2008, Chris was chief executive of Barclays Commercial
Bank, having joined Barclays in 2005. Prior 1o that, Chris spent 20 years
at Goldman Sachs. Chris 1s a non-executive director of BAE Systems pic,
amember of the board of the British Properly Federation and of the
executive board of the European Public fleal Estate Association.




-
Lucinda Bell

Chief Financial Officer

Appeinted to the Board in March 2031 and as Chéef Financial Officer
in May 2011. ’

Skills and experience: Ludndz 15 a chartered accountant with over

25 years of industry experience. She is Chatrman of Broadgate Estates
Lirnited, British Land's property management business. Lucinda

is a non-executive director of Rotork plc. where she is Chair of the

Audit Carnrmittee and 3 member of the Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiees. She is a member of the Accounting for Sustainability

CFD Leadership Network.,

Charles Maudsley
Head of Retail and Leisure
Agppointed to the Board in February 2010.
Skills and experience: Charles joined Brilish Land from LaSalle
lovestment Management whera he was Co-Head of Europe, Managing
Director of the UK business, a member of the Management Board
and an International Direclor. Prior to joining LaSalle he was with
* AXA Real Estate Investment Managements for seven years where
he was Head of Real Estate Fund Management in the UK.

Tim Roberts -

Head of Offices and Residential

Appointed to the Board in July 2006,

Skills and experience: Before joining British Land in 1997 Tun
was a partner al Dnvers Jonas. in the lnvestment Agency teatn.
He was formerty a non-executive direclor of Songbird Estates.
Tirn is Trustee of LandAid, the property industry charty, and
Chair of their Grants Commitlea.

Senior Independent Director

Lord Turnbull @ @

Senior independent Director :

Appointed as a Non-Execytive Director m April 2006.

Skills and experience: Lord Turnbull entered the House of Leords in 2005
as a Crosshench Life Peer. He retired as Searetary of the Cabinel and
Head of the Home Civil Service in Juty 2005 { ord Turnbull previously .
hetd the positions of Permanent Secretary of HM Treasury and
Permaneni Secretary at the Deparunent of the Enwironrnent. He was
fermerly a non-executive directar of Prudential PLC, Arup Group and
Frontier Economics Lid and chairman of BH Global Limited. Lord
Turnbull will step down fromn the Board at the end of the 2017 AGM.
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80ARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

Non-Executive Directors

Aubrey Adams ©

Appoinled &s a Non-Executive Divectar in September 2008.

Skitls and experience: Aubrey is group chair of L&, the housing
assodalion and residential developer. He is also chaimrman of the board
of trustees of Wigmore Hall. Aubrey was tormerty head of property within
RBS’s Restructuring Division, and has variously been a non-executive
director of Pinnacle Regeneration Group Limiled, senior independent
director of Associated British Ports PLC, non-executive chawman

of Unitech Corporate Parks PLC, Air Partner PLL and Max Property
Group PLC and chiel executive of Savills PLC.

Lyon Gladden © :

Appointed as a Non-Executive Direcier in March 2015,

Skiils and experience: Lynn is Shell Professor of Chemical Engineering
at the University of Cambridge, commissioner of the Royal Commission
for the Exhibition of 1851, a lellow of the Royal Society and the Royal
Academy of Engineering and a non -executive director ol iP Group ple.
She was formerly a member of the Council of the Enginearing and
Physical Sciences Research Council and held the paosition of pro-vice-
chaneeller lor research at the University of Cambridge untit the end

of 2015.
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Simon Borrows @

Appointed as 2 Non-Executive Director in March 2011

Skills and experience: Simon is the chief executive of 3i Group pic and 3
member of the supervisory board of Peer Holdings BV, the Dutch holding
company lor 3i's irvestiment in Action, the non-food discount retaiter. Ha
worked for 28 years in the benking and finance indusiry, most recently as
chairman of Greenhill & Co. Internationat LLP. He was also chief executnee
officer of Baring Brothers ivernational Linnited, the corporate inance
dension of ING Barings and was a non-execytive director of Inchcape plc.
Simon vall step down frarmn the: Board a1 the end of the 2017 AGM_

William Jackson @o

Appoinled as 2 Non-Executive Director in April 2011,

Skills ard experience: Wiltiam is Managing Pariner of Bridgspoinl, one
of Europe's leading private equily groups, which he has led since 2002
He also serves as chairman al the board of Pret A Manger and president
of Dorna Sports SL. the righis holder to the Mota GP world molarcycling
championships. He has served on a range of boards during his career
and has extensne operational and transactiona! experience. William
will become Sersor Independent Director at the end of the 2017 AGM.



Laura Wade-Gery §

Appointed 25 2 Non-Evecutive Director in May 2015

Shkills and experience: Laura is a trustee of the Royal Gpera House

and Aldeburgh Music and 2 member of the Government Digilal Strategy
Advisory Board. Belween July 2011 and September 2016 Laurawas .
exacuive director Mulli Channel at Marks and Spencer Group plc.
Previgusly, Laura served in a number ol senior positions at Tesco PLC
and was a non-executive direcior of Trinity Mirror plc.

Tim Scom@‘ ' .

Agpointed a5 a Non-Executive Director in March 2014

Skills and experience: Tim is a non-executive director of Pearson plc
and HM Treasury, an independant member of the Foolball Assacialion’s
audit commitlee and 3 senior advisor to Brunswick Group on finandal
matters. He was chief inancial officer of ARM Holdings PLC from 2002
to 2015 and has held senior financial positions at Rebus Group Limited,
William Baird plc. LucasVarily plc and BTR plc. From 2005 1o 2014, he
was 2 non-execulive director of National Express Group PLC, including
time as interim chairman and six years as senior independent director.

! As from | Apr 2007, .

Lord Macpherson of Earls Court @

Appainted 2c 2 Non-Exetutive Director in Decembar 2014,

Shills and experience: Lord Macpherson is chairman of €. Hoare &

Co and a director of The Scottish American liwvestment Company PLC.
He was ithe Permanen Secratary to the Treasury for over 10 years from
2005 10 March 2016, leading the department through the linandal crisis
and the subsequent period of banking refarm_ Lord Macphersan trained
as an economisl working ai both the CBI and Peat Marwick Consulling.

2 A< from | Aprit 2017

Company Secretary

Elaine Williams

Skills and experience: Elaine was appainted Company Secretary and
General Counset in 2015. She was formerly Deputy Group Company
Secretary at HSBC Holdings pic and. prior to thal. a parlner

at Freshiields Bruckhaus Deringer.
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Crovertiaiive

CHAIRMAN'S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate

Governance and Remuneration
sections of our Annual Report

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chairman

British Land has a highly elfective Board, as once again confirmed by this
year's Board evaluation. Lord Macpherson, fermerty Permanent Secrelary
{0 HM Treasury, was appointad as 3 Non-Exacutive Director in Decermber 2016
and we have recently anngunced that Preben Prelransen, Cleel Exeoutive of
Close Brothers Group ple. will join the Board an 1 Seplembar 2017 These
appointments wall furthar strengthen the diverse micof Skillls and experierncs
of qur Direciors.

Lord Turnbull and Simon Bormows will retire from the Baard at the end of
the 2017 AGM. Lord Turnbutl has served 25 a Director for more than 71 yzars
and Sumon for two three year lerms. § wauld ttke (o thank them both for thatr
valuable contribution as Board members. Lerd Turntasdl willl also svep down
a5 Senior Independent Director arvd walk be suooeeded by Witliamn Jadkson.

All Directors, other than Lord Turnbull and Simen Bornews, will stand for
electicn or re-election at the 2017 AGM. Wa recognisz the velue that Directors
whao serve for many years bring lo the Board and sre delighted that Avbrey
Adams, who will have served as a Non-Executive Direclor for almost nine
yaars by the time of our 2017 AGM, has agreed to serve o7 & further ane
year lerm as an independent Non-Execulive Direclor. Aubrey's considerable
expenencemmepmpartysecw-sanmponampandmemndsmlsand

qe on cur Board. The process is under way lo recruil an additional

Directar with property sector experience to further sirengthen the Board.
Read our Board biographies on pages 56 to 59.

Corporaie cullure is inareasingly an area of focus lr iovestons, governance
advisery bedies, our customers and other stakeholders. The Board is
committed te influending and shaping British Land's colure and helieves
that setting the “tone from the \op’ and sirong gevernance underpin a heabity
inclusive cullure, whichis a key par of dalivering long terw business success.
The HBoard has supported the execulive team in the significant amount of work
that has been done this year h redortdng the bedhaviowrs that are expectad

of Brilish Land employzes, increasing amployee engagemnent and mnhmmrg
¢ a mare diverse and inclusive culture at Brilish Land.

Directors’ meeting attendance the vear
ended 31 March 2017 (A1.2) &

John Gildersleeve i wr
Chnis Grigg ?
Aubrey Adams wr
Lucinda Bell nr
Simon Borrows ’ ur
Lynn Gladden - . i
Witliarn Jackson ) /1
Lord Macpherson' 3
Chartes Maudstey ! Y/ed
Tim Ruberts wr ta devel
Tim Score ) ! wr
Lord Turnbull T
Laura Wade-Gery® . &7

' Lord Macpherson was appointed to the Board on 19 Dacembrer 2016,
? Laura Wade-Gery was unable to attend one Board meeting due to
travel disruption,

As reporied in the Chief Execulive’s review. we have delivered good results
in @ eventhal year as we have contirued with vur sorateqy of ditferensiating
our space by providing places which reflect people’s changing lifestyles.
The design and delivery of our siralegy conlinues to be supported by our
robust governance structure which ensures elfeclive decision-making
basad on the right inforenation. The Board plays a vatuable role in
encouraging debate aboul our steategy and its implementation
and overseeing the identification and managemeni of key risks.

More information on Qur strategy can be found .

on pages 1 and 15,
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Read about gur diversity and inclusion initiatives on pages 24 and 25.

The Board will continue to focus this year on mornioring Briish Land's cullure
and promating geod gavernance that supports opanness a0 accountabelity
throughoul the business. including open engagement with slakeholders.
Further details on the impact on culture of strategic and Bnancal decisions
can be found on page 62

We welcome feedback frem shareholders. Your feedback heips us shape
DUF guverhance structure and the way we do busimess, [ 1ook forward to
hearing your views al. and in advance of, our 2017 AGM.

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executve Chairman



OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Non-Executive Chairman
- Leads the Board and ensures it
operates eflechvely
- Maintams a culture ol openness and debate
- Ensures effective dialogue between the
Bord and shareholders

Board

Board of Directors

- Responsitie for long l2mm success
of the Camapany

-Dmlopsna:egy

- Datersranes aature and extent
o siqnile el

= Approves mapr transactions

independent Ron-Execytive Directors

- Work with and challange Executive Directors
-~ Propade an mafopundand_ exiomsl perspactive

- Contribute with 2 broad rangs? of experiance
and experhise

Chief Executive and Executive Directors

- Oay-to-day managaemen? of the husmeass
and implementation of sirategy

- Owerall responsshiiny bes with the Chusf
Executive, with spacific 2reas delegaied
10 the Executive Directors [Retail,
Finance Offices)

Board Commil:tem — report on their activities to the Board

Audit Committee
'~ Qversees financial and narrative reporting
- Providas assurance to the Board on
etfeciiveness of internal contrel. risk
managament sysizms and audil processes
~ Reviews elfectiveness and shijectivity
of external and intarnal suditors

Audit Committee Report
see pages 47 w70,

Nomination Committee
— leads process for Board amnunen&s
and succession planning

- Froures Board and senipr managernsnt
have approprate skills. hnowladge and
experience o operale effectively and
deliver stralegy

Nomiratizn Comiittee Report
soe peges 71 amd 72

Rernuneration Cormmittee

- Sels remuneration policy and remuneralion
of the Chatrman ant Executive Direciors

- Appryves annuil and long e
perlormance objectives and awards

Remuneration Report
see pages 73to 88

Managemeﬁt Committees — report on their activities to the Board and its commitiees as appropriate

Executive Committee

- Considers day-to-day operational matters
for runring the business
- Reviaws performance of the Group's
assels and development programme

- Reports to the Board

- Members are the Exacytive Directors
and senior executives, chaired by the
Chiel Executive Officer

Health and Safety Committes

— Reviews performance against targets and
drives actions in pursuit of the Company's
health and safely goals

- Reporis to the Risk Commiltee

- Three subcommittees: Construction,
Managed Porilotio and Head Oltice

Investment Committee

- Reviews, approves of recomumends
capitat rensactions

- Recormnmernds major tansactions
for Board approval

- Reports ta the Board

— Members are the Executive Hirectors,
chaired by the Chiel Execulive

Sustainability Committee

- Reviews performance and monitors
progress aguinst suctainability targets
and key initiatives

- Assesses emenging social, anvironmental
and ethical Bsu2s. assessing associated
nisks and consideration of miligating actions.

- Reports to the Risk Commitiee

Rick Committee

+ Manages sirategic and operalional risk in
achizwing the Company’s performance goals
- Recommends appropriate nﬂ(apmute levels
and ronitors nsk exposure

-~ Reviews operation of risk management
processes

- Reporis to the Audit Comnmiltize

- Members are the Executive Direclors.,
chaired by the Chief Financial 0fficer

Community Investment Cammittee

- Ovarsees the strategic management
of the Comanunity lovestment Fund

- Approves and monitors all spend under
the Communsty Investment Fund

~ Reports to the Risk Commilles
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Governanyy

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Our governance structureisan
integral part of the way we design

and deliver our strategy

3

Compliance with the Code

The Board has continued {0 apply good governance praclices during

the year and considers that the Company has futly complied with the

UK Corporate Governance Code [the Codal. This section of the Annuat
. Report outtines howwe have applied the Code’s prinaples and provisions
throughout the year. We are reporting ag3inst the Codz which applies to
companies with reporling periods baginning on or after 1 October 2014,

A copy ol the Code is available at www.irc.orguk

For ease of referance, this is how we demonstrate our compliance
throughout the Governance and repuneration section of the 2017
Annual Report:

@ A. Leadership @ D. Remuneration

@ B. Efectiveness @ E. Relations with shareholders

@ ¢. Accountabitity

Leadership

The Board's core responsibilities include setting British Land’s
slrategic aims and leading the Company as it werks to achieve these
aims and attain {ong term success. The focus on strategy by the Board
continues throughout the year with annual Strategy Days providing an
opportunity 1o discuss, challenge and develop the Company’s strategy
as explainad in the box below. Progress in delivery of the agreed
strateqgy is considerad at Board meetings during the year. The strategy
is kepl under review in light of Cotnpany performance and changes

to the external environment.

Strategy Days )

The annual Strategy Days provide Non-Executive Direclors in
particular with a lecused opportunity to consider, develop and
challenge the Campany's strategy. As well as considenng the
Group as a whole, consideration is given ta key paits of the
Group's current and prospective asset portfotio.

In 2017, the annuzt Strategy Days ware held al Lhe beginning of
March. The Executive Directors, senior execulives and externat
guests deliverad a number of presentations to attendees providing
in-depth analysis on aspects of the business and the external
environment. The days were carefully structured to achieve

a balance b n pr 15, debale 2nd discussion.

Areas jocused on at the 2017 Sirategy Days included: corporate
siralegy, Canada Waler, Office strategy, Retail strategy, technology
opportunilies and challenges. :
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The division of responsib@iiizs between the Chairman twhe is
responsible tor running the Board] and the Chief Executive lwho
is responsitile for running the Company s business] is set out

in writing and approved by the Bozrd A2 16,

The Board detegates authority {or ensuring that the business is
run in accordance with the agread sivalegy to the Chief Executive,
with responsitlily for spedific areas of the business delegated to
the other Executive Directers. The Executive Directors are invalved
in, or aware of, all major acthities and are therefure sxtremely well
placed to ensurz that actions taken lLgn with stratagy.

The major decisions reserved for Board approval and other decisions
delegated 1o the Executive Directors are formally dJocumentad and
reviewed regularly [A1.1}62: The Executive Directors make dedsions
within these pradefined paramelers although any actaties outside
the ordinary course of business may still be iaken lo the full Board
for consideration and approval where this is considered appropriate,
wean ¥ they fatl vithin ese paramelers.

The parameters and conirols set by the Board within which the
rmanagement underiake the day-to-day running of the business ensure
that decisions are taken by people with the correct authority to make
these decisions. Management Committees deal with their spedlic areas
of responsibility belore making dedsions Iwhere authority has been
granied] or befure recommending actions for Board-level approval.

The Chairman meels with individual Directors oulside format Board
meehings as part ol each Dsrectors continumg coninbulion to the
Company [A 4.2} This pracess allows for open, twa-way discussion
about the effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and individual
Directors. in this way, the Chairmhan remains mindhul of the wews of
individual Directors and can act as necessary o deal with any issues
relating to Board eflectiveness before they become a risk to the Company.

Culture and compuosition of the Board

The compeosilion of the Board is tundamentat to its suecess in
providing strong and effective leadership: the breadih ot knowledge,
skilts and experience of our Non-Executive Directors is detailed i
their biographies on pages 56 tg 59. The Nomination Committee

is respansible lor reviewing the composidion of the Board and its
Comemittees and assessing wheiher the balance of skilks, experience,
knowledge and mdependence is appropriate to enable them to operate
effectively [B.2216, '
Following recommendations by the Nomination Committee, Lord
Macpherson was agpointed a Non-Executive Director in December 2016
and we have recently announced thal Preben Prebensen wall join as a
Non-Executive Direclor and member of the Remuneration Commitiee
in September 2017. These appointments will further strengthen the
mix of skifls and experience on the Board.




William Jacksonwall succeed Lord Turnball as the Senior independent
Director al the end of the 2017 AGM when Lord Turmbutl rettres as

a Direcior and as Senigr Indepzsndent Director. Simon Borsows wll
also siep down as a Direclor at the end of the 2017 AGM.

Lord Macpharson joined the Audit Commiltize and Tirn Score joined
the Nominalion Committee on 1 Aprit 2017.

. Our rigoreus and transparent procedures for appointing new
Directors are led by the Nomination Committee. Non-Exzcutive
Direciors are appoinled for specified teems and all continuing Direclors
offer Ihamsebres for election or re-elaction by shareholders al the
AGM 2ach year, if the Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination
Committes, deams it appropriate that they do se [B7HE.

Aubrey Adams will have served 2s @ Non-Executive Director for alrmast
ninz years by the lime of our 2017 AGM. When a Non-Exeautive Daeclor's
tenure goes heyond nine years, their independence is carefully reviewad
and monitored. Foltowing a particularly rigosous review of Aulwey's
conlributions and indapendance by the Nomination Commitlee,

the Board determined thal he remains independent in cheracter

and judgement.

The Board has appreved the recornmendaiion of the Nomination
Committee thal il is appropriate for Aubrey Adams lo resnain in office
as an independent Non-Executive Director, and a member of the Audil
Committee, for a further year. notwithstanding the tength of his service.
Aubrey's considerable expertise in the property sector is an important
part of the mix of skills and experience on our Board and we recognise
the importance of condinuity and the vatue that Direclors who serve

for many years bring lo the Board. We are delighted he has agreed

to stand for re-election. The recruitment process to recruit an
additional director with property seclor expeniance is ongoing.

- The Board considers that Aubrey Adams, Sirmon Borrows, Lynn Gladden,
Witliam Jackson, Tim Score, Lord Turnbull, Laura Wade-Gery and Lord
Macpherson are independent. In making this determination, the Board
has reviewed Lthe Nomination Commiltee’s assessment of whether each
Director rernains independent in character and judgement and whether
there are relationships of circumnstances which are likely to aﬂeﬁl
or could appear to affect, that judgement [B.1.11€.

The Board believes thal the Non-Executive Directors are of the stature
and have the experience required to perform their roles as independem
Directors property. Following this year's Board evaluation, the Board
believes each Non-Executive Director standing for re-election at the
2017 AGM continues to fulfil effectivety and remains committed to their
role within British Land. The terms and conditions of appointment of
Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection al the Cornpany's
registered olfice and at the AGM (B3 A6,

The Board culture is one of openness and construclive debate; the
Directors voice their opinions in 3 relaxed and respectiul enwvironment,
allowing coherent discussion. The Chairman is responsible for
maintaining this culture. He does so by ensuring information of an
appropnate quality is provided in a timely manner before Board meelings
which leads to focused discussion in the boardroom. When running
Board meetings the Chairman maintains a collaborative atmosphere
and ensures that all Directors contribute to debates. The Chairman
arranges informat meetings and events Lhroughout the year 1o help
buitd constructive retationships between the Board members.

Wemmimelohmasumgmdemcediﬂﬁﬁdmlsmm
Board with the majority being independent Non-Executive Direciors
who are able (6 offer an exlemal parspetiive on the business, and
consiructively chatienge the Exacutive Drrectors, partitadarty when
developing the Company's strategy [B.1.21 €. The Non-Executive
Directors scrulinise the parformance of managament in meeting thair
agreed goals and objectives, and monitor the reporting of performance.

The high calibre of debate and the participaiion of all Directers.
Executive and Non-Executive, allow the Beard to utilise the experience
and skilis of the individual Direciors to thair maxiznwm polentizt and
make dacisions that are in the bestinlerast of the Company.

Culture
British Land recognises that:

- the behaviours and attitudes exhibated in the vay British Land
conducts business and in its refalizns with stakeholders are 2
key indicator of. and have a matzrial inpact on, our cultiure and

— alignment of our business dedsions veth our ctlure, values
and strategy is key lo demonsiraling ow comnmilment (o
developing a tong term sustanable busmness :

The Board takes account of these laciors when considering
strategic and financial dedsions.

Effectiveness

Regular Board and Commillee meelings are schedeled throughout
the year and the Directors ensure that they allocate sulficent time to
discharge their duties eflectively. Jccasionally, Hoard meetings may
be held at short notice when Board-leved dedisions of 3 ime-critical
nature need lo be made.

For meeting attendance, see the Lable on page 66,

Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment sel out the time
commitiments expected and each Director’s altendance record is
considered when assessing whether they should stand for re-etection
by shareholders. The Nomination Commitlee considers that all the
Directors conhnue to devote sufhGent time to drescharging thes
duties o the required high standard,

Bnitish Land's policy is to allow Exaoulive Directors to take one non-
execulive directorship at another £ TSE company, subject lo British
Land Board approval. External appoinuments of the Direclors are
disclosed in their biographies and fees earmed by Executive Directors
are disclosed on page 85 of the Remuneration Report 10.1.219.

The Directoss are required to notify the Comnpany of any polential
conflicts of interesi that may alfect them in thetr roles as Directors
of British Land_. All patential conllicts of interest are aathorised by
the Board at the earliesl opportunity and the register of Directors
interests is reviewed by the full Board at least annually.
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Guveraanee

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Kcy areas considered by the Board
during the vear:

- oulcomes al the annual Sirategy Days and progress
towards sgread outcomas

- consideration and approval of risk appelite

- prncpal risks faced by the Company

- Brexit and #ts affaci on the Group

~ neports of the activities of the Audit lim:f.uding risk],
Remuneialion and Nomination Comemittess

- updates on lhe business, external environment and
inveslor velations :

- updates on the portfolio. indluding pessible developments.
acquisitions and disposals

-. updates on financing and capital structure

- results of the Board performance evaluation

~ election and re-election of Directors at the AGM and
Commiliee membearship

— conflicls of interest

- approval of year end and hall year financial results.
the Anniuzt Report and the Notice of AGM

- approval of the dividend policy and dectaration of quarterty
interim dividends

- cultura

~ people including training and development and
succession planning

- health and salety

- sustainability

~ cyber security and information technotogy

The Non-Execulive Directors are kep! well informed of the key
devalopments in the business through regular regerts including a
Management Report delivered by the Chief Executive at each Board
meeling, a Finance Report and regilar updates an the aclivities of the
Risk and Sustainability C i Throughout the year presentalions
and reporis on spacilic aspects of the business and individual assels
are also delivered. along with updales on the regulatory and external
erwironment. Specilic inpul from ihe Non- Executive Directors is also
soughl when significant mvestrment decisions and strategic initiatives
are reviewed and discussed.

Carz is laken to ensure that information is drculated in good Llime

before Board and Commiliee meetings whenever possible, and that
reports are presented clearly and contain the appropriate lével of detail
o enable the Board to discharge its duties. Itis the Company Secretary’s
role o facilitale effective information flows between the Board and

ils Committees, and between senior management and Non-Executive
Directors. As aresult, the Non-Executive Direclors are able elfectively
to monitor management of the business and the implementalion of

the strategic aims as well as being able to assess the performance

of the Chairman and Executive Directors {8.5.1]1@.

The Company Secrelary is responsible. through the Chairman,
for advising the Board on all aspects of gavernance [B.5.219.

64 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Board training and development

British Land provdes a2l Non-Execytive [irectors with a tailored
and thorough induction winch includes brisfings on Direclors duties,
Group sirategy, one-1o-one Mestangs with Execulive Direciors and
ciher samor exeasiives. They are also provded with the apportunity
10 visH key properties and developments 186116,

The Chaistnan reviews lraimng and development needs with the
Oirectors annualiy B .4 2) ©. Board members are provided with
oppartunities toupdate and relresh their knowledge throughout
the year, ensuring that they are ablz to fulfil their role as members
of the Board and ils Commilizes eflectivaty. During the year endad
31 March 2017, the Board considerad papers and presentations 6n
tegal and regulatory developments, technolegy oppor tunilies and
chaltenges and sestainabiity-refated developments as weall as
receiving regular briefings on the views of stakeholders, the
extenad enviraament and regulatnry maklers.

Board evatuation

The effectiveness of the Board and ils Committess is reviewed
anmuatly, with an indapendant, externalty fadilitated review being
conchicied at least once every tuee pears. Tha next external
review will be undertaken in 201R(B.5.21 @,

In 2017, an inlernal evaluation of the Board and its Committees -
was conducted by the Company Secrelary and Generai Counset
[B.6.118. tn addition to the formal evaluation, the Chairman mat
each Nen-Executive Director individualty during the year le discuss
their contribulion to the Board, The Sender Indapendent Director
ted the apprasal of the Chairman's perfeemance by Lhe Non-
Executive Directors, with the views of the Executive Divectors

also being taken into consideration (8.4.319.

The Chairmanand Chief Executive presented their appraisals

of the performance of the Chief Executive and other E zecutive
Direcloss respectively. These appraisats were laken into account
when considering the performance of the Board as a whole as
well as in relation to annual 2nd leng term incentive awards.

The evatuation of the Board and its Caommittees concluded that
the Beoard and its Committees continued to aperale effeclivaly
with a high slandard of performance throughout the year,

Accountability

The Board it respansible for preparing the Annual Report and confirms
in the Directors’ responsibilily statement set out on page 71 that they
believe lhal this Annual Report, ien as a whole, is fair, balanced and
uvnderstandable, and provides lhe inlormalion necessary tn assess
British L and's position, performance, business model and sirategy
[C.1.11'D. The basis on which the Company creates and preserves

value over the long term is described in the Strategic Report {C1.2] 9.

The content of the Annual Report is prepared by the relevant responsible
indinduals across the business. Spedific seclions are reviewed by
Department Heads and Executive Commitlee members as appropiate,
ensuring that key stakeholders are invotved throughout the pracess.

The Executive Directors are dlosely involved in drafting and reviewing
their sections of the Annual Repori_ A detailed and robust due ditigence
process is conducted to venfy key statement s made within the Annyal
Report prior to its thorough review by the Awdit Committee and
presentation {0 the Board for consideration and approval.




The procedure undertaken to enzable the Board to provide the fair,
balanced and underslandsble confirmation W shareholders has been
reviewed by the Audil Committea. Meetings to review and document the
key considerations undertaken to ensure thal indormation preseoted is
fair, balanced and understandable are held between the Chief Financiat
Officer. Haad of lnvestor Relations and the Group Financial Controlter
and other approphiate emplayees. A detatted report is then presented

" io the Audit Comwnittez which includes a summary of the process
undertaken ie satisly management that the confirmation to be
given is appropriaie and acosrate.

R'thanagunmtand internal control
The Board dalermines the extenl and nalure of the risks it is prepared
to take m orver to achieve the Company's stralegic abjectives.

The Board has responsibilily for the Corapany’s overall approach to
rizk managames and internal control. The Board's responsibilities
include ensuring the design and implementation of appropriate

risk management and intermal controt systems. Oversight of the
etfectiveness of these systems is delegated to the Audit Cormmitiee
which underiakes regular reviews 1o ensuere thal the Group is
identifying, consadesing and miligating, 2s far as practicable,

thz most appropriate risks for the business [6.2.31©.

As well as complying with the Cade, the bast praclice recommendations
in Guidance for Risk Managamenl, internal Controt and Related Finanaat
and Business Reporting have heen adepted and the Company’s internal
control [ramewark hes been assessed against the internationally
recognised COS0 Interna! Control Integrated Framework. The latter
assessment showed that all key control elements arein place.

British Land's approach 1o risk, including the roles of the Board, the
Audit Commiltee and the Executive Risk Committee in setting risk
appelite and monitoring risk exposure, is detalled in the "Managing
risk in deljvering gur strateqy™ section on pages 44 to 421C.2.116.

Format and ransparent arrangements exist for considering how
corporate reperting. risk management and internal control principles
are applied and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the
Company's auditor.

The Group's iflernal control system is built on the following fundamental
princples, and is subject to review by internal audit:

- adefned schedule of matters reserved for approval by
the Board

~ adatailed authonrisation process: no material commitments
are enlered inlo withou! thorough review and approval by
rnore than ene authorised person

- lormal documentation of all significant transactions

~ 2 robusl system of business and financial planning: including
cash flows and profitability forecasting, with scenano analysis
perlormed oh major corporate_ property and financing proposals

- arobust pracess for property investment appraisals

- monitoring of key ouicomes, particularly expendilure
and performance of s;gnlﬁcam wvestments, against budget
and forecast

- clearty defined pohues and review of actual performance
against polices

- tbenchmarking ol property perfunnance against external
sources such as Investment Pmperly Databank

— key controls lesting’

- acomprehensive praperty and corporate insurance
programme and a formal whistie-blowing policy

The Audit Cormmittee reviews the effeciveness of the Group's
system of inlenal control annually, inciuding the systams of control
for material joint venhwes and funds. During the course of its review
of the risk and internal contret systerns duning the
year ended 31 March 2817, and 1o the datz of this Report, the Audit
Commiltze has nol identified. nor been advised of. a feiling or
weakaess which it has dalanmined to be sgréficant [C.2.3162.

A numnber of poliGzs and procedures have been adoplad by the Group
to ensure that we nol ondy meet our legal ohligations, but also behave
ethicatly, act with integriy and protect our assets from the unlawiul
aclivities of others. These induede polddes en anti-bribery and
corrupticn and fraud avarensss and knov-your-clisnt procedures.
All ernployees are made aware of the Groug's polices and receive

Yiability and going concern
The viability statement is set out on page 49 [C.2.21€,

The Group has considierabie undrawn debt fadilities and cash deposits
in excess of current drawn banking facilities. There is substantial -
headroom against the covenzants for its unsecured banking lagtiies.
1t also benefits from a diverse and secawe income stream from leases
wilh long average loase terms.

Having assessed the principal risks and other mallers discussed in
connection with the viability statement_ the Directors betieve that the
Group is well placed to rnanage its inancing and other business risks
salisfactordly. and have a reasonable expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue in aperation for at least
12 rnonths from Lhe date of the Annuat ReporL They therefore consider
it appropriate to adopt the going contern basis of accounting in
prepaning the financizl siaternenis IC.E Q.

Taxation

Qur principles of good govesmance extend to our responsible approach
1o tax. il remains inportant to our stakeholders that this is aligned to the
{ong tertn values and sirateqy of the Group. The Chief Financial Dfficer,
with close involvernent of the other Executive Directors and senior
managamend, is responsiite lor developing the Group's approach

'to lax_ A tax updaie is presented to the Audit Commiltee annually.

Cammunity investiment

British Land's approach to community investment is set outin our
Local Charter which details how we build trust by making positive
contributions locally. Our Community Funding Guidetines set out
how we allocaie landing, with a particular locus on indtiatives close
to our assats that provide apportunities ta local people through
education, employment and training. Both docaments canbe -
found on pur wehsite at weew_britishland com/policies

Our financial donations lo good causes during the year lotatled
£1.351,000 {2014: £1,371.000). Our Communily Investment Cammillee
approves alt expenditure from our Community Investment Fund

and reporis to the Execulive Committee on an 2nnual basis.

1n additiun lo fundang projects approved by our Community Investroenl
Comrmittee, the Company also supporis fundraising and payroll giving
for causes that matler to siafl. This support includes:

- 509 uplift of stall payroll giving contributions lcapped ai £5,000
per person and £50,000 per annum for the whole arganisationl and

- astaft malched tunding pledge. matching maney raised for charity
by staff up to £750 per person per year
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We also support lundraising by the on site teams managing
our retail and office properties arcund the UK by:

- matching up to £750 for two sile fundraising initiatives
per year, per location and

- extending our staif matched funding pizdge to on site employees
of Broadgate Estates Limited, our wholly-owned subsidiary

British . and doas not make donations to pelilical organisations.

Remuneration
The Directors’ Remuneration Report is szt out on pagas 7310 88,

The Remuneration Policy was approvad by shareholdars al the 2016
AGM and is summarised on page 75. The tull policy is avallabte on
our website: www_britishland.com/committees. Wa are not making
any changes 1o the Remuneration Policy this yaar.

Relations with sharchoiders

The Board remains committed to mainizining open channels of
communicalion with sharehelders. (L is inportant that we dearly
explain the Cornpany’s strategy and objaclives and that feadback is
tistened te and any issues and quaslions appropniately censidered.

British Land has a dedicated investor Relations tlzam which

reports lo the Chiel Financial Officer. Investors and anatysts receive
regular communications from the Company throughout the year,
including Investor Relations eveals [see box 1o the right], sne-lo-one and
graup meetings with Executive Directors and properly or asset tours,
as well as regular confacl wilh the Investor Relations leam_ Duyring

the year, the Chief Exetulive, Chief Financial Officer and our Invester
Relations team met with representalives frem over 205 institulions.

We periodically commission an independent invasior perceplion

study which is presented to the Board. -

The Chairenan encourages all Directors to attend the AGM, providing
retail shareholders in particular with an opportunity to hear lrom the
Board and 1o question the Direclors in person.

Significant emphasis is ptaced an the imporiance of feeding shareholder
views, both posilive and negative. back to the Board. The Chief Execulive
provides a written reparl (o the Board at each scheduled meeting which
includes direct market feedback an aclivity during the period. [E1.11€
[E12)©. ‘

British Land aims to be informalive and accessible to all shareholders.
Announcements relating to the Group's financial resulis and other key
matters are provided in a timely m to both relail and instihtionat
shareholiders. Qur websile also provides a number of case studies

for stakehalders” inforfnation covering topics from asset profites.

to sustainability activities. Shareholders are also able to contact

the Company directly via the contacls page on our website:
wevew_britishland.com/contacts

We are pleased with the tevel of engagement with shareholders achieved
during ihe year and Lhe Board also recognises the important contrtbution
of providers of capitat ather than sharehalders, namely our lenders and
hongholders. We maintain a reqular and open dialogue with our dehi.
providers to help us understand their investment appelite and criteria.

. As ever, our Senior independent Diveclor remains available to address
any concerns shareholders maywish ta raise, other than via the usual
channels of the Chairrnan, Chief Executive or other Execytive Directors
A4
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Key investor relations activities during

the vear included

May 2016 -

Full year resulis presentation

Full yzar roadshow, Longon

Investor property conferance, Nethertands
Privete dient inveslor roundlable, Londen

June 2004 -

imestor madshow, Edinbungh
Investor property conference, London:
invastor property lour, Paddinglon Central

July 2004 -

Analyst reundiabte, Retail strategy, Londen
01 rading update

AGHM

US Prvate Placement investor briefing,
ieteconiarence

September 2006 -

Investor property conference, London
investor roadshow, US
Private dlient roedshow, Londen

November 2006 -

Half year resutls presenlation
Half year readshow, Lendon
investor progarty confersnce, L onden

December 2016 -

Oirect invesior roadshow, Canada
Investor property conferance, South Aftica

Janwary 2017 -

03 trading updaie

Investor properly conference, Lomion
Analyst and inveslor property lour,
Clarges, Mayfair :

February 2017 -

Invesior roadshow, Netheriands

March 2017 ~

Investor sustainability workshap, London
Inveslor property conference, London

Private dient roadshow, Londan and Edinbrrgh
investor readshow, Edinburgh




REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We monitor the quality and integrity
of the financial reporting and

valuation processes

Tim Score

Chairman of the Audit Commiliee

Audit Committee members’ adem
- for the year ended 31 March 2017

Tum Score [Chairman] [A.1.2)62
Aubrey Adarns
Ssmon Borrows

81818

Terms of reference

The Committea's role and responsibilities are set out in the
terms of reference which can be found on our website at
www.britishland.com/committees [C 3.1 Q[ 3.2/ 2IC313@

| am pleased lo present the repart of the Audit Committee for the
year ended 31 March 2017, ‘

This year. the key areas of focus for the Committee have been:

- scruinising the valuation of investment and development properbies

- moniloring the effectiveness of the new internal auditor and
reviewing the internal audit plan

— agreesng a best practice policy for the appaintment of the
Company’s external valuers

- reviewing the appropriateness of continuing 1o publish interim
management statements and

- manitering the quality, consistency and integrity of the Company’s
financial reporting, including assessing whether the Annual Report
is fair, balanced and understandable

Commiittee composition and governance

Guring the year, the Commitice was wholly composed of independent
Non-Executive Directors, being Aubrey Adams, Simon Berrows

and myself as Comrnittee Chawman. With affect from 1 Apiil 2047
Lord Macpherson joined the Committee.

1 British Land has announced thal Simon Bormows will ratire from

the Board, and this Comnmittee, at thve conclusion of the 2017 AGM.
1would like te thank Simen for his valuable contribution as a
member of thrs Comnmatiee,

The Board remains satisfiad that each of the Committee rmermbers
s appropniaiely qualihed and experienced o undartake their
roles. For the purposes of the Code, | am deemed to meet the
spedlic requirement of having significant, recent ang relevant
financial experience [C.3.11S,

By invilation. members ol management altend Committee mestings.
These inciude the Chisf Finardial Offcer, Chief Exacutive Officer,

‘Company Secretary and General Counsel, Group Financial Controtler,

Head of Ivvestor Relations, Head of Finandal Reporting and Head of
Planning and Analysis as well as representatives of both external and
internal auditors. The Cominitiee met piivately with boith external
and internal auditors three limes during the year and is satishied

that neither 15 being unduly influenced by management.

As Committee Charnman, | additionaily hotd reguiar meetings

with the Chief Finandal Officer and other members of management.
These meatings pravide me with a beiter undersianding of key issues
and identily those mattars which require mearingful discussion at
Commitlee meetings. | also meet the exlernal audit partner, internat
audit parther and representatives fram each of the valuers to discuss
any matters or concerns they have.

During the year, the Comnmittee receivad reports from management,
externat and internal auditors, external valvers and the Risk Commillee.
Thesa reports have altowad the Cormittee o scrutinise and ask questions
where further clarificalion or discussion was required. Further deiails
on the work undertaken by the Comrniltee are set gqut in the section on
"Key activities during the year” on page 68.

K
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Role and responsihilities
Tha principat responsibilities of the Commitize are:

1 Edemalaudit- Dversight and remuneration of the external
auditer, assessng effectivensess and making recommendations
to the Board on the anpcmbment ol, and the policy for, non-audil
services pnmded by the exiermnal auditor

2 Financial reporting — Monitoring the inlegrity of the Company's
financial stalements and 2ry formal announcements relating
1o financial performance, and considaning signilicant inancial
reporting issues. judgaments and estimates

3 Investmentand devalopment propesty vatuations -
Considering the valuation process and the affectiveness
of the Company's valyers

4 Risk management and internal controls — Reviewing the
system ol internal conlrut and risk managemant

n

Internal audit — Monitoring and reviewing reporis on the work
performed by the internal audstor and reviewing effectiveness,
audit plans and resaurding

Key activities during the vear
The key activities undertaken by the Commitiee are set oul below.

1. External audit

The Committee is responsible lor gverseeing the relationship with
the externa! auditor and for considening their terms of engagement.
remuneration, effecliveness, independence and continued objectivity.

The Commitlee annually reviews the audit requirements of the Group,

for the business and in the context of the external emvironment_ placing
great importance an ensuring a high quality, effective external audit
pracess. In particular, during the year, the Committee reviewad

and approved the annual audit plan and reviewed the findings of the
external audit and manageinent’s responsiveness ta those ndings.

{n accordante with besi practice and its own terms of reference,

the Committee undertakes an annual review of the performance

of the external auditor. During this review, the Commitiee considered
the external auditor’s lechnical competence. strategic knowledge,
reporting, their independence_ and compliance with rel it
slalutory, requlatory and ethical standards. {C.3.8] €.

The Committee noted the results of the Finandial Reporting Council's
Audil Qualitly Review [AQR] of PwC's audit of the Company, zlong with
thewr perfarmance on other audits of Lsted companes.

The Commitiee reviewed PwC’s performance during the year ended
31 March 2017 and was content with the quatity of the audit work
undertaken and the knowledge and competence of the audit team.
The external auditor conficmed to the Committee that it maintains
appropriate internal saleguards to ensure its independence and
objectivity. The Commitiee considered and approved PwC's
assessment ol ils independence and has recommended to the
Board that a resolution for the reappointment of Pw( as exlernal
auditar be put to shareholdars. at the 2017 AGM IC3.71@.

British Land undertook a tender of exiernal audit services in 2014
resulling in the appointment of PwC as external audilor. This is the
third year that PwC have audited the Annual Report. The Committee wall
consider the nead for a competitive tender for the role of external auditor
every five years, with a campetitive tender taking place at least every
ten years. There are no coniractual obligations which would restrict
the selection of a differemt audilor. The Commiltes will also ensure
that the rotation of audit partner is undertaken as required by
legisiation to the exient that this is not undertaken earlier by PwC.

68 British Land } Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Provision of non-audit services [C.1.819

The ittee has adopted a policy for the growision of non-audil
services by ihe external auditor. The pelicy helps to safeguard the .
external auditor's independence and ohjectivity and was reviewed

and updated during the year. The policy 2llews the external auditor

to provide the following non-audit services (¢ British Land where

they are considerad o be the mosl 2pprepnate provdar:

— Audil related senvices: indeding format reporiing relating lo
borrowings, sharehotder and ether circulars and work in respect
of acquisilions and disposals. In some circumstances, the external
auditor is required to carty out the work because of their office.

In other dreumstances, selechon would depend on which firm
was hest suiled to provide the seraces required

- Sustainability assurance: PwC currently provides an assurance
opinion to the Company over selected sustainability data.

This appointment is reviewed annually.

In addition, the protocols that apply 1o non-awdil fees are:

- Total nan-audil fees are timited o 705 of the audit flees in any one yzar
Details of the audit and non-audit fees paid during the year are sat out
in Nate 5 on page 109. The audit and nen-audii fezs for the three year
average are calculated in ine with the methodology set out in the
2614 FU Regulations and inchude fees for joint vendures and lunds

- Committee approval is required where there might be doubls
as 1o whether the external auditor had a venflict ol interest and

- Pre-approval by the Audit Commiltee Chairman is required for
each additional project or incremental fee over £25,000 [previously
£100.000} and Committee approval required for any additional
projects over £100,600

During the year one engagerment relaling to Susiainabilily assurance
raquired approval. This was approved by the Audit Committes Chalrvnan
on the basis thal PwC were best placed to provide this service and

that it created no conflict of interast with their role as external auditor.

2. Financial reporting

Al the reques! of the Board lhe Committee reviewsd the content and ione
of the preliminary results press release, Annuat Report and halll year
results as wall as the quarterly trading updates.,

The Commillee received a broad outline of the Annuat Report structhure
and content early in the process. Further dralts ol the Aansal Report
were reviewed by the Cornmitiee prior to formal consideration by the
Board, with sufficent ime Lo allow leedback. The Commiltes considered
the key messages included in the Annual Report, half year results and
the trading updates issued during the year. As well as conient and tone
of resulls, the Commitlee paid particular altention lo financial reporting
matlers it considers to be important by virtye of size, complexity, level of
judgement required and potertialimpact on the financial stalements and
wider business modet. Identification of the tssuas deemed ta be significant
ook place following open and frank discussion between the Commitiee,
Chief Financial Qlficer, PwC, internal audit and other relevant British
Land employees.

Following the Commiltee’s review, and receipt of an externat audit
opinion {rem PwC_ the Commillae has satislied ilself that controls
over the accuracy and consistency of the information presented in the
Annual Report are robusl. The Committee recammended to the Board
that the Annual Report presented a lair. balanced ang understandable
overview of the business of the Group and that it provides stakeholders
with the necessary infor mation to assess the Group's position,
perlormance, business model and strategy (C.3.419.

The Committee also considered the continuing use of interim management
staternents between the full and half year announcemaents. Having taken
inte account the vievws of investors. the Commitiee recormmended lo the
Board that the Company should cease publishing interim management
statements from 1 April 2017




The significant issues considerad by the Commiltes during the ysar ended 31 March 2017 and the actions taken tn ad&essﬁesem are sel gutin
the table below [C 368160

Siguificant issues in relation to
financial statements considered
by the Committee during the year

How these issues
were addressed

Viability
statement

statenrent

Valuation
of property

REIT status

Revenue

recognition

Whether the assessmeant
undartaken hy managament
regarding the Group’s long
term viability appropniately
reflects the prospecis of
the Group 2nd covers an
apprepniale peried of tme.

The Committee considered whether the assessmant performed by managament adequalaly
reflected the Group's risk appetite and principal isks as discdiosed on peges 5010 53; whether
the period covired by the siaternent was reasonable gven the sirategy of the Group and the
environment in which it operales; and whether the assempbans and sensitivities identified
and stress tesled represanied severe bul plausible scenanios in the contaxt of sotvency

or liguidity_

: Following this evatuation, along with considaration of the external auditor's report, the

The appropriateness
of preparing the Group
finanacal siatements on
a going concern basis.

The vatuation of irvestment
and development properlies
conducied by external valuers
is inherently subjective'as it

is undertakan on the hasis

of assumplions made by

the valuers which may not
prove lo be accurate.

The outcome of the vatuation
is significant to the Groupin
terms of investmenl decisions,
results and remuneration.

The accouniing ireatment

of significant propenty
acquisitions, disposals and
financing transactions,is 2
recurning risk for the Group
with non-standard accounbing
enlries required, and in

SOMe Cases management
judgement applied.

Maintenance of the Gioup's
RE(T siatus through compliance
with cerlain conditions has

a significant impact on the
Group's resulls.

For certain iransaclions,
judgement is applied by
management as to whether,
and lo whal exten, thay
should be (reated a5 revenue

- for the financial year.

Cammitiee agreed with managemesnt™s assessment and recomimensiad the viabllity statesmasn
for approval by the Board. The viability siatement, together with further details on the
assessment undarteken, is Sel oul on page 47 of the Srateger Repnat.

The Cornmittee reviewed management's analysis supporting the gaing concern basis
of preparation, induding consideration of forecast cash flarers, svadabdity of commvitted
debt faclities and expacted covenant headroom.

The Committee atse received a report from the external avditor on the resulls of the testing
undertaken on rmanagement’s analysis. As a result of the assessment undertaken, the
Commiliee salisfied itsell thal the going concern basis of preparation remained appropriate.

The going concern statemant is set oul on page 45 of the Corporate Govermnance Report.

The external valuers presented Ltheir reports to the Cnmmit@ee prier to the half year
and hull year rasults, providing 2n overview of the UK properiy markel and summarising
the performance of the Group's assels. Significant judgements vrere also highlighted.

The Committee analysad the reports and remewad the valuation cutcomes, chaltenging
assumplions where thought fil. In particular this year, the effect of the EU referendum
on pruper ty valualions and market senliment was examined in detail.

The Commiltee was satisfied with the valuation process and the effeciiveness of the
Company’s valuers. The Committee also approved the relevant valuation disclosures
o be included in the Annual Heport.

The Committee reviewed management papers on key judgements. including thase
for significant transactions, as well as the externat auditor’s findings on these matiers.

In particular, the Commitlee considered the accounting treatrnent of The Leadenhall
Building transaction, the disposal of Debenhams, Oxfard Street and the impact of share
price movements on the accounting treatment of the 2012 coswes title bond, mdudmg -
the change in dilutive impact on the Company’s key melncs.

The external auditor confirmed that management’s judgements in relation to these
transactions were appropriate. The Comemittee agreed with this conclusion.

The Cornmitlee reviewed the Company's compliance with the REIT tests. Management
presented delails of the methodology and resulls of their process for REIT 1esting,
highlighting any change in long termn trends and the corrent level of headroom.

The external auditor presented the condlusigns of their review of the REIT tests performed
by managernent and the Committee cancluded that the Company’s REIT status had been
maintained in the year.

The Committee and the external auditor considered the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment applied by management in relation to revenue recognition. In particular the
Commiltee considered the accounting of signilicant payments recaived in the year in
relation lo the devetopment and occupation of 3 Broadgate and were satisfied with their
treatment as capital items.

The Commitlee considered the scope of the accounlmg standard and agreed wilh the

reasonableness of the judgement made.
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3. Investment and development property valuations

The external valuation of Bruish Land s porticlio is 3 kay detarminanl

of the Group's balance sheel. performance and senior management’s
remuneration. tn accordance with ils kerms of reference, the Committee
adopts a rigorsus approach 10 monitoring and reviewing the valuation
process aad the effectiveness of the Group's valuers, Knight Frank, CBRE
and Jones Lang LaSalte. The Commiliee reviews the effactiveness of the
extermal valuers i-annually; foausing on a quantilative analysis of capitat
values, yield benchimarking, availability of comparable markst svidence
and major outliers to subsecior movements, with an annuat quatitative
review of the tevel of service received from each valuer.

The valuers attendad the Cemmitlee tings which considered the
half year and annuat resulis, and presented thzir reports including
providing confirmation of the valuation process. market onditions
and significant judgements made. Pw(C reviewed the valuations and
valuation process, having had full access (o the valuers 16 determine
that due process had been followed and appropriate information used.
It reported #s findings to the Cornmiltee. The valuation process was
also subject fo reqular review by inlernal audit.

British Land has fixed fee arrangemants in placa with the valyers

in relation to the valuation of wholly-awned assets, in line with the
recommeaadations of the Carsberg Cormittee Report. Copies of the
valuation certilicates of Knight Frank, CBRE and L can be found
on the corporate wabsile at www.britishtand.com/reports

The Company has adopled a best praclice policy on the appointment
of external valuers. The policy covers duralion of appointiments and
the number of valuers engaged across the portfolio. Implementation
of the policy wili commence during the year ending 31 March 2013
and further details wilt be given in the 2018 Annual Report.

4. Risk management and internal controls

The Comeniliee 1s responsible for oversesing the effectiveness of

the Group's risk managemaent and internat control systems on behall

of the Board. This Committee has oversight of the activilies of the Risk
Commiltee, receiving minutes of alt Risk Committee meetings and
discussing any significant rmatiers. Prior to the announcement of Tull
year and half year resutts the Committee reviews the Group's principal
risks. This includes a commentary an how risk exposures have changed
duning the penod and any emerging risks in the Company’s risk regi

5. Intermat audit

As sel out in the 2016 Annwat Repeat, a lormat tender of intemnia! sudit
sanvices was umde tien during the fist guarter of 2014 A seleciion
panel wes esizblished which | chatred, tomprising the Chisf Finandat
Offices, Company Secretary snd Genarad Counsel and senior membears
of the Finance feam._ The princpal ariteria considered by the pansl
inclindad the skills and experience of the praposed teams, cuttural it
with British Land, insight and external perspeciivesio add value and
expected fee arrangements. Emst & Young LLP {EY] were identifiad

as the preferted candidate and appuinted to ihe rote following

approval by the Board on the Committee’s recommendation.

The Committes reviewed and approred the internal audit plan for the year.
including a consideration of its aligs fo the principal risks of the
Broup and @S joint ventures. EY have atiended all Committee meelings
during thz yzar tu present their chservations arising from the audits
undartaken 2nd the saivs of any rasuliing managament actions.

Intermal audits undertaken oy £Y and reviswed by the Commillze n the
yeas inchudad: property develepmnen ivcluding procurement, therd party
condraci management. property vatusations and statistics, property
mananemeant contract aoquisitions, propecty disposals and the wider
risk managament process, reasury. peyroll and human resources.

The audits revealed no significant issues however a number of process
and control imgrovernents were sugyested and implemented in the year
by management. EY also grovided assurance over the effectivenass of
key finandal controls in the year and a number of advisory reviews were
conducied over business continuily and {T processes induding the ongaing
design ang implamentation of 3 hew finance general ledger system.

The performance of intemal awdit was monitored throughout the
year threugh the review. challenge and discussion of EY's findings.
The Commiitee reviewed the intemnal audit charler which defines
FY's rule and responsibilities. A formal review of the effeclivensse

of the internal auditor was undesriaken and, as 3 resull of this review,
the Comrnitlee believed that EY discharged its duties effectivaly
IC.2.61€D during the year ended 31 March 2017,

Other matters discussed and reviewed by the Committee
In additton o the key areas set out above, the Commillee considered
the lollowing malters during the year ended 31 March 2017-

in particular, consideration has been given to the effect on the Comnpany's
external econumic and inlernal stralegic aims following the EU
referendum result, geopolitical unrest and capilat growth lorecasts.
The Conmiliee reviewed managesnent’s respanse o these matters
including impact on near term budgeting and future investment and
development strategy. The Committee considered and recommended
the Group's risk appetite to the Board for approval, ensuring that it
was set at an appropriate leved 10 achieve sirategic goals without taking
undue risk. The Commillee reviewed the status of key risk indicators
throughaut the year against the risk appetile set, with focus on those
that were aulside optimal ranges.

Half-yearly, the internal audilor reporis to the Commitlee on the
effectiveness of management’s internal controls, including a thematic
analysis of control issues identified by management. Internat audit
and the Risk Committee work closely together to ensure that identilied
risk areas are incorporated in the internal audit plan and similarly,

the findings of internal audit s are taken into account when identifying
and evaluating risks within the business. For the year ended

31 March 2017, the internal auditor confirmed that the sysiem

of risk management and internal controls had been effeclive.

Furiher details of the Company’s mternal conirol systems can
be found on page 45 of the Corporate Governance Report.
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Reporiing and - Changes o actounting poticies
externat audit - Annuat audit plan and external
auditor's respuneration
Risk and itemal - Review of the Treasury Policy including
control liquidity. interast rate and loreign
CUITency managament
— Anii-fraud and ant-hribery and cormupition
policies and procedures
- Whistleblowing arrangements [C.3.5)@
— Cybersecurity
— Risk exposure and reward outcome
- Insurance lor corporate, propert
and development nisks .

| 'Internal audil - Annual mternal audit plan

- Internat audit charier setling oul its role
and responsibiliies
Other ~ Reviewing the Coramitlee’s terms of reference
~ Annual tax update and approach to tax
— Bvaluation of the Commillee's ellectiveness

Tim Score
Chairman of the Audit Comaittes



REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Committee leads the process

for Board appointments

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee

Nomination Committee members’ attendance
for the year ended 31 March 2017

John Gildersieave iChairman} [A 1. 2)© 2f2
Williarn Jackson 2/2
Lord Turnbull 22
Role and res ibiliti

The Committee’s' role and responsibililies are set gut in
its terms af reference found on the Company's website at
wwwe.britishland com/committees [B.2.1/&.

The Commitiee’s principal responsibilities are:

- reviewing the structure, size and composiion of the Board
arid its Cormmittees 2nd recommending changes to the Board

- considening succession planning Jor Directors and other
senior execulives

- reviewing the independence and ime commilment
requirements of Non-Executive Birectors and

- making recommendations as 1o the Directors standing
for election or re-election al the AGM

Welcome to the report of the Nosnination Cornmittes.

The Commitiee considers that the Board consists of individuals with
the right hatance of shills. experience and knovdedge to prowde strong
and effective leadership of the Company. The majonlty of the Board

are independent Nen-Executive Directors, and the Board's collective
expenience covers a range of relevant seclors, as illustrated on page 54
As vwell as 2 breadih of property and linancial experience, many Board
mesnbers have personal experience af working in the retad and
corporate emvironments that ane typicat of many of our occupiers.

in December 2014 Lord Macpharson was appointad 2s 3 Non-Exeautive
Direcior, In addition, on 1 Seplembes 2017 Preben Prebansen will join
the Board and the Remuneration Commiltee. Details of our appointment
grocess are goven on page 72,

We recognise the importence of continuity and the vetue that Directors
who serve for many years bring. Aubrey Adanns will be approaching
the end of his ninth year as & Non-Execuiive Direclor by the lime of

our 2817 AGM.

Aubrey's considerable expertise i the property seclor is an imporiant
part ol the mix of skills and experience on our Board. The Committee
undertook a rigorous review of Aubrey’s contribulions to the Beard and
the Audit Committee and as independence and determined thal Aubrey
remained independent in character and judgernent. We are defighted

1o recommend that Aubcey be uvited to serve as an independent

Non-Executive Director for a further one year termn. The process (o
recruit an additional Nen-Exequiive Direclor with proparty sector
experience is under way[8.2.30€,

Membership ol the Committee remained unchanged during the year
1o 31 March 2017 and cormprised William Jackson, Lord Turnbull
and mysell as Committee Chairman. With effect from 1 Aprit 2017,
Tim Score, Chairman of the Audit Commattee jowned the Committee.

We annogunced in March that Lord Turnbull will retire from the Board,
and its Committees. at the condusion of the 2017 AGM. t would like
to thank Lord Turnbull for the support and advice he has provided

{ to the Nomination Committes dunng his tenure. His guidance and

eaperience will be missed.

The Committee met twice during the year. By invitation, Tim Score
and Chris Grigg, Chiel Executive, atlended both meetings.

British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017 . 71



.

Governance

REPORT OFf THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Key activities during the vear
Durtig the year, the Commiites has underlaken each of its prmupal .
responsibilitias as sel oul on page 71.

Compaosition of the Board and Commiittees
The Committee reviewed the compasition of the Board, and considered
whether the range of skilts. experience and knowledge thal the Directors

bring coniinuz to provide sirong and effective leadership of the Company.

and their lenglh of tenure.

The Zygos Partnership IZygosl, an exlernal search agency, was engaged
by the Committez 10 assist with the recruitrnent process mrelation

w Lord Macpherson and Preben Prebensen. 2ygos’ role inciud=g

the preparation of detaited rote spedfications, searching for and
benchmarking suitable candidates, and praducing detailed personal
profiles for the Commitlee’s considerstion. Other than the provwsion

of recruitmant consultancy 'services, Zygos does not have any
connection with British Land (B. 2.4} ©.

The Board's cotleclive exparience covers a range of relevan! sectors,
as Mustrated on pages 56 to 59. The Committee considered the skitls,
experience and knovwledge of each candidate as well as thair ability
1o provide the appropriate level of scruliny and challenge expecled

ot independent Non-Exaculive Directors.

Thrnughout lhe year, the membership of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomi [ of itees comprised independont Non-Executive

- Directors to the extent required by the Code [B.2.11€, William Jacksen
succeedad Lord Turnbull 3s Chairman of the Reruneration Commities
lallowing the 2016 AGM when Lord Turnbutl retired (rom thal role-
Lord Turnbull remains a member of the Remuneration Committea
until the conclusion of Lthe 2017 AGM when he will stand down as
a Direclor and Senior independant Director. William Jackson wilt
succeed Lord Yumbrill as the Sendor Independent Director at that lime.

On 1 April 2017, Lord Macpherson was appointed Lo the Audit
Committee and Timn Score jgined the Nomination Committee.

The Committee undertook a detaited review of the continued
independence of each of the Nan-Executive Direclors, the time
commitment required and whether it was in the bes| interests of

" the Company for each Director to be recommended for re-appuintment.

Detailed consideration was giwen to each Non-Executive Direclor's
contribiiion o the Board and its Committees, logether with the averall

balance of knowledge, skills, experience and diversity on the Board.

In atcordance with the Code, all continuing Directors will retire at the
Annual General Meeting in 2017 and submit themselves for election,
in the case of Lord Macpherson, or re-etection by shareholders.
Following their review. the Commitiee is of the opinion that each
Directer continues to demonstrate cormitment ta his or her role

as a member of the Board and its Commitiees, discharges his ar

her dulies efleclively and that each makes a valuahle contribution

1o the leadership of the Company for the benefit of alt stakeholders,
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Succession

The Committee regularly reviews the adaquacy of secce
arrangements for the Beard, including the Chuei Excoutive, and other
members of senior managemant. The Chizf Execulive is responsible
tor developing succession ptans lor the remaiming Executive Gireclors
and senior management which are pr ted to and com ted on
by the Committee. The Chairman is respansible {or devetoping the
succassion plan for the Chief Exacutive, which is considarad at least
annually try the Commiltee.

Board diversity

British Land pays fulk regard to the benefils of giversity, inciuding
gendar diversity, both when the Nomination Commities is seardning
for canddidales for Board appeiniments and when the Compaay is
saarching for candadates for othar appeiniments.

British Land curvenily has three femate Board bers; Lynn Gladd
and Laura Wade-Gery, both Non-Executive Directors. and Lucinda Bell,
Chief Financial Oificer. This represents Z3% femate Board membership
{2014: 255 ). The percentage of famate Board bers is expected to
return o 255 once the announced Board changes have kaken place.

Achieving 3 more iverse Board. including increasing m the percentage
of jamale Board members, will be subjec to the avaidability of suitable
candidates: the Board musl ensure thal appointmenls are of thz
candidates best able lo promote the success of the Company.

Subjec to this requirernent, the Board remain comimitted o further
strenglhening diversity, including fernale representation, at Board

and senior managament level.

Focus for the coming vear

For the coning year. the Committee will continue to review and
davelop succession planning for Execulive irectors and senior
management and will overses the iriennial externatly facilitated
Board evaluation.

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Nomination Committee



REMUNERATION REPORT: LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Poliéy ,
aligns management incentives
with our strategy

William Jackson

Chairman of the Remuneration Commiltee

Remuneration Committee members’ attendance
during the yvear ended 31 March 2017 (7.1.2) @

Witliam Jackson {Chairman]* _ 233

Lynn Gladden - &%

Lord Turnbull® ) Al4

Laura Wade-Gery ] &1

' Wilbam Jackson succaeded Lord Turnbull as Chairman with effect from
the canclysion of the 2014 AGM.

Role and responsibilities

The Commillee’s role and responsibilifies are set out in
the terms of referedice found on the Company's website
atwww.britishtand.com/committees [D.2.111D.2.2| @
The Committee’s key areas of responsibility are:

Setting the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and
the Company Chairman; reviewing the remuneration paticy
and strategy for tnembers of the Executive Commitiee and
other rnembers of executive management whilst having
regard to pay and employment conditions across the Group

‘Deterrnining the total individual remuneration package of

the Company Chairman, each Executive Director, Executive
Comeniltee member and other members of managerment
Monitaring performance against conditions attached io alt annual
and long-teren incentive awards to Executive Directers, Executive
Commitiee and ather members of rnanagément and approving
the vesting and payment gulcomes of these arrangernents
Setecting, appoinling and setting the terms of reference of

any independent remuneration consultant or consultants

Dear Shaseholdar

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased (o present the Directors’
Remuneration Report lor the year ended 31 March 2017,

This is my first report as Chairman of British Land's Remuneration
Commiltee, having succeeded Lord Tumbull at the 2016 AGM. | would
like to thank Lord Turnbail fer his stewardship over the 1351 few years
and am grateful that he has remained on the Cominittee until this
year s AGM and continued o offer his knowledge and experience

of ramuneration maiters within British Land. Wa look forward to
welcoming Preben Prebensen, who vall join as a Non-Execulnse
Director and & rember of this Committee on 1 September 2017,

British Land aperates to high standards of remuneration praclice,

We would ike to thank shareholders for reflecling thes with their support
{or the Reinuneration Policy al the 2016 AGM. Qver ¥7% supportad
the new Remuneration Policy and over 35% supported the Directors’

Remuneratisn Report. -

The performance measures thal determine the levets of variable pay
for Execuiive Directors are fully aligned with the Cempany’s business
siralegy. Fhese measures are mainly relative and have the abjectve

ol incentivising the Directors te deliver higher returns than the markset.
This means that # in any year the Company delivers weaker performance
on a relative basis, varizble pay is lower, and if it delivers stronger
performance, variable payis higher.

Over the year under reviesy, despite the Company delivering good
financial resylis in an eventful year, our relative property secior
performance has been slighily above or just below market level rather
than delivering the diear outperformance we aspire to achieve. Asa
resull, payouls frem our annual incenlive plans are lower than last year.
We expect the LIP maturing this year will lapse as will half of the MSP
awards vesting in Juine 2017. The Commitlee believes that Uis oulcome
showes; that the Cornpany’s resnuneration poliies are working correctly
in the interests of sharchulders and other slakeholders.

Wae are not making any revisions Lo the approved Remuneration Policy
this year. Hawever, we are aware of the current debale on remuneration
praciice and reqularly review and challenge target setting for Executive
Direclors. We ensure this compties with best practice but also that the
largets set align managerpent actions wilh our strategy and the long
term wnterests of sharehotders and other stakeholders. Duning the year
we have continued to take into account the views of our shareholders,
invesior representative bodies and governance advisory organisations
in the way the Remuneration Policy is applied. In particular we have
responded to feedback abuut the importance of sSimplifying executive
pay and rernuneration reparting as well as ensuring that remuneration
is aligned with our strategy. .
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REMUNERATION REPORT: LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

Whan our Remuneralion Policy was introduced in 2016 we moved to one
singte fong term intentive anrangemant and selected three performance
measuras which closely align with aur sirategy isee kull dalails on page
771. In 2017 we are continuing to simplily our remuneration struclure

by reduting the nurnber of quaniitetive mezsures for the anmal incenlive
arrangements, from five to boo, and mitreducing weightings lor the
proportion of maxmum annual incentive award opporiumily represented
by each measure. The three measures thal will no longer appty are
adetjuately covered by lhe remaining measures in the Annual Incentive
Plan and LTIP. The remaining performance measures, set out in full

on page 76, better atign the antual incentive awangs made o Executive
Directors with British Land's strategic locus on creating Places People
Prefer and delivering sustainable tong term value for all stakeholders.

tn this Remuneration Report, we have also further enhanced gur
disdosure of howwe assess Executive Direclors” performance for
annual incentive purposes.

Gur continuing focus on better alignment of remuneraticrwith
strategy is reflected in our decision to use the hwestment Proparty
Databank HiP0] March Annuat Universe benchmark when assessing
perlormance against the Total Property Returms measuie for annual
incentive awards and LTIP awards for the year commencing 1 Agril
2077. The March Annuat Universe benchmark is more appropniate

for this purpose as the companies from which asset related intormation
is sourced are more representative of our peer group_ In addition
measuring our perlormance against this benchanark, which includes
sales, acquisitions and developments and so 1akes account of active
assel managemenl. positively supports achisvament of the Company's
strategy. We weight this benchimark o reflect the sectors inwhich

aur assets are classifiad.

Remunerution in respect of the yvear ended

31 March 2017

Remnuneration wilhin British Land continues to be clasely tied to the
financial performance of the Group and the extent to which both short
and long term strategic objectives are met.

The annual incentive plan payout is based on per{ormance against
unlevered capitat return, total property return 2nd profit growth,
together with qualitative measures supporting Places People Prefer
and indiadual objectives. Howevar, the quantilative objectives of total
accounting relurn vs property majars and ERV growth against iPD
were both below median and as a result. do not contribute to the
award. The result of gur performance gives a2n award of around
ane-third of the maximum, equivalent Lo approximately 50% of basic
salary. This is & significant reduction aver eartier years and shows that
our pay structure is truly variable and reflects performance achieved.

The LTIP awards granted in 2014 and vesting in June 2017 are based
on relative performance for the three years ended 31 March 2017.
These are expected o lapse in ull. In addition, anly half of the MSP
award made in respect of 2014 is expected to vest. Once again these
significant reduclions in share-based variable pay show how the
structure is aligned to performance outcomes over the longer term.
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Remuneration in respect of the vear commencing

1 April 2017

Salaryand fees

The Committee has distussed and reviewed the Company's annual
satary process for ali amployees. il has also reviawead the basic salares
ol the Executive Direclors and the Chairman's anmual fee and conduded
that these should remain unchanged for the coming year.

Annual incentives

We have simplified the performance es for the L
incentive awards and inlroduced SITicE weightings to each measure.
For the coming year. 7% of any potential award will be dependent on
successiully achieving finandal targets with 20% based on achicving
qualitative and 10% on individuat targets. Bur decision to reduce

the ber of g i@atve es will preduce dearer argets.
Further informalion is provided an page 76.

Long-term incentives
The first iong-term incentive awards under the Remuneralion Policy
approved in 2016 will be granted during this Coming year.

Diversity and inclusion

The Committes carelully monitors the Company’s strategic fotus on
diversity and inclusion and has undeariaken preparatery analyses for
the disclosure requirements of gender pay reparting. Full disclosures
will be published on our website when compiete. Diversity dala is

given in the Strategic Report on pages 24 and 25.

Remuneration consultants )

In eacly 2017 a tender of remuneration advisory services was
undertaken. A panel was established to oversee the lender on hehalf

of the Comenittee whase members induded Cheis Grigg. Lord Turnbult,
and Ann Henshaw {HR Director]. | chaired the panel Several providers
ware invited 1o present Lo the pansl 3nd, alter due process and
deliberation. the Comsniltee appointed Korn Ferry Hay Group Limited
1o be s remuneration adviser with effect from 21 March 2017. We
would like to thank FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP. and Alan Judes
in particular, for the advice, guidance and support provided over the
years. We wrsh Alan a good relirement., -

Recommendation

Briush Land continues to striva to apply best prachce in its remuneraticn
policies and to lisien carefully to shareholder leadback. We therefore
hope thal you all show your support for our approach te remuneration

by voling for the Directors Remuneration Report al the 2017 AGM.

Wnllmm Jackson

Chairman of the Remuneration Commil lee



. REMUNERATION REPORT. AT A GLANCE

Executive Directors’ Remuneration

The tharts below show the 2017 actust remuneralioh agansi potental opporiunity for the year ended 31 March 2017 and mlémmm
for each Executive Oirector. Full disclosure of tha single total figure of remunaration for each of the Directors 1 set out in the table on page 78.

mracval [T 09 avaaea TR £1,005
S o avpoeis can
e s I cum
1 206 30 240 50 &0 10 153 28 25 34

Chardes Mandsler Tim Roberts . :

Head of Retail ard Leisure £000 Head of Qffices and Residential, €000
2017 actual B £9E7 M7 actual I €957
T CYPEP———T | | 2
O T am wesws SN

10 15 20 25 30

WSalary CBenefas 8 Pension BAnva bhwenlive . B Long-term incendiies

' 2117 polential assumes ihal both annwal and loag-term incentives pay o in ull.

Summary of Remuneration Policy

05 184 153 20 23 10

The Remuneration Policy summarised below was approved by shareholders on 19 July 2016_ The Policy is effective until the third anniversary of its
approval or @ revised policy is approved, whichever s the sooner. The Remuneration Policy is sel aut in Tull in the 2014 Annwsl Report and is available

on our website ww.britishiand com/committees

[- i_m I'I .

Element of
remuneration

Framework

Fised Basic

Atracts and refzins Expert People with

salary the appropnale degree of experhse and
experience to deliver agreed strateqy.

Benefits

Penston
contribution

Maximum level cannol be grealer than the upper quartile of the
comparator group. Reviewed annually and increases typically in line
with inflation and general salary increases throughout the Group.
Maximnum fee of £1,500 p.a. in aggreqale for all qualifying
appomtments 16 subsidiary boards

Benefits are restricted to 3 maximurn of £20 800 p_a. for car allowance
“and the arsuurl required o continue providing other taxable and
non-taxable benefits at a simitar level year-on-year.

Dahned benefil scheme - tlarget benelit is the pension that can
be provided by the 31 March 2012 lifetime allowance [£1.8 million)
uplifted by RP1.

Defined cantribulion arrang {s — cash allowances in tieu of
pension are made at between 15-35% of satary.

Variable Annual

incentive

of u-!g financial year.

Performance measures retated to British
Land's strategic focus and the Executive

Director's individual area of responsitality
are set by the Committee at the beginning

Maximum oppertunity is 150% of basic salary. Twe-thirds is paidin
cash when granted with the remaining one-third lnel of tax) used to
purchase shares on hehalf of the Executive Director [Annual Incentive
Shares] which must be held for a further three years from the date

of grant whether or not they remain an employee of British Lang.

Long-term - Total Property Retum [TPRI inks

incentive

. rewand to gross property perfermance.

- Total Accounting Return [TAR} links
reward (g net praperty perlurmance

and shareholder distributions.
- Tolal Shareholder Return (TSR]

directly correlates reward with

shareholder retumns.

Maximum value of an LTIP award is 300% of basic satary which may
be in the form of performance shares or markel value options or a
combination of both.
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

How we intend to apply our
Remuneration Policy during the
year commencing 1 April 2017

The {ollowing pages set out how the Comarniltee inlends te apply the Remuneration Policy during the cwming year.

Executive Directors’ Remuneration

Basic salaries

Basic salanes have beaen sel al the following unchanged tevels for the year commencing 1 April 20t7.
Basic salary

Director . ) €
Chris Grigg 840,060
L ucinda Bell : 493.000
Charles Maudstey © K&4,250
Tim Roberts 445,250

Annual Incentive awards

The maximure bonus oppartunity for Executive Directors remains at 150% of salary. The performance measures for the Annual incentive awards
have been selected to reflecl a range of quantitative and qualitative goals that suppost the Comgpaiy’s key strategic objectives. The performance
rmeasures and waighlings for the year commencing 1 April 2017 wall be as follows:

Proportion of annual

mcentive a5 3 percenlages

Measure of maamum opportunity

Ouantitative teasures ' . T0%

’ Total property reiumn relative to IPD lsector reweighted) £7%

Profit growth relative to budget : 28%

Qualitative measures 20%

Right Places ) - _Progress on key projects including developments %

Customer Orientation - Comgany reputation with ail stakeholders 5%
Capital Efficiency - Execution of targeted acquisitions and disposals

- Progress on strengthening the dividend 5%

Expert People - Promoting an inclusive, performance driven cullure 5%

Individuat ohjectives Performance agains! individual success factors ) 0%

The Committes has set targets for the quantitalive measures and will disclase these in the 2018 Remuneration Report as they are fell (o be
commerdally sensitive. ln assessing how the Executive Directors performed during the year commending 1 April 2017, the Cornitlee will tahe
inte account their perlormance against all of the measures and make an assessment in the round Lo ensure that performance warraats the
Ievel of award deterrnined by ihe Lable above.

During the year, the Commitiee considered whether the current Invesiment Property Databank {IPD] benchmarks against which the performance
of annual and leng-lerm incentive awards is d were the moslt appropriate es. Following discussion with the C ittee’s atviser,
management and our own deliberations, the Committee agreed that the sector weighled IPD March Annual Universe benchmark which includes
sales, acquisitions and developmenis and so lakes into account active assel management as well a5 being a more representative peer group,
waould be most suitable.

As a result of this dedsion, from 1 April 2017, ihe disclosed performance against IP0 metrics for the annual incentive plan will be based on IPD
estimales. These estimates will be adjusted once the IPD March Annuat Universe dala becomes available. No annual inceniive payrents will
be made, or LTIP awards granted. to Executive Direclors until the IPD March Annyat Universe dala is avaitable and the final out-turn kaown,
The final awards under the ann'ual incentive plan will be detailed in the next Remuneration Report.

“
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Long-Term incentive awards

The first LTI award under the new Remuneration Policy will be made to Executive Directors during the year commenting 1 April 2017 s
anlicipated thal the granl size of LTIP awands to be made in the year commancing 1 April 2017wk be 258% of salary for each Executive Director-
This is below the maximum available under the policy of 300% of salary approved by sharehotders last year.

The performance measyres thal agply Lo this, and any huture, LTIP award will be a5 folleaws:

Measure . Link to strategy . Reasured relative to . . Weighting
Total Property Return (TPR] The TPR measure i1s designed lo TPR performance will be assessed against the " 40%
The change in capital value, - fink reward to strong performance  performance of an IPD benchmark.

less any capitat expenditure at the gross property level.

incurred, plus netincome. TPR

is expressed as a percentage

ol capital employed over the

LTIP performance persod and

is catculated by IPD.

Total Accounting Return [TAR] The TAR measure is designed TAR will be measured relative lo 2 comparator group 40%
The growthin Britlish Land's . to link reward to performance consisling of the 17 largest FTSE property companies

EPRA NAY per share plus at the net property level that that use EPRA accounting lincluding British Land].

dividends per shadre paid over takes account of gearing and our

the LTIP performance period. " distributions to shareholders.

Tatal Shareholder Roturn TSR] The 1SR measure is designed to 50% of the TSR measure witl be measured relative to 20%
The growth invalue of a British directly correlate reward with the the performance of the FTSE 100 and 50% of the TSR

iand shareholding over the L TIP raturn delivered io sharehalders. measure will be measured relalive 1o the parformance

performance period, assuming of 3 comparator group consisting of the 17 largest

dividends are reinvested to FTSE property comparees thal use EPRA accounting

purchase addilional shares. . (including British Land). -

Parformance against the LTIP measures will be assessed over a pericd of three years. 100% of the proportion of the award altached to 2ach
measyre will veslt il British Land's performance is at least at the upper quartile level. If performance against a measure is equal ta the median,
20% of the proportion attached (o that measure will vest and if performance is below median the proportion altached to that measure will lapse.
There will be straight-line vesting belween median and upper quarlile performance lor each measure.

Chmrmans and Non-Execnm'e Directors” fees \

Fees paid {0 the Chairman and Non-Executive Direclors are positioned argund the median of our comparator group ol companies [FTSE 100
comparnies with hroadly similar market capitalisations to British L and] with the aim of atiracling individuals with the appropriate degree of expartiss
and experience. the tee structure sel ou! below was adopted at the 2016 AGM and no changes are proposed for the year cornmencing 1 Apnt 2017,

Chairman’s annual fee ' ) ’ £3469.340
Non-Execulive Directar's annval fee ] : ’ . _£61,000
Senior Independent Director’s annual fee . £10,000
Audit Committee or Remuneration Committee Chairman’s annyal fee ) £20,000
" Audit Cornrnittee or Rernuneration Committes member’s annual fee . ) £8.000
Nomination Committee member s annual fee . ’ £4,000
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUMERATION CONTINUED

Hoxw we applied our Remuneration Policy
during the year ended 31 March 2017

The lul.lnwi;'ng pages seloul how we implemented the Direclors’ Remuneration Policy duning the yeer ended 31 March 2017 and the remunerabion
received by each of the Directors.

Single total figsure of remuneration (audited information)
The following abies detoil all elements of remuneration recefvable by British Land's Directors in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 and shawe
comparative figures for the year ended 31 Mairch 2014,

Other
itemsinthe  Pensionor
Tazable mawregt pension Annual Long wrm
- Salaryfiees benefits 1 watinn it incenti B s Totad
007 7 o7 017 . 7 Py 2007
Exetytive Directors ) 00D £020 (100 £60D €000 £000 fario]
Chris Grigg 849 23 " 2% 8 58 1945
Lucinda Bell . £93 23 13 78 245 153 1,005
Charles Maudsley 455 3 13 47 23 147 - 9&7
¥im Roberls &AB 3 12 85 22 167 957
201 a6 0% 2018 201 0 201
) £000 £000 €000 foos 089 £o8d 1000
Chris Grigg 840 2 13 294 BAG 1595 3.623
Lucinda Betl . 493 2 . B2 410 673 v
Chartes Maudsley &46 22 17 67 410 818 1.780
Tim Robects 448 21 12 - 106 400 817 (K31

* The LTIP awands granied to Executive Directors in June 2016 will vest on 23 June 2017. These LTIP awarids are expected 1o lapse in full. The MSP awards granted
10 Eypcutive Directors in June 2014 will vest on 30 June 7017, The TSR atement of the 2014 award is expected to Llapse in full while the GiG elemeni is expectad W vest
al Hiris. Full detats, including detalls of the performance conditions. are sel cut on page 81.

¥ The t TIP mesards granted to Execytive Direclors in June 2013 vested on 5 faprsi 2018 Th&LﬂPamrﬂsmsuh,edlumesamepmmmndmmsaslhe
LTIP aveards granted in 2034 Isee page 814 kn the 2016 Annual Raport, we disclosed that the TPR element of the 2013 L TIP award was expected o vest at 67% while
the TAR elernenl was expecied to vest al 4%, Theacm!vesurgmnbgﬂsmtmfnnedmJlﬂyZ[Ilbas&%fanPRandlamlu'TAﬂ The 2014 comparatie
numibers set out in the above table reflect the actuat vestmg values of the awards, replacing the estimaled vasting values disclosed i the 2016 Annuat Report, The MSP
awaeds granted lo Executrse Direclors in June 2013 vested on 2 August 2016, These MSP awards were subject 1o the same performance conditions as the MSP awards

" granted in 2014 lsee page Bl). As disclosed in the 2018 Annual Report, the TSR element of the 2013 award did not vas1 while 1he GIG elament was expected 1o vest at
100%, The vesting pertentage for the GIG element was confirmed by the Committae in Juty 2016 In the 2016 Annual Report the share price for the period 1 Janvary
1031 March 2016 was used. This has now been replaced by the actual price on Ihe date of vesling.

Fees Taxabte benefits® Total

' 2m7 2% 2017 2014 207 2006
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors £000 000 oo - E00O €000 €000
John Gildersteeve [Chairmanl] 389 349 4y &0 A8 429
Aubirey Ad & 68 - ~ ' 49 &8
Simon Borrows &9 &8 - ~ 49 48
Lynn Gladden : 69 &7 1 1 70 &8
Willjamn Jackson a7 70 - ~ 87 70
Lord Macpherson® 7 - - ~ 17 -
Tim Score a9 88 - 1 8y :xd
Lord Turmhadl a9 97 - - B89 97
Laura Wade-Gery 49 4 - - Ay &4

* Taxable benefits include the Chairman's chauteur cost and exp incurred by slther Non-Executive Derectors. The Company prowndes the lax gross up on these

benefits and the ligures shown above are the grossed up values.
! Lord Macpherson was appointed as a Director on 19 Detember 20,
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Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table
Executive Directors

Fixed Pay [audited information)

Taxabie benefits: Taxable benefits include car allowance, privale medical insurance and subsidised gym membership. The Company provides the
tax gross-up on subsidised gym membership for employses and the figures indluded on the previows page are e grossed up values.

Cther items in the nature of remuneration include life assurance, permaneit heaith insyrance. anmst medical check-ups. professional
subscriptions, the value of shares awarded under the all-empleyee Share incentive Plan and any notional gain en exerdiss for Sharesave oplions
that malured during the year. During the year endad 31 March 2017 there were mo maturilies of Sharesave awands hetd by Executive Directors.

Pensions: Neither Chris Grigg nor Chartes Maudsley participstz in any British Land pension plan and instead receiva cash allowances of 35% and
15% of basic salary respaclively in lieu of pension. For the year ended 31 March 2017, these payments amounled ta E295,000 for Chais Grigg and
£66.938 for Charles Maudstey. ’ ,

Ludinda Bell and Tim Roberts are both members of the British Land defined benzfit pension scheme. The table balow details the defined benehi
pensions accried at 31 March 2017,

Defined honefit

pensionacgruedat - Nomal

Lucinda Bell B ‘ 105 &0
Tun Roberts ‘ ] ! 84 ]

' The accrued pension is based on service to the year end and final pensionable salary a1 that date.

There are no additionat benefits that will become receivable bty a Direclor in the event that a Direclor relires early.
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_ Variable Pay

Annual Incenlive

The (evel of Annual InCentive awsant is delarminad by the Committee based on British Land's parfermanca and each individual Executive Director's
performance agains! their individyal largels during the year. For the year ended 31 March 2017 the Commillee’s assessmen) and oultemes are Sel
out betow,

beween 235 and 10098
10078 pay-ok
Hhpmypout Whpwy-or  inos
oo pay-m e pay-oul above Outcome
belothis W linewith this maskraamn ashof
Craniftative Meastres Weighing pand  expectations)  payoulpainll Outcome salary Perforn i S
L00% 6.00% - Targelrangeof matcing sector oatsghted index
Undevered to outpertorming & by 1%. Capila! grosvth of -1.0%,
Proparty capiial 4% 9 outperlisyneg weizherd ) tndex by 3has; Reladl
rewmmvsi wwmwwmmw
Property by bps their sector indices
367 5505 - Targetrange ofmatching Sector weighted index
Totz nwahmhﬂmmd
rehxrnsvsl% 14% ® I3 o ) PO ndex by s,
mammmwmsmm'usmm
thelr secior indices
Accounti Total actounling 0.00% 0.00% —Tmrmdmmwmmmhlamﬁng
.—m"g relumnvs W @ retum of 2.7 below the: «stimated median of the
property majors property magors by 30%gs
" 0.00% 0.00% 'll'ﬂm geof hi m;v hted
mwmﬂw grmrl!aof
e - e B P AT erer e g e P s by 0 b7
. Ratad outperiorimed its sectar by 7bps. Dffices
ynderpecformmed by 150aps
" - Target range of matebing the budget to outpertorming
praertine  prositys - ® 800% 1200w YR Sunifantmarg. Prof materiolly ahead of
' budget b ’ budgat. [This targat is commendiatly sendgitive so has
nol been disclosed]
Sub-total % Sub-total 15.467% 23.50%
" Qualitatire Measures - Perfor himwed) agai
. 500% 7505 - Convacseck d kor The Leadenhalt Busid:
Prograss on - Saleof 334 - mwmhﬂmw
!(evlgavieds Chéswvick and Croydon Sainshury's
inc ~ Planning sucoess a1 Blossom Sireel Walk
Proce W&%ts; 5% 4 ) ¥angston 5106 say:d Faden
Places oftargated - Planning for Meadowhail submitied and 1 Triton Square
uisitions - Progress an Canadia Wates vision and plan
disposats . - Qlarges 80% kol 100 Liverpool Sireat redevelopment
startedon site
Company 250% 375% - Cusk tistaction soore maimained al B.AS10
with - Maintainved inclusian in oisr four Larget ESG indices
Customer 2 <lakehotders; o ¢ : Do Jones Sustatnability tdices 2016 Warkd and
Orientation  geteryal Eurnpe, FTSEAG00d bndax 2016 and GRESE 2014
suslainability - Significant footiall 2nd sales outperionmance
objectives of benchmarks by just over 200bps
e henn 250% 375% - AbesdonProfilvs Budget
Capital strenglhening ~ Remain top quertite positen of WAIR [3.1%)
: the dividen; 5% .
Efficiency  5nd Execution of v average spread bo swap rate mainiasned
debt financings
. ' 250% 375% - Recruitment of Head of Campus Regents Place,
Expert Quahry:‘l'd . . Biractor of Laasing, Director of Marketing, HR Director
Pxpe! apl m'em. % . - Best Companies Dne o Watch
* renewal . - One of the frst FTSE 100 companées. to introduce
Paid Shared Parental Leave
Sub-total 20% Sub-total 12.50% 18.75%
Quantitative and qualilative  28.17% £2.25%
M 10% 500%  7.50%'

Total 33.17% 4975%

' Qut of the 10% opportunity the Commiltee assessed the individual contribution against a series of preset objectives closely atigned to the gualitative measures set
oul in the lable above. The Cormmillee determined that the level ol award would be 750% of basic salary for each Executive Director except for Charles Maudsley
who feceived an addilional 256 of basic salary reflecting his personal performance and that of 1he Retail business.

80 8ritish Land | Annual Repart and Accounts 2017



Long-term incentives (audited information)

The information in the long-larm incentives colurmn m the smglz total figure of remuneration table [see page 78] relaies o vesting of awards granled
undar the following schemes including, where applicable, dvidend equivalant pawﬁsonthoseawardsaﬂd interest accrued on: thoss dividend

equivalenls.

Long-termn Incentive Ptan {LTIF]

The awards grantad to Executive Dir:eclofs on 23 June 2014, and which witt vest on 23 June 2017, ware subject \o two equally weighted gerformance
conditions aver the three year period Lo 31 March 2017 The first measured British L.angd’s TPR relative to the funds in the Dacember IPD UK Annayal
Property Indax [the index), while the second measured TAR relative 1o 3 comparator group of British Land and 16 clher property companies.

The TPR element is expectad ta vest 31 (% based on British Land's adjusted TPR of 11.7% comparad to the funds in the Index ol 11.9% The TAR
" element is expected to vest at 0%. The aclual vesting rate of the TAR elernent can only be catculated once resulis have been published by alt
of the companies within the comparator group. The aciuzal percentage vesting vall be confirmed by the Cmnmmee indue course and indluded

in the 2012 Remuneration Report.

Estimated valua Estimated dvagend

Mumber of parformance: olawardenvesing  eguivelend s interest

Executive Director shaces awarded in 2804 . €08) . 4001
Cheis Grigg 233.804 0 0
Lucinda Bell 135,898 1] ]
Charles Maudsley 124 708 0 0

. Tim Roberts 124,208 0. )]

Matching Share Plan IMSP]

. The perlormance conditions for the M5 Matching awards granted on 30 June 2014 were [i] TSR relative to a comparator group of Briish Land andg 16
other property companies and lii] British Land’s gross income growth [G1G] relative to the IPD Quarterty Universe {the Universel. These performance
conditions are equally weighted. The MSP Malching awards will vest on 30 June 2017. .

Aon Hewilt has confirmed that ihe TSR element of the award witl not vest as British Land’s TSR performance gver the period was 1.5% compared lo
amedian of 12.7% for the comparater group. The GIG part is expected lo vest at 1008 as Brilish Land's annualised GIG over the period is expacted
to exceed the growth of the Universe by mare than the upper hurdle of 1.5%. As a resull. 50% of the MSP Matching awards granted in june 2004 is
axpecled to vest. As disclosed for the 2014 LTIP above, the actual percentage vesting wall be confirmed by the Committee and included in the 2018

Remwneration Repor L.
, Estimatad value Estimated dividend
Mumber of Matching am«.m equivalent
Executive Director Shares awarded in 2014 (211
Chris Grigg 101,764 309 47
f.ucinda Bell £3816 - 133 20
Chartes Maudstey 47584 145 72
Tirm Roberts 47.584 . _ 145 22
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Share scheme interests awanded during the vear (audited information)

e .

The tola! value of each Executive Diraclor's LTIP award for the year 2nded 31 March 2017 was equivalent to 260% of basic salary al granl. At grani
each Diracior can indicate a preference as o the proportion of the asiard thal they wish lo receive as either perfonmance sharas or marke? value
opions. The share price ysad to determing the face value of performance shares and the fair value of opiions, and thereby the number of
performance shares or oplians awarded, is the average over the three dealing days immediatety prior o the day of aveard. For the award granted
on 22 June 2014, this share price was 7305 pance. The perlormance conditions aitachad to these awards are identicat tn those for the awards
granted in 2014 which vest in Junz 2017 and are set out on page 81.

Performance shares

Parcantage vesting en
Numbar of . Endof ad'mmlgsf minimarm
performance  Facevalue  performance parformance threshald
Exeotive Director Grant date shares grantad £050 pormel Vesting dzte . ®
Chris Grigg 200612006 97 1680 VN 22/06/2019 pil
Lucinda Bell ‘ ’ 20812016 134978 986 IRV ZZMOW 25
Charles Maudsley 22406120186 122.176 882 33200 286203 : 5
Tim Roberts 22062016 &£1.088 646  3IVO3/2019  72/B6I2019 3

Mariet Value Dptions
- Percantage vesting o
Murnder N End ol achievement of mingmum
. of oplinns  Facevalue Fairlye Exerdseprice  pesformance performance threshold
Executive Director Grant date granted 0oy | €o* pewe parind Vesting date *
Tam Roberis . Z2fubf20né 284353 1.785% £44 7305  NAQ201 2652009 ) 25

; ngmﬂ;nﬁﬂ"ﬁnﬁdﬁmmd&eh«wbﬂdawm

.

MSP .
The MSP awards made to Executive Direclors in June 2016 were the final awards which would be made under this Plan.

The total lace value of the MSP Matching Share award granted to each Executive Director was equal to two-thirds of their gross annual incentive
award in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016, The share price used Lo determine the number of Malching Shares awar ded was 599 6 pence,
being the markel value of the Company’s shares on the day the propertion of the annual inceniive was deferred.

Matching Shares

Numnbar of ’ - Percentage wechng on
Percentage Malching End ol actevernent of manirmum
- of basic Shares Facevalve performance - performance threshold

Executive Director Award date salary avardad €560 period Vasling dale .
Chris Grigg 23/0472016 &% 94,718 560 3303/201F  29/06/201% 25
Lucinda Bell . . 29062016 55% A7, 206 23 32019 906RMY p
Chares Maudsley 29/06{2016 &% . &7.206 273 NS 23062012 25
TimRoberts  ~ __906/2016 s0% 46,056 266 329 29062019 25

The performance conditions allached 1o these awards are identical lo those for the MSP awards vesling in June 2017 detailed on the previous page.
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Directors’ sharcholdings and share interests (audited information)

Directors” shareholdings at 31 March 2017 '

The following table shows the Direclors” interests in fully paid erdinary British Land shares induding shares held by connected persons and,
for Exacutive Diractors, including MSP Bonus Shares and chares hald in the Share Incentive Plan [SIP). All inkerasis are benafical.

. . Holding at Holding 21
Director 31 March 2017 21 March 2014
Chris Grigg ' ] ) 1,257,368 1.118.690
Lucinda Ball ) ) 228098 162 8%
Charles Maudsiey . 230,383 158.887
Tim Roberis ' 286,14 173.042
John Gildersleeve 5,220 5220
Aubrey Adams . 30,000 20800
Sirmon Borrows . 300,000 300,000
Lynn Gladden 7.837 1.665
William Jackson ] 123,858 120.304
Lord Macpherson! 2,300 nfa
Tim Score 2415 12,693
Lord Turnbull 21,58 20471
Laura Wade-Gery £,8N 1.670

! Lord Macpherson was appomnted a5 a Dwector an 19 Decamber 2016 and purchasad shares in the markat oa 14 March 2001

Shareholding guidelines.
The minimum shareholding guldehnes require Executive Oireclors 1o hold ordinary shares with a value equal 1o a st percentaqe of salary.

There is no set imescale for Executive Director to reach the prescribed larget but they are expected to relain net shares receivad on the vesling of
lang term incentive awards until the target is achieved. Shares thal count towards the holding guideline gre undettered and beneficially owned by the
Executive Directors and their connected persons. Delerred annual incentive shares MSP Bonus Shares, SIP matching, dividend and free shares
and all unvested awards do not count lowards the requirement, )

The quideline shareholdings for the year commendng 1 April 2017 are shown below:

Usndejtered .
Guideline as holding as Total holding as
B honc  Gudelne  hoibmoat  lascoviays  shorcholdinget of by caloryat
i e al al i a

Executive Director ) salary holding' 31 March 2017 31 Mach 2017 3 Much21F® 31 March 2017
Chris Grigg . . 225% 309834 1,174,870 855% 1,257.368 913%
Lucinda Bell 150% 121,230 185,806 20% 226,098 280%
Charles Maudsley ) 150% 109734 190.589 261% 230,383 319%
Tim Roberts 150% 109734 203,290 278% 266714 3135%

' Catculated on a share price of 610 pence on 3t March 2017
* See Directors sharsholdings table above which indude MSP Bonws Shares and afl shares held in the SIP

The shareholding quidelines for Executive Direclors were last increased with effect from ¥ Aprit 2015 when the holding requirement for each Director
was increased by 25% of basic salary. The Commiltes continues to review the guidelines and the Directors’ shareholdings.

Although there are no shareholding guidelines for Non-Execulive Direclors, they are each encouraged to hold shares in British Land. Tha Campany
facilitates this by offering Non-Executive Girectors the ability to purchase shares quarterly using lheir past-tax fees. Buring the year ended 31 March
2017, Lynn Gladden, William Jackson, Tim Score, Lord Turnbull and Laura Wade—Gery have each recewed shares nfullor part salisfaction of their
MNon-Executive Directors’ fees.
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Acquisitions of ordinary shares after the year end
The Execulive Nireciars have purchased or been granied the {ollowing hulty paid nrdinary Britssh Land shares under u-e teswns of the partnarship,

matching and dividend elements of the Share Incentive Plan:

i

Datz ol
_ e ‘ . Mardi L
Expcutive Dzedctor Fward poice shares shares sharas
Chris Grigo 18042017 646274 23 T3 .
05/05/2017 458974 3
SAS/2017 - 672.674 2 (13
Lucinda Bell 1BI04/2077 64627 23 46
05/05/2017 2890 %3
1540542017 672.674 22 44
Charles Maudsley 18/0442017 846774 28 &8
055217 45897 71
15/05/2017 &72.674 22 &4
T Roberts 18/06/2017  646.278 23 44
6302017 658975 180
19/05/2017 472 674 22 44
In additicn, on 5Apnl 2017, the lollowing MNon-Executive Direclors were altotled shares at a pnce of 801 pence per share ia full or part satistaction of
thair fees:
Shares
Non-Executive irector alloited
Lynn Gladden 1,883
William Jackson 1043
Tim Score 2999
Laura Wada-Gery 31
Unvested share awards
Number
outstanding ~ Subjectlo End of
at 31 March perforrnance performnance
Excontive Director Date of grant N7 measures period’ Vesling date
Chris Grigg LTIP performance shares 30614 233804 Yes  3/03N7 230417
LTIP performance shares 22006015 154 949 Yes 3yo3na  zzfoahs
LTIP performance shares 2usis 2229979 Yes 30319 22f0619
MSP Matching Shares /0614 10LH4 Yes 30317 30/06NT
MSP Matching Shares 2_9]0H 15 94 348 Yes 31/8318  29/04/18
MSP Malching Shares 2910616 96718 Yes /03719 &l
Lucinda Bell LTIP periormance shares 23064 135898 Yes 30317 23006N7
LTIP gerfarmance shares 2404/15 121,254 Yes 31/03/18 220418
LTIP performance shares 066 134976 Yes  3W0aNe 22069
MSP Malching Shares 30/08/14 4381 Yes 31/03N\7  30/06N17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 £0.950 Yes 31/031s 29/o6N8
MSP Matching Shares 2904116 £7.204 Yes  31/03h9  29/06N1%
Charles Maudsley LTIP performance shares 2306/ 124208 Yes 3/WONT7 230417
LTIP petformance shares 22006115 . 10975 Yes 310318 Z2/06ha
LTIP perfermance shares 206 122188 Yes 303N 2206019
MSP Malching Shares fosna L7584 “Yes 30317 3Qfesh7
MSP Matching Shares 29/0815 44,228 Yes 30318 29/04he
MSP Matching Shares 290816 42206 Yes 310319 29/08hy
Tim Robarts LTIP perfarmance shares 238014 124208 Yes AJOINT  ZAY0ENT
LTIP perlormance shares 22006115 02758 Yes  31/03/t8  Z2/06N18
LTIP performance shares 2204016 41,088 Yes  3J1M3NG 227069
MSP Malching Shares 3070874 47584 Yes  3W03/17  30/06N17
MSP Matching Shares 29/06/15 46,682 Yes J1/03/18  29/04/i8
MSP Malching Shares 29/08/16 4£6,0%6 Yes 310319 29/06/19

* The LTIP and MSP awards granted in June 2014 are also inclyded within the “2017 Long term incentives™ column aof the single ttal figure of remuneration table on
page 78. Th degree to which performance measures have been, or are expected to be, achteved, and the resultant plopu‘hu'lsoﬂhe awards that are expecled 1o vesi,

are detaded on page 81,
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Unvested aption awards [not available to be exercised)

Laura Wade-Gery

Nurndes
oustanding Sulject o End of Date
2131 Mach Dplion price performante hecomes Exarcsable
Expoaive Direonwr Date of gram a7 PEME  REISNES periof  averdisabla unit-
Chnis Grigg ) LTIP ophions : 2006115 206539 B24 5 Yes  J0N8  22/08N8 2408425
Luanda Balt Sharesave options 730814 1.567 5740 Ne nfa 0YOINT  Z8/G2N8
Sharesave options 2206115 1L £9790 No nfa_ 0108 28feEny
Tum Roberts Sharesavwe opliens 19/06/13 2348 S0 No n/a © Q1/oYte  28fah?
. Sharesave oplions 23/66N4 3135 SK9 No nfa  0VOYY  BRUHH
LTIP gptions 2206016 244353 7305 Yes 3VA3N'? 2206019 22/06/26
Yested option awards [available to be exercised)
Nhsmrber
. outstwling 3 i Cm
at 31 March Option price  Exzydisable
Exmcative Direcior Oate of grant il peace until
Chis Grigg LTIP oplions Fay Y 7751 a7 208N
LTIP oplions 1104410 1073825 4487 WO
LAP eplicas 28/86M 595,652 575 ZRAO&N
LTIP opliens 16769112 T43.495 538 1470922
Ludinda Bell LTIP opliens 11/04/10 67952 447 NN
LTIP oplions 14£32/10 1754 516 WA
LTIP oplions 1&/09/12 138,289 538  14/09/22
LTIP options 05/08/13 154,742 401  05/08/23
Other disclosures
Service contracts X
All Executive Directors have rolling service cantracls with the Company which have notice pariods of 12 menths on either side [D.1.5]€.
The letters of appointment of Non-Executive Direclors are subject to renewal on a (nenmat basis.
Mormal rotice Normal nolice
Data of serwice period to be given penod o be gven
Directer contract by Company by Director
Chris Grigg 191272008 12 months 12 months
tucinda Beil 10/03/72011 12 months ¥2months
Charles Maudsiey 03/11/200% 12 months 12 months
Tim Raheris 142006 12 months 12 rnonths
Unexpired term
of 2nt al
Director 31 March 2017
John Glldersleeve IChairman) 21 months
Aubrey Adams 9 months
Swnon Borrows? 36 months
Lynn Gladden . 12 months
William Jackson' 1 month
Lord Macpherson 32 months
Tim Score 36months
Lord Turnbull? 12 months
13 months

* On 23 March 2017 the Board

the renewal of Wilbarn Jackson's appointment for a further uee year termn, effective from 11 April 2017
? Simon Borrows and Lord Turnbull will beth retire from the Boanrd at the condusion of the 2017 AGBM.

In accordance with Lhe Code, all continuing Directors siand for election or re-eteclion by the Company's shareholders on an annual basis [B. 716,
The Directors’ service contracis and letters of appointment are available for inspection during norenal business hours at the Company's registered
office and wilt also be made available prior 1o the AGM [B.3.216,
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The Carnpany may tertninate an Executive Director’s appoinament with immediate effect without nelice or payment in liew of nolice under certain
arcumslances. prescrited within 2ach Biractor's sarvice conlract. the appoinimant of the Thairman or any Non-Exzastive Direclor may be
terminated immediately without notice # they are noi reappointed by shareholders or if they 2re removed from the Board under the Company's

Arlidles of Assodation or il they resign and do not offer theanselves lor re-election. ln addilion, their appoint

s may e ter d by eithvar

the indvidual or the Company giving three menths written sitice of iermination lor, for the Chairman, six months” wnitlen nolice of termination].
Neither the Chairman nor the Nan-Executive Direcltars are entitlad to any compansation lother than socrued and enpaid laes and expanses for

the peried up to the termination] for loss of olfice for any reason.

Executive Directors’ external appointments

Executive Directors may lake up one non-axacutive directorship at anntherFlSE company, suhject to British Land Board approval

Chris Grigg was appoinled a non-executive director of BAE Systems plc oo 1 Juty 2013. Buning the year to 31 March 2017, Chris Grigq received a fee
of £84,000 lincluding £9.600 of expenses} fram BAE Systems plc, which he reiained in lull [2014: €85,495). Lucinda Bell was 2ppoinied 2 non-executive
director of Rotark pic on 10 July 2014 During the year to 31 March 2017, Ludinda Bell received a fee of C47.910 from Rotark ple. which she relained i

Full {2016 £43.5251 D121,

Relative importance of spend on pay

The graph below shows the amount Spent on r ation of all employ

distributions to shareholders for the years to 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2014, The remuneration of employees incr

fincluding Execuiive Directors] relative to the amouni spent on

d by 2.5% relative to the

prior year white disiributions to shareholders mcreasad by 3.1%. Distribulions to shareholders include ordinary and, where offered, sorip dividends.
Mo scrip alternalive was offered during the year ended 31 March 2017. The graph alsc shows the sptit betwzen property income distributions IPID}

and non-preperly income distributions (non-P1D1.
Relative importance of spend on pay
wigry TRHE com

E296m

O
I N, i

Total Sharetiotder Returmn and Chief Executive’s remuneration

The graph opposite shows Brilish Land's Tetal Shareholder Retumn for
the eight years from  Aprit 2009 ta 31 March 2817 against that of the
FTSE Real Estate {avestment Trusts IREIT] Total Return Index for the
same period. The graph shows how the total returm on a £100 investment
in the Company made on 1 April 2009, would have changed over the

eight year period measyred, compared with the totat return ona £100
investment in the FTSE REIT Tolat Return Index. Yhe FTSE REIT Tatal
Return Index has been selectad as a suilable comparator because it

is the index in which British Land's shares are classified.

The base point, required by the regulations govertung Remuneration
Report disclasures, was close ta the battom of the property cycle at
1 Aprit 2009. Since British L and's share price had hot fallen as much
a5 Lhe average share price of the FTSE REITs Sector at thal time 3
higher base point for subsequent growth was set.

The table helaw sets out the total remuneration of Ches Grigg,
Chiel Executive, over the same peciod as the Total Shareholder
Return graph The quantum of Annual Incentive awards granted
each year and tong term incentive vesting rales are given as a
perceniage ol the maximum opportunily available.

Chied Executive 200910 200001t

Remuneration of employees

including Directors:

IR Wages and salaries

Annual Incenlives

B Social securily costs

B Pension costs

B Equity-setited share-based
payrments

Total Sharcholder Retum
Rebased to 108, 1 April 2009

Distributions to shareholders:
H PID cash dividands paid
1o shareholders
| | PID 1ax withholding
M Non-PWD cash dividends
paid lo shareholders
| Nel cash equivalent of new
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B The Briish Land Company PLC B FTSE REITs Seder

Source- Aon Hewalt

NNz 2012113
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Chiel Execulive's single total ligure

of remuneration | C000} 2,082 2329

5,353 4810

5398

4.551 3.623 1.945

Annual incentive awards against

maximum oppartunity [96) &7 83

75 75

0 75 87

{ong term incentives awards vesting

rate against maximum opportunity 1%] nfa nfa

% 43

98 93 54 15
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Chief Executive’s remuneration compared to remuneration of British Land employees )
The table beltw shows the percentage changes in different elements of the Chief Execulive’s remunerabion refative lo the previous Bnanaal
year and the awerage percentage changes in those 2tements of remuneration for employees based at British Land's head office over the
same period. Head office employees have been chosen as an appropriate comparator groug for this purpose a5 emplovees basedat .
British Land's head office carry out work of the most similar nature (o the Chlsl Executive.

Vatue ot Vatue of Chee! Changean m
Lried Executive 3 Chief of Britich Land
remunesatian 2017 remaneration 2016 FETTHINETALI0N anglopees
Remuneration elomean €050 2] %
Salary ) 840 840 ] 54
Taxable benefils 23 2t 109 &3
Annyat Incentive . £18 840 -502 -i5.6

Rernuneration Carnmiltee membership

Membership of the Committes remained unchanged during the year and, as al 31 March 2017, the Committee was comprised wholly of independent
Non-Executive Direclors, namely Lynn Gladden. Wittiam Jacksen, Laura Wadeﬁﬁyend Lord Turnbull Allendance by aach memberal Commilize
meelings is set out on page 73.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Commitiee meatings were ailended by Chris Grigg [Chiel Execuuw.-l £laine Witliams [Company Secretary
and Generat Counsetl], Ann Henshaw {HR Director] and Jolf Sharpe |Head of Dperations), other than lor any ilern relating to their ovwn remuneration.

The Committee Chairman holds regular meetings with the Chairman, Chief Executive and HR Director to discuss all aspects of remunesration
within 8ritish Langd. He also meets the Commilize’s independent remuneralion advisers prior to each substantive meeling lo discuss matters
of governance remuneration policy and any concerns they may have.

Howe the Committee discharged its responsibilities during the year
In addition to the Committee’s key areas of responsibility, during the year ended 31 March 2017, the Commitiee also considered the
following matters:

- Rewiewing and recommending to the Board the Remuneration Report to be presented lor shareholder approval

- Consuitation with rajor investors and deliberation of outcomas in relation lo amendments to the LTI

~ Appraisal of the Chairman's annual fee; remuneration of the Executive Directors including achisvement of corporsie
and individual performance; and pay and annual incentive awards betow Board-leval

~ Analysis of competitors’ remuneration structure and outcomes

~ Seiting performance measures for annual incentive awards

- Granting discretionary share awards, considering the extent to which pevformance measures have been met and,
where appropriale. approving the vesting of annual incentive and long-ters incentive awards

- Reviewing and updaling the Cormnmittee terms of reference

- Considening gender pay and future reporting requirements

- Receiving updates and training on corporate govarnance and remuneralion matters from the independent
remuneralion consultant .

- Reviewing and \endering the role of independent adviser fo the l"nmmmne
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Coverinee.

REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED-

Remuneration consultants ID.2.11&

Alan Jydes provided independent resnuneration advice to the Commities prior to August 2016 when his firm, Smraleglc Ramunaration. merged

with FIT & alion Consullants LLP. Fallowing the ierger. the Committes received indapendent remunaration advica frem F(T Remuneration
Consultants LLP The merged finm is a mamber of the Resmuneralion Consulianis Group and adheres lo thai group’s Code of Conduct. Strategic
Remuneralion and FIT Remuneration Consutizats LLP alse provide advice to British Land on human resources and share plan malters. Sirategic
Rermuneration was appointed as remuneration adviser by the Committee lallowing a competitive tendar process. Tha Comundilee assesses the advice
given by its adwisers to satisiy itsell that it is ohjective and independent. The adviser has a privale g wilh e C iltee Charman once a year
in accardance with the Code of Conduct of the Remuneration Consultants Group. Fees, wiichare charged on 2 bme basis, were £126,765 fexdluding
VAT] [2014: £48,400 excluding VAT].

With effect from 21 March 2017, Korn Ferry Hay Group Limited were appeinted to provide independent remuneration advice to the Committee.
Ko Ferry Hay Group Limited did nol charge any fees for the period from their appoiniment in 31 March 2007

Vating at the Annual Generat Iieeting
The resulls of the sharehalder votes on the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy and Directors’ Remuneration Report 5t the AGM held on 19 July 2004
are set oul in the t2ble below.

" Resolution Votes for %hfor  Volesagainsl  %agunst  Telslvatescast  Voteswithheld
Agproval of Direclars’ Remunaration Report 715,113,263 26.01 20490657 397 744803970 1,704,372
Apgroval of Directors’ Remunsration Policy 727.144,638 9713 21,696,166 287 748638894 7869.489

This Remuneration Report was approved by the Board on 16 May 2017,

William Jackson

Chairman of the Remuneratioh Commitlee

88 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017



DIRECTORS REPORT AND AODITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Directors’ Report and additional disclosures

The Direclors presen! their Report o7 the affairs of the Group, logathar
wath the audited finanoal statements and the report of the auditer for
Lhe year endzd 31 March 2017, information that is refevent Lo this Repar,
and which is incorporated by reference, inctuding information required

. inaccordance with the UK Companies Act 2004 and Listing Rule 98 4R,
can be located in the {ollowing sections:

Informalion Section in Arcual Repart Page
Future devetopments of the StrategicReport 6025
business of the Company

Risk factors and principal nisks Sirategic Report 451053
Finandal instrements Sirategic Reporl 43
risk managamenl ohjactives

and policies

Dividends Strategic Report 41
Sustainability governance Strategic Report 38
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Reporl 38
Viability statement Strategic Report 49
Going concern staternent - Governance review &
Governance arrangermnens Governance review 621088
Emplayment policies and Strategic Reporl 241025
employee involverment :

Capitalised interest Finandat statements 11510 114
Additional ynauditad Other information 160 t0 173
financial information unaudited

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Annuat General Meeting of The British Land Company PLC wilt be
held at The Myatl Regency London ~ The Churchill. 30 Partman Square,
London W1H 78H on 18 july 2017 at V1.00am. Further information is
available in the Notice of AGM [E.2.41©.

The AGM is the principat occasion when shareholders are able to
ask questions of the Board angd main Committee chairmen [E.2.31 2.

Board of Directors
The names and biographical details of the current Direclors and
detaits of the Board Committees of which they are mambers, are
set out on pages 56 to 59.

The Service Agreements of the Executive Directors and the L etters
of Appointment of the Non-Execulive Directors are suramarised

in the Direclors’ Remuneration Report on pages 85 and 86 and

are available for inspeclion al the Company's registered office.

In accordance with best practice_ all continuing Directors will
retire at the AGM and will offer themsetves for election or
re-election_ as required.

Directors’ interests in contracts and coaflicts

of interest

Mo contract exasted during the year in retation to the Company’s
business in wihich any Directer was matenatly interesled.

Directors have a statutory duty e avsid situations in which they
have. or may have, inlerests thal conflict with Lhose of Britich Land
undess thai conftict is first authorsed by the Board. The Company
has adopted procedures lor managing conflicts of inlerest and the
Artictes of Associalion also condain provisians which allovs the
Direclors to authorisa potential conflicls of merest.

Diractors must aclify the Chainman and the Company Seoelary of

all new outside interests and actual or perceived conflicts of interest
as they anse. New inlerests or confiicls ane consdared by the hutl
Board al the next meeling and the vl regisker of interests is reviewed
at lzast anmually. Furthermore, the Board reviews the policy on
Directors interests on an anmal basis. Following the last review

in November 2015, the Board cancluded tihat the policy continued

10 operate eflectiveldy.

Directors’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has indemnified each Direclor againsi any Liability
incurred in relalion to acts or omissions arising in the ordinary
course of their duties. The indermmity arrangaments are qualifying
indemnity provisions under the Companies Act 2004,

The Campany also has in place appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance cover in respect of potential legal action against
its Directors [A13) €.

Shazxe capital

The Company has one class of shares, being ardinary shares of

25 pence each, atl of which are fully paid_ At 31 March 2017 there
were 1, 061,635,058 ordinary shares in issue. Furher details relating
to share capital, including movements during the year. are set out

in nate 20 to the finandal statements.

Al the AGM in 2015_ the Directors were given the power by the
shareholders to make market purchases of ordinary shares representing
up o 10% of ils issued capital a\ thal teme and to allol shares within
certain imits. These authorities will expire at the AGM in_uty 2017

and renewals of those authonities will be sought.

The Company has not purchased any of its own shares undar the authority
given at the 2016 AGM. Therelore, during the whole of the year ended
31 March 2017, the Company held 11 266 245 ordmary shares in treasury.

‘Waiver of dividends

Blest Limited is 3 sharehotder who acts as trustee [Trustee] of the
Company’s discretionary Employee Share Trust [EST)L The EST helds -
and, from time 1o time, purchases British Land ordinary shares in the
markel, for the benefit of emnployees, inctuding to satisfy outslanding
awards under the Company s various employee share plans. A dividend
waiver is in place from the Trustee in resgect of all dividends payable
by the Company on shares which it hotds in trust.
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Coaveriaaey

DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

Substantial interests

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had heen notified under the
Disclosure and Transparency Rutes [0TR 5) of the fnliowmg interesis
mils ordinary shares:

e

Intesests ;n of andiRary

shares a5 al

shares 31 March 2017

Blackrock. Inc. 88222399 8373
Norges Bank 51.432.045 £995
APG Assel Management NV 51.212.198 49713
GIC Privgle Limited £1,121,137 3993

No changas (o the above information were received during the peiod from
1 April 2017 to the date of signing this Report. Notifications made to Brilish
Land under DTR 5 are available an the Investars section of gur wabsite.

Articles of Association
The Company's Artickes of Assodation may only be amendad by special
resolution at a general meeting of shareholders.

Subject 1o applicable law and the Company’s Arlicles of Assaciation,
the Directors may exercise all powers of the Company.

Significant agreements
Thera are no significant agreemaents to which the Company is parly that
1ake effecL alter or terminata upon a change of control of the Company.

Payments policy

We recognise the importance of good supplier relationships Lo the
overall Success of our business. We manage dealings with suppliers
in a fair, consistent and ransparen manner and have signed up to
the UK Government s Prompt Payment Code,

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no reportable events after the batance sheet date.

Political donations -
The Company made no politicat donations duning the year 12014: nill.

Health and Safety
We have retained formal recognition of cur focus on health and salety
through 2 successhul audit of aur OHSAS 18001 accreditation, We continve

lo improve our approach io health and safely management o ensure that

we consistently achieve best practice across all activities in the business
{construction. managed portiolic and head officel to deliver Places People
Prefer 1o our employees and our customers.

RIDDOR® Year ended 31 March 2017

Tozl RIDDOR
Accidenis Arcadent Frequency Rale
2017 2004 oz 2006

Censiryction 2 3 0.08 034 per 100,000
. ’ : hours worked
Retatl 20 23 0.01 am per 100,000
: footiall
Offices 8 é 23.51 18.85 per 100,000
mrker_s
Head Olfice 0 0 ] 0 per 100.060
full time
equivalenis

* Reporting of lnjuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Reguiations 2013,
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Anditor and disclosure of information
Each of the Directars al the date of approvat of this Reporl confirns that:

- saofaras the Bireclor is aware. there is no relevant audit information
that has no\ bean brought to the atiention of the ayditor and

- the Director has laken all reasonable sleps to make himsell/
harsel] aware ol any relevant audiz information angd io astablish
such informalion was provided 10 the auditor

Pwi has indicaied its willingness lo remain in office and, on the
recommendalion of the Avdit Committea, a resolulion lo reappaini
Pw( as the Company's auditor will be proposed at the 2017 AGM.

The Cemgany confirms that it bas complied with The Statatory Audit
Services for Large Companies Market trvestigation Mandatory Use
of Competilive Processes and Audil Committes Responsibilities)

‘Order 2014 [Article 7.1), publiched by the CMA on 26 September 2014,

The Divectors’ Report was approved iy the Beard on 14 May 2017
and signad on its behalf by

Elaine Willi
Company Secretary and General Counsel
The British L and Company PLC

Company Number: 00621920



DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneraiion Report and the finandal statemenis
n accordance with applicable law and regutations.

Cornpany law requires the Direciors lo prepare finandal stalements
Tor exch hinancial year. Under that law the: [hreclors have preparad the
Group financial statements in accordance wath internationat Finandial
Reporting Standards IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurapean Unicn, and
the parent Comparny inancal slatements in accongance with Unitad
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable Lawl]:

Under Company law the Directors must nol approve the finandial
statemnents unless they are saiishiad tha! they give a rus and fair
view of the state of alfairs of the Group and the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing thase
fmanaal statements, the Directors are required to:

- select smtable accouniing pohues and then apply them consislently

— make judgements and acc g estimates that are reasonable
and pmdenl

- state whether IFRSs as adepled by the Evropean Union and
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any rateria| departures disclosed and explained in the Group
and parent Company inancial staternents respeciively and

- prapare the financaal stalemants on the going concemn basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

The Direcliors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records
hat are suHicient lo show and explain the Company's transaclions

and disclose with reasonalbie accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Comnpany and the Group and enable them to ensyre that the
financial stataments and the Direclors’ Remuneration Repart comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group linancial
statements, Article £ of the 1AS Regulation. They are also responsible
for saleguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence
for laking reasonable steps for the prevention and delection of fraud
and other irreguiarities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
"the Company s website. Legistalion in the Uniled Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from tegislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accotints, taken
as awhole, is fair, balanced and undersiandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
position and performance, business model and strategy. '

Each of the Direciors, whase names and functions are listed on
pages 5410 59, condirm that lo the best of thair knowledge:

- the Group Anandal statements, which have baen prepared in
accordance with #FRSs as adopted by the EU. gma!meand
fawr view of the assets, liabilibes, ﬁmmatpoabonandpmﬁt
of the Group and

- tha Straiegic Report and the Direclors’ Repont include a fair
review of the developmani and performnance of the business
and thz position of the Group. together with a descripbon of
the prindpal risks and vncertaintes that it faces

By order of the Board.

Lucinda Bell
Chizf Financal Officar

4 May 2017
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Finaneid statements

and other information

indapendent auditars’ repori to the membars
of the British Land Company PLE
Finandial stalements
Consotitfated income statement
Conzoliated staternent o} comprehensive income
Consolijated balance sheet
Consolidated stalement of cash Rows
Consalidated skalement of changes in equity
Notes to the accounts '
Company balance sheet
Company statemeni of changes in equity
Supplementary disdlosures unaudiled

Yalding Howse, W1 {right)
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Finaneial seatemienes

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the financial statements
QOur opinion
in our apinion:

- the British Land Company PLC’s Group financal slatements and
Company linancial stalements [the "finandal staiements] give a rue
and fair view of the state ol the Group's and of the Company's affairs
as at 31 March 2017 ang of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended ,

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with Intarnational Financdial Reporting Standards
IIFRSs’ as adopted by the European Union

- the Company financial statements have been properiy prepared
in accordance with Uniled Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice

- the financial slatements have been prepared in accardance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group linancial statements, Artide 4 ol the 1AS Regulation

What we have audited
The linandal statements, inctuded within the Annuat Report. comprise:

- the Consotidated Balance Sheel as at 31 March 2017

- Ihe Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017 .

- the Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated Stalement
of Comprehensive income for the year then endad

- lthe Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended

- the Consclidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended

- the Notes to the Accounts, which include a summary ol significant
accounling policies and other explanatory infermalion

Certain required disclosures have been presented etsewhere in the
Annual Repart, rather than in the notes io the financial statements.
These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are
identified as auditeq,

The hinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements is IFRSs as adopled
by the European Unjon, and applicable law. The financial reporting
iramework that has heen applied in the preparation of the
Company financial statements is United Kingdom Accounting
Slandards, comprising FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework’
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),

and applicable law.
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Our audit appreach

Overview

Our 2017 audit was plannad and execuied having regard to the fact

that the Group's cperations were kargely unchanged in nature from the
previous year. Additionally, there have bean no significant changas to the
vatuation meihodology and accounting standards relevan to the Group.
In light of this, our approach to the auditin lerms of scoping and areas

of locus was largely unchanged.

Afulk scope audit was pertormed by the Group team for all subsidiaries
of the Group, and the following joint ventures: Broadgate, Meadowhall
and Leadenhalt.

Materiatity

- Qveratl Group materiality: £135 miltion [FY14: €138 million] which
représents 1% of total assels

- Specific Group materiality, applied to Underlying Profit: £19.4 million
{£Y16: £18 million) which represents 3% of underiying pre-tax profit

Areas of focus

- Valuatton of investment and development properties
- Revenue recognition

- Accounting for transactions

- Taxation

The scope of aur audit and our areas of focus
We conducted ourauditin accordance with Intemationat Standards
on Auditing [UK and Ireland] [1SAs (UK & lretand] |

We designed our audil by determining maleriality and assessing the
risks of malerial misstalement in the financial statemnents. In particular,
we looked at where the Directors made subjective judgements, for
example in respect of signilicant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions ant considering fulure events that are inherenily
wnceriain. As in alf of our audits we also addressed the risk of management
ovarride of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was
evidence of bizs by the Directors that represented a risk of matenial
misstatement due o fraud.

The risks of materal misstatement that had the grealest effect on cur
audil, including the allocation of our resources and effort, are identified
as ‘areas of focus’ in the {able belaw. We have also sel oul how we
tailored our audit to address these specific areas in order tg provide an
opinion on the financial statements as awhole. and any comments we
make on the results of our procedures should be read in this context.
This is not a complete list of ald risks identified by our audit.




Area atfoas

How cur awfit addressed the anea of foas

Yaluatinn eﬁnnﬁnenlénd development pmperlieé |
Refer to pages 47 2nd 70 {Repurt of the Audil Committeel, pages 185
to 107 [Accounting pnlicies) and pages 115 to 119 Notes).

The Group'simvestment property poriiolio is splii between office and
residential properties in central Loadon, retail and leisure proparties
across the UK, and the assels at the Canada Water site in Easl London.
The valuation in the Censolidaied Balance Sheelis £9.073 miltion.

Thevaluation of the Group's investment property portfolio is inherently
subjeciive due to, amaong olher factors, the individual nalure of each
property, its location and the expected future rentals for that particular
preparty. Fer d=velepmenis, factors include projected costs io complate
and timing of practical complation.

The vatuations were carvied out by third party vatuers, CB Richard

Elis, Jenes Lang LaSalle and Knight Frank {the ‘valuers’). The valuers
were engaged by the Directors, and performed their work in accordance
with the Royal institute of Chartered Surveyors [ RICS] Valuation

- Professional Standards. The valuers used by the Group have
considarable experience of the markets in which the Group operates.

in determining a property’s vatuation the valuers lake inlo aocount
property-spedfic information such as the current tenancy agreaments
and rental income. They apply assumplions for yields and estimated
markel reat, which are iniluenced by prevailing market yields and
comparahle market ransactions, to arriva at the finat vatuation. For

. devetopments, the residual appraisal method is used, by estimating
the [air value of the completed project using a capitalisation method
less estimated cosis to comptelion and a risk premium,

The significance of the estimates and judgements involved, coupled
with the fact that only a small percentage ditference in individual
properiy valuations, when aggregated, could resultin a material
misstaterment, warrants specific audit focus in this area.

There were also cartain specific lactors atfecting the vatuations

in the year:

- the nature of the Canada Water site, which the Group are
currently masler planning as a combined targe scale, mixed
use development site, resulled in our audit paying particutar
focus to the relevant valualions

~ propedties under development, compleled devetopments that
are now valued as standing ir W properlies and standing
investment propecties that have been reclassified to development

- properties, continye to be an area of focus

mfaadlhevalnaﬁmrepnrtsldral{ﬁ\e properties and confirmed thal the

" valuation approsch for each was in accordance with RICS siandards and

suitabiz lor use in determining the carmying value for the purpose of the
financial statements.

We assessed the valuers’ qualifcations and expertise and raad thesr
terms of engagement with the Group lo determine whether there were
any matters that mighl have stfected their abjactivily or may have imposed
scope limitations upon thewr work. We also considered fee arrangements
between the valuers and the Group and other engagements which might
exist belween the Group and the valvers. We found no evidance ta suggest
thal the objectivity of the valuers i their performance af lhe valuations

We chiained details of every properly held by the Group and set an
expetted ranga for yield and capital value miovarnent, determined by
reference to published henchmarks and using our experience and
kngwledge of lhe markel. We compared the investmen! yislds used by
the valuars with the renge of expected range of yields and the year on
year capitel movement to cur expecled range. We also considered the

- reasonableness of other assumptions that are not so readily comparable

with published bendhmarks, such as Estimated Rental Value. We attended
mezlings vith managemenl and the valuers. at which Lhe valuations

and the key assumplions therein were discussed. Qur work covered

the valuation of every property in the Group, but the discussions with
managament and the valuars focused on the targes! propertiss in the
portlolio, praperties under development or where the valvation basis
has changed in Lhe year; the Canada Waler site and those where Lthe yields
used andfor year on year capital value moverment suggested a possible
oullier versus externally published market data for the relevant sector:

Where assumptions weare outside the expected range or otherwise
appeared unusual, andfor valuations showed vnexpected movements, |
wa underiook lurther investigations and, when necéssary, held

lurther discussions with the valuers and obtained evidence Lo support
explanations received. The valuation commentaries provided by the
valuars and supporting evidence, enabled us ta consider the property
specific lactors that may have had an impact on value, including recent
comparable ransactions where appropriate.

We saw evidence that alternative assumptions had been considered and
evaluated by management and the valuers, before determining the final
valuation. We concluded that the assumptions used in the valualions

were supporiable in Light of available and comparable market evidence.

We performed testing on the slanding data in the Group's informaltion
systems concerning the valuation process. We carried oul procedures,
on a sarnple basis. to satisly aursebves of the accuracy of the property
information supplied 1o the valuers by management. For developments.
we confirmed that the supparling information tor canstruction contracls
and budgets, which was supplied to the valuers, was also consistent
with the Group's records for example by inspecting eriginal construction
contracts. For developments, capilalised expenditure was tested on

a sample basis to invoices, and budgeted costs to complete compared
with suppor ting evidence [for example construction contracts].

It was evident from our inleraction with management and the valuers.
and from our review of the valuation reports, that close attention had
been paid to each property’s individual characleristics al @ granular,
tenanl by ienant kevel, aswell as considering the overall quality,
qeagraphic location and desirability of the asset as a whole.

No issues were identified in our lesting.
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Financial starements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC CONTINUED

Area of foaus Hrw ouT audit addressed the area of fons

Revenye recognition We carried oyt tesls of controls over the cash and accounis receivable

Refer to pages 67 10 70 {Report of the Aedit Committeel, pages 105 processes and the retated 1T systerns to obtain evidzpee that posbings to

10 107 |Accounting paticies] and page 109 iNotes!. these ancounts were retiahle. For rental incame balances. we thenused

' daia-enabled audit techniques to identify all standard revenue journats

Revenue lor the Group consists primardty of rentat incoma. Rental postad using these systems and processes.

income is based on tenancy agreamants where there is a standard .

process in place for recording ren . which is sysiem generated. The remaining journals relaied to non-slandard transactions. These

Thare are certain transactions within revenus that wasrant additional included redassifications within revenue, acarued income, and bad debt

audit focus becausa of an increased inherent risk of ernor due to provisions. For each category of non-standard revenve surmmarised

their non-standard nature. above, we have understoed the nzture and assessed the reasonablensss
. of journals being generated_ and perforrned Substaalive lesting over

These include spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed rent a sample of these items. Thera have been no exceplions anising from

increases - these balances require agjusiments made 10 rental eur testing over non-siandard revenue transactions.

income to ensure revemie is recorded on a srzight line basis’ ‘

over the course of the lease. For balances not included within rental income, such as service charge

income, we performed substantive testing on a sarple basis. No issues
were identified in our testing.

Accounting for transactions For each transaction, we understood the nature of the ransaction and

Reler to pages 67 to 7 [Report of the Audit Committee), pages 105 assessed the proposed accounting treatment in relation lo tha Grnup s

to 107 lAccounting palices] and pages 108 (o 143 [Notes to the Accounts). accounting policies and relevant IFRSs.

There have been a number of lransactions dirnng the year, These For all acquisitions and disposals, we oblained and reviewed the key

warranted addiional audit focus due to the magratuda of ansactions supporting dotumentabion such as Sales and Purchase Agreements

and the polential for complex contraciual lerms that introduce and complelion stalements. Consideration recered or pait] was

judgement into how they were accounled for: Key ransattions agreed to bank skatements. No material issues were found as a

subject to addilional audit focus were: result of these grocedures.

— acquisiticns of investment properties for {88 million For the Leadenhall transaction which has been accounted for as a joint

- disposals of imestment proper lies for £670 million, including venture hald for sale, we assessed the accounting lreatment in retation to
the disposal of Jebenhams Gxford Street for £397 milkion ' 1FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Oiscontinued Ogerations and

- exchange of cuntracts for tha Sale of Interest in the Leadenhall IASZ8 lnvestments in Assaciates and Joint Ventures. We have reviewad the
Holdirg Co Uerseyl Limited Joint Venture which hes been - sale and purchase agreement and agree thal the exchange of coniracls
accounted for as a joint venture held for sale valued at £540 million 1o sell the shares in the joint venture meet the criteria for recognition as

~ advanced funds received on exchange of contracts for the sale held for sale under IFRS 5 Wa have audited the carrying value of the joint
of shares in the Leadenhall Joind venture recorded as a financial wenture at March 2017, including the valuation of the undertying investmeat
asset ang corresponding finandal Usbility for E144 miltion property. No matenial issues were found in relahon to the camrying value.

- arnouni of Y] million received from UBS in relation o the
development and occupation of 5 Broadgate_and subsequent We have confirmed receipt of the advanced funds received on exchange of
vatation of 100 Liverpool Streat, ’ contracis, and tied this o the balances listed within the sale and purchase

agreement and to confirmations from the Group's lawyers, The monies
received are held in 3 client account held by the Group's lawyers and
receipl is conditional on the comptetion of the sale. We agree with the
recognition as a financial asset and corresponding liability.

Far the £10 million paymerd from UBS we have reviewed 1 he original
tease agreement and the amended lease agreement that details

the payment. We have agreed receipt of the amount received to
bank statements. We concur with the treatment adopted.

Taxation We re-pecformed the Group's and annual REIT compliance tests,

Refer \o pages 67 to 70 [Report of the Audit Coramitiee), pages a5 well as those tests for the Broadgate REIT. Based on our work
105 Lo 107 |Accounting policies] and pages 111 and 126 {Notes). performed, we agreed with managernent's assessment that alt
REIT campliance tests had been met o ensure ihat the Groug R
The Group's status a5 a REIT underpins iis business modet and and Broadgate maintain their REIT status.
shareholder returns. For this reason, it warrants spedial audil focus.
The obligations of the REIT regime indude requirements 1o comply We evaluated the lax provisions and potential exposures as al
with balance of business, dividend and income cover tests. The - 31 March 2017 We used our knowtedge of 1ax crcumstantces
Broadgate joint venture is also structured as a REIT and as such, and by reading relevant correspandence between the Group and
REIT compliance is also of relevance for this joint venture in Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs and the Group's external tax
addition to the overall Group. i advisors are satisfied that the ptions and judgements

' used by the Group are reasonable.
Tax pravisions are in place te account for the risk of challenge
of certain of the Group's tax provisions. Givan the subjective
nature of these provisions, additional audil focus was placed
on lax provisions.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We taitored the scope of our audit te ensure Lhal we performed encugh
vaork 10 be ble to give an opinion on the financial statements as a whole,
taking inlo account the geographic structure of the Groug, the accounting
processes and controis, and the industry in which the Group eperatas.

The Group and Company finandal statements are produced using a
single consolidation system that has a direct interface waih the generat
ledger. We performed our audil procedures over the generat tedger
systern and lested the inlerface with the consclidation system.

A full scope audit was performed by the Group audit team lor atl
subsidianies of the Group, and the fellowing joint ventures: Broadgate.
Meadowhall and Leadenhatl. This gives coverage over substantially
allofthe Group.

in establishing the overall approach (o our audil, we assessed the risk
of material misstatement, taking into account the nature, elihood and
polential magnitude of any t. Foll g this assessment,
w2 applied professional judgemant to determine the extent of testing
required over each balance in the financal statements.

‘Materiality

The scope of our avdit was influenced byour applraaltion of materiality.
We set certain quantitative Lhresholds for materiality. These, together
with qualiiative considerations, helped us tn detersnine the scope of our
audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the
individuat financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the inancial
statements as a whote,

Based on eur prafessional judgement, we determined matefiatity for-
the inancial statements as 3 whole as foltows:

Overall Group materiatity ._E135 million [2016: £138 miil:onl
How we determined it 1% of lotal assetls.
Rationale for benchmark apptied  Akey determninant of the Group's

value is direct proparty invesiments.
Due to this, the key area of locus

in the audit is the valuation of
investment properties. On this basis,
we set an overall Group materiality
level based on total assets.

In addition, we set 3 specific maleriality level of £19.4 million [2015:
£18 miltion| for items within undertying pre-tax profit. This equates to
5% of profit before tax adjusted for capital and other iterns. In arriving
at this judgement we had regard to the {act that the undertying pre-tax
profitis a secondary hinancial indicator of the Group [Refer to Note 2

of the financial stalements page 108 where the term is defined in full);

We agreed with the Audit Comemitiee that we would report to them
misstaternents identified during our audit of underlying pre-taxitems
abave £1 million |2014: £1 million] as well as misstaternents below that
amaount that, in our view, warranled reporting for qualitative reasons.
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them,
any misstatements identified during cur audit of capital and other
ilems above £4.7 million 12014: £6.9 million] as well as misstatements
below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons,

Going concern
Lh\derlhehsMgRulesmamreqummmmDmm
slaternend, set oul on page 43, in r2lation tv going concern. We have

nothing to report having perlormed our review.

Undar ISAs (UK & lraland] we are required to report to you il we

have anything matevial to add or to draw allention o in relation to the
Directors” statemnent about whether they considared it appropriate to
adapt the going concerm basis in preparng the ﬁnanoaJ statemanls.
We have nathang material to 2dd or to draw attention ko,

As nated in the Direclors’ stalemen, the directors have conduded
that it is appropriate to 2dop! the going concern basis in preparing
the finzndial statements. The going concern basis presumes that the
Group and Company have adequale resources to remain in operation,
and that the Directors intend them to do so, for at leas! one year frem
the date the financial statemeants were signed. As parl of our audit
we have conduded that the Direclors’ use of the geing concern basis
is appropriale. However, because not all future events or conditions
can ba predicted, ithese statarmants ane not a guarantee as to the
Greup's and Company’s abality ta continu2 a5 3 geing concem.
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Finanvial ststcmoenes

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other required reporting

Consistenty of other information and compliance
with applicable requirements

Companies Act 2004 reporting

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in tha course of the audit:

- theinformation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Repori lor the finandal year for which Lhe financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the knangal statements

-~ the Stralegic Report and the Diractars’ Report have been prepared
in accordance with 2pplicabte legal requiremenis

ir addition, in light of the &nowiedge and understanding of the Group,
the Company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we are required to report if we have identified any materiat
risstatements in lhe Sirategic Report and the Direclors’ Report
W= have nothing to repoet in this respect.

I5A5 [UK & Ireland] reporting
Under 1SAs [UX & Ireland] we are required to repost foyou if.
in our opinion:

- informalion in the Annual Report is:

- materially inconststent with
the inlormalion in the audited

" finantial statements

- apparently matenaily incorrect based
an, or materiakly inconsistent with, our
knovdedge of the Group and Compaiy
acquired in the course of parforming
our audit

- oltherwise misleading

We have no exceplions
to report.

We have no exceptiohs
ta report.

- the statement given by the direclors on

page 84 in accordance with provision
. C.1.10f the UK Corporate Governance

Code [the Tode]. that ihey consider the
Annual Reporl taken as a whole to be fair.
balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for members to
assess the Group's and Company's position
and performance, business rmodel and
strategy is malerially inconsistent with
our knowledge of the Group and Company
acquired in the course of performing
our audit

-~ the section of the Annual Report on page 69 We hava no excepiions
as required by provision C 3.8 of the Code,  to report,
deseribing the work of the Audit Commitiee
does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Audit
Commiltee

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the

principal risks that woild threaten the sotvency or liquidity of the Group

Under I15As UK & reland] we are requined to report Lo you if we have
anything matersal 1o add or to draw atlention 1o in relation to:

- the Directors confimnation on page 45 We have nothing
of the Annual Heport, in accordance with material to add or
provision C.2.1 of the Codz_ that they have 1o draw altention lo.
carried oul a robust assessment of the - :
principal nsks facing Lthe Group, including
those that would threalen ils business
modzl. fulure performance, solvency
or liuidity
- the disclosures in the Annual Report W have nothing
that describe those risks and explainkow  material to add or
they are being managed or miligated to dizw atlention te.
- the Directors’ explanation on page 4% We have nothing
of the Annual ReporL in accordance material to add or
with provision C.2.2 of the Code, asto to draw attention to.

how they have assessed the prospects

of the Group, aver what perrod they have
done so and why they consider that period
o be appropriate, and their stalement

as to whether they have a reasonable
axpeclation that the Group will be able

fo continue in operation and meel its
tiabilities as they fall due over the period
of their assessment, including any related
disclasures drawing stiention to any
necessary qualilications ar assumplions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
stalemenl that they have carried oul a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group and the Direclors’ slatement in relation
16 the {onger-term viability of the Group. Our review was substantially
less in scape than an audit ang only consisted of making inquiries
and considering the Directors’ process supparting their statements;
checking that the slat s are in alig 1 with the relevant
pravisions of the Code; and considering whether the statements

are consistent with the knowledge acquired by us in the course

of performing our audil. We have nothing to report having

performed our review.

Adequacy of accounting records and information and
explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2005 we are required to report to you if.
in our opinian:

~ we have not received all the information and explanations
we require lor sur audit
- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company.
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or returns adequale for gur audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or -

- the Comnpany financial statements and the parl of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreemeant with
the accounting recards and returns

We have no exceplions to report arising from this responsibility.



Directors’ remuneration

Oirectors’ Remunesation Report — Companies Act 2004 opinion
in our opinion_ the part of the Oirectors” Remuneration Report to
be audiled has been property prapared in accordance with the
Companies Acl 2004, :

Other Companies Act 2006 reparting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required io report to you if,

in our opinion, eertain disdosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by lsw are not made. We hiave ng exceglions to report arising from

this responsibitity. ’

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are requared lo review the parl of the
Corporate Govarnance Stalemend relaling to ten further provisions
of the Code_We hava nothing to report having performed our review.

Responsibilities for the financial statements

and the audit

Our responsibitities and thase of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statesnant
set oul on page 71, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial staterents and ler being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view.

Our responsibility is 10 audil and express an opinion on the financial
stalements in accordance with applicable law and 1SAs (UK & ireland).
Those standards require us o comply with the Acditing Praclices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report. including the opinsons, has been prepared for and only
for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2004 and for no other purpose.
We da rat, in giving these oginions, zccept or assume responsibility
for any olher purpose or to any uther person o whom this report

is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly .
agreed by our prior consent inwinling.

What an audit of financial statements imolves

An audit involves obtaining evidence sbout the amounts and disclosures
in lhe financiat statemenis sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial stalements are free from material misstalement, whether
cavsed by fraud or ermor. This incdludes an assessment of:

- whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's
and the Company’s circumnstances and have been consisiently
applied and adequately tisclosed

- the reasonableness ol significanl accounting estimales made
by the Direclors

~ the overall presentalion of 1he finanGal staternanls

We prirnarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the Direclors’
judgements against available evidence, forming our gwn judgements,
and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and exarnine information, using sampling and other auditing
techniques, o the extent we consider necessary lo provide a reasonable
basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audil evidence through
tesling the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a
combination of both.

tn addition, we read ail the financial 2nd non-finandal information

wn lhe Annual Report to identify materizt meonsistences vath the
audited hinancial stalements 2nd to identily any information that is
apparently matenially incorrecl based on, or matenially inconsisient
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing

the audit. H we become aware ol any 2pparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the imphications for our repari.

With respett to the Sirategic Repurt and Direclors’ Repori, we
consider whether those reparis include the disdlosures required

by applicable lagal requiremants.

John Waters (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and an hehalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charterad Accountznts and Statutwy Auditors
London

16 May 2017

- The maintenanoe and miegrily of The Brifish § ang Company PLC website
is the responsibility of ihve Deciars; the work cariied oul by e auditys
daes not invatve consideration of these matters and, accondingly, the auditers
accept nu responsibRily kor ey changes thas may have aonuved iothe
financial statements since they were iniizity presented wr the website,

- Legistation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of finantial statements may differ fremlegisiation in other prisdidions.
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Finanvial sretements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

7 b 179
) Capa ) Capital
Unazstying'  andother Tolal  Underbing!  andother Totat
Natz tm m £m m €m m
Revere 3 556 1 58y 549 7 590
Costs 3 122 1281 (48] 2g i L5z,
3 434 7 &4 &41 0 451
Joint ventyres and funds [see aiso below] n ta2 s 52 135 262 397
Adminisirative expenses 74 - 184} 231 - (731
VoAuation movement & - 44 n&sl - . 816 (A7
{Loss] profit on disposal of investment properties .
and invesyments - 5] 1] - 35 35
Net inancing costs
- finanting income & 2 42 8 5 . &5 70
- financing charges 3 (80) iz9 now) mu (38) ]
~ . {78) 13 51 1108} n 1751
" Profiton ordinary activities before taxation 404 (209} 195 an 954 133
Taxation 7 1, 1 ks 33
Profit for the year after taxation 1% 1364
Atributable to non-controlling intevests : % m 3 % 5 ”
Attributable to shareholders of the Company . 390 nsn 93 343 982 1.345
Earnings per share: ‘
- basic ) 2 18.8p 12
- diluted? 2 . 14.7p . N97p
All resull s derive from centinuing operations.
2017 06
Undertying®  and aiher Total  Underymg®  and other Total
Note £m €m €m €m Em £m
Results 4f jint ventures and funds acoow
for using the equity method :
Undertying Profit ) ' m - 12 135 - 135
Valualion movernent ' ' : 4 - #3) 1931 - 245 265
Capital linancing casts - [[4] ([4] - - -
Profil en dispasal of investment properties, ) :
trading properties and investments - "’ 18 - 18 18
Taxation ) - - 1 1 - n It
) ‘n 132 . 8®) 52 135 262 397

! See definition in G A
? Prior year dituted EPS has been reslated. See nole 1.
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¢

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

- A7 2018
. €m £m
Prolit for the year after taxation 15 1,344
Other comprehensiva {loss] income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Mat actuanal toss on pension schemes 112) ]
Valuation mavements on owner -occupied properties - . 19
(L }4] 18
Ttems thal may be rectassified subsequentty to profit or toss:
{Losses! gains on cash Naw hedges
- Group (21l . (24}
- Joint ventures and funds 1 13}
{20) 27
Transferred Lo the income statement fcash flow hedges)
- Foreign currency derivalives - 2
- Interest raie derivatives 16 10,
16 12
Exchange differences on lranslation of foreign operations
- Hedging and translation - 3l
- Uther - 3
Delerred tax on items of other comprahensive income - -]
Other comprehensive loss for the year {18) f12)
Total comprehensive income for the ysar 80 1352
Altributable to non-controlling interests 3 . )
Attributable to shareholders of the Company ] 1333
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Finaavial sracoments

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
am? 201%
Note £1n . tm
Non—current assets .
lnwesiment and devalopment properties 10 9,073 9.643
Qumer-ocoupied properties ’ L L 94 95
‘ 9147 9738
Owher non-current assets
Investments in joint ventures and funds : i 2764 3353
Other invastments 12 154 142
Oeferred tax assels ’ 1] 4 3
Inlerest rate and currency derivative assets 17 217 167
' 12,308 13,403
Current assets .
Joint venture held for sale ’ 1 5S40 -
Trading properties 10 334 325
Debtors 13 7 .33
Cash and short lerm depaosits 17 114 114
. 1,159 872
Total assets . 13,667 13,875
UABILITIES ' ' i
Current iatitities
Short term barrowings and overdraits ¢ 17 1721 i74)
Creditors 14 %581 (2181
Corporation tax ‘ : (30 (18}
1952] 1310}
Non-current liabilities .
Ozhentures and loans 17 {2,817} {3,687
Other nan-current liabitities . 15 i78} 1h22)
Interesi rate and currency desivative liabilities 17 {144] [137)
: 13,639 139441
Total iabillities ; ' , ' ‘ 299 14258
Netassets ‘ _ ' 9,876 2.619
EQUITY '
Share capital . 240 2460
“Share premium 1,298 1.29%
Merger reserve ’ 213 213
Other reserves . . ‘ (o7 193)
Retained earnings ) 7.547 7.667
Equity atiributahie to sharahaiders of the Company : . . 93N 9.342
Non-controtling interests - : 255 277
Total equity ) 9,476 9,619
EPRANAVpershare' ' L ' 2 9Y5p %H9p
lgssary
(mlad -
John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell
Chairman Chief Financiat Olficer

The financial statemenls on pages 100 ta 143 were approved by the Board of Direclors and signed on its behalf an 16 May 2017
Company number §21920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

a7 a4
Mgz m £m
Rental income received from tenants - &84 435
Fees and other income recenved 73 58
Operating experrses paid to suppliers and employ‘ees. 491 50
Cash generated from operations K Tid © 361
Interest pawd vz} 124}
Interast recerved a "
Corporation taxation repayments received 9 8
Distributions and other receivables from joint veatures and funds u 59 58
Net cash inflow from operating activities 343 196
Development and other capilal expenditure (zz5) [254)
Purchase of investment properties en 243)
Sate of investment and irading properties ™3 384
Payments received in respect of future trading preperty sales 8 A
Purchase of investments 9l -
Indirect taxes paid in respe‘c[ of investing activities m -
lavestment in and loans 1o joint ventures and funds {50] 12&1)
Capital distributions and lean repayments from joint venlures and funds a3 366
Net tash inflow from investing activities 470 230
Cash Aows from financing activities
Issue of ardinary shares 3 5
Purchase of own shares [L:2) -
Dividends paid 19 (295} 1235}
Dividends paid to non-conirolling interests (111 e
Acquisition of unils in Hercultes tnit Trust mi 61
Closeoul of interest rale derivatives im 15
Cash collzleral iransaclions - 128}
Decrease in bank and other borrowings 1528) w9
Drawdowns on bank and other borrowings n mn
Drawdown of zero coupen 2015 convertibile bond - kLT3
Net cash outflow from financing activities {833) 5181
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents - [
Cash and cash equivatents at 1 April 14 168
Cash and cash equivalentsat 31 March - 114 1
Cash and cash equivalents consists of: ‘
Cash and short term deposits 17 114 114
1
\
i
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Fintvial slatcments

CONSOLUIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Vs
and Re- ’ Non-,
Sharz Share tenslatign  valvaian Morgsr  Retewned cmrding Tott
capitl  premugm rasarve! iy Total  mdevests eqully
fm Ern . Em im im [ &m Em €m
Balance 21 1 Aprit 2016 .. 280 1,295 (LL1] W 213 7867 9342 277 9619
Praofit far the yeat after taxation ' - - - - - w3 w3 3
t os5es an cash Row hedges - - 121 - - - 21 - [Fi1]
Exchange and hedging mavaments in joinl ventures ‘
and funds. ] - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Redassfication of gains on cash flow hedges
- Foreign currency dervatives, - - - - - C- - - -
- interest raie davivatives - - 15 - - - 14 - 14
Nzt aciyarial less on pansion schemas ) - - - - - 12} a2 - 12)
Other comprehensive lloss] incoms : - - ™ 1 = 12 ual - 114
Tatat comprehensive intome for the year - .- (5] 1 - w 3 180
Shara issues - 3 - - - - 3 - 3
Fair value of shere and share option awards - - - - - 2 2 - F
Purchase of oam shares ‘ - - - - - (] (8} - (8
Purchase of units fremn non-controlling interests. - C - - - - - C- i [1h1)
Gain on purchase of units from non-controlling interests - - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividends payable in year 128 8p per share] - - - - - {295} (295) - 296)
Dividends payable by subsidiaries - - - - - - - [15] [LL3)
Balance at 31 March 2017 - 260. . 1,298 (L1 F4] 15 . 213 7547 .22 255 2.476
Balance at 1 Aprit 2015 ) 258 1,280 176] ] 213 65563 8,232 333 8.565
Profit for the year alter taxation ‘ - - . - - - 1345 1.345 19 1364
Losses on cash flaw hedges . - - (24§ - - - {241 - {z&i
RQevatuation of cwmer-occupied properly - - - 19 - - 19 _ 19
Exchange and hadging movements in joint venlyres R
andg funds . - - - [x}] E - 3 - (31
Redlassification of llesses) gains on cash lowhedges '
- Fareign currency derivatives - - 2 - - - 2 - 2
- Interest rate derivalives - - 10 - co- - 10 - 10
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - 134 3 - - - - - -
Nel actuarial loss on pensien schemes - - - - - m m - 1
Deferred tax on ems of other comprehensive incoine: - - 18] 1 - - ns) - 115)
Other camprehensive lloss] income - - @l I n2) - n2
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 131 20 - 1.364 1,333 9 1352
Share issues 2 5 = - - na 5 - 5
Fairvalue of share and share option awards L - - - - - 8 8 - a
Purchase of units from non-controlling interesis - - - - - - - 159 591
Loss on purchirse of ynits from non-controlling interests _ - - v - - 1] i - n
Dividends payable in year [28.0p per sharel - - - - - 127 (2871 - [287)
Dividends payable by subsidiaries - - - - - - - - ael hal
Adjusiment for scrip dividend element - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Balance at 31 March 2016 260 1,295 11a7} 4 13 7667 . 9342 277 2.61%

' The balance at the beginning ol the current year intiudes £9m in relation o translation and |E1E6mj in relation lo hedging 12015/16: E10m and [E86mil.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Yy

1 Basis of preparation, sngmﬁc:mt accounting
policies and accounting judgements

The finandat statements for the year endad 31 Manch 2007 have been
prepared an the historical cost basis_ except for the revatuation of
properties, irrestments hald for trading and derivatives. The finandal
staternents have atse been preparad in sccordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards [IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurapzan Union
and interpretalions issuad by the IFRS Interpretations Committee IFRS
ICl, and therefore comply with article 4 of the EU IAS regulation, and in
accordance with the Companias Act 2005. In the current financial year
the Group has adopted a number of mingr amendments to standards
elfective in Lhe year issued ty the 1458 and endorsed by the £U. none of
which have had a matenialimpacl on the Group. The acoounting pofices
used are atherwise consistent with Ihosz contatved in the Group's previous
Annuzl Raport and Accounds for the year ended 31 Manrch 2016

+ Anumber of new standards and amendmants to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not yat slfective for the current
accounting period. None of these are expecied tu have 3 maizralimpaci
on the consolidated financial staternamts of the Groug. -

Certain standards which could be sxpected o have an impact on the
consolidated finanda! statements are discussed in further detail below.

- IFRS 9 - Finandial Instrements (effactive year ending 31 March 2019,
The new slandard addresses the dassificalion, seasurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial liabiliies. It simplifies the
existing caleganes of financial instruments, intreduces an expected
credil loss modzt and redelines the oritenia required lor hedge
effectiveness. On adoplion of the new slandard, these changes are
no! expected lo have 2 material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. There will howsver be limited changes to
presentation and disclosure.

- IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracls with customers lelfective year
ending 31 March 2019). The new standard combines a number of
previous standards, setling oul a five step model lar the recognition
of revenue and establishing principles for reporting useful information
to users of linancal statements about the nature, arount, iming
ard uncertainty of revenue and cash ows arising Irom an enlity's
contracts with customers. The new standard does not apply lo gross
rental income, but does apply to service charge income, management
and perlormance fees and irading property disposals. The irpact
of the new standard on these itermns ol revenue is not expecied lo
have a materiat impaci on the consolidated flnanclai stalementis
of the Group.

~ IFRS 16 - Leases leffective year ending 31 March 2020}, For lessees, it
wilt result in almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the dishinction between operating and financa leases will be
remuoved. The accouniing lor lessors will however nol signilicantty
change. As a result on adoplion of the new standard. these changes
are not expected to have 3 material impact on the consolidated
financial statermnents of the Group.

The Group conducied an impack assessmen of the above new slandards
in the year, and concluded that whilst adaplion of these new standards.
based on ke Group’s current activities would lead to some imited changes
to preseniation and disclosure, they are not expected io have a material
impact on the consolidated finangal statements.

Restatement

The [FRS dlluled eammings per share for the year ended 31 March 2016
has been restatad to reflect the full dlutive impact of the 15% 2012
convertte bond. This resiatement reduces the gduied earmings

per share measure from 124.1 pence to 9.7 pence shown on the
Consolidatad income Stalement and within the associated notes.

This is the only financial measure within these inanciol stalements
wnpacted by this restatement.

Going concern
The hinanaal statements are prepared on 2 going concern basis
as explained in the corporale governance section on page 65.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates (including funds]

The consolidated accounts indude the acoounts of the Brilish Lang
Company PLC and all subsidanies [entities contretied by Bribsh Land).
Control is assymed where British Land is exposed, or has the rights,
to variable returns from its involvernent with inveslees and has the

| ability to affect thase returns through its power over those inveslees.

The results of subsidianies, joint ventures or assocales acgured or
dispased of during Lhe year are induded from the effective date of
acquisitien or up to the sifective date of disposal. Accounting polioes
of subsidianes, joinl ventures or assodates which differ frem Group
accounting policies are adjusted on consolidalion. ’

Business combinations are accounted fer under the acquisibion method.
Any excess of the purchase price of business combinations over the [air
value of the assets, liabilities and contingent tiabilities acquired and
resulling deferved tax thereon is recoanised as goodwill Any discount
received is orediled 1o the income statement in the period of acquisition.

All intra-Group transaclions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on conselidation. Joint venlures and assodates, including
funds, are accounted for under the eguily method, whereby the
consolidaled balance sheet incarporates the Group's share linvester’s
share] of the net assets of ils joint ventures and associales The
consolidated income slatemen! incorporates the Groyp's share

of joint venture and associale profits after lax. Their profils include
revaluation movements on investment propertes.

Distributions and other receivables from jeints ventures and associates
lincluding funds) are classed as cash Rows from operating aclivities,
except wherr they relate in a cash flow ansing frorn a capilat transaclion,
such as a properly or investment disposal. in this case they are dlassed
as cash flows from investing aclmlies.

Properties are externally valued on the basis of fair value at the balance
sheet date. Inveslinert and owner-occupied properties are recorded at
valuation whereas trading properties are siated at the lower of cost and

nel realisable vatue.

Any surplus or deficit arising on revaluing investment properties is
recognised in the capiial and other column el the income staternent.

Any surplus arising on revatuing owner-occupied praperties above

cost is recognised in other comprehensive income, and any deficit anising
in revaluation below cost for owner-occupied and Irading properties is
recognised in the capital and other column of the income statement,
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Fingncial stateiens

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

The tosi of properties in the course of develupmmi includes attributable
mterest and other associated outgoings indluding attrbutlable devel 1l
personna costs. Interest is calculated on the davelepmant expendlmrt
by reference [o specific borrowings, where relevant. and otherwise on
the weighted average rale interest rate of British Land PLC borrowings.
Interest is nol capitalised whare no p t activity is taking

place. A propesly ceases lo be lreated as a dzvtlopment property

on practical completion.

Investrent property dispesals are recognised on campletion. Profits
and losses arising are recognised through the capital and other column
of the income stalement. The profit on disposal is determined as the
dillerence between the net sales proceeds and the carrying ameunt of
the asset at the commencement of the accounling pariod plus capitat
expangiture in Lhe perioad.

Trading properties are initially recognised at cast less impairments.
and trading property disposals are recognised in line with the revenue
policies outlined below, -

Whare investment properties are agpropriated to trading properties,
they are transferred al markel value If properties held lor trading 2re
apprepriated Io investment properties, they are lransferred at book
value. ln determining whether leases and ralated properties represant
operaling ar [tnance leases, consideralion is given o whether the
tenant or landlord bears the risks and rewards of gwnership.

Financial assets and Gabitities
Trade deblors and creditors are inibially recognised at fair value and
subsequenity measured at amortised cost and discounted as appropriale.

Other investments include loans and receivgbles held at amortised

cost and investments held for trading classified as fair value through
profit or loss. Amertised cost of loans and receivables is measured vsing
the effective interest method, less any inpairment. {nterest is recognised
by applying the eflective interest rate. Investments held for irading are
inttiatly recorded at kair value and are subsequently exlernally valued on
the same basis at the balance sheei date_Any surplus or deficit arising
on revaluing investments held for trading is recognised in the capital

and other column of the inCorne staternent.

Where an investment property is held under a head lease, the head
lease is initially recognised as an assel, being the sum of the premium
paid on acquisilion plus the present value of minimum ground rent -
payments. The carresponding rent liability to the head leaseholder

is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Debt instrurnents are stated at their et proceads onissue, Finance
charges including premia payable on seltlement or redemption
and direct issue cosls are spread over the period to redemption,
using the affective interest method. Exceplional finance charges
incurred due to early redemption lincluding premiums) are
recognised in the income statement when they occur,

Convertible bonds are designated as fair value through profitor loss
and so are initially recognised at fair value with all subsequent gains
and fosses, mcluding the write-off of issue costs, recagnised in {he
capilal and other column of the income staterment as 3 component of
net financing costs. The interest charge in respect of the coupon rate
oft lhe bonds has been recognised within the underlying compaonent
of net financing cosls en an accruats basis.
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As defined by 1AS 37, cesh flow and fair value hadges are initially recognised
at farr value at the date the darivative conlracts are antered inlo, and
subsequently remeasurad at fair value. Changes in the fairvalye of
derivalives thal are designated and gqualify as effeclive cash ftew hedges are
recognised directly throuch other comprehensive income as a movement in
the hadging and iranslation resene. Changes in the lair value of derfvatives
that are designated and qualify as effective lair value hedgas are recorded
n the capital and other columa of the imcame statement, along with any
changes in the [air value of the hadged item that is aliributsblea to the
hedged risk. Any inelfective portion of all derivatives is recognised in the
capital and other colurnn of the income statemnenl Changes w the fair
value of derivatives thal are nol in a designated hedging relaionship under
AS 39 are recorded directly in the capitat and othar column of Lhe income
stztamend. These darivalives 2re carried at fairvalue on the balance sheer. -

Cash equivalends are limited to instruments with a matunty of less than
three months.

Revenue

Reveswe comprises rental income and summender premia, sevvice chage
income, management and performance fees and proceeds from the sale
of tradng propesiiés.

- Rental moormne, induding fixed rental uplits, from ivestment property

Ieased out untder an oparaling lease is recognised as ravenue on a .
straight-tine basis over the lease term. Lease incentives, such as rent-free
peviods and cash contributions to tenant fit-out, are recognised on the
same straight-line basis being an inlegral part of the ne? consideration lor
the use of the irvestment property. Any rent adjustments based on open
marke! estienated rental vatues are recognised, based on management
estimates, from the rent review date in relation to unsettied rent reviews.
Contingent rents, being those lease paymenis that are not fixed al the
inception of the lease, nduding for emple lumover rents, are

recogrised in the period inwhich they are samed.

Surrender premia for the early determination of a lease are recognised
as revenue immediately upon receipi, net of dilapidalions and non-
recoverable ouinoings relating to the {ease concerned.

Service charga income is recognised as revenue in the perved to which
it relates.

Managemenl anyg performance fees receivable are recognised as revenue
in the penod to which they relate. Perloimance fees are recognised at the

end of the performance period when the lee i can be
reliably and it is virtually certain that the fee will be received.

Proceeds from theé sale of trading properties are recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have been iransiemed to the purchaser.
This generally eccurs on completion. Proceeds from the sale of trading
properties are racognised as revenue in the capital and other column of
the incame statement. Al other revenue described above is recogmsed
in the underiying column of the income statement.



Taxation ' . A
Curment tax is based on taxable profit for the year and is calculated
using tax rates thet have been enacled or substantively enacled 2l the
balance sheet dale. Taxeble profit differs from niet profit as ceportedin
the income staternent because it excludes items of income or expance
thal are not laxable lor tax deductible).

Deferred Yax is prowded on itemns that rmay become taxable in the future,
ar which may be used o olfsel against taxable profits in the future, on
the temporary dilferences between the carmmying amounts of assels and
tiabilities for financial reporting purposes, and the amounts used for
taxation purposes on an undiscounled basis. On business combinations,
the deferred tax effect of fair value adjustments is incorporated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Employee costs .

The fair vatue of equity-settied share-based payments to employess
is datermined at tha date of grant and is expensad on a straight-line
hasis over the vesting peniod, based on the Group's estimate of shares
or options that will eventually vest. kn the case of oplions granted,

fair value is measured by a Black-Schotes pricng model.

Defined benefil pension scheme assets are measured using hair values.
Pension scheme lizbilities are measured using the projectzd unit credit
raethod and discounted ai the rate of refumn ol 2 high quality corporate
bond of equivalent term to Lhe scheme Gabilities. The net surplus lwhere
recoverable by the Groupl or defidit is recognised in fult in the consolidated
balance sheel. Any assel resulting from the calculation is limited to lhe
present value of avaitable refunds and reductions in fulure contributions
to the plan, '

The curvent service cost and gains and losses on seftlement and
curlailments are charged Lo aperaling profil. Acluarial gains and losses

* are recagnised in full in the peried in which they eccur and are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Contributions to the Gmup‘s‘déﬁned contribution schemes are expensed
on the basis of the contracted annual contribution.

Accounting judgements and estimates
In applying the Group’s accounting palicies. the Directors are required
to make judgements and estimnates that affect the financiat statements.

Significani areas of estimation are:

Valuation of preperties and investmenis held for trading: The Group
uses external professional valuers to determine the relevant amounts.
The primary source ol evidence lor property vatuations should be recent,
comparable markel transackions on an arms-length basis. However,

the valuatien of the Group's property pertfolio and invesiments held

Tar trading are inherenily subjeciive, as they are made on the basis of
assumghbions made by the valuers which may not prove Lo be accurate.

Other less significant areas of estimation include the valuation of lixed
rate debt and interest rate derivatives, the determination of share-hased
payment expense, and the acluarwal assumplions used in calculaling the
Group's retirermnent benelit obligations.

Tie key areas of acoounting judgement sre:

REIT status: British Land is a Real Estate bwestment Trust [REIT)

and does nol p3y 13X on iS PTOParTY MCOME oF QNG On Property salas.
providad that at {east 9% of the Group's property income s dislnbuted
as a dwidend to sharsholders, which becomes taable in their hands.
in addition, the Group has lo meei certain conditions such as ersuring
the propariy rental business represents more than 75% of totat profits
and assals. Any pelential or proposed changes Lo the REIT lagislation
are momiored and discussed with HMRC. itis Managemeni's mlention
that the Group will continue as a REIT for the foreseeabie futura.

Accounting for joind veniures and fungs: kn accordance with IFRS 10
‘Consolidated financial statements’, IFRS 11 Joint arangements, and
RS 12 Disclosures of memests m ciher entities’ an assessmant is
required to deiermine Lhe degree of control or infuence the Group
exercises and the form of any contol 10 ensure that the financial
slalemeanl reatrnent is appropriate.

Interes! in the Group's joink ventures is commonty driven by the terms

of the partnership agreements which ensure that control is shared
between Lhe partners. These are acoounted for under the equily method,
whereby the consolidated balance sheel incorporates the Group's share
of the nz1 assets of s joing veniures and associates. The consolidated
incomne statemant incorporates the Group's share of joint vanture and
associale profits afier tax.

Accounting for transactions: Property lransactions are complex in
nature and can be matenial {o the finanaal slalemenls. Assessment is
required te delesmine the most appropriate accounting treatmend of
assets acquired and of poieniial contractuat arrangemnents in the tegal
documents for both amuisilions and dispasals. Management consider

1 eachiransaction separalety and_ when considered appropriate, seek

independen: accounting advice.

Held for sale asset: On 1 March 2017 the Group exchanged condilional
conlracts or an agreement to sell its interest in Eeadenhall Holding Co

| lersey] Limited, 3 joint venture with (hrdord Properties. The net
investment in the joint venture has been reclassified a5 a hetd for sale
assel within current assets on the Group balance sheel, and the carrying
amount is disclosed separately from the irvestment in joint ventures and
funds within note 11 Lo the inancial statements.

Prior to exchange_held for sate cnitecia were not deamed to be met since
the transaction relates to an iliquid asset and is subject to signilican?
uncertainly prior to agreement of ierms. However, upon exchange the
sale is deemed highly probable as detailed terms have been agreed upon
by relevant parties. Al this poind management expect the carrying
amount of the Group's Evestment in the venture to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing operations.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2 Performance measures

Eamnings per share

The Group measures financial parformance with reference 1o undarlying earmings par share, the European Public Real £5late Assedation [EPRA}
earnings per share and IFRS eamings per share. The relevant earmngs and weighted average number of shares linduding ditution adjustments!
for eath performance measure are shown below, and a recongiliation between these is shown within the supplementary disdlosres {Tabie BL

EPRA earnings per share is calculated using EPRA zarmings, which is the IFRS profit after taxation aliributable to shareheiders of the Compary
excluding investment and development property revalyations, gains/losses on investing and Wreding property disposals, changes in the fair value of
hriantial instruments and assodiated dose- ol costs and their related taxation, In the current year, diluted EPRA eattings per share did not indlude
the ditutive impact of the 2012 canvertibia hond., as the Group's share price was below the exchange price of 693 pance. IFRS diluied eamings per
share includes the ditutive impact as IAS 33 ignores this hurdle o conversion. In the prior year, both measures inciudad the dilutive impact of the
2012 convertibla hnnd as the Group's share price was above the exchange price.

Undartying earnings par share is calculated using Unda‘lymg Prufit adjusted {ar undertying taxalion [see note 71. Unidertying Profit is the pre-iax

EPRA earnings rneasure, with additional Company adjustients. No Company adjustmants were made in either the anrrent or prior yeas
7 b1
" Relevant Rel=zand
Relevam umber Earni Rete Eamnings
eamings of shares per share saTmangs of shares par share
Undertying
Underlying basic 370 1,029 379 365 L0255 356
Underlying diluted 390 1,033 378 . ki) 1.G89 3£1
EPRA )
EPRA basic %0 1,029 379 365 1.025 35.6
EPRA diluted 190 1033 378 3In 1,68% 343
IFRs ‘ '
Basic w3 1,029 18.8 1345 1025 1312
Diluted' . 160 1.0 147 1.303 1.089 ne7

! Prior year diluted EPS has been restated. See note t '

Net assetvalue

The Group measures financial position with reference to EPRA nel asset value [NAV] per share and EPRA triple net asset value [NNNAV] per share.
The nel asset value ang number of shares for each perfarmance measure is shown below. A reconcitiation batween IFRS net assels and EPRA

net assels. and the relevant number of shares for each performance measure, is shown within the supplementary disclosures [Table Bl EPRA nat
assels is a proportionally consolidated measure thatis based on IFRS net assets excluding the mark-to-marke! on effective cash flowhedges and
retated debt adjustments, the mark-to-market on the conwartible bonds as well as deferradlaxation on property and derivative vaiualmns. They
include the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusted lor the ditulive impact of share options.

As at 31 March 2017, EPRA NAY and EPRA NNNAY did not include the dilutive impact af the 2012 convertible bord, as the Group s share price was
below the exchange price of 693 pence_ IFRS nel assets includes the dilutive impact iollowing the ireatment of IFRS earnings per share. In the prior
year period, both measures included the dilutive impact of the 2012 convertible bord. as the Group’s share price was above the exchange price.

o7 016
Relevant Not asset . Redevant Nt assed
Relevant number wvalue per Relevant number xalue per
net assels of shares. share nel assels of shares share
Not assel vatue per share £&m willion pence Em rmethon pencs
EPRA _ ’
EPRA NAY 9,498 1,038 915 10.075 1.0%8 e
EPRA NNNAV . 8,938 1,038 851 . . 9.640 1.0%6 ' 880
IFRS : : '
Basic ' 2478 1.02¢ o1 7419 1029 935
Diluted 9,874 1,094 901 | 1nme 1.0% L4
Total accounting return

The Groyp also measures financial performance with reference to total accounting return, This is calculated as the increase in EPRA net asset value
per share and dividend paid in the year as a percentage of the EPRA nel assel value ger share at the stari of the year.

07 ' 113
Decreasein  Dividond per Total IncreaseinNAY  Dividend per Toiat
NAV per share sharepaid  acoounting. per share share paid ACOOTRAG
-pence pence retum pence pence relam
Total acvounting return (4} 28.78 2.T% 20 28.02 14.2%
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3 Revenue and costs

b2 20%5
Undertying  and other Total  Underking  andother Tota
£m £m £m (7 £m tm
Hent recervable ’ &9 - &4Y £37 - 437
Spreadung of tenanl incentives and guarantaed rent moreases 9 - W 12 - 12
Surrender premia 2 - 2 2z - - 2
Gross rental income £42 - A42Z 451 - 451
Trading property sales procesds - 3 3 - 21 2
Service charge incore . &2 - &2 72 - 2
Management and performance fees {from joint ventures and funds) 9 - 9 - - g
Othar fees and commissions £3 - £3 38 - 38
Revenus ] 554 1 S8y 589 2 590
Trading property cost of sales - 128 t261 . mi mi
Service charge expenses 1.y B - 1821 ki - $7.]
Property operaling expenses {25) - 1251 28} - k28|
Other fees and commissions expanses . [35) - 1351 {30} - 130)
Costs h22) (28} [148) [128) 1) 139
£34 7 73] &41 10 451
The cash element of net rental income recognised during the year ended 31 March 217 frem properiies which were not subject 1o a secunity
interest was £276m (2015/18: £229ml. Property operaling expenses relating lo investment properties thal did nol generate 3ny rental income
were L2 [2015/14: £1ml. Contingent rents of £2m (2019/14: C3m] were recognised inthe year.
4 Valuation movements on property
2017 e
[} Im
Censolidated income statement . .
Revaluation of properties . nagl 614
Revaluation of properties held by joinl ventures and funds accounted fer using the equity method 193 245
' (237) 86l
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income )
Revaluation of gwner-occupied propeclies - 19
) (237] 888
5 Auditors’ remuneration ~ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
m7 20
&m (108
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annua! accounts 0.2 0.2
Fees payable o the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 0.4 ‘0.4
Total audit fees 05 06
Audit-related assurance services : [:A] 0l
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 0.7 0.7
Other fees
Tax advisory services , - -
Other services ' ol al
Totat 0.8 038

in addition 1o the above, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were remunerated for non-audit lees in PREF. an equity accounted properiy tund [see note HE
The Group's share of fees tatalled £0.1m (2015/14: £0.2m]. PricewalerhouseCoopers LLP are nat the external auditors to PREF.

-
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6 Net financing costs

wmny me
) am om
Underlying
Finanting charges
Bank teans, overdralts and detrivatives . ' ' (<]] " Bo
Other toans ‘ . 183) 188}
Obligations under heat laases 12) 12]
. . (as) 120}
. Devalopment interest capitalised ' 8 ki
- ts0) [
Financing inchme
Depaosils, securities and liquid invesiments 2 3
Loans to joint ventures . - 2
2 3
Net financing charges - undertying ) ' 78 . fios)
Capital and other
Financing charges
Valuation mowements on transtation of foreign currency dabt ’ - 2
Hedging reserve recyeling ‘ - .}
Valuation movements on lair value desivabives ; 11 54
Valuation mevements on lair value debt 1£8) 153}
Recycling of fair value movement on close-out of derivatives . o} 1al
Capital financing cosls’ 181 [29)
Fair value eovement on non-hedge accounted derivatives : 1] -
. 129 134)
Financing income
Fair value movement on convertible bonds &2 b4
Fair value t on non-hedge accounted derivatives - 1
. : . . . A2 45
Net finanting income — capital ' ) ) 13 N
eiet financing wosts
Tatal financing income &k 70
Total financing charges . . . - nos) 1145}
Net financing costs 451 {75)

' Primarnitydeb & bands redemption and tender offer and purchase coslts.
i
Interest payahbie on unsei:ured bank leans and related interest rate derivatives was £13m (2015/14: E19m). Inlerest on development expenditure

is capitalised at the Group's weighted average interest rate of 2 43 [2015/14: 2.6%]. The weighted average interesk rate on a proportionatety
consalidated basis at 31 March 2017 was 3.1% [2015/16: 3. I%).
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7 Taxation

am7 - NS
m fm
Taxation income lexpense]
Current taxation: .
UK corporation taxation: 20% [2045/16: 20%) _ o s
Adjustments in raspact of prior years L 17
Total current taxation income - - 1 2
Deferred taxation on revaluations and derivatives - 31
Sroup total taxation 1 33
Attributable to joinl ventures and funds . 1 1]
Total taxation income 2 32
Taxation reconciliation
Profit on ardinary activiies before taxation ' 195 133
Less: profil attributable to joint ventures and funds! 1521 13971
Group profit on ordinary activities before taxation ' 143 934
Taxalion on profit on ordinary activities at UK corporation laxation rate of 20% [2015/16: 20%) (F. ] hez
CHects of;
REIT exempt income and gains - F ] 6
Taxation losses 21 1n
Deferred taxation on revaluations and derivatives - n
Adjustmenls in respect of prior years 4 17
Group tolal taxation income 1 33

' Acurrent laxation expense of Enil {2015/14: dnrgedElnﬂandadmmamnued:lorclmimlsﬂﬁ ewmd(mﬂmmp-dﬁsaluhe:ﬂehpnlm
and funds_ The low Lax charges reflects the Group's REIT slatws.

Taxation expense altributable to Underlying Profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 was a Enil l2015116: £2mi. Corporation {axation payable at
31 March 2017 was E30m [2015/15: £18m] as shown on the balance sheet.

8 Staff costs \

. 07 2014

Staff costs finctuding Directars) £m fm
Wages and salaries &4

Sacial securily costs 8 7

Pension costs 7 7

Equily-settled share-based paymenis & 10

83 a1

The average monthly number of employees of the Company during the year was 261 [2015/14: 260). The average monthly number of Group employees,
including those ernployed direcily at the Group's proper ties and their costs cecharged o tenants, was 771 [Z015/16: 692). The average monthly
number of employees of the Company within each category of persons employed was as follows: Retal: 54; Qlfices & Residential: 71; Canada Water:
7. Support Funclions: 12%.

The Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are the key managemenl personnel. Their emoluments are summanset! below and furlher
delail is disclosed in the Remuneration Report en pages 73 o 88.

. . m7 2004
Directors’ emotuments £m m
Short term employee benefits ’ 5.0 5.4
Service cost in relation 1o defined benelit pension schemes N 0.2 0.2
Equity-seitled share-based payments - 1.y 29

[A 1.5
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8 Staff costs continued

Staff costs
The Group's equity-seitted share-based payments compnise thve Long-Term lacentive M!LTIP! the Matching Share Plan (MSPL the Fund Managers
Performanee Plan [FMPP] and various savings related share apiion schames.

The Company expenses an estimate of how marny shares are Ukely to vest based on the market price at the datz of grant on [22 June 2016} taking
account of expected performance against the relevant periormance targels ang service parods which are disoussed in further delail in the
Remuneralion Report.

Fur all schemes except the Company's | ong-Term Incentive Plan share options, the faw vatue of swards ave equal to the ratket valve at gram dale
The key inputs used to value share oplions using a Black-Scholes moded granted under the Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan are shown below,

Long-Teren incentive Plan: Awarts in the year ended 31 Manch 2017 2;&\:
Share price and exercise price at grant date ’ 3p
Expected oplion lifz inyears o S
Risk free cate . 11%
Expscledwitatity 2%
Expected dhvadend yeld &%
Value per oplion - ) 83p

Movements in shares and options are given in nate 20,
9 Pensions

The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme [ the scheme'] is the principal defined benefil pension schame in the Group. The assels of
the scheme are held in 2 irusiee-administered fund and kept separate from these of the Company. Il is not conlracted out of SERPS {State Earnings-
Related Pension Schemal and il is nol ptanned to admit new employzes to the scheme_ The Group has three ather small defined benefit pansion
schemes. There is also a Defined Contribution Pension Scheme. Contributions to this scheme are al a fMat rate of 15% of salary for non-Directors
and are paid by the Company.

The tatal net penston cost charged for the year was £7m 12015/16: £7ml, of which E4m (2015/16: £4m] relates o defined contribution plans
and C3m [2015/16: £3m relates to the current service cost of the defined benefit schemes.

A full aciuarial valuation gf the scheme was carried owl at 31 March 2015 by consulling actuanies, AON Hewill Assodates Ltd. The emplayer’s
condributions will be paid in the tuture at the rale recammended by the actuary of 72.9% per anmum of basic salaries. The best estimale of employer
contributions expected to be paid during the year to 31 March 2018 is £5m. The major assurmplions used (or the acluarial valuation ware:

any 06 215 214 3

! % pa % pa % pa % pa % pa

Discountrate 24 iz 31 44 41

Saltary inflation 49 48 48 5.2 47

Pensions increase 33 32 32 3% 3

Price infation Aé © 32 a3 37 3.2
The mortalily assumplions are based on standard mortality tables which altow for future mortality impr ts. The ptions are that a

membar currently aged &4 will live on Jvarage for a further 29.7 years if they are male and for 3 further 31.7 years if they are female. For a member
who retires in 2037 a1 age 60, the assumplions are thai they will ke on average for a further 317 years after relirement if they are male and for a
further 33.2 years afler retirement if they are female.

Composition of scheme assets
2007 016
] €m £m
Equities ' 40 52
Diversified growth funds a4 77
Other assels ] : 10 -8
Total scheme assets - ] 154 137

The vast majority of the scheme assets are quoted in an active market.
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9 Pensions continued
The amount included in the balance sheel arising from the Group's obligations in respect of s defined benefil scheme is as follows.-

a0y ] 15 2014 213

Present value of defined schernz obligations o T 143 11451 ns - o
Fair value of scheme assels ) 154 137 39 131 120
Imecoverable surplus ' - = - 18 [L}]
Liability recognised in the balance sheet {13) 181 8l - -

The sansitivities of the defined benedit obligation in relation to the major acluarial assumplions used lo measure schemne liabilites are as follows: .

aitere
. Changain m7y 2015
Assumgtion , _ asEATN e m
Discountrate ' - ‘ ' ase (A 1l
Salaryinflation : : 5% 1 1
Pensions increase ’ ’ +0.5% 15 12
Price inflalion . . -+ 5% 7 13
History of experience gains and losses
2mr 21 015 20K 213
Total actuarial loss recognised in the consolidated statemenl of compréhensive income?
Amount® - ) ) "2l 1 I i2l 181
Percentage of present value on scheme Liabilities N 7.7% 0.7% 3.6% 1.6% 3.1%

' Movernents stated after adjusting for Erecoverability of any surplus, )
T Cumnudaties bess recogrised i ihe stateanent of comprehensive income i £4%m [2015/16: £37mi

i
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

. 9 Pensions continued

Movements in the present value of defined benefit cbligations wen?; 25 fellows:

207 Wy
‘ m o
At 1Apnil ) ' 17<] {1454
Currant service cost 13} 13}
Interes! cost . - is) 3]
Actuanal ffosslgain
{Loss{ gain from change in financial assumptions - 29 £
Gain on scherne liabilities arising from experience : ¢ 3
Benafits paid ) ' 7 3
A1 March ' . nsn {1830
Movemnents in Lhe fair value of the scheme assels were as lollows:
’ 7 a
] m o
At 1 Aprit _— ‘ 137 139
Interest income on scheme assets & &
Contributions by employer ' ' 7 &
Actuarial gain {loss] ' n n
Benelils paid . ) 5! [}
At31 March ) ‘ ] 154 137

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number ol risks, the most significant of which are delailed below.

Asset volatitity

The liahbitities are calculated using a discount rate set with a reference Lo corperate bond yields; if assets underperform this yield, this will create
a deficit. The scherne holds a significant portion of growth assets fequities and diversified growth funds) which_atthough expecied to oulparform
corporate bonds in the long term, create volatility and risk in the short term. The allocation lo growth assels is monitered to ensure il remains
appropiiale given the scheme's long term objectives.

Chanyes in bond yields .
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme’s liabilities for accounting purpeses, although this will be partialty
offset by an increase in the value of the scheme’s bond holdings.

fnflation risk :

The majority of the schemne’s benefit obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher labilities lalthough, in mosl cases,
caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against extreme inflation]. The majority of the assets are either unalfected by or
only luosely correlated wath inflation, meaning that 2n increase i inltation will also increase the deficit. '

Life expectancy

The majarity of the scheme's obligations are to provide benefits for the bile of the member, soincreases in life expectancy will result in an increase
in the liabitities_
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10 Property
Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2017

Irvasiman
tnweshmenl
7 and
Offic=s & Carads dovatapmont Qvenar-
Retall  resetenied Wiy Deweliap PrOpOIties Tradng nooped
Levetd Level 3 feel3 Leved 3 Lewel 3 poperties Levet3 Towl
m £m & m £m |73 m
Carrying value at 1 April 2014 5,617 3,435 254 334 9,843 35 b 10,0643
Additions .
- property purchasas 80 - 8 - 88 - - 88
- devetopment expenditure 12 ) & 0 5 n 56 - 137
- capitalised interest and staff costs - - 2 3 5 5 - 10
- capital expenditure on asset ,
manzagement iniliatives a2 9 1 - 2 - - 72
' 174 13 21 58 266 L - kred
Degreciation - - - - - - n i
Disposals (624 . (3% - n [s70) {28} - 1598}
Reclassifications - m 27 real] r{] 27 - -
Revatuations induded inincome staternent (s} 5N {18) as 1144} - - 44
Movement in lenant incentives and contracled
fent uplii balances 73] 8} - - 1£9) ¥ - 148)
Carrying value at 31 March 2017 5.021 3,618 288 150 073 34 94 2.50
Head tease iabilities (note 15) ' ‘ 144)
Valualion Surplus on tradmg properties - . . 83
Broup property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2017 ’ ‘ ' 9520
Non-controlling interests 7 310
Group property ponfuho valuahon 3t 31 March 2011 attributable to sharel‘mlﬂers 2210
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Financiul seaceents

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

10 Property continued

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2014

frevectrnend
vestment
and
Offices & Canada developrnent
Ratal  residential Vater Develiog propest Tradimg Qovnar-
Lewl3 Level 3 Level 3 Lovat 3 Levedd  prpoties - ocugied Total
fm Em &m bm &m €mn £m £m
Carrying vatue al § April 2015 5584 25902 249 385 9120 7 &0 9.45£
Addibons:
- properly purchases & 234 _— - 238 - - 238
- development expenditure & & 1 43 54 5% - m
- capitalisad inlerest and staff costs - - 1 3 & 5 - 9
— capital expenditure on assel )
management itiatives - 91 24 1 - 115 - - 116
79 264 3 &6 £12 & - £76
Depredation - ‘ - - - - - L] [11]
Dispesals 3721 130] - in {509 ] - 1520}
Reclassifications 135 22 - 117]] sl 12 74 -
Revalusations included inincome statement 18 369 4 82 6 - - 16
Revalyation included in OCI - - - - - - v 19
Movernent in lenant incentives antd centracted ]
rent uplift batances © 10 ki - - 19 - - 19
Carrying value at 31 March 20186 54817 3.436 256 3134 9,643 335 95 10,043 .
Head lease liabilities [note 151 . ' (kv
Valuation surplus on trading pregerties 85
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2015 : 10,M
Non-controlling interests ) {324)
Group property partfolio vatuation at 31 March 2014 attributable to shareholders 9,787
Property valuation

The ditferent valuation method tevels are defined below:

Level 1: Cuoled prices lunadjustedl n aclive markets kor identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2  inpuls glher than quotad prices included within Level 1 thal are abiservabte for the asset or liability. either directly lie. as pnoesl
‘or indirectty li.e. derived from prices].

Level3: Inputs for the asset or liabitity that are not based on observable market data lunchservable inputs}

These levels are specified in accordance with IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measuremnent’, Property valualions are inherently subjective as they are made
on the basis of assumptions made by the valuer which may nol prove to be accurale. For these reasons, and consistent with EPRA's guidance, we
‘have dassified the valuations of our property portfolio as Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13. The inputs to the valuations are defined 25 ‘unchservable
by IFRS 13 and these are 2nalysed in a table on the following page. There were no translers between levels in the pesind.

The Group's total property portiolio was valued by external valuers on the basis of fair value, in accordance with the RICS Valuation - Professional
Standards 2014, ninth edition, published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The information provided to the valuers, and the assumplions and valualions models used by the valuers are reviewed by the property portfolio
\eam. the Head of Offices. the Head of Redail and the Chiel Financial Olficer, The valuers mieet with the external auditors and also present directly
10 the Audit Committee at the interim and yzar end review of results. Further details of the Audit Commitiees responsibitites in relation to
valuations can be found in the Report of the Augit Commiltee {on pages 67 to 70).

investment praperiies, excluding properties held lor development, are valued by 3dopting the ‘investment methad’ of valuation. This approach
invnlves applying capitalisation yields to current and future rental steeams nel of income voids arising from vacancies or rent-free periods and
associaled running cests. These capilalisation yields and future rentat values are based on comparable property and leasing transactions in the
arket using the valuers” professional judgement and market observation. Other factors taken into account in the valuations indude the lenure
ol lhe properly. lenancy details and ground and structural condilions.
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10 Property continued

In the case of engoing developments, the approach applied is the ‘residual method” of valuation, which is the invesiment method of valuation as

described above_ with a deduction for all cosls nacessary o complete the development, intluding a astional finance coxt, ogeither with a further
il wa for e ining risk. Propartizs held for development are generally valued by adopting tha highar'of the residual mathod of valuation,

atlowing for all assaciated risks, or lhe iwestment methad of valuation for the existing asset.

Caopies of the valuation certificates of Xnight Frank L LP. CBRE and Jones Lang LaSalle can be found at www britishtand com/reports

A breakdown of valuations split between the Group andils share ol joint veniures and funds is shown below:

any a6
Serinat JBonit
ventures enres
Group and funds Total Gronegp and hueds Tolml
Knight Frank LLP 7.031 2,883 2914 7529 35% N5
CBRE 2,689 1,380 3,859 2582 1.381 3943
Jones Lang LaSslle - 538 538 - - -
Total property portiolio valuation 9.520 4,807 18,329 1w 24937 15,048
Non-cantrolting interesis 13101 m 13811 (324} (768 (00§
Total property portfolio valuation '
anributable to shareholders 9210 4,730 13,940 2.787 A861 ' 14548
Information about fair value medsurements using uncbservable inputs [Level 3) for the year ended 31 March 2017
Fair value a1 . ERVpor:nt Equivatent Yistd Costs i complete per sq ft
I March 2017 Valuation Min Mxx Avrage Min Max Avwerage Mm . Max  Awerage
investmont £m techmigue € £ [ 4 % kY % € [ 4 £
trvestrment
Retail 4,987 methodology 2 77 22 4 n 5 - 43 &
. Investmient )
Offices™ 3,495 methodology 7. nz 54 4 7 5 - 150 .l
i Investment
CanadaWater 271 methodology 15 25 22 2 5 3 - 18 1
Residuat
Devalopments? 150 methodology 18 72 54 2 ] 4 - (A0 503
Totat : 9,103
Trading properlies
atlarwlue | £17
Group property
portiolio valuation 9520
' includes owner-occupied. .
7 includes Residential with an average capital valva persgq v of £98¢ inchding devalopments at end value and mixad use.
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Finaneial statemens .

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

10 Property continued

Information about fair value measurements using unohservable inputs {Level 3} for the year ended 31 March 2014

Fair value at ‘ ERVpar sq R Epinmient Yiel Casts 10 oxnplate per sq i
31 March 2016 Wluaton M Max  Aserage M Mo Aueroge Min Max  Aemage
inrastmoent Em rechnique £ £ £ % % £ . E
) Invesiment - .
Retail 5.608 methodology 2 £ 22 3 1 5 - 45 8
Imestment
Offiges 2 3.692 methodotogy 4 134 53 1 8 4 - 130 15
Investment
Canada Water 250 methodology 15 b~ 22 1 S 3 - S 4
Residual
Developmentst " 343 methodology . 45 107 73 4 5 4 - - 6b4 447
 Towl 9673
Trading properties
at fawr value 48
Eroup property .
portfolio valuation 10,151 - -
* indudes owner-occupied.

? Indudes Residaniia! with an average capilal value par 5q ftof £1,028 induding developments at = valvz e mixed use.

Infarmation about the impact of changes in unabservable inpuﬁ {Level 3) an the fair value of the Group’s pruperty portfolio for the year ended
31 March 2017

fair value ot Irnpact on weluations Impact on valisations tmpact on valsptons
31 March 2017 +THRERY 5% BV -25ps NEY  +2%ps NEY % costs +5% asts
. £m &m £m &m £m €m m
Retail o 4987 2% (248) 359 Bin Wa n/a
Offices’ ) 42 284 127} 393 B335 n/a nfa
Canacda Water m n ) 26 un nfa nfa
Dewvelopments 150 9 1) P 5 )
Group property portfolio valuation 9520 560 1544} 772 8% 5 191

' Includes trading properties at fair vatue.

Information about the impact of changes in unobservable inputs (Level 3] an the fair value of the Group’s property portfolio for the year ended
31 March 2016

tmpact on valuations tmpact on wlwabons Impad on valuabions

Fair value al

31 March 2016 JSHERY  SBERY - 2hpsNEY  ZSbps NEY SBheosls 5B ants

£m [ &m Em Em Em Em

Ratail 5.608 136 1241 206 f187) na nfa
Offices’ kil 38 (3041 ~ 470 {420) nfa nfa
Canada Water 250 1" m z (9 n/a nfa
Developments 343 2 124) 9 (] 12 h2
Frmip property portfolio valuation 10,11 489 463 708 [634} 12 112

* includes rading properties at lair value.

Jj,
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R Property continued

All othet faciors being equal:

- ahigher equivalent yield or discount rale would {2ad 16 a decrease in the vatuation of an assat:
- anincre2se in the current or estmated luture rental stream would have the effect of increasing the capital value: and
- anincrease in the costs to complete would lead to 2 decrease in the voluation of anassel.

However, there are intermrelationships between the unobsenable inputs which are partialty determined by markel conditions, whichwauld mpact

on these changes. There were no transfers between valuation levels in the penod.

Additional property disclosures - intluding covenant information

AL 3t March 2017, the Group property por tolio valuation of £9.520m {2015/14: £10,111m] comprises freeholds of £5.576m (2019/16: (6,184m}; \nﬂual
freeholds of FBG%m [2015/14: £¥04&m}k and long leasehalds of £3 135m (2015714 £3.021m). The historica! cost of properties was (4 024m (2015/14: f6544ml

The property valuation does not include any investment properties held under operating leases [2015/16: Endl).

‘Cumutative inlerest capitalised againcl invesiment, developmant and brading properties amounts to £%5m [2085/16: T88mi.

Properties vatued at £1 882m [2015/16: £2 55%m] were subjact tov a security interast and other preperties of non-recourse companias amounied

to €1,158m [Z015/14: €1, 264m], tolalling £3.040 {2015/36: £3 803m).

Included within the property valuation is £62m [2015/16: £110ml in respect of accrued contracted rental i!pljl‘t income. The balance arises through the
IFRS treatment of teases containing such arrangements, which requires the recognition of rental income on a straxghi-ire basis over the lease term,

with the difference between this and the cash receipt changing the carrying vatue of the property against which revaiuations are measurad.

11 Joint ventures and funds

Summary moevement for the year of the investments in joint ventures and funds

mn?; Funds Total Bty  Lows ot

Em Em Em Em Em im

At1 April 2018 3.10% 244 3353 2833 520 3,353

Additions ' 59 3 82 13 49 &2

Disposals {30) - 30 - (30} tan}

Share of profil on ordinary activilies afler taxation 73 52 52 - 52
Distributions and dividends: . .

- Capital . mil - 73 731 - 173

- Reverwe ; - 1451 4l {591 59 - 59

Hedging and exchange movements 1 - 1 1 - 1,

Reclassification of venture as held for sale asset [see page 124] (540) - . [540} (355} fi85) (540)

At 31 March 2017 2525 24 2,764 2412 354 2,784

Additional investments in joint ventures and funds covenant information

Al 31 March 2017 the invesiments in joint veniures included within the tolal investments in jeint venteres and funds and joint venlure held for sate was
£3.299m [2015/16: £3.348m), being the £2.766m total investment shown above, plus the E540m joint venture held for sale, less the net invesiment of

£7m [2015/14: £5m] i PREF. a property fund in Continental Europe.
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Firunvial statomenrs

NOTES T0 THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds

The is2d incoma st < and balance sheels below and en the follcmmg page show 100% of the results, assets and habilibies of yoand
ventures sml funds Where necessary these have been restated (o the Group's accouniing policies.

Joint ventures’ and funds’ summary financiat statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

=y Intarmadiate Sapersiores - Teson boind
L Hoidags Lid Lud . Vemures"
Norges Bank
: Eure Blusbell LLP Irvestmend
Partners . G} Management J Sainshasry plec Fecco PLEC
City Offices  Shapping Centres
Property sector : : Broadgate Meadowhall Supersiores Suparstoes
Group share - 50% S0% ) 50%
Surmmarised incame statements ) £ £m iy Em
Revenue® 245 K o W
Cosls 152) 231 - -
‘ w3 n & 19
Administrative expenses - - - 2
Nel interest payable ‘ 182) 139 : i t9l
Undertying Profit ' m 41 ol -
Net valuation movament {185 i} 215 1231
Capital financing costs - - na -
Profit on dispesal of investment properties and investments - - 3 fal
il oss] profit on ordinary activities before taxation [74) 40 . 2n {241
Taxation ’ - - - 2
{Loss] profit on erdinary activities after taxation - (7£) 40 zn [Fr2)
Qther comprehensive income 1 - - 1
Total comprehensive income 73 40 20 21
Britich Land share of total compreh ive lexpensel income 137 20 s {10)
British Land share of distributions payahle 32 7 55 £
Investment and irading properties 4,478 1.842 %69 325
Current assets 2 5 - -
Cash and depasits 290 37 17 2
Gross assels ) 4770 1,884 T84 a7
Currenl liabilities  ~ (sa} 11]] 22 2
Bank and securilised debt : (fL794} (668] 13671 hes}
Loans from joint venture partners 357N ' k17 - -
Other non-current liabilities - [S6) 1231 - : [[]]
Gross liahilities < 295! (1,049) ' 13891 1l
Net assets 2475 835 C A " 138
" British Land share of net assels less shareholder loans 1,237 &7 199 &8
¥ Included within the Broadgate REIT net valualh is a C20m pay received in December 2016 from UBS A G. in relation Lo the develop and

occupation of 5 Broadgate. and subsequent vacation of 100 Liverpool Street, induding 8-10 Broadgate.

? Tesco joint ventures inciude BLT Hotdings {20101 Limited as at 31 March 2007,

3 YSS joint ventures include the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and the Farcham Property Partnarship.

* The Leadenhall oolurmun shows the equity accounted profit and loss for the period. Due lo the ransaction which exchanged in March 2017, the ot mvestivent i this
venture was reclassified as a held for sale asset lsee page 124).

5 Hercules Unit Trus) joint venfuras and sub-funds inctudes 50% of the results of Deepdate Co-Owmership Trust Gibraliar Limited Partnership and Valentine
Co-Ownership Trust and §1.25% of Birsiall Co-0vmership Trust. The balance sheet Shiws 50% of the assets of these joind ventures and sub-furds.

* inciudad in the column headed "Other joint ventures and funds’ are contriutions from the following: Bl G Limited Partnership, The Aldgate Place Lirnitad
Partnership, Bluebution Property Management UK Limitad, Cily of London Office Unit Trust and Pillar Retail Furopark Fund IPREFL. The Group's ownership
share of PREF is §5%, however as the Group is nol able to exercise control over significant decisions of the fund, Lhe Group equity accounts for its interest in PREF.

? Revenue inclusdes. gross rantal ncome at 100% share of £83m (2015/14: £45Im].
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15S Leadenhail Hamulas Uikt T (ehey Totat
The StthGate Limdted Joint Holding Co joini venwres o venhaes, Toia Hroup share
Partnershap Ventures® Uerseyd Ud* ant sach-funds® 2w st 2017 2007
Universilias '
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxford -
Investors PLC Properties
Shopping Shopping City Olfices Retail
Cenires Cenires Leadenhall Paiks
50% S0% 50% Various
£m Erc Em m m £m £m
17 14 &3 35 i 522 250
5l 5 f10} 14} fil {100} . I50)
12 9 3 It - 422 210
1] - - - m 14) [Fil
L] - - (&) - 152} 7
10 9 ’ 33 27 n 248 132
6] 17t 107 [18) - (183] (93}
~ - - - - 12l (0]
~ - - - 34 34 16
4 2 140 H 33 105 51
- - - - - 2 1
& 2 140 1 I3 107 - 52
- - - - - 2 1
[ 2 140 n a3 109 53
2 1 70 5 17 53
1 - 5 4 4 132
fm £m En Em €m tm £m
264 247 - &3 1 8,529 4,245
1 ] 3 52 [ 73 32
B 7 - Ll 28 399 200
n 255 - &4 81 8,992 &497
14) (&) - {109 19l (192) 8
- - ~ - 39 - 13,3531 05
- 122} - - 12t (708) {354)
128 - - 14l - sl (s8]
(32} {28} - 1153) 3 {4,148] 12.085)
243 227 - 483 50 4,824 2.812
121 114 - 23 %5 2,412

The bormowings of joint ventures and funds and their subsidiaries are non-recourse Lo e Group. All joint ventures are incorporated in the United Kingdom. with

e exception of Broadgate REIT Limited. the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trist and Leadenhall Holding Co lJersey) Limited which are mcorporated in Jersey.

Of the funds. the Hercutes Unit Trust {HUT] joint veniyres and sub-funds are incorporaled in Jersey and PREF in Luxembourg.

These linancal statements include the results and financial position of the Group's interest in the Farehm'n Property Partnership, the Aldgate Ptace Limited Partnarship,
the BL Goodman Limited Partnership, the Auchinlea Partnership and the Gibraltar Limited Partaership. Accordingly, advantage has been taken of the exemptions
provided by Regulation 7 of the Parinership [Accounts) Regulations 2008, not 1o attach the parinership accounts to these finandal statements.
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Finanvial seaceinents

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

The summarised incoma staiements and balante sheats below and on the lollowing page show 100% of the resulis, assats and lizbilities of joint
ventures and funds. Where necessary these have been restated to the Growp's accounting pelicies.

Joint ventures” and funds’ symmary financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Broadgate MSC Propanty B, Safmsey .
RET Intermediate Supersiores Tesoo Joing
Lid Holdings Lid L Vientures*
Norges Bank
Euro Bluebelt LLFP tnvestment :
Partners 1GiC) Managemeanl ) Sainshbury plc Tesco PLC
. City Offices  Shopping Centres
Property sector Broadgate Meadowhalt Supersiores Supersiores
Group shars 500, . 59% 50% 50%
wedi fm Em tm £
Revenue® 284 102 5 19
Cosis - 148) 1231 L] r =
196 7 55 W
Administralive expenses - - - -
Nel interest payable 184} {36! i24] 9
Underlying Profit G &3 3 10
Net valuation movament . 334 50 £35) 9t
Profit en disposal of invesiment propertias and invesimants - - 2 -
" Profil on ordinary aciivities before taxation 444 3 13} 1
Taxation - - - 1
Profitan ordinary activities after taxation 844 2 Bl 2
Other comprehensive incorne [expenditure) 5 - - 3
Total comprehensive income 449 723 12 5
British Land share of total comprehensive intome 225 &b [14] 3
British Land share of distributions payable ’ 44 17 1 4
Summarised balance sheets Tm £m tm €m
invesimen and treding properties ' 4,622 1786 244 54
Current assels ' . 4 5 2 -
Cash and deposits 293 32 80 [
Gross assets &7 1.623 1,028 340
Current liabilities 771 3 130l i3
Bank and securitised debt [1.842) (694} 14621 §384)
{.oans from joint venture partners k)] {241 - -
Other non-current liabilities (65) 24) - 115}
Gross liailities [2,315) n.o1w0) 1921 1202}
Net assets 2,604 813 538 158
Bntish Land share of net assats less shareholder loans 1;302 &07 . 268 79
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Lezdanhall Harauizs Ut Torst

The SouthGale Lirmited Jﬁ Holding Co o venhueres mwm Talat mx
. Partnership Venures” Uerseyd Lid and sub-Jurds™ - e fumeris® ans 018
Universities
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxiord
Inveslors PLC Pruperlies
Shopping , Shopping City Offices Retait
Cenltres Centres Leadenhat] Parks
50% | 50% 50% Varigus
tm & €m £m i £m €m
19 2 35 38 5 53% 2466
15l {3l {10) K} i) 199) 144
13 9 v n 5 432 22
1] - 1] 15} 12} 1101 153
1] - - 18 - 1164] a2
n ] 24 17 3 258 115
F3 7] 24 4 7 £0 A4S
- - - - 30 2 18
15 2 148 7 £0 780 s
- - - - @3 12} H)
- 15 21 148 2 a7 778 397
- - - 12| - [ 3
15 27 148 19 37 784 £00
8 n 74 10 ] 400
& 6 3 59 3t 179
tm £m - £m &m m €m £m
287 252 942 812 108 9,809 £94K
2 1 - 4 1 2 18
5 7 5 9 13 470 239
7% 260 947 &25 155 10,39% 5,201
14 18l 16l m 151 1215) 11
- - - 11391 - 13,321) 11,6401
- {20k 13451 - 1631 £1,040] 15201
28] - - 141 118) {154) m
I32) t2¢} (k7al] (1501 (132) 14,730) 12,368)
‘282 23 576 4T3 23 5,661 2,833
121 "7 ;288 239 1z 283
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Finaavinl seatemncats

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds condnued

Joint venture held for sale .

On 1 March 2017 the Group exchangad conditional coniracts on an agreement lo sell its interest in Leadenhall Holding Ca Dersey] Limited,

a juint venture with Ox{ord Properiizs. The transactianis expecied o complete in the first half of tha next finendal year, end therelore the net
investment in the joint venture has been recognised as a held-for-sale asset from the date of 2xchange. The net iwestment 25 at 31 March 2017
is summarnised below. :

Jaint venture held for sale - summarised balance sheet far the year ended 31 March

(ogttry Co
- 2y s
, £m £m
Investment property - 1,075 -
Current assels ) . 7 ~
Currentiiabilities ' ' j1=0] -
L oans from joint venture partners (<ral} -
Netassets ' 708 -
British Land share of net assets less shareholder loans 55 -
Operating cash Rows of joint ventures and funds [Group share)
w7 2016
(1.1 m
Rental income received from tenams . ’ 207 208
Fees and other income received - 1
Operating expensas paid to suppliers and employees : 120) 18]
Cash generated from operations 187 M
Interest paid ' 84} 85t
Interest received . 1 ]
UK corporation tax paid 2 3
Foreigntaxpaid . . - [
Cash inflow from operating activities ) T 102 102
Cash inflow from operating attivities deployed as:
Surplus cash retained within joint ventures and funds 43 Ad
Revenue distributions per consolidated statement of cash flows 57 58
Revenue distributions split hetween controiling and non-conirolling interests
Attributable to non-controliing interests R . &
Attributable to shareholders of the Company 55 54
12 Other investments
) 7 2%
Invesiment Loafe, lvesiment Loans.
heldfor  receivables halélor  recedables
trading  and other Tatat rading  and ather Fozal
€m m £m £m fm Em
At 1 April ' 101 [4] 142 9 280 379
Additions - 25 5 ~ as 35
Disposals - 2) 2 - 1272 1272)
Revaluation . i8] - L]} 2 - 2
Depreciation - i3] 3l - i2) 2t

AL 31 March 93 41 154 101 41 © 142

The investment hetd for wading comprises interests as a trust beneficiary. Fhe 1rust’s assels comprise freehold reversions in a poot of commerdciat
properties. comprising Sainsbury s superstores. The interesi was categorised as Level 3in the fair value hierarchy. is subject ko the same inpults as
those disclased in note 10. and us Eair value was determined by the Oirectors, supporied by an external valuation.
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13 Debtors

7 Fralil]

&m £m

Trade and other debtors b7 2%
Depasits received relsting lo hetd for sale asset! . . 144 -
Prepayments and acorued incorme 5 ki
' m 3

' Relates to deposit receivad on held for s2ie joind venture transaction {s2e note 111 recognised as a Anandial azsel, the reafisadion of which is conditions! and oot
quaranlzed as al the balance shesd date.

Trade and other debtors are shown alter deducling @ provision for bad and doubtiul debts of £14m [2015/16: £1éml. The charge 1o the income
statement in relation to had and doubtful debls was {Im I?ﬂlﬁll& (2108

The Direclors consider thal the carrying amount of trade and other debtors is approximate to their {zir value. There s no concenlration of credit
risk with respaci in lrade debiors as the Group has a large number of cuslomers who are paying their rent in advance.

As at 31 March, trade and sther deblors outside their payrnent terms yat nol provided for are as follows:

Quitside oreda isrms bug vt inpaired

Witkin o1 12 Marethan

Tolal ared?t berms rmoath manths 2manths

) " Em £m . £m €m €m

a7 22 7 9 & 2

2016 28 12 11 1 -
14 Creditors

7 2014

(5] - Em

Trade creditors ' _ ' 127 39

Deposits received relating to held for sale asset® 144 -

Cthar laxahion and social security - krl K2

Accruats : a3 n

Delerted income : ] 72 . I

458 218

! Relales to deposil received on held for sate jont venture transaction see note HI recognised as a finandial llalumy the realisation of which s conditional and nol
guarantead as at the balance sheat date. )

Trade creditors are inlerest-free and have settlemeni dates within one year. The Direciors consider that the carrying 2mount of Irade and other
creditors is appraamate to their R value. '

153 Other non-current liahilities ;
2017 2014

tm Em
Gther creditors . ’ ' ' ' . 1 70
Head leases' &84 &4
Net pension liabilities . . 13 4
78 122

' Includes Enil in relation to haad lease liabilities on vrading properties held al cost (201544 €9ml,

o
e
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16 Deferred tax
The movement on defervad tax 1s as shown delow:

Deferred tax assels year ended 31 March 2017

1A Crefiedio Credited Web2ed)  Transtesred o I March
‘ 2014 e mequily orportcn bx an7
£&m m [1,.] m €m
Interest rate and arrency derivative revaluations 5 1] - - 4
Other timing dilferences & 1 - - 7
n - - - n
Deferred tax labilities year ended 31 March 2017
) ) &m (/'S £m €m em
Propertyand investment revaluations ¥/ - - - - rm
Interesl rate and currency derivativa revaluations - - - - -
Gther iming differences i - - 1 -
- st - - = 1 : m
Netdeferred tax assets 3 - - 1 4
Deferred tax assets year ended 31 March 2014
. 1Al Crediad to  Credited Jdabaad) Transfared 1o 31 March
s mnome 0 equity o vonheres Ms
tm fm tm £m Em
Interest rate and currency derivative revaluations - - 5 - 5
QOther timing differences - & - - é
- & 5 — 1
Deferred tax Liabilities year ended 31 March 2018
En €m tm m tm
Properly and investment revaluations B - 12| - 7
Interesl rate and curvency derivative revatuations 4l 25 (2 - -
Other iming differences 13l -~ - 2 L
ha 25 1234 2 - 8}
Net deferred tax {liabilityl assets . 1¥i] 3% 18] 2 . 3

The following corporation lax rates have been subslantively enacted; 19% effective from 1 April 2017 reduting ta 17% effective from 1 April 2020.
The deferred tax assets and liabitities have been calculates at the lax rate effective in the period that the tax is. expecled o crystallise.

The Group has recognised a deferred tax asset calcutated at 17% [2015/16: 18%) of £3m [2015/14: €6m) in'respecl af capital \osses from previous
years available for offset against {uture capitat profit. Further unrecognised deferred lax assets in respect of capital fosses of £129m (2019/14: £40m|
exist at 31 March 2017

The Group has recognised deferred Lax 3ssels on derivative revaluations to the extent that fuiure malching taxable profits are expected 16 arise.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had an unrecognised daferred tax asset catoulated at 17% [2015/16: 18%) of £50:n |2015/14; £51m] in respect
of UK revenue lax losses from prevnous years.

Under the REIT regime, development properltes which are sold within three years of completion do not benefit from tax exempbon. At 31 March 2017,

the value of such praperties is £124m [2015/15: £967mi and i these properties were lo be sold and ne tax exemplion was available_the tax arising
would be £13m (2015714 £56ml.
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17 Net debt

amz 2048
Foomate £m Em
Secured on the assets of the Gmup
2.925% First Mortgage Debenture Stock 2020 A 34 s
5.264% First Morlgage Debenture Bonds 2035 . mn
5.0055% First Mortgage Amortising Debentures 2035 9 100
5.357% First Mortgage Dzbenture Bonds 2028 348 349
6.75% First Mortgage Debenlure Stock 2020 - 62
Bank loans 1.2.1.3 475 733
Loan notes 2 2
1335 1.651
Unsecured
5.50% Senitor Notes 2027 102 m
3.895% Senior US Dollar MNotes 2018 2 32 78
£.635% Seniar US Dollar Notes 2021 2 13 165
4.766% Senior US Dollar Notes 2073 2 "3 105
5.003% Senior US Dollar Notes 2026 2 73 &
3.819% Senior Notes 2024 14 "3
3.97% Seniar Notes 20246 "7 16
1.5% Canveriibte Bond 2017 408 455
0% Convertible Bond 2020 33t 34
Bank laans and overdralls &77 634
) 1,944 2110
Gross debt 3 . -3
Interest rate and cufrency derivative liabilities 144 137
Interest rate and currency derivative assets (217 1147
Cash and short ferm deposits 45 mal a4l
Totat netdebt 3,094 3.617
Net debi attributable to non-controtling interests 1103 (104}
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company ‘ 29 3.513
' These are non-recourse bormowings with no recourse for repayment lo other companies or assetsin the Group:
1.1 BLO Property Holdings Lid 34 34
1.2 Hercules Unit Trust &75 443
1.3 TBL Progeriies Limited and subsidiaries - 290
509 767
} Principal andinteresl on these borrowings were fully hedged inlo Starling ak a floating rate at the ima of issue.
¥ The principal amont of gross dabt at 31 March 2617 was £3,06%m {2013/16: £3,552m). Included in this is the principa! 2tnount of secured bormowings and other
borrowings of non-recourse compamﬁ of £1. 238m of which the borrawings of the partly-owned subsidiary, Hercules Unit Trush, nol beneficialty owned by the
* m;l:i:ha; cash and shoit term deposits is the cash and short term deposits of Hercules Unit Trusl, of whidh £9mis the propertion not beneficially owned
H g:"aﬁ? ::posnts not subject to a securily interest amount to £99m {2015/16: £%3m).
ES
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17 Net debt continued

Maturity analysis of net debt

anr w5

£m m

Repayable: within one year and on demand &84 74
Between: ane and Wo years n 504
two and fve years ' 1,283 1491

Tree and ten years ' 783 Bo7

ien and ffieen years 332 500

fifteen and twenty years 388 385

twenty and twenly five years - -

2817 1487

Grossdebt : , 3261 3,761
Interest rale and currency derivatives ’ ) 300
Cash and shor term deposits 114 ing)
Net deht ' 3,074 3.617

1.5% Convertible bond 2012 [maturity 2017)
Gn 10 September 2012, Brilish Land Dlersey} Limited fthe 2012 issuerl, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. issued £680 million 1.5% guaranteed
convertible bonds due 2017 Ithe 2012 bonds) at par. The 2012 Jssuer is fully guaraniead by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds.

Subject to their terms, the 2012 bends are convertitte inlo preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are automatically transferred to the Comparny in
exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or, a1 the Company s election, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. Bondholders may exerase
their corversion right al any time up Lo [but excluding] the 20th dealing day befere 10 Seplember 2017 fthe malurity datel.

The initial exchange price was 693.07 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted based on certain events.

Trom 25 September 2015, the Company has the option to redeern the 2012 bonds at par if the Company's share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price for a specified pefiod, or at any time once §5% by nominal vatue of the 2012 bands have been converted, redeemed, or purchased
_and cancelied. The 2012 bonds will be redeered at par on 10 Sepiember 2017 Ithe maturity datel il they have not atready been converled. redeemed

or purchased and cancelled. No redemption of the bonds occurred in the year,

0% Convertible bond 2015 [maturity 2020)

0On 9 June 2015, Britich Land {Whitel 2015 Limited {the 2015 ssuer), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, issued E354 million 2ero coupon

guaranteed convertible honds due 2020 {the 2015 bonds] al par. The 2015 Issuer is fully quaranteed by the Company in respect af the 2015 bends.
L

‘Subject ta their terms, the 2015 bonds are converlible inte preference shares ol the 2015 Issuer which are automalically transferred to the Company
in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or; al the Company's election, any'combination of ardinary shares and cash. From 20 July 2015up

to and inctuding 29 June 2018, a bondhalder may exercise its conversion right if \he share price has iraded al a level exceeding 130% of lhe exchange
price for a specified period. Thereafter, and up to but excluding the Tth dealing day before 9 June 2020 [the maturity datel, a bondhotder may comwert
at any léme.

The initial exchange price was 1103.32 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted based on certain events (such as the Company
paying dividends in any quarter above 3.418 pence per ordinary share]. As at 31 March 2017 the exchange price was 1043.77 pence per ordinary share.

Frem 39 June 2018, the Cammpany has the option lo redeem the 2015 bonds al par if the Company's share price has traded above 130% of the
exchange price for a specified period. or at any time once 85% by nominal value of the 2015 bonds have been converted, redeemed. or purchased
and cancetled. The 2013 bonds will be redeemed at par on 7 June 2020 fthe matyrity date] if they have not already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelted.
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17 Net debt continued

Fair value and book value of net debt

amy ana

Farwilue Bookwatue  Difference Farvshe Bochvtue Dffaence

‘ om Cm €m £m £m £m

Debentures and unsecured bonds 1482 159 2 1637 1413 %
Corvertible bonds ™ 7 - ™9 m -
Bank deid and other (ioating rate debt 943 54 J 1384 1:362 .15
Gross debt ’ 3.382 3.281 101, 3.800 3.751 ¥
interest rale and currency dervative biabilities 174 144 - 137 137 -
Interest rate and currency derivative assels 27 17 - n&n 1167y -
Cash and short lerm deposils ma &l - i1a&) {114} -
Netdebt ' ' 3095 . 309 101 3.6%6 34617 3
M1 debt attributable to non-controlling interests o5} “(183) 12) 108 o4) 2
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,090 3,550 3583 37

2m "9

The fair values of debentures. unsecured bands and the cosvertible bonds have been established by oblaining quated market pricés fruwn brokess.
The bank debt and other flealing rate debt has been valued 2ssuming it could be renegobiaied at contracted margins. The derivabives have been
valued by calculating the present value of expected future cash llows, using appropriate rmarket discount rates, by an independent reasury advisor

Short term deblors and creditors and other investments have been excluded from the disclosures on the basis thal the fair value is equivalent

to the book value. The fair value hierarchy teved [as defined in aoie 10} of debt held al amortised cosl whose fair value is disclosed islevel 2.

Group loan to value [LTV) .
m7 i1
-£m &m
Group Woan to value (LTV] ~ 2265 257%
Principal amount of gress debt 3,089 3.5%2
Less debi attributabie 1o non-contraliing interasts ma (111)7]
Less cash and short term depaosits (balance shaet) mal Mg
Plus cash atiributable to non-controlling interests 9 8
Total nel debt for LTV catculation 2,852 3.337
Group property partfolia valuation [note 10} 9520 e
Invesimenis in joiat ventures and lunds [note 11} 2,744 3353
Jointventure held for sate Inate 11} 540 -
Other invesiments {note 12| 154 142
Less property and investments altributable te non-controlling interests 13s8) {384)
Total assets for LTV calculation 12,61 13,222
Proportionally consolidated loan to value [LTV)
mz? s
. £m Em
Proportionalty consolidated loan to vatue [LTV) 29.9% 32.1%
Principal amount of gross debt 4,649 s.a7
Less debl attributable Lo non-contrelling interests 1281 hzs}
Less eash and short lerm deposits {323) 3538
Plus cash attribulable to non-conurolling interests 9 9
Total netdebt for proportional LTV calculation 4,207 4,745
Group praperty portfalio valuation {nate 10 9520 mai
Share of property of joint ventures and funds [note 10 4,807 4937
Other investmenis [nate 12} 154 142
Less other investments atiributable to joint ventures and funds {3 141
Less property allributable to non-conlrolling interests 381 1400]
Total assets for proportional LFY calculation 14,09 14,786
bl
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17 Net debt continued

British Land Unsecured Financial Covenants
Tha two finendal covenants applicable o the Groep unsecurad dabt including converiible bonds are stowm helo:

my e
£ [£4]
Net Borrowings not to exceed 175% of Adjusted Capital and Reserves 29% 34%
Printipal amount of gross deit ’ ' 3,049 3.552
Less the relevant proportion of borrowings ¢f the parliy-uwned subsitiary/non-controlling interests 2 nes)
Less cash and deposits balance sheel] - IMél f114}
Plus the relevant proporiion of cash and deposits of the partly-owned subsidiary/non-controlling interasis ? 8
Net Borrowings . 2,852 3.337
Share capital and reserves foalance sheet] 9,476 9.619
EPRA deferred tax adjusirnant {EPRA Table Al 3 5
Trading property surpluses {EPRA Table A) 83 23
Exceptinnal refinancing charges lsee below} . . ’ 74 287
Fair value adjustments of financal instruments [EPRA Table A} 55 4]
Less reserves attributable to non-controlling interests fbalance sheet] 2551 {2771
Adjusted Capital ard Reserves I 2.734 9975

in calculating Adjusted Capital and Reserves for the purpese of the unsecured debt financial covenants, there is an adjustrasnt of £274m [2015/16:
E2B7m] o reflect the curnulative nat ameortised axceplional items relating to the refinancings in the years endad 31 March 20105, 2636 and 2007.

7 2004
£m Em
Net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assets ‘ ‘ ' 26% 2%
Principst amount of gross dobi 3089 3552
Less ¢ash and deposits not subject o a security interast tbeing £99m less the relevant proporllon of cash and depesits of the 98] -1
partly owned subsidiary/non-controlling interests of E3m] :
Less principal ameount ol secured and non-recourse borTowings 13,238) 15631
NetUnsecured Borrowings 1735 1.901
Group property porifolio valuation {note 10] : 9.520 101m
Investrients in joint vantures and tunds (note 1) : ' . 2,766 3353
Jaint vanture held for sate [note 11 S40 -
Other investments note 12) . . 154 152
Less investments in joint ventures and joint venture held for sale [nole 1] 13.299) 13,348}
Less encumbered assels {note 10} ) 3.040) (3.8031
Unencymbered Assets i 4,841 6,455
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17 Net debt continued

Reconciliation of movemenl in Group net deb for the year enated 31 March 2017

Arrangoment
Foreign ws
o ) o 2016 Cashflows  Transfers’  exchange Fairvalue  amurtisstion 200
Shert term borrowings ' 7% r78) 454 - - - &84
Lang termn borrowings ’ 3,687 &23) 1485) £ 38) . & 2,817
Derivatives’ {301 1 - 148 & - 73
Total tiabilities from finandng activives 3,73 1478} - 1 32) & 32603
Cash and cash equivalents {114 - - - - - msl
Netdoebt . 3,617 {498] - 1 32} & 3,094
Reconciliation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2016
Fareagn onsts
2015 Cash fizas Trensters® exchange Fairwalre  2mvortisadion 206
Short term borrowings ) 102 {194] 74 2 - - N
Long term borrowings 3847 I8 £24) 14 ¥ 7 3.587
Derivatives® 3 22 - 3 i28) - 3oy
Total liabitities from linancing actmties 3936 1180} - 3 1354 7 ™
Cash and cash equivalents Nogj lal - - - - fns)
Netdebt 3828 1186) - 3 135 7 3617
* Cash Mows on derivatives include £14m of nat recapis en derfvalive ntecoct,
* Cash llows on darivatives indude £ 7m of nat recipls on derieative inlesact.
* Transiers comprises deb maturing from long term 2o short terma borrawings.
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17 Net debt continued

Fair value hierarchy
The table below provides an analysis of inanacal instrumants carried 2t fair value, by the valuation method. The fair value hierarchy levels are defined
innote 10. :

2017 : b TR
Level 1 Level2. Level 3 Total Lewal 1 Lewi2 ECR] Yo
£&m £m £m tm . &m £ fm &m
Interest rate and currency denivalive assets - tnn - A - 1167 - s
Other investments - avaitable for sale §1£) - - 141 S - - -
Other investments — held for trading - - 73 93 - - 1191} (L))}
Assels : ne) i iv3t (3241 - 1] (161} (268}
inierest rate and currency derivative babilities - 144 - 184 - 137 - 137
Convertible bonds 77 - - 737 e - - L
Liabilities 737 144 - 881 777 137 - 216
Total . 73 73] [yl 557 e 1301 1101) 548
Categories of financial instruments .
2017 206
£m m
Financial assets
Fair value through income statement
Other investments — held for trading : : 72 1w
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships 215 164
Derivatives not in designated hedge accounting relationships 2 3
Loans and receivables
Debiors . 166 24
Cash and short term depasits - . 14 n4
Other investments - loans and recetvables )] 41
651 447
Finantial Uabilities
Fair value through income statement .
Convertibie bonds ' ' S 31 (779t
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships l nsa 1371
Derivatives notin designated accounting relationships : n -
Amuortised cost ' :
Gross debt _ ) (25680  [2382)
Head leases payable - 54} 1&6)
Creditors . {3n) 1133}
i ) 13,852) 1&.077]
Total ' 211 [3.430)

Gamns and losses on financial instruments, as classed above. are disclosed in nole 6 Inel linandng costs]. note 13 [debiors], note 4 [valsation
movemenis on property), the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive incorme. The Directors consider
thal the carrying amounts of other investimenls and head leases payabte are approximale o their fair value, and that the carying amounts

are recoverable, : ‘
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17 Net debt continued

Capitat risk management

The capital structure of the Grougp consists of net debl and equily attributable to the equity holders of The Bntish Land Company PLC, comprising
issued capital, reserves and retained earnings. Risks relating to czpitat slructure are addressed within Managing nsk in delivering Our stralegy on
pages 46 to 49. The Group’s objactives, policies and processes for managing dabt are cet ut in the Financial policies ang principtes on pages £3
to45.

lnlemsl rate risk management
The Group uses interest rale swaps to hadge expasure to the variabitity in cash flows on floating rate dedl, such as revoling bank facilities
and floating rate bonds caused by movernents in market rales of interest.

At 31 Mareh 2017, the lair vatue of these derivatives is a net liability of £143m. Interest rate swaps wnh 2 fair value of £143m have been desigrated
as cash flow hedges under 1AS 39. .

The ineffectiveness recognisad in the income statement on cash Row hedgas in the year ended 31 March 2017 was £xidl [2019/16: £nild.

The cash Rows occur and are charged to profit and loss uniil the malurity of the hadgad debl: The table below summanises variable rate dabl
_ hedgad at 31 March 2017, .

Cash flow hedged debt
207 i
€m £&m
Ouislanding:  al one year £50 £13
at two years 450 663
2t fiva years . 250 230
at fen years . 250 250

Fair value hedged debt

The Group usas interest rate swaps to hedge exposure on fixed rate fi nancial lisbilities caused by movements in market rates of interest.

Al 31 March 2017 the fair value of these derivalives is a net asset of £216m. Interest rate swaps with a fair velue of £215m have been designated
as fair value hedges under 1AS 37 {2015/14: asset of £144ml.

The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2023/2026 US Private Placements fully hadge the foreign axchange exposure at an average floaling
rate of 144 basis points above LIBOR. These have been designated as fair value hedges of the US Private Placements.

Interest rate profile — including effect of derivatives

2m7 2014

€m Em

Fized or capped rate ) 1,604 2372
Variable rate |net of cash) . 14690 1245
' ] 309 3.617

All the debt is effectively Sterling denominated except for £11m [2015/14: £10ml af Euro debt of which E11m is at a fixed rate {2015/16: L10m).

At 31 March 2017 the weighted average interesi rale of the Sterling fxed rate debt is 3.3% {2015/14: 3.5%)]. The weightzd average period for which the
rate is fixed is 8.3 years {2015/16. 9.1 years]. The floating rate debt is set for periods of the Company’s choosing at the relevant {_IBOR lor simitar] rate.

The proportion af net debt at fixed or capped rates of inlerest was 78% at 31 March 2017 on 2 spot basis, pro forma for the Leadenhall transaction

" {see page 12£]. The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped rates of inlerest as an average over the next five year lorecast period. on a proportionally
consolidated basis, was 6086 a1 31 March 2017 Based an the Group's interest rate profile, al the balance sheai date, a 574 bps increase ininterest
rates would decrease annual profits by £87m [2015/16: £72m decrease). Similarty, a 34 bps reduclion would increase profits by £5m [2005/16: €7m
increase). The change in interest rates used lor this sensitivity analysis is based on the largest annual change in three month Sterling LIBOR over
the last ten years. The impart assumes LIBOR does not fal below 0%.
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17 Net debt continued

Interest rate profile - including effect of derivatives consinued

Upward movementsin medurn and iong term interest rates, assodatedwith hnghermimi rate expeciations, woraase the vatue of the Group's
Interest rate swaps thal prowde protection against such moves. The converse is true for downward movements in the yield curve. The majority of the ’
Group’s interest rate Swaps which provide such proeciion qualify as effactive cash Row hedges under 1AS 39 thersfore movemens in the fair vatez
are recognised direcity in equity rather than the income statement. A 204 bps shift regresents the largast annual changz in the seven year Sterling
swap rate over thedast ten years. At 31 March 2017 a 204 bps parallel upward shifl in swap rates would increase the vatue of these interest rate

swaps by £62m [2015/14: £15im). A 204 bps downward shift in swap rates would reduce the value of these interast rate swaps by [131m {20015/16:
E197m). Because the interest rate swaps are matchad by Hoating rale debi, the averati eftect on Group cach flows of such movements is minimal.

The 1.5% 2012 Convertible Bond and 0% 2015 Convertible Bond are both designated as fair value thraugh profit or loss. Prinapal cemponants of the
markel valie of both bands include British Land's share price and its volatility, and market interast rates.

The fair value of the 1.5% 201Z Convertible Bordd at 31 March 2017 was 3 £404m tability. At 31 March 2087 2 204 bps paratiel upwanrd shift in interest
rales woudd reduce the fair value liabilily by £4m. and a 204 bps downward shift in interest rales would increase the fair value Uability by £4m.

The fair value of the 0% 2015 Convertible Bond at 31 March 20017 was a £331m lisbility. At 31 March 2017 a 204 bps paraltel upwand shift in inflerest
rates would reduce the fair value liability by £21m, and a 204 bps downward shifl ininterest rates would increase the fair vatue sbility by £22m.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group's policy is to have no matenial unhedged net = or s denominated in foreign currencies. The currency risk on overseas
investmants is hedged via foreign currency denominaled horrowings and derivatives. The Group has adepted net invesiment iredging in accordance
wilh LAS 39 and therefore the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrurmnent thal is determinad to be an effeciive hadge i recognised dmeclty
in equity. The inefieclive partion of the gain or 1ss on the hedqging instrument is recogmsed immediately in the mcome stalemant.

fratiltas

,The table befow shows the carrying amounts of the Group's Toreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. Provided contingzn tax on overseas
investments is nol expected ta occur it will be ignoned for hedging purpases, as is the requirement to fair value interest rate swaps. Based on the

31 March 2017 position 2 33% appredation [largest annual dlanqe over the last ten years] in the Euro relalive to Sterling would resutt in a [nil change
(2015/14: Enill in reported profits.

P Lisbifities
n7? 2006 2am7 e

€m [3:.) O £

Eurodenominated 11 0 1 10

Credit risk management

The Group's approach to credil risk management of counterparties is referred to in the Financial policies and principles on pagas 43 to 45 and the
risks addressed withih Managing risk in delivering Gur strategy on pages 46 1o 47. The carrying amount of financial asseis recorded in the financiak
statements represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking zccount of the value of any collatersad obtained.

Cash and short term deposits at 31 March 2017 arounted to £114m [2015/14: £114m). Deposits and interest rate deposils were placed with financial
institutions with BBB+. or better credit ratings.

AL 31 March 2017, the fair value of all interest rate derivative assets was £217m £2015/16: £167m].

At 31 March 2017, priar to taking into accaunt any offset arrangements, the largest combined credit exposure Lo a single counterparty arising trom
money markel deposits, liquid investments and derivatives was £120m [2015/16: £85ml. This represents 0.9% (2015/16: 0.6%] of gross assets.

The deposit exposures are with UK banks and UK branches of internalionat banks.

The Group's exposure to credit risk in respect of its lrade receivables is analysed in note 13. Provisions are made taking account historic creditlosses
and the ¢reditworthiness of debtors.

Liquidity risk management
The Graup’s approach to liquidily risk management is discussed in the Frnanciat policies and principles on pages 43 10 45, and the risks addiessed’
within Managing risk in delivering Our sirategy on pages 46 to 49.

The following table presents a malurity profile of the contracted undiscounted cash flows of finaricial liabilities based on the earliest dale on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal Rows. Where the interest payable is not fixed, the amount disciosed
has been delermined by reference 1o the projected interest rates implied by vield curves al the reporling date. For derivative financizl instrumenis
that selile on a nel basis le.q. interest rale swaps] the undiscounted net cash flaws are shown and for derivatives that require gress selliement
leg. cross currency swaps) the undiscounted gross cash Rows are presented. Where payment obligations are in fareign currencies, the spot
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date is used. Trade credilors and amounts owed to joint ventures, which are repayabile within one year,
have been excluded from the anatysis.
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17 Net debt continued

Liquidity risk management continued

The Group expects to meet its inancial Uzbflities through the varisus availabla Lguidity sources, induding a secure rentat income profile, asset sates,

undravm commitled borrowing fadlities and, in the longer term, debl refinanangs.

The Group teases out all ils invesument properties under operauing lesses with 2 weighled sverage lease length of eight years. This securs moome
profilz 1s generated from upward onty rent reviews_ long leases and high occupancy rates. The future aggregate mnimum rentals recewvable under
non-cancellable oparating leasas is also shown in the Llable betow. Income lrom joint venhures and funds is no! inclzded helov. Additional iquidity
will arise from letting space in properiies under construction as well as from distributions recerved from joint ventures and hmds.

1T
Three
Wiathin Following 1o five Ovwes e
one year year years years Toal
£m m Em £m &m
Debt® £59 n 1,240 1,420 3,152
Interest on debt a9 s 238 4468 878
Denivative payments 12 44 189 263 So8
Head lease payments 2 2 7 254 2565
Totat payments 562 165 1671 2,405 4,803
Dervalive receipls 128) (6% {255) 1251) (593}
Net payment 536 104 1414 2,154 4,210
Operzting leases with tenants 405 382 984 1.750 3528
Liguidity surplus ldeficit] 13 218 1£32) 1L04) 1589)
Cumulative liguidity surplus (defict] 13 147 (2851 (489
2015
Thoree
Within  Following tofie  Ovm fae
ane year year years yars Total
£ Em m £rn Em
Debt? 76 &8 15N 1577 3585
interest on debt 3 160 248 538 1.0699
Derivative payments 3 % 77 395 499
Head lease payments 2 2 & 3% e -
Total payments 194 577 1.822 2749 5,342
Denivalive receiplts 123 {251 1104) 1383) 1535}
Net payment m 552 1718 2366 4 807
Operating leases with tenants 437 419 1133 2389 4378
Liquidily surplus [deficit] 266 N33 1585} 3 1879
266 133 14521 15291

Cumutative liguidity surplus [deficit)

' Gross debt of C3,281m (2015/14: £3.751m) represents the 1otal of £3.152m, less unamartised 1ssue casts of £13m (2013/14: E19mi, plus fair value adjustments to dedi

ol E1£4rm [2013/15: E195m)

Any short term Liquidity gap between the net payrnents required and the remtals receivable can be mel through other liquidity sources available

to the Group. The Group currently holds cash and short term deposits of £114m of which £9%m is not subject to a securily interest [see foolnote 5
1o net debt table on page 127). Further liquidity can be achieved through sales of praperty assets or investments and debt refinancings.

The Group's property porilolie is valued exiernally at £2.520m and the share of joint venlures and funds’ propertyis valued at £4 80Tm.
The undrawn commmitted borrowing facilities avaitable 1o the Group are 3 further source of liquidity. The maturily profile of committed

undrawn borrowing facilities is shown overleal.

v
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.

17 Net del'_)l continued

Maturity of committed undrawn borrowing tacilities

am7 M

om £

Maturity date:  over free years B T -

’ between tour and five years . e 113
between three and (our years 58 93

Total ladlives available for more than three years ‘ 1293 1.208

" Between two and threa years uy 25
Between one and two years - ’ - =
Within one year 2 40
Totat ] ‘ 1444 1353

The above [acilities are comprised of British Land undrawn facilities of £1.322m, plus undraen facilities of Hercules Unit Trsst totalling £122m.
18 Leasing

Operating leases with tenants ' .
The Group leases aut all ol its investment proper lies under aperating leases with a weighted averaqe laase length of eight years 201%/18: nine yearst.

The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable aperaling leases are as follows:

2047 As

m £m

Less than one year 405 £37
Between one and twoyears. . 382 419
Between three and five years 984 133
Between six and ten years 980 1281
Belween eleven and fifteen years &40 b2
Between sixteen and twenly years 1381 357
ARer twanly years . 129 165
Total . 151 4378

The Groups leasehold investment properties are typicalty under non-renewable leases without significant restrictions. Finance lease liabilitres are
payable as follows; no contingent rents were payable in either period. .

M7 2018
Mirdmum Mnirram
tease lease
payments Interest Principal syl Interest Princpal
. £m £fm €m {m m £

British Land Group
Less than one year 2 2 - 2 pd -
Between one and two years 2 2 - 2 ‘2 -
Between two and five years ) 7 7 - & & -~
More than five years 249 205 bh 39 193 46
Totat - ' 280 218 &4 269 203 44
Less future finance charges ) 12181 {203}
Present value of lease ohiigati &4 - 44
More than five years 1] &6
Present value of lease ohligat &4 &6
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19 Dividend

The fourth quarter interim dividend of 7.30 pence per share, totatling £75m {2015/14: 709 pence per share, iastling {73miwas anproved by the Beard
on 14 May 2017 and is payable on 4 August 2017 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 30 June 2017,

The Board wilk announce ihe availability of the Sorip Dividand Aliemaiive, if available, via the Requlatory News Service and on its website
[www.biritishland.com{fdividends] no tater than four business days bafore the ex-dividend date of 33 June 2017 The Board expects o announce

the split between Property Income Distributions [PID)] and nen-PID incame al thal time. Any Scrip Divdend Alternative il not be enhanced. PID
dividends are paid. as required by RET legislation, after deductlion of withholding Lax at the hasic rate [ourrendty A%, whare dppropriaie. Certain
classes of shareholders may be able lo elect to receive dividends gross. Piease refer to our websile www.britishland.comfdividends for details. |

Fance par 2007 06
Payment date Orvidend share £m £ra
Current year dividends
05.08.2017 2017 &th interim 730
06.05.2017 2017 3rd intenim 730
12.02.2017 2017 2nd interim 730 s
06.11.2016 . 2017 1stintenim 730 k3
_ ‘ ‘ 29.20
Prior year dividends
05.08.2016 2015 4thinterim ’ o9 73
05.05.2016 2014 3rd interimn . 709 !
12.02.20146 ' 2006 Zndintenim 709 3
06.11.2015 2016 1stinterim . ) 709 72
28346
07.08.2015 2015 4th interim 6922 T
056.05.2015 2015 3rd interim 692 n
Owidends in consolidated statement -
of changes in aquily 296 .87
Dividends seltled in shares , . . - {52)
Ciividends settled in cash ‘ 29 235
Timing difference refating to payment '
of withholding tax [AL] -
Dividends m cash flow staterment ) 5 29 5
' Dividend split half PAD. hatf non-PID.
? Scrip alternative Wreated as non-PiD for s dnndesvd.
20 Share capital and reserves
] 7 2004
Number of ordinary shares inissue at ! April ' . 1.040,542,323 1,031,788.286
Share issues : £72,735 8,774,037
At31 March — 1,041,035,058 _1040.562.323

Of the issued 25p ordinary shares, 7,783 shares were held in the ESOP trust (2015/16: 627). 11,264,245 shares ware heid as treasury shares [2015/16:
11.266,245) and 1,629.761,030 shares warein free issue 12015!16 1.029.295.541). No treasury shares were acquired by the ESOP trust during the year
Allissued shares are fully pad.

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and translation reserve comprises the effective portion of the curnulative net change in the fair vatue of cash low and fareign currency
hedging instrumenis, as well as all foreign exchange dilferences arising from the transiation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

" The fareign exchange differences also include the translation of the liatilities that hedge the Company’s nel invesiment in a loreign sybsidiary.

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to awner-occupied properties and investments in joint ventures and funds.

Merger reserve

This comprises tha premium on the share placing in March 2013. No share premium is recorded in the Company’s financial statements, through the
operation of the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2006,
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20 Share capital and reserves continued

At 31 March 2017, oplions over 7.535. 141 ordinary shares wive aul slanding snder employes shara opiion plans. The eplions nag a weighled average
Litz of 4.6 years. Dztails of cutslanding share opdons and shares awarded to employees induding Executive Direclors are set out below and on the
foilowing pages:

Exartisa dates
A1 Ak Vesredbut  Exercise A3 Harch sz
Gate of grant N Granted ot aerased Vostad Lapsaed 7 price pence Frern o
Share oplions Sharesave Sthemse
0107.11 7172 - - 7172 - - 47380 M09 288237
26,0612 42498 - - - - 42898 39200 010937 030338
19.06.13 © T2 - - 3158 e 17 51100 01.0%.6 260217
19.06.13 15,202 - - - - 122 5100 010218 01039
23.06.14 137,256 - - [2.855) (78520 V4537 57400 009i7  01.0318
230614 127192 - - . 5.268)  (3676]  9MAS0 57600 010919 010320
726615 76,167 - - 193l [367691 - 39205 69700 010918 010319
22.86.15 58,350 - - - [37968), 20382 2700 01.0920 MO32
200614 - 128720 - - [20.719) 21N 408 00 01.091%9 01.63.20
20.06.14 ~ 78344 - - {19848l 59300 60800 010921 010322
498877 191184 - {&13a8) 58453 4BAI92 '

Long-Term Incentive Plan — Options Yested, Not Exercised . .
200609 1472 - - 141391 - 19,333 38700 290612 290639
21.12.09 72456 - - 127841 - ETI0 44400 211212 211219
1.85.10 1.208.357 - . - 11.208 - 2207153 44700 110613 11.06.20
181210 £9.647 - _ 19.095) 639} Seem 510.00 140203 163220
280611 s 1084233 - - [260007) {973 823,263 57500 78041 280620
ICRVELS 95575 - - Q1sen BT 76826 45180 - WAL WAL
14.09.12 1L116,716 - - 4562/ 05776) 1055907 53800 10905 140922
201212 12037 - - P332 94481  TI3ES 54300 00215 2012.22
05.08.13 b7t 663478 - 248220 125441 333,028 43100 050816 050823
051213 5766 402,600 - 42691 11960821 208,815  400.00 051216 051223
230614 7890 - = - (78901 - - 68633 230617 230624

.3.802357 1066278 - 14021931 15847391 3971503
Long-Term Incentive Plan ~ Unvested Options '
05.08.13 463678~ (463478 - - - 60100 050836 050823
050213 . 402,600 - [402.600] - - - - s00p0 050236 050223
230674 : 829,708 - - - 1658541 7e38Ss 68433 220617 730624
121204 26,127 N - - - 327 757.83 22247 129224
220615 1.189.207 - - - [87354) 1021853 82450 220618 220625
22.06.16 . - 133352 - - He582) 1317362 73050 220819 2206.26

3031320 1333924 (1.066.278) - D6TT00 3129196
Total 7332304 2591366  [1.066.278]  1469339]  [873.167] 25348
‘Weighted average exercise .
price of options {pence) 599 668 501 557 438 &2 '
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20 Share capital and reserves continued

ALY Ag Bt £131 Mavch aﬁﬁ'::;
Date of grant 015 Granimd Vested Lagsed an? pance  Vestng daiz
Performance Shares Lang-Term Intentiva Plan
05.08.13 1.034,653 - BBs3asn 18532880 - MBI UbBRIS
051213 ’ ! 230726 - li2¢%020 053241 - 600040 031216
730614 1,359,223 - - 568691 1,302,354 68408 2304107
12.42.14 £.354 - - - 4,354 73783 121207
220615 1199.7462 - - [48.5631 1,351,199 B2450 220818
220616 - 1.288.35% - 114.6020 1,273.754 7050 220619
3.830.018 1288356 1788059 [67B.6440 3,731,661
Fund Managers’ Performance Plan -
02.08.13 177.664 - 1783300 {1.334] - 57900 020817
179.664 - 783300 . (1.334) -
Matching Share Plan
02.08.i3 348.8%0 - 72445 [75.445) - 60966 02086
300614 289560 - - - 289560 70240 300507
290615 82170 - - L (AT 80400 2904638
29.06.16 - 318932 - - 38532 BO7:00 29.06.19
920.620 318932 (1746450 744450 890,642 ‘
Totat 4930302 1607288 [1.060.844)1 854,423} 4,622,323
Weighted average price of shares [pence) 697 746 602 623 749

21 Segment information

The Group allocates resources to investmen! and assel management according to the seclors il expects to perform over the medium term. lis threz
principal secters are Offices, Retatt and Canada Water. The Qffice sector includes residential_ as Lhis is often incorporated into Olfice schemes. The

Glfices sector also includes the British Land share of the Leadanhatl junt venture [see note 11). Thz Retal

incorporated inlo Retail schemes.

il sector includes taisure, as this is olten

The relevant gross rental income, nel rentat incame, operating resull and property assels, being the measures of segmenl revenue, segment resull
and segment assels used by the management of the business, are sel out below. Managemen! reviews Lhe performance of the business principally on
a proporiionally consolidated basis, which indudes the Group's share of joint ventunes and funds on a line-by-line basis and excludes non-coniroiling

_ inlerests in the Group's subsidiaries. The chiel operating decision maker for the purpose of segment information is the Executive Committee.

Gross rental income 15 dertved from the rental of bwildings and the sate of trading properties. Operaung result is Lhe net of net rgmél income,
fee income and administralive expenses. No customer exceeded 10% ol the Group's revenues in either year.
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21 Segment information continued

Segment resutt
Offices Reel Canada Water Gahesfunaiiacatad otz
07 i) 07 EiplY 07 2006 m7 2014 22007 2016
£m &m &m fm £m L &m Im £m Em
Gross rental incomie
British Land Group 139 133 79 2% 9 8 - - &7 432
Share of joint ventures and funds 1113 14 100 104 - - - ne 222
Total ' 755 247 1wy 395 9 B - 643 454
Netrental income .
Bntish Land Group 13t 124 245 277 B8 7 (U} - 03 ‘408
Share of joint venlures and funds 12 10 5 9% - - - 3 207 212
Total 243 234 350 b B8 7 [} 3 &§10 £28
Operating result .
British Land Group . 127 nz =5 260 5 7 B0} 154 337 3
Share of joint ventures and lunds 109 109 9% 102 - - [L]] {1l 204 218
Total 236 21 k) 52 5 7 151 147} 541 543
7 M6
Recudliation to Undertying Proft Em m
Uperating resuft S41 343
Nel financing costs 151 {1801
Undertying Profit 390 3563
Reconciliation to profit on ordinary activities before taxation
‘Undertying Profit 390 353
Capital and other 209 954
Undertying Profit aliributable to non-conieglling interests 14 14
Total profit on ordinary activities before taxation 95 1.331
Of the total revenues above. £nil [2035/14; £ 4m| was derived from cutside the UK.
Segment assets
Qffices Rzl CanadaWater Otherfunallocated Towak
2017 o1y 2017 il 2017 2016 07 20 2017 2018
fm m £m &m m &m €m m £m
Property assets
British Land Group 4,723 4181 L6 5383 m 283 - - 9210 9787
Share of joinl ventures and funds 2,192 2843 1,738 2.m8 - - - - £.730 £.861
Total 1.016 2,024 8,654 7.341 n 283 - - 13940 14448
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21 Segment information continued

Reconciliation to net assets

017 i
British Land Group : €m m
Property assals 13940 15448
Other non-current assels ' ' 156 138
Non—current assets - 14,098 14,785
Diher net current liahilities : 1384} {77
Adjusted net debt 5.223) 47830
Diher non-current labilities ' m LX)
EPRA net assets [undituted) ) , 9498 9674
Corwvertible dilution - 400
EPRA net assats [dituted) : 9498 10074
Non-controlling interests : 258 277
EPRA adjustment: 277 {732
Netassols 474 9.619

22 Capital cmnmitmenls

The aggregate capital commitments o puichase, construct or devetop investmaal property. for repairs, maintenance of mhancemenls. or Inr the
purchase of ivestments which are contracted for but nol proraded, are sel out belows:

2017 i3]

&m Em

British Land and subsidiaries lincludes share of development loan facility) ) 8BS A%
Share of joint venlures - - 19 40
Share of funds 2 2
' 07 216

23 Related party transactions

In the prior year the Group had provided a development lean of up to £324m to the Broadgate joint venture, secured against the 5 Broadgate
developmenl. The toan was fully repaid in the prior year and interest and commitment fees eamned oathe loan in the prior year were £4m.

Detaits of transactions with joint vertures and funds are given in notes 3, 6 and ¥1. During the year the Group recogmsed joini venture management
tees of E9m |2015/16: £Bm). Details of Directors’ rermuneration are given in the Remuneration Report on pages 73 10 88 Oetails of Iransactions with
key management personnel are provided in note 8. Delails of transaclions with The Brilish Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme, and ather
smaller pension schemes, are given in note 9.

24 Contingent liabilities

Group, joint ventures and funds
The Group. joint vertures and funds have contingent tiabilites in respeci of legal daims. quarantees and warranlies arising in the' ordinary course
of business. It is nol anticipated thal any material liabilities will arise from contingent liabilites.

N
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25 Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests

Set oul below is summarised finandis! information for each subsidiary that has nen-contralling intarasts that are materiat 10 the Group.

The information bzlow is the amcunt belore intercompany eliminalions. and reps is the'o fidated results of the Hercutes Unit Trus? groun.
Summarised income statement for the year endéd 31 March
Harnudos U Tnosd
7 26
. fm im
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 10 59
Attribytable to non-controlling interests 3 134
Altributable to the shareholders of the Company . : 7 &0
Summarised balance sheet as 3t 31 March -
Homodes Ul Trast
2017 706
] em tm
Tolal assets . . . . 1509 1.4%0
Tolal liabilit . ) 1534 1£49)
Netassets i 978 1,021
Non-centrolling interests {255) 2
Equity attributable to sharcholders of tha Company : 723 ThE
Surmmarised cash flows
Heroes Und Trosk
m7 216
. £m Emn
Netincrease {decrease] in cash and cash equivatents 10 5
Cash and cash equivatents al 1 April ) ) 30 5
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March . . . 40 30

The Hercules Unit Trust is a publicty listed Unit Trust. The unit price at 31 March 2017 is £684 [2019/16: £719). Non-controlling interesis collechively
own 23 5% of units inissue. The British Land Campany PLC owns 74.5% of unils in issue, each of which conler equal woting righis, therafore is
deerned lo exarcise controt over the trust.

- 26 Subseguent events

There have been no sigaificant events since the yaor end.
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27 Audit exemptions taken for subsidiaries

The following subsidianes are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2004 relating o the sudit of individual accounts by wirtue of

Section 473A of that Act.

Camganies House Companias House
Mame - regmenber Name reg ruember
BF Pronca INo 13) Limited 5270274  Pillar Retafl Parks Limited 2725163
Apartpower Liritad 2832059  Pillar Speke Limited 3074360
Pillarcaisce Management Limited 2961307  Wates City of Landon Proparties Limitad 1788526
Number 88 Cheapside Limiled 634498 Mecadowhall Opportunitizs GP Limited 97253
BL HC Pruperty Holdings Limited 4894046  Adamant imestment Corporation Limited 25149
BL Heatth Clubs PH No 1 Limited 5643248  Osnaburgh Streaet Limited 5886735
BL Haalth Clubs PH No Z Limited 5643281  British Land Pruperty Advisers {_imited 7793828
British Land Hercules No 1 Limited 3527580  British Land Havoules No 4 Limited 310865¢
PillarStere Limited 2850422  Broadgate (PHC 8] Limited 3707220
Parwick Investments Limited 454279  British E.and In Town Retail Limited 3325064
Hernpel Holdings Limited 5341380  Dreke Circus Leisure Limited 9190208
Hilden Properties Lirnited MNI062887  Diomedess Property No 2 L imited 5303624
20 Brock Sireet Limited 7401497 hvoryhilt Limited 2307407
BL Clifion Mear Lirnited 730819 Pardev(@roadwayl Limiled 2891851
8L [Maidanhead] Cornpany Limited 7667835 Parinv Northermn Limited 2523037
Bayeast Property Co Limited 635800  Pillar {Kirkcatdy] Limited I0AELZ
Boldswitch Limited 30709  BL [Bursledon] Limited 3854557
Paddington Central L IGP) Limited 3891376  Shopping Centres Limited ZZ36056
Paddington Centrat Il (Gf) Limited 5092409  BL Broadgate Fragment 1 Limited Q400407
TPP lnvestrments Limited 4BA3814  BL Broadgate Fragment 2 Limited 9400541
BL Dsnaburgh St Residential Ltd 6874573  BL Broadgate Fragment 3Limited 9400511
Motrags {Praperty Developmenisi Litnited 1185513 Bi Broadgaie Fragrmant 4 Linited 9460467
39 Vicloria Street Limited . 7037133 Bl Broadgate Fragment SLimited 9400413
Lancaster General Partner Limited 5452195  BL Bruadgate Fregment & Limited 9400414
Teesside Leisure Park Limited 2672136
Cavendish Geared Limiled 2779045

The following parinerships are exempt from the requirements to prepare, publish and have audited individual accounts by virtue of regulation 7

of The Partnerships {Accounis| Regulations 2008. The results of these parinerships are ennsolifaled within these Group accounts.

Name

Mame

Bl Shoreditch Limited Parinership
BLChess No 1 Limited Partnership
Paddington Central FLP
Paddington Central Il LP

Meadowhali Oppartunities Limited Partnership

BLCW Upger LP

Hereford Shopping Centre Limited Partnership
Bl Lancaster Limited Partnership .
Paddinglon Block ALP
Paddingion Block BLP
Paddingten Kiosk LP

i
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Fhirial seatvments

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WiTH FRS 101 AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

‘ 017 2016
Nala £€m . fm
Fixed assets
lnwestments and loans to subsidiaries 0 27518 21518
Investmants in joind ventures O 4N 3975
Qther investments 3] 38 7
Interest rale deivative assels E 217 167

[Ceferred Lax assels - 1
. 28,201 28098

Cyrrent assets

Debtors G ] 7 14

Cash and short term deposits ’ E &9 - 36
54 50

Current liabilities

Short term borrowings and overdralts E 163] 174)

Creditors ) H ho3) 7

19.4100 18.444)
9578 8597}

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net cyrrent iabilities - [19.522) {18 547)
Totat assets less current liahilities . ' 8,679 7,551
Non-current liabilities

Debentures and loans E {1,978) [2.216)
Interest rate derivative Liabilities E 1134) msl
Amounts due o subsidiaries ’ 331 1779
Deferred lax and gther non-current liabilities 7 13) -

12,448) (3.114)

Netassets ' , 6,233 6,437

! L]

Equity

Called up share capital | 260 . 260
Share premiumm ’ 1,298 1,295
Other reserves . N3ag) 1v201
Merger reserve . 213 213
Helained earnings £59% - 4,789
Total equity ' 6,233 6.437

The profit after ta

for the year ending 31 March 2017 for the Company was £121m [year ending 31 March 2014: E171m).

MGt

John Gildersleeve o Lucinda Bell
Chairman ; Chief Financial Officer

Approved by the Board on 16 May 2017

Company number 621920
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 '

Profil and
Share Share Othar  Memger toss Tota!
promium TeSIVES, resve | auoount equily .
€m Em €m
Balance at 1 April 2018 1.295 4 789 6,437
Sharaissues . 3 - 3
Dividend paid - 1298) 2951
Fawr valye of share and share oplion ewards - F4 2
Purchase of own shares - Iai i8)
Net actuanial loss on pension schemes - 2 2
Profit for the year after laxation - izt m
Derivative valualion movement - - ]
Balance at 31 March 2017 1.298 £.5%6 6,233
Batance at 1 April 2015 1.280 4858 &3515
Shareissues 15 2l 5
Adjustment lor scrip dividend element - 52 52
Dividend paid - (287 1287}
Fair value ol share and share option awards - 8 8
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - i ]
Prolit tor the year after Laxation - 13 \ra)
Derivalive valualion m t - - 26}
Balance at 31 March 2016 1.29% 4789 6437
The value of distributable reserves within the profit and loss accaunt is £2.911m (2019114: £3.336m).
145
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Finaawcidd seatescn s

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(A) Acconnting policies

Tha iinanaal statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been
prepared en the historical cost basis, axcept for the revaluation of
derivatives_These financial sialements have also been prepared in
accordance with Financiat Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework §FRS 107). The amendments to FRS 101 {201%/16 Cycte]
issued in July 2016 and eifective immadiatty have been applied.

In preparing these financiat statements, the Company applies the
recognition, measurement and disclosure requirementis of Internationat
Financial Reporling Standards as adopted by the EU {‘Adopled IFRSS'),
but makes amendments where necessary in order o compty wilk the
Companies Act 2004 and has set out below where advantage of the

FRS 101 disciosure exemplions has been taken,

The Company has taken advantage of the fellowing disclosure
exemplions under FRS 101:

[al the raquirements of IAS 1 to provide a Balance Sheet at the
beginning of the pariod in the evant of a prior period adjustement;

[b) the requirernents of IAS 1 lo provide a Stalernent of cash Hows
lor the period; .

fcl the raquirements of 1AS 1 to provide a stalernent of compliance
with IFRS;

[d} the requirements of 1AS 1 Lo disclose infermation on the
management of capital;

{e) the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting
Paolicies, Changes in Accounting Estimaies and Errors lo disclose
new IFRSs thal have been issued but are not yel efiectve:

1) the requirements in IAS 24 Related Parly Disclosures lo
disclose related party transaclions enered into between lwo
or more members of a group. provided that any subsidiary which
is a party to the transaction is wholly-owned by such a member:

{g} the requirernents of paragraph 17 of LAS 24 Related Parly
Disclosures to disclose key management personnet compensation;

[h) thre requirements of IFRS 7 ko disclose finandial instrurnents: and

(il the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement 1o disclose information of fair vatue valuation
techniques and inpuls.

Going cancern
The financial statemenis are prepared on the going concenn basis
as explained in the corporate governance section on page 65.
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Investments and loans
lowesimsends and loans m subsidiares and joind ventures are stated
21 cost less provision for impantaent

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The key source of estimation uncertainty relates to the Cornpany's

i = subsidianes and joinl ventures. ln esimabng the
requirement for impainment of these ivestments, managesment
make assumptions and judgzraents on the velue of these mvestments
using inherenty subjective underiying asset valuations, supported

by independent valuers.

{B) Dividends
Delails of dividends paid and proposed are included i note 32
of ithe consolidgaied finantiat stalenents.

{C) Emplmee information

Employee costs include wages and salaries of CI7m {20§5/16: £35m),
social securily costs of £5m (2015/16: £5m) and pension costs of £5m
12015/14: Céenl. Details of the Exacutive Directors’ remunaration ane
disclesed in the Remuneration Reporl.

Audit fees in relation to the parent Company anly were £0.2m ’
[200%/14: £0.2m].



(D) Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, loans to subsidiaries and other investments - -

krvashmends

Sharesin Loans o 1 Oihar
thradiarics Subsdan i s Totat
£m Em om Cm £m
On 1 April 2016 2.268 750 395 17 27930
Additions 3t 2,155 38 21 2,243
Disposals 1535} 1593 - 3] {2,131
Pruvision for Impairment ' is8t - - - {58)
Asat 31 March 2017 19.706 7812 (%) 35 27,984

The historical cost of shares in subsidianies ts £20,025m [2015/16: £20.523ml. Investmenls in jomnt ventures of £431m [2015/38: £395m] indludes
£265m [2015/16: £276in] of leans to joint ventures by the Company. Results of the joini venlures are set out innole 11 of the censotidated knancial

statements. The hisloricat cost of other investments is £48m [2015/15: £87ra).

(E) Netdebt
2017 113
o 3,1
Seoured on the assets of the Cempany
5.244% First Mortgage Bebenture Bonds 2035 3In n
5.0055% First Mortgaga Amortising Dzbentures 2035 ” g
5.337% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2028 348 349
6.75% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2020 - &2
Loan noles .= 2
824 8B4
Unsecured
5.50% Senior Notes 2027 102 101
3.895% Senior US Dollar Notes 2018 krd 23
4.635% Senior US Dollar Notes 2621* 181 165
4.766% Senior US Dollar Nates 223" 13 185
5.003% Senior US Dotlar Notes 2026 73 &9
3.81% Senior Notes 2026 - 1% 3
3.97% Senior Notes 2024 1?7 14
Fair vatue of options te issue under 1.5% converltible bond 2017 5 48
Fair value of options to issue under 0% convertibte bond 2020 3 7
Bank loans and overdrafis 477 638
117 1,406
Gross debt 2,081 2,290
_ Interest rate and currency derivalive liabitilies 134 ne
Interast raté and currency derivalive assels a1 e
Cash and short tarm deposils 149} {34)
1,509 2.206

Netdeht

1 Principal and interast on these borrowings were fully hedged inte Sterling al a floating rate at the lime of issue.

1.5% Convertible bond 2012 (maturity 2017}

On 10 Seplember 2012, Bnilish Land [Jersey| Limited ithe 2012 Issuerl, a wholly-owned subsidiacy of the Company, issued £400 milion 1.5%

-guaranieed convertible bonds due 2017 [the 2012 bonds] at par. The 2012 Issuar is fully guarantead by the Carmpany in respect of the 2012 bonds.

Subject to their terms, the 2012 bonds are converlible into preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are autamatlically lransferred to the Company

in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or, at the Company's election, any corbination of ardinary chares and cash. Bondhotders may

exercise their conversion right at any time up (o [but excluding] the 20th dealing day before 10 September 2017 {the maturity datel,

The initial exchange price was 493.07 pence per ordinary share. The axchange price is adjusted based on certain events.
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Finanviat statements

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

(E) Net debt continued

Fropm 235 Septamber 2015, the Company has thz option tg radeem the 2012 boads 2t par if the Company's share pive has radad shove 130% of

the exchange price for a specified period. er 3t any lime ence $5% by sominal value of the 2012 bonds have been conwerted, redeemed, or purchased
and canceited. The 2012 bonds will be redeemad at par on 18 September 2017 [the matuniy dale) if they have not already been converted, redsemed
or puichased and cancelled. No redemplion of tha bonds scourred in the year.

The intercompany loan b the Issuer and the Company arising from the transfer of the (oan procesds was inftisily recognised at fair valire,

net of capitalised issue costs, and is accounted for using the amortised cost methad. in addition Lo the intercompany toan, the Company has entered
into a derivative contract relaling to its quarantee of the obligalions of tha Issuer in respect of the Bonds and the comamitrnent to provide shares or
a combination of shares and cash on conversion of the Bonds. This denvative contract is included within the balance sheat as a bability carried at
fair value through profil and loss. .

8% Convertible bond 2015 Imaturity 2020}
0n ? June 2015, British Land [White) 2015 Limited the 2015 Issuerd), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued £350 millicn Zero couspon
guaranteed convertible bonds due 2020 {the 2015 bonds] at par. The 2015 issuer is fully guaranteed by the Company in respact of the 2015 bonds.

Subject to their lermns, the 2015 bends are conver kible inte preference shares of the 2015 Issuer which are aulumatically Wansferred o the Company
in exchange for ordinary shares in the Cornpany or. at the Company's election, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. From 20 July 2015 up

to and indluding 29 June 2018, a bondholiter may exerdise its convarsion right i the share price has traded 3t a leval exceading 130% o the exchange
price for a specified period. Thereafer, 2nd up te but excluding the Tth dealing day bzfore 9 Juna 2020 [the maturity date), a bondholder may comvert
at any time. . T

The initial exchange price was YW3.32 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted based on certain events Isudy as the Company
paying dividends in any quarter above 3.418 pence per oodinary sharel. As at 31 March 2017 the exchange price was 1063.7% pence per ondinary share.

From 30 june 2018, the Company has the oplion te redeam the 2015 bonds at par if the Company's share price has traded above 130% of the
exchange price lor a specified period. or at 2any time once 85% by nominal vatue of the 2015 bonds have been comverted. redeemed, or purchased
and cancelted. The 2015 bonds will b2 redeemad at par on ¥ June 2020 {the maturity date] if they have not already bean convertad, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

The intercompany loan between the Issuer and the Company arising from Lhe transier of the toan proceeds was initially recognised al fair value,

nel of capilalised issue costs, and s acoounted for using the amortised cost method. in addition to the intercompany {oan, the Company has entered
into & derivalive contract relating 16 it s quarantee of the shligations f the Issuer in respect of the bonds and the Commitment to provide shares or s
combination of shares and cash on conversion of the bonds. This derivative contract is inclyded within the balance sheet 25 2 liability carried al fair
value through prafit and foss.

Maturity analysis of net debt

2017 e

£m (2]

Repayable within one year and on demand ' 63 T4
belween: one and two years By n 07
two and five years ' &42 414

five and ren years 782 807

ten and filteen years I 500

fifteen and twenty years. 9% 384

1978 2.216

Gross debt 2041 2.2%0
Interest rate derivatives 83) 148)
Cash and shart term deposits . . &9) 136l
Netdebt ' 1909 2.206

(F) Pension .

The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme and the Oefined Contributien Pension Scheme are Lhe principal pension schemes of Lhe
Company and delails are set oul in noie 9 of the consolidaled financial statements.
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(G) Debtors

* 17 i) 1
m £m
Trsdz and other deblors - | 9
Prepayments and accrued income 4 5
) 7 14
(H) Creditors
. 201 2008
- £m fm
Trade credilors 12 3
ECorporation tax , 29 18
Other iaxation and sodial security n 27
Accruals and deferred income 7] 7
105 17
(1) Share capital
shares
. [1,1] ol 3p cach
Issued, called and fully paid :
At 1 Aprd 2016 268 1,040.562.373
lssued - 472731 ¢
At 31 March 2017 240 1,061,035,058 °
2 shares
. Em of Z5p &ach
Issued, called and fully paid :
Al t Aprit 2015 38 5.031788 2856
Issued ¥ 8 774,037
At 31 March 2016 260 1.040.562.373

(I} Contingent liabi]iﬁ'&s, capital commitments and related party transactions

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims, guarantees and warranties arising in the ordinary course of business.

itis not anticipated that any materiat lizbitities will arise from the contingent liabilities.

A131 March 2[11;1_ ihe Company has £ Im of capital commitmenis [2015/16: £13m].

Related party transactions are the same for the Company as for the Group. For details refer 1o note 23 of the consolidaled finandial statements.

-
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Fingncial seatemoents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

(K) Related undertakings Narre m&:
Disclosures relating to subsidiary undectakings M5C Property intermediate Heldings Limied UK Tax Resident
Tha Company’s subsidiaries and olher related undertakings al 31 March | (0% interestl
2017 are listed below. All Group enlities are included in the consolidated | Plantabion House Limited UK Tax Resident
financiat resulls. Priory Park Merton Limited UK Tax Resident
Real Assel Insurance Limited lin liguidation) Overseas Tax Resident
Unless atherwise stated, the Comparny holds 100°% of the voting rights {Guemseylt
and benefiial inlerests in the shares of the followang subsidiaries, Regis Property Holdings Limited LK T2x Resident
pa{lnerships__ associates and joint ventuces. Unless ulhetyo‘ise stated, The British Land Corporation Limited V¥ Tax Rasident
the subsidiaries and re{aled underlakings are ragisterad in the Vitloreate UK Tax Residart
United Kingdom.
The share capital of e2ch of the Companies, whera applicabl tdirect hotdings
] [« panies, applicable,
comprises oip;rdinary shares untess otherwise slal:::.. C?M"’f’“’ um
The Company helds the majonity of its assets in UK compantes, 16487 Iriton L'_m'_led UK Tax Resideni
although sume are held in ovarseas companies. In recent yaars we 0 Brock Street Limited UK Tax Resident
have reduced the number ol averseas companies in the Group. 10 Portman Square Unit Trust ersey} {UnitsP Overseas Tax Resident
10 Triton Street Limited UK Tax Resident
Unless noted otherwise as per the foilowing ey, tha registered address 17-19 Bediord Strezi Limited UK Tax Resident
of each company is York House, 45 Seyrour Stree1_ London, WIH 7LX. 18-20 Craven Hill Gardens Limited UK Tax Resident
* 13-16 Esplanade, St Helier, JE1 18D, Jersey. 20 Brock Street Limited UK Tax Residant
* 1583 Broadway, 37th Floor, New York MY 10034-8293, Uniled States. 20 Triton Streel Limited UK Tax Resident
' 47 Esplanade, St Helier. Jersey. JE1068D, Jersey. 338 Euston Road Limited UK Tax Residant
:: m;ﬁwmﬂ;{% 35 Basinghall Sireet First Limited UX Tax Resident
- Lefobra House, L elatire Storet, S1 Peter Port, Y1 3TF, Guernsey. 35 Basinghall Strest Second Limited UK Tax Resident
* Leidsekade 102, 1017 PP, Amslerdam, Netherlands. 350 Euston Road Limited UK Tax Resident
* Ogier House. The Esplanade. S Hetier: JES FWS. Jersey 37 Yictoria Street Limited UK Tax Resident
mzmm Trust Company. K209 Brange Siceet, Witmington GE 19801, 8-10 Thregmorion Avenue Limited UK Ta;f Resident
Adamant | tment Corporation Limided UK Tax Resid
Direct holdings Adshilta Limited UK Tax Rasident
UK/Overseas Tax | Aldgate Place [GP] Limited {50% interest] UK Tax Resident
Company Name Resident Status | Aparipower Limited ‘ UK Tax Resident
BL Bluebutton 2014 Lisnited UK Tax Residenl | Ashband Limited X Yax Residani
B Davidson Limited UK Tax Resident | B.L.CT. [12697] Limited | lerseyP U¥ Tax Resident
BL Exempl Insurance Services Limited UK Tax Resident | B.L.C.T [21500] Limited UerseyP UK Tax Resident
BL Intermnadiale Holding Company Limited UK Tox Resident | B.t.C.T. {29900) Limited | fersey)? UK Tax Resident
BLSSP Funding) Limited . UK Tax Resident ¢ B.L.U.111193) Limited {JerseyP UK Tax Resident
Bluebution Property Management UK Limitad UK Tax Resident | Balsenia Limited UK Tax Resident
150% interest Barnclass Limited UK Tax Resident
Boldswitch {No 1] Limited UK Tax Resident | Barndrill Lirmited UK Tax Resident
Boldswilch Limited UK Tax Resident | B egct PropertyCo Limited UK Tax Resident
Brilish Land [ Jarseyl Limited | Jersey) UK Tax Resident | Bexile Limited UK Tax Resident
{Founder Sharesf? : BF Propco (No 1 | Limited UK Tox Resident
British Land City UK Tax Resident BF PropcolNo (3] Limited UK Tax Rositlont
Br!ttsh Land Cfty 2005 le.lte_d UK Tax R _J : BF Propee fNo 19 ) Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land City Offices Limited UK Tax Resident BF PropcoINo 3| Limiled UM Tox Resident
Bntish Land Financing Limited _ UK Tax Resident | o bropeoNo & | Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land knwestmenis Netherlands Holding Overseas Tax Resident — -
BV [Nethertandsl” . ) BF Propco ING 5} Limied LK Tax Resgdent
Brilish Land Properties Limited UK Tax Resident | BF Properties [No & } Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Real Estate Limited UK Tax Resident | BF PropertiesiNa 5 ) Limated UK Tax Resident
British Land Securilies Limited UK Tax Residens | Birstall Co-Ownership Trust Member Interest] UK Tax Resident
— —— - 141.25% interest)
British Land Securitisation 1999 UK Tax Resident BL & N Acquisition Limited UK TaxResidert
Broadgate [Fundingl PLC UK Tax Resident BL [Maidenhead) Company Limited UK Tax Resident
—- —— | )
gztravai:‘g!:l&ﬁ:::les Insurance Medialion UK Tax t | Bl [SP) Cannon Street I.:im_it o UK Tax Resaiden{
Hyllee Lirmited UK Tax Resident | BL (5P Investmant{1) Ll-ml-(ed LK Tax Restdent
Kingsmere Productions Limited UK Tax Resident | 8L (5Pl investment {2} Limited UK Tax Resident
Linestair Limited UK Tax Resident | BLISPlInvestiment [3) le!led UK Tax Res!ﬂem
London and Henley Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident BL i5P] investment [4] Limiled UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Pensions Scheme Trustee Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Baker Co 2012 Limited UerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
j BL Bradlord Forsier Limited LiK Tax Resigent
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BL Health Clubs PH No 2 Limited

Company UK/Overseas Tax | Company UK/Overseas Tax
Name ResdentSizatus | Mame Recident Skatus
BL Bristington LimRzd UK Taz Resident | BL High Street and Shopping Centres Holding UK Tex Resident
81 Broadgate Fragment § Limited UK Tax Resident | Company Limited
BL Broadgate Fragmenti 2 Lirnited UK Tax Resident | BL Lancaster investments Lid UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragmant 3 Limitad UK Tax Resident &i’;:ﬁ:ﬁk;;“;fﬂ Partnarship UK Tax Resident
gt gz:ga‘e Fragment/ Limited UK Tax Resident | 1 cpdenhall Lerseyl Ltd arsaF Over seas Tox Resident
gate Fragment 5 Limited UK Tox Resident | o1 Leadenholl Holding Co lerseyl Lid Overseas Tax Resident
BL Broadgaie Fragment 6 Limited UK Tax Rasident UerseyP
8L Chess Limited _ UK Tax Resident | ') | emure end Industriat Holdsg UK Tax Resident
BL Chess No. 1 Limiled Partnership UK Tax Resident | Company Limited
[Parinership Interest] - BL Maylair Offices Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Eity Gifices Holding Company | imitad UK Tax Residant 8L Mezdowhall Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Cliften Moor lelted UK Tax Residenl. | B weadowhall Limited UK Tax Residant
BL CW Devalopments Limited UKTax Resident | B\ paadawhall No & Lumited UK Taz Resident
BL CW Haldings Limsted UK Tax Resident | i gifice INon-Cityl Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW lower GP Company L imited UK Tax Residenl | 5y gyfice Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lower Limited Partnership UK Taz Resident | gy Osnaburgh St Residential Lid UK Tax Resident
BLCW Lower LP Companyl_rmiled UK Tax Resident BL PictadﬁtyResidemiall PR UK Tax Residant
BLCW UDW GP CMM Limited UK Tax Resident BL Piccadilly Residential Management UM Tax Resident
BL CW Upper Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident | Co Limited
BL CW Upper LP Company Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Piccadilly Residendial Refail Limited UX Tax Resident
BL Cwnbran Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residential General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Debrs Limiled WerseyP Dverseas Tax Resident | 130% intecest]
BIL O=partment Stores Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resideny | BL Residential No. t Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Doncaster Whaatley Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residential No. 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
B\ Ealing Limiled UK Tax Resident | BE Residual Holding Company Limited UK Tox Resident
BL Eden Walk J2012 Limited [ lerseyP Overseas Tax Resident | BL Relail Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Eden Waltk Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Retait investments Limited UX Tax Resident
BL ESOP tiraited ilsle of Man} Overseas Tax Resident | BL Rg:il Warehousing Holding Company UK Tax Resident
a LI
(BN'f ef:g:,-m?]d Maragemant LLP UK Tax Resident Bl Sairsbury Superstores Limited {50% mterest] UK Tax Resident
BL European Holdings Limited U¥ Tax Resident | BL Shoreditch General Partner Limited UK Tax Residenl
Bl Fixed Uplift Fund Limited Partnarship UX Tax Resident | BL Shereditch Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
BL Fired Uplift Fund Nominee 1 L imited UK Tax Resident | (parinership interest) _ _
BL Fixed Uplitt Fund Namigee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | 24 2horeditchNo. 1 Limded UK Tax Resident
BL Fixed Uplilt Fund Nominee No.1 Limited Overseas Tax Resident | B Shoredilch No 2L imiled _ UK Tax Resident
© DerseyP Bl Superstores Holding Company | imited UK Tax Resident
L Fixed Uphft Fund Nominge No.? Limited Overseas Tax Resident | BL Tniton Building Residential Limited UK Tax Resident
[JerseyP . Ri Unit Trysi | JerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
BL Fixedt Uplifi Genesal Partner Limited UK Tax Resident | Bt Unitholder Na. 1 [J] Limited ElerseyP Dverseas Tax Resident
8L FW Lirnited UK Tax Resident | Bt Unilholder No. 2 D Limiled FerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
BL Goodman {General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Universat Limited UK Tax Resident
150% interesy) BL Wardrabe Couri Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Goodman [LPf Limited UK Tax Resideal | &) wast [Watling Housel Limited UX Tax Resident -
BL GP Chess No. 1 Limited UK Tax Resident Blackglen Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Guaranieeco Limi_teq ILimiled by Guaranteel UK Tax Resident | 512 qcuaii 1] UK Tax Resident
BL HB lvestments Lirmited ©_ UKTaxResident | gyaemilt [Thirty | Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC IDSCHI L|m1_[ed UK Tax Resident | gipymil [Twenty-ninel Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC {DSC‘LIi Limited UK Tox Resident | 5y 7A) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Doliview Limiled UK Tex Resident | By g |Ebury Gatel Limited UK Tax Residen
BL HE Hampshire PH LL.P {Member Interest] UK Tax Resident | g ) (S )] invesiments Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC He?lth And Filness Hotdings Limited UK Tax Resident | By 0 [S)) Limited UX Tax Resident
BL HC Invic Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident | 'g) b { and Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH CRG LLP [Mermber Interest] UK Tax Resident | ‘5| 1y properties Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC PHLLP{Member Interest) UK Tax Resident | 5 5 praperty Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC PH No 1 LLP IMember Interest) UK Tax Resident { g 7 Holdings 2010 Ltd {50% inlerest) UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH No ZLLP [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident | B/ 1j Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC PH No 3LLP [Member Interest) UK Tax Resident | ) 1) property Management Limiied UX Tax Residenl
BLHC Property Holdings L imited UK Tax Resident | 51 iy Securities Limited UK Vax Resident
Bi Health Clubs PH No 1 Limited UK Tax Resident | Briich | and Lioint Ventures) Limited UK Tax Resident
UK Tax Resident
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Fipapcial srarements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Company YK/Overseaslaxr | Company UN/Overseas Tax
Naymne Residart Status | Name Resident Status
British Land IWhitzl 2015 Limitad Uersey} UK Tax Rasidanl | City o Longon Uitica Unit trust Liersey} {Uniis] QOverseas Tax Residen)
Founder SharesP 135.24% ntevestP
Bnitish Land Acquisitions Lirnited UK Tax Resigent | Clarges Estate Property Management UX Tax Resideny
British Land Aqua Partnership (2] Limited UK Tax Residers | Colimited _
British Land Aqua Parthership Limited UK Tax Resident | Comganic Lir UK Tax Resident
- - Decird. -1 = - P Dacid
British Land Company Secretarial Limited UK Tax Resident { Cornish Residentiol Properties Trading L UK Tax Resi
British Land Construction Licnited UX Tax Residemt m Residenliat Property lnvestments UK Tax Resident
1% irm K T 1 "
Bnhsh Land Departrnent Stor.ts. Lirmited UK Tax Regdent e West ., UK Tox Rasident
British Land Developmenis Linited UX Tax Resident d - -
— — - Deepdate Co-Ownership Trust UK Tax Resident
Bnitish Land Fund Managerenl Limited Ui Tax Resident | (mamber interest] [37 66% interasy)
Bntish Land Hercules Limited UK TaxResident | gyorty vestment Holdings Limsted UK Tax Resident
iy Fap Bocadont
British Land Hercules No.1 Limited UK Tax ® | Dinwell Limited UX Tax Resideny
British Land Hercules No.3 Limnited UK Tax Resident | piomedes Property No.1 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercules No.4 Limiled UK Tax Resident | reon o Property No.2 Linited UK Tax Readent
British Land HIF Limited UK Tax Residen! { piomedes Proparty No.3 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land In Town Retail Limited UK Tax Residen? | nyomedes Property No.4 Limited UK Tax Residant
British Land Industrial Limited UK Tax Resident Diomedes Property No.5 Limited UK Tax Resident
Brilish Land lnvestmant Management Limited UK Tax Ressdent Dio Property No.& Limited UK Tax Rasideny
Britich Land lnvestments N ¥ [iNetherlandsl? UK Tax Resident | Dyomades Property No.7 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Leisure Limited UK Tox Resident | pyomedes Property No.8 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Offices [Non-City] Limited UK Tax Resident | hraxe Circus 6P L L C WUnited StatesP Overseas Tax Residant
British Land Olfices [Nan-Cityl No. Z Limited UX Tax Resigent | yoxe Circus Leisure Limited UX Tax Resident
British Land Offices Limited UK Tax Rasident | e Circus Limited Parinership IUnited Overseas Tax Resident
British Land Offices No.\ Limited UK Tax Residenl | States] [Partnership Interesy?
Brilish |_and Property Advisers Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Circus Unit Trust [ersey] [Unitsh Overseas Tax Resident
Brilish Land Proper ty Management L imiled UK Tax Residan! | Drake Property Holdings Limited LK Tax Resident
British | and Regeneralion Limited UK Taz Resident | Drake Property Nominee [No. 1) Limited LJ¥ Tax Resident
Brilish Land Relail Warehouses Limited UK Tax Residenit | Drake Property Nominee [No. 2) Limited UK Tax Resident
lin tiquidationi Eden Walk Shopping Centre General Partner UK Tax Resident
British Land Superstores INon Securitised} UK Tax Resid Limited {50% interest}
Nymber 2 Limited Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Broadgate |PHC 8] Limited UK Tax Resid {Jersey) {Units} I50% interest]®
Broadgate Adjoining Properties Limited UK Tax Resident | Edinburgh Fort Unit Trust {Jerseyl {Units] Overseas Tax Residem
Broadgate Business Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | 175.31% interestP
Broadgate City Limited UK Tax Resident | Elementvirtue Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Court Invesiments Limited UK Tax Resident | Elk Mill Oldham Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates Limited UK Tax Resid Euston Tower Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates People Management UK Tax Resid Exchange House Holdings Limited UK Yax Resident
Limnited Finsbury Avenue Estales Limited UK Tax Resident
Hroadgate Estates Hetal Manag t Limited UK Tax Resident | Four Broadgale Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Exchange Square UK TaxResident | FRP Group Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate kwestment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resid Garamead Propertizs Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate REIT Uimited [ lersey] (50% UK Tex Resident | Gardenray Limited UK Tax Resident
interest]' Gibraltar General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Square Limited UK Tax Resident | 37.66% interest]
Broughton Relait Park Limited {Jerseyl UK Tex Resident | Gibraltar Nominees Limited {37.66% interesi] UK Tax Resident
17531% interesl| Giltbrook Retail Park Notlingham Limited UK Tax Resident
Broughton Unil Trust{lerseyd {Unit sl Overseas Tax Resident | Lirmited UK Tax Resident
175.3%% interestp Hempel Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Brunswick Park Limited UK Tax Resident | HomP g7 it
—— - Hempel Hotels Limited UK Tax Resident
BVYP Developments Limited UK Tax Resident = - o
— - Hercules Property Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
Canada Water Officas Limited UK Tax Resident | |p,ripership Interest] [40.68% interest]
Casegood Etfterpﬁses UK Tax Res?dw Hercules Property UX Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Caseplane Limited UK Tax Residen! | yorcyles Properly UK Limiled 1K Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared 1i Lirnited UK Tax Resident { 1o rutes Unit Trust [erseyl [Units) verseas Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared Limiled UK Tax Resident | 175.31% interesi®
Caymalt Limited UK Tax Resident | Hereford Old Market Limited UK Tax Resident
Chanlway Limiled UK Tax Resident | Herelord Shopping Centre GP Limiled UK Tax Resident
Cheshine Properies Limited UK Tax Residen! | Hereford Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident
Chrisilu N Limited UK Tax Resident | Partnership IPartnership Interesty
Hilden Proparties Limited UK Tax Resident
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Company UK/Overseas Fax | Compamy UKfOverseas Tax
Name Residem Status | Name Resident Status
Homdrifi Limited UK Tex Resident | Paddington Central i [GP} Limited UK Tax Residen
HUT lnvestments Limited Lerseyl Overseas Tox Resident { Paddinglon Centrat W LP UX Tax Resident
IB31% interestP ' Paddington Centrat It Unit Trust Owerseas Tax Resident
industrial Real Estate Limited UK Tax Resident | [Jerseyl {UnitsP
Inststmetat 2 | imited UK Tax Resident | Paddinglon Central iV Unit Trust Derseyl Overseas Tax Residen
borydell Limited . UK Tax Resident :gaf::" — - e ——
L Subsidiary Limited UK Tax Resident ngton Leniral Managzme X
{WM il Limil:jm UK Tox Residert Company Limited [87.50% interes)) :
Jeibloom Limited UK TaxResident | £200ington Kiosk (GPILtd UK Tax Resident
L& H Developments Limiled UK Tax Resident [ -2odingion Kiusk LP UK Tox Resident
- — ~ Pardev [Broadway] Limited U¥ Tax Residenl
Lancaster Genaral Partner Limited UK Tax Resident PardeeLuton] imited UK Tar Residont
Lancaster Unit Trust Uerseyl WnitsP Overscas Tax Resident | —ooer e e
Leadenhall Holding Co |Jersey] Ltd Larseyl Overseas Tax Resident | Lari Northern Limiled UK Tax Resident
500, intarest] Parwick Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Livarpoul One Management Company Limited UK Tax Resident | Panwick Investments Limited UK Tax Resident
{50% interest PC Baltic Whard Limited UK Tax Resident
Liverpool One Managemnent Services Limiled Ul Tax Resident | PC Canal Limilted UK Tax Resident
London and Henley (UK) Uimited : UK Tax Resident | PC Lease Nominege Lid UK Tax Resident
London and Herley Limited UK Tax Resident | PC Partnership Nominee Lid UK Tax Resideni
Lonebndge UK Limited UK Tax Resident | Piccadilly Residential Limited U¥ Tax Residenl
Longford Stireel Residential Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar (Beckion] Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate Investment Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar {Birstalll Limited UK Tax Resadent
Ledgete Wesi Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar [Crickiewsod] Limited UK Tax Resident
Manbrig Properties UK Tax Resident | Pillar (Dartfors] Limited J¥ Tax Resident
Marble Arch House Unil Trust {Jerseyl {UnitsP Overseas Tax Resident | Pillar {Fulham] Limited UX Tax Resident
Maylair Properties UK Tax Resident | Pillar {irkcaldyl Limited UK Tax Resident
Mayflower Retail Park Basildon Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Auchintaa |imited UK Tax Resident
Meadowbank Retail Park Edinburgh Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Broadway Limnited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Cenlrn 1999 Uimited ¥ Tax Resident | Pillar Cheetharn Hill Limited UH Tax Residen
Meadowhall Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | Piliar City Pic UK Tax Residen
Meadowhall Cenire Pension Scheme Trustees UK Tax Resident | Pillar Dartlord No.1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Lirnited Pillar Ganton Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Estates RUKI Limited UK Tax Resident | pitjar Developments Limited UX Tax Resident
Meadowhall Group [MLP) Limited UK Tax Resident | pitiar Estates Limiled UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Holdings L imited UK Tax Resident | piltar Estates No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall (Modur‘uilies Noninee 1 Limited UK Tax Resident | pinar Eurupe Management Limitad UK Tax Resident
ieadowhall Dpportunities Nominee 2 Limiled UK Tax Resident | pijar Farnborough Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Training Limited UK Tax Resident | piltar Fort Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercari UK Tax Resident | pitar Fulham No. 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercari Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | piltar Gallions Reach Limited UK Tex Resident
Minhil Investrments Limited UK Tax Resident | piltar Glasgow | Limited UK Tax Residen
Moerage (Pruperty Developments) Limited UK Tax Resident | piiiar Glasgow 2 Limiled UK Tax Residenl
Moorfields Nominee 1 Limited UK Tax Resident | pijtar Glasgow 3 Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorfields Nominge 2 Limiled UK Tax Resident | pytar Herasles No.2 Limiled UK Tax Resident
Nugent Shopping Park Limited UK Tax Resident | pilyr Kinnaird Limited UK Tax Resident
Number 80 Cheapside Eimited UK Tax Resident | pijar Nugent Limited UK Tax Resident
OM Investmenis Limited [ Jerseyl® Overseas Tax Resident | piar Projects Limited UK Tax Residenl
One Hundred Ludgate Hitl UK Tax Resident | piar Propes ty Group Limited UK Tax Resident
One Sheldon Square Limited [lerseyl Overseas Tax Resident | pijtar Retail Europark Fund {Pref} Overseas Tax Resident
Orbital Shopping Park Swindon Limited UK Tax Resident | [Luxembourg) IMember intevest]
Osnaburgh Street Limited UK Tax Resident | [65.30% interest]s
Paddington Block A [GP] Lid UK Tax Resident Pillar Retait Parks Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block A LP {Partnership Interest] UK Tax Resident | Pitar Speke Limited UK Tax Resideat
Paddington Block 8 IGP) Lid 1)K Tax Resident | PillarCaisse Management Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Paddingten Block 8 LP IPartnership interest] UK Tax Resident IS.O% mtere?“ - -

" - A Filtarman Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Central | [GP] Limited UK Tax Resident | — — -

" - T PiltarStore Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddinglon Central | LP{Partnership Inerest} UK Tax Resident | — — -
Paddinaton €. - imiled UK Tax Resident PiltarSlore No.3 L}muted UK Tax Resident

ng entral | Nominee Limit = - -
Paddinglen Central | Urdt Trust Overeeas Tax Resident 1 Plymouth Retail Lindied U¥ Tax Resident
Power Court GP Limited UK Tax Residenl

{Jerseyl lUnitsp
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Finangial statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Campany UXfOverseasTax | Company UK/Overseas Tax
Name Resident Status | Name Residanm Status.
Paower Court Luton Limited Partnerstup UK Tex Resident | Tolgate Centre Colchester Limiled UK Tax Residens
{Partnership Interesi| . TPP Investrants Limited ’ UK Tax Residant
Power Courl Nominee Lirmited UK Tax Resident | fueed Premier { Uimited UK Tax Resident
Power Court Nominees No. 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | fweed Promier 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
{"_ngr;omgi';“em Company SA Overseas Tax Resident | Twaed Premier 4 Limited UK Tax Residant
LUy | Union Property Corporation Limited UK Tax Resident
';Zec: :“’f* "fu:_s::""“""“""‘d 3'3‘“ Residenl | Union Property Holdings [London] Limited UK Tax Resident
,Ect Sunrtse “ 25 Limited UKT“ Resid United Kingdom Property Company Limitad 1)K Tax Rasiizeni
Pm,ec - nnseJ pertizs Limite a ne,Len! Urban Estates Managemeni Limited UK Tax Resident
Reboline Li UK Tax {in liquidation
Regent’s Place Holding Company Limited UK fax Resident | valentine Go-ownership Trust fdember UK Tax Reside
Regents, Place Managemen! Cornpany Limitad UK Tax Resident | interest] [37.66% interest)
Renash UK Tax Resident { Valentine Unit Trust Llerseyl] [Units} Overseas Tax Residant
Rigphone Limited UK Tax Resident | 73:31% interesiP
Ritesol UK Tax Resident | Vidnilee Limited LUK Tax Residani
Robawk Properties Limited UK Tax Resident | Ynars Place Limited UK Tex Resigent
Salmax Properties UK Tax Resident | Wardrobe Court Limited UX Tax Residam
SE'YITIOI.II‘ Street Homes Limited UK Tax Resident Wardrobe HOldiﬂqS Limited UK Tax Resithant
Shapping Canires Limited UK Tax Residant | Wardrobe Place Limited - UK Tax Resident
Six Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resitant | Wates City of London Properties Limited UK Tax Restdent
Southgate General Partner Limited [50% UK Tax Resident | Wates City Point Limited UK Tax Resigen
interest) Wates City Property Management Limited UX Tax Resident
Southgate Property Unit Trust [Jersey) Overseas Tax Resident | Westbourne Terrace Partnership UK, Tax Rasidant
(Unitsl [50% interest]? [Partnership Interest] .
Speke Unit Trust Lersey] [Units) Overseas Tax Resid Weslside Leeds Lirniled UK Tax Resident

165.9% interesti®

Whiteley Shopping Centre Unit Trust Overseas Tox Resident
Sprint 1118 Limited UK Tax Resident | Lerseyl lunitsP ]
St James Parade 143] Limited UK Tax Resident | WK {Austral Housel First Lionited UK Tax Resident
St James Retail Park Northampton Limited UK Tax Resident | WK lAustral Housel Second Limited UK Tax Resident
SL Stephens Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | WK Haldings Limiled UK Tax Resident
Stockion Retait Park Limited UK Yax Resident | York House W1 Limited UK Tax Resid
Surrey Quays Limited UK Tax Resid
Sydale UK Tax Resident
T{Partnershipl Limited UK Tax Resident
Tailress Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL 1Brent Parkl Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Bromtey) Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL IBurstedon) Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL IBury] Lirnited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Fernd: | Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL ILisnagelvin} Limited UK Tax Resadent
TBL IMaidstons) Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL Milton Keynes} Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Peterboroughi Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL Pryperties Limited UK Tax Resident
Teesside Leisure Park Limiled (5% interest] UK Tax Resident
The Aldgate Place Limited Parinership UK Tax Resident
IPartnership Interest] [50% interesi]
The Dartford Partnership iMember Interest) UK Tax Resident
150% interest)
The Gibrallar Limited Parinership UK Tax Resident
{37.66% interest]
The Liverpoot Exchange Comnpany Limited UK Tax Resident
The Mary Street Estate Limited UK Tax Resident
The Meadowhall Education Centre UK Tax Resident
[Limited by Guaranteel 150% inlerest]
The Retail and Warehouse Company Limited UK Tax Resident
The TBL Property Partnership UK Tax Resident
IPartnership Inerest)
The Whiteley Co-Ownership Trust UK Tax Resudent

IMember interest] {50% inlerest]
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SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLGSURES

- UNAUDITED

Table A: Summary income statemeant and balunce sheet

Summary income statement based on proportionat consolidation for the year ended 31 March 2017
The following pro forrna information is unaudited and does not form part of the consplidated primary siatemenlts o7 the noles therelo. it presants the
results of the Group, with its share of the results of joint venlures and tunds induded on a line-by-line basis and exctuding non—-controliing interesis.

Year ended 31 March 3N7 Yaar ended 31 March 2016
 Jeint Less Joind Less

wehlures hon-controlling Proportionally ventures  non-oontrodfing  Proportianalby

Group  and funds imerests Groap and s miarests oonsolidsted

£m £m &m €m  m m &m

Gross rental income 442 220 n9 643 451 23i (28 654
Proger ly operating expenses 1251 o} 2 133] [28] 191 1 13¢)
Net rentat income &7 Falil “an 810 £25 222 {27 &20
Adminisiralive expenses {8&) 2 - (84} 193} 15 4 194k
Net fees and olther income 7 - - 17 16 - 1 17
Ungeared Income Return 350 208 mn 541 348 i 221 543
Net financing cosls 78) 178) 3 1151 (106} 82} ] 168}
Undertying Profit 272 132 (14) 370 242 135 118l 13
Underlying taxation - - - - 2 - - 2
_ Undertying Profit after taxation 272 132 14) 3%0 2484 135 nal 345
Yaluation movemenl z3an 241
Other capitat and laxation (netl’ {433} 43
Capital and other 1670) 02
Total return {280) 1.276

* Indudes other comprehansive income, movement in dilution of share options and e movemnment in itams excluded for FPRANAY.

Summary baiance sheel based on proportional consaiigation as at 31 March 2017 -
The following pro forma informaticn is unaudiled and does not form: part of the consolidated primary statements or the notes therelo. Il presenls
the composition of the EPRA net assets of the Group, with its share of the net assels of the joint venture and fund assets and babilities included

on a tine-by-line basis, and excluding non-controlling interests. and assuming full dilution.

Mark-to-
market on
effecive
Share a! Less cash iow Valuztion EPRANet  EPRANa
joint non- hedges and surplus on assets assels
ventures  controlling Share  Delerred  related detd Head tradi 31 March 31 March
Group & funds  interesls oplions tax adjustraents leases  properlies a7 2008
£m Em m im Em &m Emn fra £m rh
Relail praperties 5066 2021 {381} - - - 1524 - 6,654 7.341
Ottice properties 4155 2792 - - - - sl 83 7015 7024
Canada Water properties 280 - - - - - /] - n 43
Other praperties - - - - - - - L= - -
Totat properties 9.501 4813 I38n - - - (78) a3 13940 14,648
fnvestments in joint ventures and
funds 2,765 12.768) - - - - - - - -
Jaoint venture held for sale 540 [560] - - - - - - - -
Other investments 154 13 - - - - - - 15t 138
Cther net Hiabdities) assels 1391 1oy 7 36 3 - 7 - fa70) - 1347]
Net debt (3.0941 {1,403) ne - - 155 - - 14,223) 14_765)
{hlution due to convertible bond - - - - -~ - - - - 400
Netassels 9476 ~ 2551 36 3 155 - 83 2,478 10.074
EPRA NAY per share [note 2] 915p %p
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Finaneial stzacnrents

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUGITED
Table A continuesd
EPRA Net Assets Movermnent
Year epded Yaar endied
31 March 2017 3 March 2618
. Pence per Pante par
£m share - € share
Opening EPRA NAV 7 0074 ny 2035 829
Income return ) . 390 a8 385 34
Capital return [670) L &} 909 77
Diwidend paid ) 1298) trn {2351 i2n
Closing EPRA NAY 72478 "ns 10.074 AL
Table B: EPRA Perfurmance measures
- EPRA Performance measures summary table .
2017 7018
Pence per Ponce per
£m share T shars
EPRA Eamings - basic , I 9 345 354
- dituled 3% ze an 341
EPRA Net Initial Yizld £3% £ 1%
EPRA “topped-up’ Net taitial Yield ' £5%, 4.5%
EPRA Vacancy Rate £.8% 2.0%
mz 2016
Netasset Net asset
ralue per value per
) Netassets sharepence MNetassels shan? pence
EPRA NAY ) 2,498 75 10,074 Ny
EPRANNNAY 8738 881 ¥.640 885
Calculation and reconciliation of EPRAAIFRS earnings and EPRA/IFRS earnings per share
Prolit atiributable to the shareholders of the Company ’ ’ 193 1345
Exclude:
Group - current taxation mnm 2
Group - deferred taxation ‘ . - 311
Joint venlures and funds — current taxation - 1
Joint ventures and funds - deferred taxalion . ) - -
Group - vatualion movement ) 771 (618}
Group - loss Iprofit) on disposal of investment properties and investments 5 135)
Group -~ profit on disposal of trading properties 7 110)
Joinl ventyres and luads - net valuation movement including resutt on disposals) = [263)
Joint ventures and funds - capilal financing cosis 9 -
Changes in fair value of financial instruments and associated close-oul cosls .o 13l K1Y}
Nen-controlling interasls in respecl of the above . m 5
Undertying Profit .390 363
Group - underlying current taxation ) - 2
EPRA earnings - basic 390 345
Dilulive effeck of 2012 convertible bond ~ 8
EPRA earnings - dituted 90 N
. Profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company 193 1,345
Dilutive effect of 2012 convectible bond" ' (33) 12l
{FRS eamnings - diluted® . 160 1.303

' The 2014 comparative igures lor the dilutive etfact |;1 1he 2012 canvertible band and IERS diluted earmings have bean resiated - see Noie 1.
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Table B continued

2077 2014
Numbosr - Number
mitlion ruillion
Weighted average number of shares 1,040 1036
Adjustment for Treasury shares m 11}
IFRSFEPRA Weighted average number of shares {hasic) 1,029 107
Qitutive effect of share aplions 1 2
Dilutive atfect of ESGP shares 3 1
Ditutive effect of 2012 converiible bond S8 58
IFRS Weighted average number of chares {diluted} 1,00 1.089
Ofutive etfect of 2012 convertible band 58] -
EPRA Weighted average number of shares {diluted) 1,033 1,089
Net assets per share
017 ] 2018
Pence Pence
€m  pershare Im  pershade
Balance sheet net assets 9476 9619
Deferved tax arising on revaluation movementls 3 5
Mark-to-markel un effective cash Now hedges and related debt adjustments 155 198
Dilution effect ol share gplions 3 36
Surplus on trading properties a3 93
Converlible bend adjusiment - 400
{ ess non-conirofling interests {255} {277}
EPRA NAY 9.£498 15 10,074 219
Deterred tax arising on revalyalion movements ) {19 {24}
Mark-to-markel on effective cash flow hedges and related debt adjusiments 159) a3l
Mark-tg-markel on debt 1384} | vai¥y]
EPRA NNHAY 8,938 861 4640 BBO
EPRA NNNAY is the EPRA NAVY adjusted Lo reflect the fair value of the datit and derivatives and lo include the daferred taxation on revalualions
and derivatives.
07 0%
Number  Number
million rrallion
Number of shares at year end 1,040 1040
Adjustmant for lreasury shares m [1)]]
IFRS/EPRA number of shares [basic) 1,029 o9
Gilutive effect of share oplions 3 2
Dilutive effect of ESOP shares & 7
Dilutive effact of 2012 converlibte band 58 58
IFRS number of shares (dituted) 1,095 1.0%6
Ditulive effect of 2012 convertible band 581 -
EPRA number of shares {dituted] 1,038 1096
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Finaavial statcments

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUDHED
Table B continued
EPRA Net Initial Yield and “topped-up’ Net Initial Yield

o7 016

£m fan

lrwestment property - wholly-gwned ’ : . 210 9787
levesimenl property — share ol joint venlures and funds £730 & 881
Less developments, rasidentiat and land 798) 1824
Comgpleted property portielio . 13,342 13754
All e lor estimated purchasers’ casis ] 897 985
Gross up completed property portfolio valuation LA) . 14,039 T4.739
Annualised cash passing renlal income ‘ &y . 407
Property eutgoing o 9 i8l
Annuatised net rents (B) ) 598 599
Real axpiration of renl-free periods and fixed uplifts' ) : 30 &3
“Topped-up’ net annsalised rent{C) 628 662
EPRA Netlnital Yisld (B/A] ' . - 4% %
EPRA “topped-up” Net Initial Yield [C/A) 45% 45%
tncluding xed/minisaum uplifis received in bigu of renlal growth n 24
Total ‘topped—up’ net rents (D) 639 &84
Overall ‘topped-up’ Ret Initial Yield (D/A] £6% 7%
Tepped-up netannualised remt &28 842
ERV vacam space ‘ s 14
Reversions . . . 38 42
Total ERVIE] 700 ne
Net Reversionary Yield (£/A) 5.0% 49%

* The weighted average period over which rent-free periods expire is 1 yoar [2015/18: 1 year].
The above is stated lor the UX portfolio only.

EPRA Net Initial Yield {NIY] basis of calculation

EPRA NIY is calculaled as the annualisad net rent {on a cash How basis), divided by the gross velue of the completied property portfolio. The valuation
of our completed proper ty portfotio is delermined by our externat valuers as at 31 March 2017, plus an allowance lor estimated purchaser’s costs.
Estimated purchaser’s Casts are determinad by the retevant stamp duly Liability, ptus an estimate by our valuzrs of agent and legat fees on nolional
acquisilion. The nel rent deduction altowad for property culgoings is based on our valuers’ assumplions on iulure recurring non-recoverable
revenue expenditure.

In calculating the EPRA "topped-up NIY, the annualised net rent is increased by the tolal contracted rent from expiry of rent-free periods and future
contracted rental uplifts where defined as not in lieu of growth. Qverall topped-up’ MIY is calculated by adding any cther contracted tulure uplilt to
the wopped-up’ net annualised rant.

The net reversionary yield is calcutated by dwiding Lhe total estimated rentat value ([ERV] [or the completed property portfolio, as determined by
our externat valuers, by the gross completed property portiolio vatuation.

The EPRA vacancy rate is calculaled as the ERV of the unrented, lettable space as a proportion al the total rental value of the complaled property portfolio.

EPRA Yacancy Rate
017 2014
o . &m
Annualised potential iental value of vacani premises ) 34 11
Annualised potential rentat value for the completed property portfolio no 128

EPRA Vacancy Rate 4.8% 2.0%

»

The above is stated tor the UK portiolio only. A discussion of sigrmificant factors affecting vacancy rales is included within the Strategic Report
lpages 28 to 301 :
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Table B continued

EPRA Cost Ratias
an7 2014

£m &m

Proparty operaiing expenses 23 5
Administralive expenses o 90
Share of joint ventures and funds 2xpenses 12 13
Less: Performance and management fees {{rom joint ventures and funds) 4] 9
Met other fees and commissions 8 i8l
Ground rent costs 2 {3

EPRA Costs lincluding direct vacancy costs) (Al 100 108
Direci vacancy costs 2l it
EPRA Costs lexclding direct vacancy costs) (8] 88 97
Gross Rental Incorne less ground reat costs £%2 £79
Share of joint ventures and funds [GRI less ground rent costs) 2y 222
Total Gross Rental Income less ground rent costs {C) £73] 651
EPRA Cost Ratio [inttuding direct vacancy costs) {A/C) 15.8% 16.6%
EPRA Cost Ratio {excluding direct vatancy costs [B/C) 13.7% 14.9%
5 [

Overhead and operaling expenses capitalised [including share of jeint ventures and hends]

Inthe current year, employee costs in relation to stalf time on developrent projects have bean capitatised o the hasa cost of relevamt davelopment assels.

Tahle C: Gross rental income

o1y 2016
£m £m
Rent receivable 633 615
Spreading of ienanl incentives and guaranteed rentincreases’ 8 38
Surrender premia 2 3
6ross rental income 843 454
The cucrenl and prior year inforrnatior: is presented on a proportionally consolidated basis, axcluding non-tonirolling interests.
Table D: Property related capital expenditure
2017 - . 2016
Juint . Joint
ventures ventuies
Sroup  and funds Total Group  andiunds Talal
Acquisitions 88 - 88 238 - 238
Development m 1% 145 104 58 LY4
Like-for-like portfolio 67 &2 14 . % . 6 s
Other 20 2 22 . 25 15 40
Total property related capex 306 43 369 466 7% 545

The above is presented on a proportionally consolidated basis, excluding non-contrelling interests and business combinations. The Other’ category
cantains amounts owing to ienant incentives of £10m [2015/14: £27m), capitalised staff costs 6f £5m {2015/14: £4m] and capitalised interest of £7m

1201514 £9ml.
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Orher intornieion

Other information |

Other information lunaudited]
Acquisitions and Disposals
Portlolio Vatuation
Gross Rental Income
Portiotio Yield and ERV Movements
Retail Partlolio Valeation - Previous Classification Basis
Portfolic Net Yields
Portlotio Net Yields - Previous Classification Basis
Tolal Praperty Return [as calcutated by IPD)
Occupiers Representing over 0.5% of Total Contracted Rent
Major Holdings
L ease Length & Qccupancy
Portfotio Weighting
Annyalised Rent and Estimated Rental Valuz [ERV]
Rent Subject to Cpen Market Rent Review
Rent Subject to Lease Break or Expiry
Superstores
Recently Completed & Committed Developments
Mear Term Develogrment Pipeline
Mediurn Term Development Pipetine
Residential development programme
Sustainabiity performance measures
Ten year record
Shareholder infermalion
Glossary

Glasgow Fort{righl}
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(Hher information

UNAUDITED

Acquisitions and Disposals

Acquisitions .
. Prica Annual
Pnce {British Land Passing
IGross) chare} Rani
From 1 April 2016 Sactor £m Len Emt
Campleted
New Gearge Streat £state, Pliymouth Retail &4 64 5
16-40 The Broadway, Eating® Retail 49 &9 2
Harlech, Newporl - Tesco exchange? Retail 41 20 1
Tesco. Bristingion — Tesco exchange® Retail 44 23 2
Hercules Unit Trust unit purchase? Retail i8 18 1
Teesside Leisure Park Retal 13 ] 1
Dock Offices Canada Water 8 g -
Total 23% 195 12
' Property acquisinon exchanged and ¢ leted poslyear end,
? Pruperty acquisitions exchanged and completed post year end as part of a Tesco JV swep trensaction resulting in a ned £73m dispesal of supaersiors assets.
T Units puarhased over the fourse of the y=ar: £18m represents purchased Gav
& British Land share of annualised rent topped up for rant fraes.
Disposals
Price Annual
Price (British La Passing
Gross] share] Rant
From 1 April 2016 Sector om £m Em?*
Campleted '
Gebenhams, Oxford Street Retail 409 400 13
Superstores' Retail 410 226 12
Portfolio of retail assets
1Deberharms Manchester, York Clifton Moor, Wakefield Westgatel Retail " 193 12
EburyGate Qifces 34 34 2
Dunfries Cuckoo Bridge Retail 20 20 1
54 - 70 Putney High Street Retail 20 20 1
Lisnagelwin, Londonderry Retall 5 B 1
Luton Pawer Courl Retait 9 ? -
The Hempel Collection Restdential 14 14 -
Aldgate Place . * Residential 46 3 s =
Exchanged®
The Leadenhall Building Offices 1150 575 7
Clarges, Maylair Residentiat 9 19 -
Total 2,328 1.546 59

' Of which £114m [British Land share] exchanged and completed gost year end as part of 2 Tesco J¥ swap transaction resatting in a net {73 disposal of superstore assets.

* Sales completing post year end.
* Brtish Land share of annualised reat topped up lor rent frees.
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Portfoliv Valuation'

Change 7
Js &

Group Furds Toial
Al21 March 2017 ' m {m &m Hl H2 124
Regianal Lilestyle 1128 1834 2954 '£28) 1.0 {18l
Local Lifestyle 1467 477 248 {48 04 45
Multi-iets : M 2.3 5,102 37 o7 139}
Department Stores & Leisure ’ 574 3 575 32 3 st
Superstares . 104 524 632 309 12351 15.2)
Solus/Other . 45 - 345 37 18 55
Retail 3,816 2,838 5,654 2.4} 0.7 1.8
West End 3940 - 3940 {2.4) 17 (0.8
City ’ 108 2776 2884 1431 44 08
Offices C 4,068 2716 © 4,844 i35) 28 {1 /]
Residantial® . 156 15 171 - 5.4 &2
Offices & Residential £,226 2, 705 (23} 29 05
Canaga Water ‘ m - m t21] 9.0 10.8]
Totat 8,31 5,629 13,940 (28] 1.6 11.4)
Standing Investments ) hA:ra 5,487 13,308 2.8} 1.3 1.8
Developments £90 142 432 3.0} 4.8 1.7
' On a proportionatly consolidated baws including the Group's share o joint ventures and funds.
? Yalualion rmovernen duning the year lafter taking acoount of capital expenditure] of properties held at the balance sheet date, induding davelopments

Idlassihad by end usel, purchases and sales.

! Standalone residenbial
Gross Rental Income'

12 months 1o 31 March 2817 Annuatised as al 31 March 2017

Vs & N &

Group Funds Total Group funds Tatat
Arcounting Basis m £m m £m: fm Em
Regional Lifestyle s 86 144 3| 25 147
Local Lifestyle 98 27 125 38 26 14
Multi-lets ’ i 154 n3 n 149 12 28
Departmenl Stares & Leisure 48 - 48 g - 38
Superstores 9 32 £ & 32 38
Solus/Other 20 - 20 it - 20
Retait _ 235 S 380 213 184 357
West End 129 - 129 125 . - 125
City , -5 16 121 & 104 108
Offites 134 né 250 129 104 233
Residentiat?. [1 - 4 & - &
Offices & Residential 138 116 254 1313 104 237
Canada Waler . ? — 4 8 - 8
Total ' 382 28 643 354 - 248 402
' Gross rental income wilt differ from annualised rents due 10 accounting adjustments for fixed and minimum canttacted rental uptilts ard lease incentives,
* On a propertionally consolidated basis incliding the Group's share of joint venlures and funds.
* Standatone resigential. .
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Other informacion

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Portfolio Yield and ERV Movements'

18%

NEY ERV Eroovh 7 NEY Yizld Movemen bpa?

" AL31 March2017 % H1 H2 FY He M2 FY
Regional Lifestyle 48 13% 16 2.3% 16 0| 2
Local Lifestyle 54 1.3% 1.%% 25% 2% 1] 27
Multi-lets 51 13% 1.1% 2.48% 22 {al 18
Dapartmenl Slores & Leisure 59 04% 10.158] 0.4% & nel 115
Suparstores 55 {3.0%) 11.0% 14 0% Y 13 2n
SolusfOther 5.2 A8% 0.0% £38% b 9 14
Reail 52 0.9% .T% 1.46% 18 131 1%
West tnd &% 0.3% 0.4% 0.7% 16 (1] 15
City" £5 [0.2% 0.8% 0.2% 7 13 | )
Offices 45 1% 04% 0.5% 2 [ 3] 15
Canada Water 34 09% 10.1%) oyh & 5 9
Total 48 05% 05% AL 19 - 151 15
* On a propartionally consolidated basis including the Groug's share of joint ventures and hunds. Exduding d devedng: arel residentist assets.

* As caloutated by PO
3 Including notenal purchaser's costs.
¢ Ciiy NEYis 4.6% pro forma Jor sale comptetion of our 50% interest in The Leadanhall Building whach exchanged in ﬂﬁey@jﬂ'
.

Retail Portfolio Valuation — Previous Classification Basis!

Valuvation Changa %7 ERV Growth % NEY Yizld Movermnent bps
At 1 March 2017 Em H1 HZ FY HA H2 FY H1 H2 FY
Shopping Parks 3167 [FRY o7 i3.31 1.6% 0.8% 2.48% % 143 bl
Shopping Centies 2.276 2.4 [1X:) hat 1.3% 1.3% 2.8% 14 _I31 12
Superstores 432 30 2.5 5.2 (30%d o3 leo%n 8 13 21
Bepartrnen Stores 166 56 30 | 67 0.4% 0.3% 0% k (101 18]
L eisure 413 10.5) 32 2.7 0.4% 10.2%%) 0.2% 4 121 17l
Retail 5,854, 2.4 0.7 n.sl 0% 0T% 18 ©B . s

' ©n a proportionaily concolidaled basis including the Group's share of joint venlures and funds.
? Valuation movement during the year fafter laking account of capital expenditure] of pmpamesheld at the balance sheet date_including developments

[dassiliad by end usa), purchases and sales.
¥ As cateutated by (PO
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Portfolio Net Yields'*

EPRAtpgad  Overslltopped Net Nat
EPRARE  wpnsiimial  upeaiinit equhalenl  reversionary
i yiedd el peld yicld
At 3 March 2017 % we b5 B %
Regionat Lifestyle o 45 ¥ £7 49 50
Local Lifestyle . 5.1 322 53 5.4 54
Multi-lets ' 47 49 &9 5.1 5.2
Depariment Stores & Leisure 80 60 72 59 A4
Superstores . 54 56 54 535 53
Solus/Dther R . 546 246 54 52 48
Retail 4% 51 S2 5.2 51
Wesi End . 315 37 38 43 £8
Ciy* 37 41 41 45 51
Offices - 34 iy 3% [ %] 49
Canada Water : ' 28 29 29 14 35
Total ) 43 4.5 4.5 . &8 5.0
' On a propartionztly consolidated basis including the Group's share of joint ventyres and funds
? Indudmg nobonal purchaser’s Costs.
* Excluding commattad davalopmenis and residential assals.
4 Incheding remd contracted raen expiny of rent- free periods 2nd fored aplifis not in liee of rental growth,
$ Inchuding haeediminimum uptifts lexciudad from EPRA definition).
* Citynet quivatent yield is &.6% and EPRA net initial yield is £.2% pro forma for sale completion of our 50% in The Leadenhall Bufiding which exchangedin tha year.
Retail Portfolio Net Yields'*? — Previous Classification Basis
) EPRA topped  Overall lopped MNel Nat
EPRAns up rat bt up nal st equivalant  reversionary
initial yisld yield yoold yiald yield
At 31 March 2017 % wl b5 kS b
Shopping parks ' o 49 51 T 51 52 52
Shopping centres . 45 A7 &7 50 51
Superstores 3.6 5.6 56 55 53
Department stores : 5. s 66 50 39
Leisure 6.3 83 74 6.2 &7
Retait ' : (X 51 5.2 5.2 51
* Ona proportol naiiy consolidated basis incleding the Group's share of joint ventures and lunds.
? Induding nolicnal purchaser’s onsts.
¥ Exduding committed developments.
* Indluding rent contraciad from expiry of rent-free periods and fixed uptifts not in lieu of rental growth.
* Including Raed/minimum uphifts lexcluded from EPRA definition}.
Total Property Return (as calculated by IPD)
Ratail Qffices Totat
. British Land IPD  British Land tPD  British Land IPD
Fall Year to 31 March 2617 ® % % % % %
Capital Retum un 231 0.6l (.ol .2 0.y
- ERV Growth 1.6 09 03 20 11 19
- Yield Expansion? 14 bps 12bps 13bps 13bps 15bps 4bps
income Returmn . - : 53 5.1 35 a8 43 47
Tatal Property Return . 35 28 28 28 an &b
1 0n a proporionally consotidated basis witluding the Group's share of juint ventures and funds.
? Net equivalent vield movernent. : -
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COiher informmiion

UNAUOITED CONTINUED

Occupiers Representing over 0.5% of Total Contracted Rent'

Al T March 2017 . % of int2lrent . P od el rant
Tesco plc® 5.4 Vadafone (IR
4 Sainsbury plc 48 Asda Group : 0¢
USS AG 34 Aon Ple _ oy
Oebenhams .33 Sportslirect 02
Kinglisher [B&Q) 24 Microssit 0%
HM Government . 24 IO Sports 88
Next plc 24 Dautsche Bank ) 6.8
Virgin Active Ak Read Smith 08
Facebook 1a H&M . 07
Denisu Aegis 17 Mayer Brown _ o7
Spirit Group 17 Mothercare 07
M&S plc ' 14 TGI Fridays 0.4
Wesfarmers [Homebase/Buntings) ' 14 ICAP Pic 0s
Allsance Bools - 1.6 River lsland : 0é
Visa Inc 15 M5 Amlin Plc o6
Dixons Carphone 1.4 Credit Agricels . LI
Arcadia Group - 1.3 Pels at Home . 2.5
Herbert Smith 13 Henderson ) 05
RBS : ) i2 Primark 05
TK Maxx -1 Aramco 05
Gazprom : ' o House of Fraser 05
Mew Look 19 Sleinhol . : 05

' Onaproportionally consolidaled basis including the Group's share of joinl ventures and funds.
7 4.7% pro lorma for post year end net disposal of £73m in a Tesco JV swap transaction.

Major Holdings

British Land Ocoupanty Lease

share Sq it Rent rate Length

Ar 1 March 2017 ‘ o % 800  Empa' E yrss
Broadgate 50 4850 190 983 8.2
Regent's Place L 1.590 % - 99 14
Paddingian Ceniral 100 958 33 941 68
Meadowhall, Shellield 50 1.500 84 97 . -2
The Leaderthall Buitding* v 7 50 603 40 999 102
Sainshury's Superstores® 51 2,184 48 100.0 10.4
Teesside, Stockton® 100 569 17 969 Y
Drake’s Circus, Plymouth’ . 100 1132 21 959 892
Glasgow Fort 77 510 21 983 5%
Ealing Broadway ) ‘ 100 470 13 917 5%

' Annualised EPRA contracted rent including W)0% of Joint Ventures & Funds.

? Including accommodation under offer [including post year Uransactions at 2 Finsbury Avenue and & Kingdom Street] or subject o assei management
linctuding space being prepared for ltexible working) or assets being readied lor davetopment in the near term {1 Finsbury Avenuel

} Weighted average to first break. . .

¥ Sale exchanged in March 2017 with completion due posi year end.

¢ Comprises standalone stores.

¢ Inctudes Teesside Leisure Park jequiced in the year.

! Indudes New George Street Estate, Plymouth acquired during the year.

e .

166 British Land | Aanuat Report and Accounts 2017



Lease Leagth & Occupancy

Avmrage tease lengthyears Ooapancy ratiz®
A 31 March 20%7 To axpiry Tobreak EPRA Qucupancy Oocupanty’
Regional Lifestyle 79 &7 913 C 97
Local Lifestyle 79 48 973 279
Muiti-ets 79 - 68 973 vi8
Beparimeni Stores & | eisure 174 174 998 994
Superstores 17 i3 160.0 100.0
Solus/Other * 125 123 160.0 004
Retail 25 8.4 29 98.3
West End 94 73 9340 970
City? 98 85 i 984
Offices 94 7.8 92 917
Canada Water &8 &5 7.8 988
Total 94 8.3 5.2 | 98.0
' Bna proportionatly consolidated basis inciuding the Group's share of joind ventures and funds,
? Inciuding accommeodaiion undar offer including pest year iransaciions at 2 Finsbury Avenue and 4 Kingdorn Strast] or subject to assal managesnant
[inclisding space baing prepared for flexible working or in the nagr tearm P Finsbary Avenued.
3 City average lease length to break is 8.2 years pro formna for sale complebion of our 58% mierest in The Leadanhall Bulding.
Portfolio Weighting’
2007 mz7 il

2016 loumrenit - loumrentl  lpro kvma?
At 31 March % % (2] ®
Regional Lilestyle 194 213 2954 214
Local Lifestyle 1632 15.4 2148 161
Mutti-lets BT . 37 5,102 77
Departrnent Stores & Leisure 59 &1 575 &2
Supersiores 93 45 632 kN
Solus/Other 23 25 345 25
Retail 50.2 478 6456 483
West End 264 B4 3960 ns8
City i 207 2884 187
Offices 483 471 6,844 485
Raswdential? 1.6 1.2 m 1.2
Offices & Residential A7.9 503 7,015 497
Canada Water 19 19 ™ 20
Total 1000 1006 13,940 1aoe
Of which London 58% 58% 8.050 58%

' On a proportionalty consolidaled basis inctuding the Group™s share of joint vanturas and lunds.

? Proiorma for developments under construction and commilted developments at estimated end value [3s determined by the Group's exiernal vatuers] and posi year

end ransadions including the expected sale completion of oyr 50% interest in The Leadenhall Building and the Tesco ¥ swap ransaction.

T Stantatone resideniial.
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Crether jaformarion

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Annunlised Rent and Estimated Rental Value (ERV)!

Annaaliced rent
|wsluation basis) Em* RV Em Al s ot Lpst

At 31 Marech 2017 Group th:s\d&s Jorzt Taia! Contractad® RV
Regionat Lifestyte & 87 148 A3 3t8 kR

Local Lifestyle %0 28 ns 126 269 S 261

Multi-lar 151 15 268 290 280 294
Departinent Siores & Leisure 13 - 3% 28 me 1.4

Superslores & 32 38 34 3 20%.
Solus/Other | - 20 7 98 70
Retail 213 10%7 360 m 265 U8

West Eng?* 132 - 132 17 542 622
Ciny™* 4 03 oy 50 525 60.2
Otficest 136 103 % 329 534 1.2
Residential® 4 - 4 4

Offices & Residential 140 103 243 333

Canada Water 8 - 8 0 %4 210
Total 381 250 31 714 30.3 332

' On a proportronally consolidated basis inclding e Group's shave of joint venlures and funds.
? GrosSS rants plus, wWhare rent redievs are cutstanding, any ncreases 1o FRY (as detarmined by the Group's external valuars), 1acs any ground reats payaible undar head

leases, axctudes conlracted rent suibjact forent free 2nd luture uplifi.
3 Annualised rent, plus rent subject 1o rent free.
* Epsf melrics shewn for office space anty.

* City avaragas rent psf on a conkractad basis is [50.1 and on an ERY basis is £57.4 pro forma for sate complelion of ot 30 Eterest in The Leadanhall Building,

* Standalone residential.

Rent Subject to Open Market Rent Review!

At March 2017
8 2019 2020 2021 2072 00820 2018-22
Far year 1o 31 March €m £m tm £m £m &m £m
Regional Lifestyle - . 3 7 12 18 i3 £2 3
Local Lifestyle 24 7 10 "o & 51 &8
Multi-lets ‘ a7 34 22 9 19 93 11
Departinent Stores & Leisure - - - - - Co- -
Superstores . 4 7 - 12 3 Fal 36
Solusf(ither - - _ - — - _ _
Retait ‘ ) ] I 32 £ n ns 77
West End : 2% 20 15 10 9 59 78
City £ 1% 1% % 1 3z 48
Offices . 28 3% 29 y=] 10 L 126
" Canada Water 1 s - - - 2 2
Total 70 78 3] &8 2 207 305

' On a proportionatly consolidated basis including the Group's share ol joint venlures and funds,
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Rent Subject to Lease Break or Expiry?

At 31 Manch 2017
2012 200 2020 Furdl 2022 2018-20 2018-22
For year to 31 Mardh &m Em Em Lm Em Em Im
Regional Lifestyle 19 o 14 10 15 4£3 68
Local Lilestyle 8 7 10 9 n F <1 45
Multi-tets 7 17 24 9 26 &8 "3
Deparumnent Stores & Lesure - - - -~ - - -
Superslores - - -~ - - - -
Solus/Other - 1 - - - i 1
Retail 7 18 24 19 26 &9 114
West End [ U] 3 17 21 i’ 57
City 7 n 1 9 2 29 40
Offices 13 2 14 28 23 8 ¥7
Canada Water 1 1 - 1 - 2 3
Total £ &0 38 &b £9 19 Faly
% of contracted rent §.3% 6.3% 5.0% % 7% ' 18.6% 33.6%
" Gn a proporiicnally consolidaled basis including the Growp s share of joint ventures and funds.
Superstores '
&;:ﬂalme persiores’ tn Musdti-let assets? Tola! Exposure'®
Valuation Valuation Valualion
{British Capital [British Capital |British Capital
Store Sire o of Land'share) Value Lease - Noof Land shara] Valua Lease Noof Land shara) Valus Lease
woosqh Storas tm P tength® Siares €m ps! length® Stores | £m psf  length®
>100 ] 152 3450 R R] 4 284 £9 11 L] 438 388 1
75100 10 -1 384 1.3 3 73 274 15.0 13 244 342 125
50-75 12 172 364 108 - - - - 12 e 364 08
25-50 3 15 272 8.1 3 32 456 185 ] &7 375 %7
0-25 2 [ 138 81 21 98 465 10.2 23 W4 409 106
March 2017 33 523 352 105 31 4B% 397 1.6 &4 1.012 I73 n7
- March 2016 A7 783 383 13.% 28 537 482 1.7 75 1,301 £19 135
Geographical spread Gross Rent [British Land share) Lease Structure
London & South S8% Tesco £29m RPl and Fixed 10%
Resi of UK 42% Sainsbury’s £26m OMRR 0%
Other ESm

Table includes £43m acquisitions and €116m disposals that exchanged and completed post year endas pari of a Tesco JV swap ransaction resaliing in 2 n=t £73m

disposals of supersiore assets

! Excludes £13m non-foodstare occupiers in superstore led assels.

? Excludes non-food format slares e.g. Asda Liang.

* Excludes £93m of i \ents held for trading comprising freehold reversions in 2 pool of Sainsbury’s Superstores.

* Weightled average lease length lo first break.

4

British Land | Anrwal Report and Accounts 2017

169



r

ChHher informacion

UNAUDITED CONTINUED
/

Revently Completed and Commitied Developments!

. .

ietR
British Land PC Currant Cosi . Undesr
M share L5gh Calendar Value Come ERY - Oftar
At March 17 Sectar % 068 Year Emr Erm® £fm* fm
4 Kingdom Street Office 0 147 022017 15 18 95 70
Clargas Maylaiw — Olfices Dilice 160 51 Q220 13 & 54 43
. Glasgow Fort Leisure Quarter Retait 77 12 037016 - 6é 6.2
The Hempel Phase 1 Residantial 00 5 Q4 2016 & 3 - -
The Hempel Phase 2 Residential 100 33 0420% 25 3 - -
Aldgate Place Phase | Residential . 58 221 02 2016 - 7 - -
Total Completed in Year - 4LBY 7 155 1ns
190 Liverpool Street Oifice 50 328 Q4 2019 174 52 18.6 -
Speke {Lersure] Retail &7 & 022018 4 14 12 08
Clarges Mayfair — Relail and Residantial® Mixed Use. 160 104 Q4 2017 362 . 52 na -
Tetal Committed 590 £ 28 2048 a8
Retait Capex® 1
* On a proporienally consotidated basis induding the Groug's share of jeint Vﬂlll.ll’"ES and funds lexcept area whichis shovwn gl 16024,
?. Excludes completed szles of £120m.
* From 1 April 2017, Cost 1o coma excludas notional inlerest as interest is capitatised individually on sach devaliopment at our capitalisation raw.
* Estimaled headine rental value oet of rent payshle under headleases [excluding tenant incentivesi.
* Currenk valize inclydes units exchangad and not completed of E278m.
¢ Capex comymilied and underveay within ouri t portiolio relating fo leasing and assat ) t
Near Term Development Pipeline'
British Land Expeded Current Costio
) share . Sqft Start Value Come ERV
A3t March1? Sectar % V0% OnSRe £ &m? Em* Stalus
135 Bishopsgale ) Office 56 Kyl a7 w7 55 9.4 Submited
1 Triton Square Office 108 . 36 2018 161 200 233 Resotution
. : togrant
1 Emnsbury Avenye Office 50 288 2007 ” * 35 77 Submlted
Plymouth ILeisure] . Retail e 104 2018 - 48 KA Consented
Total Near Term ) 1083 345 338 435
Revail Capex® 75
! On 2 properiibhally consolidated basis inctuding the Group's share nl;olm venlures and h:m!s lemeptafuwhch is thown at 100%).
7 From | Agril 2017 Cost to come excludes national interest as interest is capitalised i iy on each devel at our capitalrsation rate.

* Estimaied headtine rental vatue nel of rent payable under head leases lexciuding tenant incentives).
* Forecast capital commitrnents within our invastment portfolio over the naxt 12 months retaling 10 leasing and asset enhantement.
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Medium Term Development Pipeline

. e o
A3t March 17 Sectar S 000 Status
253 MNinzbury Avenue ‘ Oifice 50 563 Consented
1-2 Broadgale OFice ‘ 50 375 Pre-submission
Blossom Street : ’ Office 100 340 Consented
5 Kingdom Sireat' o Office - 160 332 Consented
Galeway Building Office , 160 105 Pre-submission
Meadowhall [Leisure| Retail ) S0 322 Suhmitted
Peterborough [Leisure] Retail 00 182 Pra-submission
Teessidz [Leisurel Retal 106 Y S “Pre-submission
Bradford [Leisure] Retail 100 &% Pre-submission
Aldgale Ptace Phase 2 Residential 50 143 Consented
Eden Walk Retail & Residential ) Mixed Use 50 538 Consented
Total Madium Term excl. Canada Water . 3gn
Canada Water! - , Mixad Use we" 5500 Pre-submission
1 Planning consent tor previous 250,000 sgft schema. '
¢ Assunned nat area basad on gross area of up o Tm sq ft.
Residential development programme’
, Sales
- Exchangad
Briish Cugrent Costto . S ool
Land share Sqft  TotalNe.  No Unis PC Valuz” Come®  Complsted®  Valuelosell
AT March 17 % 000 Unils 1 sell Date Cm £m &m £m
Clarges Mayfair ' 109 9% 34 1" Qe2m7 347 52 278 150
The Hempel Phase ! 160 25 15 1 04 2014 4 3 ' - 7
The Hempel Phase 2 100 3 18 13 Q4 2016 £5 3 - 44
Aldgate Place Phase 1 50 22 154 1 Q22016 - 7 - 7
Total Committed Residential 373 m 26 ] 9% 45 278 3l

' On a proportionally consolidated basis inchuding the Group's share ol jgint vestures and funds [except area whichis shown at 1083%)

? Excludes compleled sales of £120m.

* From 1 April 2017. Cost to come excludes notional inlecest as interest is capitatised individually on each davelopment 2 o cepialisaion rate
1 Atagresd sales price. . . .
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thher informzation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Sustainability performance measures

Aligned lo sur corporale strategy. our 2020 sustainability strategy is built around four focus arees. which addre&, major sutef, erenemic “and

enwironmental trends 10 create value for our sizkeholders and the business.

The data below covers up to 97% of cur multi-lel managed portiolic by valus [71% of assats under managemant] and 160% of development projacis,
excepl for EPC 2nd lood risk data, whare the scope covers 100% 0] assets under management. Please sze the sotpe column for indicater spaafic

repoIting coverage.

Satecied data has heen indepandenily assured for a decade. Selected daia for 2017 has been independenily assured by P in accordiancs with
ISAE 3600 [Revised] and 1SAE 3410. In prior years, selected data was assured by PwC and other providers. For the 2017 Pw(C assurence siatemeny,
more detaitad data on all these indicators and additionat mdicators, please se2 our Susiinability Accounts 20 17- www.britishiand.com/data

Brilish Lant has been a signatory to the United Nalions Global Compact since 2009. For our 2017 Communication on Progress, visit

www.britishland com/sustainabilityreport

Parformnance o Soope

200 target 2017 =08 mv;
Wellbeing
Detiver WELL. certified commerdal office to shell ang core, and sel corporate policy Deliver Ontrack  Target established -
foi future developrments
Develop and pitot retait wellheing specihcation Daliver OnWrack  Target established -
Increass the sense of wellbeing for shoppers, relailess and occupiers at our places Incease  Ontrack Basebine éstablished -
Define and trial methodology formeasuning productivity in offices Deliver Ontrack  Target established -
Rasearch and publish on how development design impacks public health cutcomes Deliver ~ Ontrack  Target established -
Community
Implement our Locat Charter at all staffed assets and major developments W% nir. nfr -
British Laret emplayee volunteering 90% 90% 84% -
British L and employee skills-based volunieering ity 16% 16% -
Community prograrnme beneficaries nfa 35,625 29.482 -
Futuregroofing [also see Carbon Reporting on page 38 and EPRA on page 1731
Develapments on track to achieve BREEAM Excellent for offices and Excellent 100% 93% 82% 1313
or Very Good for retail
Carben {scope 1.and 2intensity reduction versus 2009 lindex scorel 55% 44%, 0% 673

560100 60/100
Landlerd energy intensity reduction versus 2009 lindex score] J95% % 38% &NT3
) ~ 450100 427100
Landlord embodied carbon intensity reduction per m? on prejects over E50m versus 2015 15% nir a/r -
Waste diverted from landfill: managed praperties and developments 100% 98% 8% 040N
Energy Performance Certificates rated F or & wa 4% % 2294/2389
Onsite renewable energyincome nfa  £89000 £37.000 33
Partfolic at high risk of flood Iby value] . nfa % 5% 252259
Skills and apportunity lalse see diversity data on pages 25 and 72
Tier 1 and 2 contracis Suppty Chain Charter campliant 100% nfr nfr -
[for prioritised conlracls) .
Tier 2 supply chain spend within 23 mites Manayed propeities nfa 63% 81% 9%4/104
Developments nfa 60% 0% m

Prioritised supplier worklorce wha Tier ¥ suppliers I% 1L7% n/r -
are apprentices — based on pilot sludy Tier 2 development suppliers 1% 3% nfr -
Employees paid Living Wage Foundation wage ' 0e% 00% 100% -
Supplier workforce paid Living Wage Foundation wage at managed properlies na T2% 72% 98/104
Supplier workforce lving within 25 mites of our places nfa 0% &%  10s/M2
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Sustainability performance measures continued
British Land has received EPRA Gold Awards for sustainabitity reporting five years running.

Scmpe
lassemar
am7 2006 2013 ums
EPRA best practice recornmendations on sustainability repor ting'

Tola eleclnicty consumption (MWhI 172127 172,238 17.61% 71105
Total district hesling ard coling consumplion IMWh) [ 2 g R
Tota! uel consumplion [MWh] 39,79 38735 3639 44448
Buiding energy stensity lkWhi OHices {per mi 154.70 155.64 15045 UG
Ratail - endlosed {par m3) 151.89 15697 177.08 57

Reiail - apen &
{per car parking space) 15001 133.66 12488 35437
Total direct IScope i greenhouse gas emissions [tonnes C0el 7409 7927 7519 98/112
Total indirect [Scope 2] greenhouse gas emissions llonnes CO.2) 38,148 387 42503 982
Greenhouse gas inlensity from building energy consumplion Offices lparm®) 0069 2075 0.07 242
ltoanes CO.2) Resall —endosed lper m3 0.057 0073 0.088 57

Retal — open air
. iper car parking space) 0.054& 0.063 0043 3837
Total water consumpiion {m| 663541 653490 557041 &0/65
Building water intensily [m? per FTE or 10.000 visitors] Offices 1459 .08 896 2877
Retail — endlosed .47 10,27 10.23 &7
Retail - open air 284 1.77 194 820
Tolat waste by dispasal route ftonnes and %} Re-usad and recydad 12,166 12899 n212 &5f77

. 156.8%) 60.8%l {60.3%) ’
Incinerated 9.236 8132 s701 577
143.0%]) 138.3%I 136.0%
Landfilied E 184 680 6577
) 10.296) ny%l 13.73%)

Sustainably certified assets — Energy Performance AwB 7% 30% 2% 2296/238%
Certificates [%6 by value) Cof &&% 67% T5% 729612369
’ FioG L% 3% Jo% 2294652389

1 s per EPRA besd practice recomimendatons, tolal energy and water data covers energy and water procured by Brilish Land. Energy and carbon intensily dala cowers.
common parts and shared servces for OHices and common parts bor Retail. Water intensity dala covers whole buildings tar Ofices and common parts for Retail.

index mathodology. Per m? comprises net internal areas for Offices and common parts for

Intensity data for previous years has been restated 1o align with our i

Retail. Wasle data for previous years has been restaled Lo apportion Malenial Racowery Fadility handled waste 6 recyeding, intineration andfor landfitl as appropnate.

For our full methodology and more detailed data on all these indicators and additionzl indicalors, please see our Sustainability Accounts 2017-

www.biritishland.com/data
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Oither infaenitian

TEN YEAR RECORD

The kable below summanises the last ten years’ rasults, cash Rlows and balance sheets. .

07 ) i’ 313 7034 2013 a2 Pl 2818 F02% 2308
£m Em im T Em T fm &m &m &m Em (1
Income? ) -
Gross renial income 843 854 &18 597 567 572 ' 541 551 450 70%
Net rental income &10 620 585 562 541 544 518 545 578 | 867
Net fees and other income . 17 7 17 15 13 17 18 15 20 40
interest expense (net] 151 han o | (2Y [208] 1218) [212) [2£4) 292 13501
Adminisirative expense fe6] (94 1gsi {78} i7s1 (75 ie8] o] {581 {73}
Undertying Profit .~ 3% 33 313 297 P 269 75 249 263 284
Exceptional cosls )
Inotincluded in Undestying Profit}* - - - - - - - - )] -
Dwadends dedared 296 287 Y ) 234 231 23t 25 198 . 17
Symmarised balance sheats :
Tolal propertias al valyaliont? . 13980 144648 13477 12040 10499 10337 9572 8539 8425 132471
Nei debt Wreal  1a75  (£9n8) 14890 142681 [6490) 154730 42083 1a9sHl  16.413)
Other assets and labililies 1219} 21 276 123} {2661 {286 {2981 51 1297 1i22)
EPRA NAV/Fully dituted adjusted net. 9498 0074 9.035 7027 5987 5,331 3.0 &£ 467 3.387 &936
Cash flow movement - Group onty
Cash generated from aperations ko)) 341 kil B 243 197 m 182 248 406 &77
Cash outflew brom operations (113 1471 (33} 124) 7 i @ 78 Ll lrall} 12951
" Net cash inflow from operating activities 343 294 785 79 190 206 210 135 205 182
Cash inflow [outfowl from capitat
expenditure, invastiments, acquisiions '
and disposals &470 230 g [660] [202) 15471 1240) 19 418 857
Equity dividends pad {295 12351 [228} (5% rirc]] 212} 1391 {154 {88} [1&ii
Cash loutfRow] inflow from management ‘ ) '
of liquid resources and financing 1538] 12831 20 607 213 530 157 485} 1581 18301
Increase [decrease] in casht - & s 7 121 W bhAd s 31 a8
Capital returns i
({Reduction] growth in net assels? I57T% N5%  286% 178% 0%% 55% 157%,  3070%  1511%0 [21.8%)
Total retusn _ 7% K% 265% 200% 4.5% 95% 177%  335%  l61s%)  18a%)
Tola) returmn - pre-excepliohal 27%  142% 245% 20.0% 4.5% 95%  177% 335% {s0.3% {18.%
Per share information’ .
EPRA nel asset value per share MSp  FI%p 829  688p S%p 595 S87p  S04p  398p  1N4p
Mermorandurn .
Dividends declared in the year A 2.2 28.4p 217p 27.0p 26 4p 260p 25 0p 260p 2348p 2%90p
Dividends paid in the year | 288p  28Bp 273p  26Jp  263p  260p  26Dp  273p  N0p  WIp
Oiluted earnings .
Underlying EPRA eamnings per share 378p 34p 30.6p 29.4p 303p 2% 28.5p 2B.4ép £1.0p 44 3p
IFRS earnings lloss] per share? W7  197%  W73p. W0.2p 3150 538p 95.2p . 1324p  [614.1p]  §251.0p]

' including share of joint ventures arsd funds.

7 Represents movement in diluted EPRA NAY.

3 Indluding surplus over book value of trading and devalopment propariies.

* Incdluding restaternent in 2014 ksee note 2 1o the financal slatementsl, and exceplional finance coslsin 2009: E119 mallion.

3 2008 restated lor IFRS. The UK GAAP accounts shows gross rental income of £620 million and Underiying Profit of E175 million.
¢ Represenis movernent in cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movernenis in cash under UK GAAP. .

? Adjusted lor the rights 1ssue of 341 million shares in March 2009.
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SHAREHOL DER INFORMATION

Finanvial calendar

1218

Fourih quarier ex-dividend daie 29 Junz 2017
Fourih quarier dnidend payment dale 4 August 2017
First quarter ex-dividend date 0% Ociober 2017
First quarier dividend payreni date 10 Navember 2017
Half year results 16 November 2007
Second quarier ex-dividend date January 2018
Second quarter dividend paymeni date February 2018
Third quarter ex-dividend date March 2018
Third quarter dividend payment date May 2018
Full year results May 2018
Fourih quarier ex-dradend daie ’ June 2018
Fourth quarier dividend payment dale August 2018

If olfered. the Board will announce the avaitability of a Scrip dividend alternalive via the Regulalory News Service no later than four business days
belore each ex-dividend date. Scrip dividend allernatives will not be enhanced. The spli! behween PID and non-PID income lor each dividend will

he annowmced al the same ime.

Refleciing the long term nature of our business, we will cease publication of irst and Lhird quarter trading updates going forwand. We wall continue
ts provide trading updates ahead of our AGM each year. The next AGM s scheduled for 18 July 2017 and wa will conlinue to provide tmely spdates

on the business as appropniate.

Analysis of shareholders — 31 March 2017

Nurndwa . Balanceas al
Range of holdings % 31 Mach 87 %
1-1.000 5835 55.87 2,541,358 " 026
1.001-5.000 3.060 2930 67758246 0.65
5.00%-20,000 &62 634 5413734 0462
20.001-50,000 238 278 15547111 073
50,001-Highest 649 621 1017749 427 917
Tolal 10,464 1MN0400 1061035058 innp oo

Number Balance as a1
Halder type \ of holders % 31 Merch 2017 %
individuals 6.410 4137 11.740.35% 113
Norninee and instilutional investors 4,034 38,63  1.029.294.499 78.87
Tolal 10,444 10060 1041035058 100.00

! Excluding 11,266,245 shares held in treasury.
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Orther inforarion

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Registrars

British Land has appoinied Equiniti Limited
[Equinitil to administer its sharsholder register.
Equymti can be contactad at:

Aspeacl House, Spencer Road,

Lancing, West Sussex BN99 40A

Tet: 0371 384 2143 UK calters)

Teb: +44 (01121 415 7057 {Overseas calters)

Lines are open from 8:30am to 5:30pm
Manday o Friday exduding public holidays.

Equiniti's website is: worw.shareview.co.uk
By registering with Shareview, sharehalders can:

- view your British Lang shareholding online;
- wpdate your details; and
- glect to receive shareholder

mailings electronically.

Equiniti is also the Registrar for the BLD
Property Holdings Limited Stock.

British Land's Debentures Registrar is Gapita
and can be contacled al:

The Registry

34 Beckenham Road Beckenham, Kent
BR3ATU

Tel: 0871 664 0300

Catls cost 10 pence ger minute plus network
extras. Lines are open from 980 m to 530pm,
Monday te Friday excluding public holidays.

Share dealing facilities

By registering with Shareview, Equiniti
also provides exisling ang prospective UK
shareholders with a share dealing fadlity
for buying and selling British Land shares
ontine or by phone.

For more information, toriact Equinit
al www_shareview.couk/dealing or call
03456 037 037. Lines are spen Manday to

Friday. 8.00am to 4. 30pm_Existing British Land .

sharcholders wall need the reference number
" given on your share certificate 1o register.

Sirnitar share dealing facilities are provided by
other brokers, hanks and financial services.

Registered office
The registered office of The BrilishLand
Comgany PLC is siluated at:

York House

45 Seyrnour Street

London W1H 7LX

Tel: +44 {0120 7486 4666
Website: www_britishland.com
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Annuat General Meeling

The Annual General Meeting of The Bnuish
Lang Company PLC will be held a1 The Hyait
Regency London — The Churchill, 30 Portman
Square, London W1H 78H on 18 July 2017

at 11.00am.

Dividends

As aREIT, Brtish Land pays Property
Inceme Distribulion IPYY and non-Property
income Distribution {aon-PID) dividends. -
More informnation on REITs and PlDs can

be found in the Glossary on page 177 or

in the lnvesiors section of qur wehsile at
www. britishiand.com/dividends

British Land dividends can be paid direcity
into your bank or building sodiety account
insiead of being despatchad by cheque.

Mare information about the benelits of having
dividends paid directly into your bank or
building sodetly account, and the mandate
forrn to set this up, can be found in the
Inveslors secticn of our websiie al
www.britishland_com/dividends

Scrip Dividend Scheme

British Land may offer shareholders the
oppartunity to partiapate in the Sorip Dividend
Scheme by offering a Scrp Alternala to a
pariicular dividend from {ime to time. The
Scerip Pnidend Scheme allows participating
shareholders (o receive additional shares
instead of 2 cash dividend More informaticn
is available on the lnvestors section of

our websile al www.britishland com/
scrip-dividend-scheme'

Website and sharehalder communications
The British Land corporate websile contains a
wealth of materiat for shareholders. including
the current share price, press releases and
information dividends. The website can be
accessed a1l www.britishland.com

British Land encturages its shareholders

to receive shareholder cornmunicalions
elecironically. This enables shareholders o
receive information quickly and securely as
well as in a more environmentally friendly and
cast-effective manner. If you would Gke further
information, please visil www.shareview.co.ik
or lelephone the Shareholder Helplina.

Sharehoalder fraud warning

Shareholders are reminded 10 be very vigilant,
of share fraud. This might include unsalicited
tetephone calls or letters offering free
investrent advice or offers.ic buy and sell
shares al discounted or inflated prices.

The Financial Conduct Authority IFCA] has
published lots of useful advice onhaw o
protect yourself from investment scams. This
information is available on the FCA websiie
www.fca.org.uk/scams or by calling the
Consumer Helptine on 0800 111 6768.
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Sharaholders vath 2 emall number of shares,
the value of which makes it unecanomig 0
sell tham_may wish {o consider donaling their
shares to charity. ShareGift is a registered
charity iNo. 1052684} which collects and sells
umvanted sharas and uses the proceads

to support a wide range ol UK charilties.

A SharebGift donation form can be obtained
From Equiniti and lurther information is
avaiable at:

GhareGift

The Orr Mackintesih Foundation Limitad,
17 Carlton House Terrace,

London SWIY SAH )

Tel: +44 (0)20 7938 3737

Websile: www_sharegiftorg

Unsaolicited mail

British Land is required by law to make its
share vegister avaslable on request to ather
organisations. This may reselt in the receigt
of unsoliciad mail. Te limit this, shareholdars
may regisler with the Mailing Preflerence
Service. For more information, o to register,
visi: www.mpsonline.org.uk

Honworary President

In recagnition of hiz work building British Land
into the industny leading company it is loday,
Sir Johin Ritblat was appointed as Honorary
President on his retirement from the Board

in December 2004,

Tax

Tha Group elecled for REIT status on 1 January
2007 paying a £308m conversion charge Lo
HMRC in the same year. As a consequence of
the Group's REIT status, tax is not levied within
the corporate group on the qualifying property
remal business bul is instead deducied from
distributions of such income as Property
tncorne Distributions ta shareholders. Any
income which does nol lallwithin the REIT
regime 15 subject 1o tax within the Group in the
usual way. This includes profits on properiy
trading aclivity, propearty relaled fee income
and interes! income. We continye to comfortably
pass all RLIT tests ensuring that our REIT
status is maintained.

We work proactively and openly to maintain

a construclive relalionship with HMRC We
discuss matlters in real-time with HMRC and
disclose all relevan facts and circumstances,
particularly where there rnay be tax uncertainty
or the lawis unclear. HMRC assigns nisk ratings
to all large companies. We have a low appetite
for ax risk and HMRC considers us to be ‘Low
Risk” {a stalus we have held since 2607 when
the rating was first introduced by HMRC.



GLOSSARY

Adjusted net deblt is the Group net dabi and
th2 Group's share of jnint venysa and funds’
nel deibl excluding the mark-to-market on
effective cash ftow hedges and related debt -
adjustments and non-conirelling inierests.
A reconcilialion between Grovp net debl and
adjsted net deht is ncludad in Table Awithin
the supplementary disdosines.

:

AEM is the Annuat General Meeting of The

British Land Company PLC, The 2017 AGM witl .

be held on 18 July 2017 a1 The Hyatl Regency
London — The Churchitl, 30 Porirman Square,
London WiH 78H commenang at H.08am.

Annualised rent is the gross propesty rent
receivable on @ cash basis as al tha reperting
dale. Additionally, il includes the extarnal
valuers’ estimate of additional renl in respect
of unsattied renl reviews, lurmover reat and
sundry income such as that from car parks
and comimerdalisation, less any ground
rents payable under head leases.

Assets under management is the full value
of all assets owned and managed by British
Land and includes 100%% of the value of ail
assels owned by joint ventures ard fengs.

BREEAM [Building Resaarch Establishment
Environmental Assessment Method] assesses
the sustainability of buildings against a renge
of social and environmentat criteria.

Capital return is calcuiated as the change
in capital value of the poritelio, tess any
capexincurred, expressed 2s a percenlage
of capilat employed [siart valve plus capital
expenditure] over the periad. as caleulated
by tPD. Capilal retwins are calculated
meonthly and indexad to prwide a return
gver the relevant period.

Contracted rent s the annualised renk
atjusting for the inclusion of rent subject
to rent free peniods.

Customer satisfaction combines survey
resulls on gverall experience ratings from
decision makers, property directors, slore
managers and visitors acress our retail
and oftice businesses.

Developer’s profit is the profit on cast
estimated by the valuers thal a developer
would expect. The devetopar's profit

i5 typically calculated by the valuers to
be a percentaqe of the eslimaled lotal
development costs, including land and
notional finance costs.

Development cost is the total cost of
construction of a project 1o completion,
excluding site values and finance cosis

. {finance costs are assumed by the valuers
al a notional rate of 5% per annum|.

Devetopment uplift is the total increasse

i the value fafter taking accouni of capex
and capilalised interest] of properiies held
for development during the pariod. L also
indludas any developers profil recognised
by valuers in the period.

EPRA is the European Public Real
Estate Association, the indusiry body
for European RE(Ts.

EPRA cost ratio [including direct

vacanty oosis] is a proportionsily consolidated
measure of the ratio of net overheads and
operating axpenses against gross rental
income fwith both amounts excluding grownd
7ents payablel. Net overheads and operaling
expenses relate to all administrative and
operaling expenses, nzl of any service fees,
secharges or other income specifically intended
to cover overhead and property expenses.

EPRA cost ratio lexcluding direct

vacancy costs] is the ratio catculated above,
but with direct vacancy costs removed
fram the net overheads and operating

expenses balanca.
. ;

EPRA earnings is the IFRS profit after
taxalion atiributabte to shareholders of
the Company excluding investmenl ang -
‘development praperly revaluations, gains/
losses on invesling and trading property
dispesats, changes in the fair value of

financial instruments and associated”

dosez-out cests and their celated taxation.
These iterns are presented in the capital
and othzr column of the income slalement.
Areconciliation between profit atlributable
1o shareholders of the Company and :
EPRA earnings is included in Table B
within the supplementary disclosures.

EPRANAY per share is EPRA NAV divided
bty the diluted number of shares al the
period énd.

EPRA netasset value [EPRA NAV)isa
propoclionally consolidated measwie,
representing the IFRS net assels excluding
the mark-to-rarket on effective cash flow
hedges and related debt adjustments, the
mark-to-market on the convertible bonds
as well as deferred taxation on property
and derivative valuations. It includes the
vaiualion surplus on Wrading properties
and is adjusted for the ditutive irnpact

of share aeptions. A recanciliation betwaen
{FRS net assels and EPRA NAVis included
in Table B within the Supptementary
{hisclosures.
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EPRA net initial yield is the annualised rents
generated by the portfolio, after the dedectionof
an estimale ol annl recurting Frecoverable
proparty outgeings, exprassad as a parcanlage
of the partfolic valuation fzdding notienal
purchaser's costs), excuding development
and restdantial properties. :

EPRA NNNAY is the EPRA NAV adjusied to
reftect the fair value of debt and derivatives and

teinclude deferred taxalion on revalualions.

EPRA ocoupancy rate is the ERV of occupied
space dividad by ERV of the whole portfolio,
exdwding developments and residential
property.

EPRA topped-up net initial yield is the
currend anfwabsed rent, net of costs, topped-
up for conracted vplifts, where these are
ot in liew of rentat growth, expressed as

a percentage of camtal value (adding

notionat prrrchesar’s cosls).

EPRA vacancy rateis the EHV o vacanlt space
dividad by ERV of the whole portfalio, 2xcluding
develepments and residentiad property.

Estimated rental value {ERV) is the external
valuers’ apinion of the open market rent which,
on the date of valuation, could réasonably be
expacled to be gblained on a new letting or
renl review of a property.

ERV growth is the change in ERV over a

period on the standing investment properties
expressed as a percentage of the ERV at the
start of lhe period. ERY growth is calculated
monthly 2nd compeunded for the period subject |
i measuremnent._ as calculated by IPD. -

Fair value movement is the 2ccounting
adjustment to change the book value of
an assel or Gability o its markst value,

Footfallis the estimated annualisad number
of visitors entering our assets.

Footfall growth is the like-for-like movement
in fogtfall against the same period in the prior
year, on properties awned threughout both '
comparable periods, aggregated at Bntish
Land’s ownership share for each assel.

Grossinvestment activity is our share of
acquasitions, sates and capital expenditure
on investments and development.

Gruss rental income is the gross accoenting
reni receivsble lqueled eilher lor the period

or an an annualised basis] prepared under
IFRS which requires that rental income from
fixed f minimum guaranieed rent reviews and
tenant incentives is spread on a straight-line -
basis over the lease period to earliest
lermrination date. This can result inincome
being recognised ahead of cash flow.
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iher informzaiign

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Group is The British Land Cempany $L.C

and ils subsidiaries and excludes its share

of joint venlures and funds {where not treated
as a subsidiary] on a ine-by-line basis

{i.e. not proporionally consolidated|.

Headline renl is tha contractad gross rent
receivable which becomes payable atier all the
tenant incentives in the latung have expired.

IFRS are the Internationai Financal Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Unign.

Income returm is ealeulaled as net incorne
exprassed as a percentage of capitat employed
over the period. as calculated by IPD. Incoma
returns are calculated monthly and indexed

10 grovide a retum Gver Lhe relevani peniod.

Interest cover is the pumber of times nei
hnancing costs are covered by Undertying
Prufil before net Ainancing costs and laxation.

IPD is a brand of real 2state indices, owned by
MSEI, which produce independent benchmarks
of property relurns and British Land UK
portielio returns.

Lettings and tease renewals are compared
both to the previous passing rent as at

the start of the financial year a2nd the
ERVimmediately prior to letting. Letting
performante against ERV compares of
achizved teiting terms on fong term leltings
and Is againsi valuation plions
on like-for-tike space, calculaied on a net
elfective basis, aggregated at British Land's
ownership share for each asset.

Leverage see loan to value {LTVL

Like-for-like rental income growth

is the growth in net rental income on properties
owned throughoul the current and previous
periods under review. This growth rale includes
fevenue recognition and lease incentive
adjustments but excludes properties held

lor development in either period and lease
accounting adjustiments related to fixed and
FMNIMIT Fent reviews, :

Loan ta value [LTV] is the ratio of principal
vatue of gross debt less cash, short term
deposits and Liquid invesiments 16 the
aggregate value of properties and investiments.

Managed portiolio consists of multi-let
properties where wi: have control of facilities
and utilities management.

Mark-to-market is the difference between
the book value of an asset or Liability and its
markel value.

s
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Net development vatue is the eslimated end
value oi a development project as delermnined
by the exlarnal valuers when the building is
compleiad and fully izt izking inle account
tepant \ncentives and notional purchaser's
costsl. iis based on the valuer's view on ERVs,
yeelds, ieiting voids and tenant incentives.

Net effective rent is the contracied Gross
rent receivable taking into account any
rent-free peried or other tenant inceninres.
The incenlives are ireated as a cosi-lorent
and spread over the lease period to the
eaities! lerrpination date.

Net equivalent yietd INEY) is the ime weighted
average retum lafter adding notional purchasers
cosks) ihat a property will preduce. I aconrdance
with usual practice. the eguivalent yield fas
determined by the external valuers] assume
rent is received anavally in arrcars.

Net initial yield [NI¥] is the current annualised
rent, nat of costs, axpressed as a parceniage
of capitat value, after adding notional
purchaser’s cosis.

Net rental income is the rental income
receivable in the period after payment of direct
property sulgeings which typically comprise
ground rents payable under head leases, void
oosts, net service charge expenses and ather
direct imecoverable property expenses. Nel
rental income 1S quoted o an accounting basis.
Net rental mncome walt differ from annualised
nel cash rends and passing rent due to the
effects of income from rent reviews, net
property outgeings and accounting adjiusiments
for fixed and minimum contracled renl reviews
and lease incentives.

Net reversionary yield [NRY) is the anlicipated
yield to which the initial yield wAll rise for falll
once the rent reaches the estimated rental vatue.

Occupancy rate is the estimated rental value of
{et units as a percentage of the total estimated
rental value of the portfolio, excluding
development and residentiat proper ties_ it
includes accommedation under offer, subject
Lo asset management [where they have been
taken back tor refurbishment and are not
available to let as at the measurement datel.
ar octufed by the Group.

Omni-channel retailing secks 1o provide the
customes with a seamless shopping experience
across channels, inctuding stores. online and
mgbile. This empowers cuslamers to switch
hetween channels during the shopper journey
according to their prelerences. For example, they
can use mobile in-store to research or make 3
purchase, buy ontine and cotlect in-slore. or they
¢an buy in-store and iniliate a return online,
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Over rented is tha =rm used (0 describe
when the contractad rent is above the esimated
rantal value,

Gverall topped-up netinibial yield (TUNVT
i5 Llhe EPRA loppad-up net initial yield, adding
all contracied uplifis to the annualised renis.

Passing rent s the gross rant, less any
gresnd renl payable under head leases.

Property income distributions (PiDs] are
profits distributed to shareholders which are
suhijact 1o tax in the hands of the sharsholders
as property incorne. Fils are normally paid
nat of withholding tax. currentty at 20%._ whach
the REIT pays to the tax authorities on behall of
the shareholder. Certain types of sharehalder
{e.q. pension funds] are tax exempt and receive
PIDs vithout withholding tax. REITs alsa

pay eul normal dnadends, called nen-PiDs,
which are taxad in the same way as divifends
received from nen REIT companies; these

are not subjact to wilhholding tax and for

UK individual shareholders qualify for the

tax free dividend allowance.

Portfolio valuation is reported by the Group's
external valuers. In accordance with usual
practice, they report valuations net. after the
deduction of notiona! purchaser’s cosls, inchuding
stamp duly Land tax, agent and legal ees.

fonatly consolidated measures include
the Group’s share of joinl ventures and funds
and exclude non-controlling interests in the -
" Group's subsidianies.

Rack rented is the term used to describe when
the coniracted rent is in line with the estimated
renlal value, inmplying nil reversion.

Rent-free pet"nd see Tenant lor leasel incentives.

REITs are proper by companies thal allow
peaple and organisations lo mvest in commesceal
property and ceceive benefits as if they directly
owned the properiies lhemselves. The rental
income, aller coslts, is passed direcily to
shareholders in the form of dividends. In the
UK RENTs are required to distribute al least
90% of their tax exempt propertyincome lo
shareholdess as dividends. As a resull, aver
ume, a significant proportion of the tolal relurn
for sharehulders is likely to come from dividends.
The effectis that taxation is moved from the
cerporale leve! to the imvestor tevel as investors
are lable for lax as il they owned the property
directly. British Land became 3 REIT in
January 2007.




Rent reviews lake ptace at inlervals agreed
inthe lease ltypicalty every five years] and
thair purpose is usually te adjust the rent to
the currend market leval at the review date., For
upwards-only rent reviews, the rent wall either
remain at the same level or increase [if market
rents have increased] at the review date.

Rents with fixed and minimum uplifts are
either where rents are subject to contracted
uplifis at a level agraed at the lime of tetting: or
where the rent is subjact to an agreed miimum
level of uplift at the specified rent review.

Retafler sales growth is ihe like-for-like

Reversion is change in rent estinated by

the external valuars, where the passing rent

is different lo the estimated remiat veluz,

The incraase or decrease of rent anseson
renl reviews and lething of vacant space or
re-letting of gxpines.

Scrip dividend For certain pariods, British
Land oifers its shareholders the opportunity lo

receive dividends in the form of shares instead
of cash, This is known as a Sorp dividend.

Standing investments arz assets which are

1 nol in the course of, or held for, development.

T,

i {or | ) incentives are incenbves

movemenl in retaiter in-store sales aga
the same period in the prior year, on occupiers
remaining in lhe sarme unil, providing sales
data througheut both comparable periods.
aggregated al Brinsh Land's ownership

share lor each asset.

Retail planning consents are separated batween
Al AZ and A3 - as set oul in The Town and
Country Planning [Use Classes) Order. Within the
Al category. Open Al permission allows [or the
raajority of types of reiail incfuding fashion to be
acoommodatad, white Restrictad Al permission
places limils on the types of relail that can operate
{tar example, a resiriclion that only butky goods
operators are allowad to trade at that site].

Class Desoription  Use for atifany of the
following purposes

A1 Shops Shaps, retail warshguses,
hairdressers, undestakers,
travel and ticket agencies,

post ofiices, pet shops,
sandwich bars, showrgoms,
domestic hire shops dry .
deaners, funeral directors
and internet cafes.

Finandal services such as
banks and building sodeties,
professional services [other
than haalth and medical
services} and including

' estate and emplayment
agancies. Il does neot include
hetting offices or pay day
toan shops —these are now
classed as “sui genens” uses.

A2 Financial
and
projessional
services

For the sate of food and -

drink for consumption on

the premises — restaurants,
. snack bars and cales.

Restaurants
and cafes .

Cinemas, music and concert
halls, bingo and dance

halls {but nat night clubsl,
swimming baths, skating
rinks, GYMNAsiuMms or areas
for indoor or ouldoor sports
and reqreations.

D2 Assembly
and laisure

offered to occupiers le enter mio a lease.
Typically this will be an intial rent-free period, or
3 cash conirtbution tw fit-oul. Under accouniing
rules the value of tease incentives is amortised
through the income stalevnent on a straight-
line basis to the earliest lease termination dale.

The residual site value of a dev=topment is
calculaled as the estimated net development
value, less developmant profit, 2il development
construciion cosis. finance costs lassumed at
a notional rate) of a projact lo completion and
noticnal site acquisition costs. The residual is
determined to be the current site value.

Topping out is 3 (raditional construction:
cerermony io mark the occasion when
the structure of the building reaches
the highest paint.

Total property return is calculaled as

the change in capital value, less any capex
incurred, plus nel income, expressed as

a percentage of capilal emnployed over the
périod, as calculated by iPD. Total property
retyrns are calculaied monthly and indexed
1o provide a return over the relevant period.

Total accounting return is the growth in
EPRANAV per share plus dividends pad,
and this can be expressed as a percentage
of EPRA NAY per share at the beginning

of the periad.

Total shareholder return is the grawth

in value of a shareholding over a specilied
period, assuming dividends are reinvesied
to purchase additional units of stock.

Total tax contribution is & more
comprehensive view of tax contributions
than the accountancy-defined tax figure
quoted in most financial statements.

1t comprises taxes and levies paid directly,
as well as laxes collected from others
which we admimstered.

Turnover rent is where all or a porlion of
the rent is linked to the sales or turnaver
of the occupier.
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Under rented is the term used 1o describe
wharni the contractad rend 15 below the
estirnated rentat value [ERV), wngplying

2 posilive rEversion.

Undertying earnings per share [EPS)
consists of Underlying Proft alter tax dividad
by the diluted weighted average number of
shares in issue dusing the pengd.

Undertying Profit is the pre-tax EPRA earmings
measure with additional Company adjustments.
Mo Company adjustments were made in etther
the current er prior period.

Valuation movement is the chgnge inthe.
partfotio vatuabion and sates receipts of
properties sold during the periad, nel of
capitat expenditure, capitalised intzresl and
developmant team costs, and lransaction costs
incured, expressed as a percenlsgs of the
portictio valuation al the start of the period plus -
-nel capex, capilalised interest and development -
team costs, and ransaction costs,

Virtual frechold repr is 2 long L hold
tenure for a period of up to 999 years. A

‘peppercorn’, or numinat. rent is paid annually.

Weighted average debt maturity is calculated
by muttiplying each tranche of debt by the
remaining pariod Lo its malurity, with the
sum of the resuits being divided by total

dabt i issue 3t the perid end.

Weighted average interest rate is the loan
interest and net derivative costs per annum
3t the period end, divided by lotal debl in
issue al the period end.

Weighted average unexpired tease term
is the average lease term remaining lo
First break. or expiry, across the portiolio
weighted by conlratled rental income
{including rent-frezs). The calculation
excludes residential leases and properties
altocated as developments.

Yield on cost is the estimaled annual rent
al a compieted development divided by
the lotal cost of development inctuding
site value and notianal finance cosls o
the point of assumed reft commencemant,
expressed as a percentage return.

Yield shiftis a movement usually expressed
in bpshin the net equivalent yield of a property
asset_or like-for-like portlolio, over a given
period, weighted by net capital value.
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Farward-looking statements

This Annuat Reperi comains cermin iarward-lm)kmg statemenis. Such
staternents reflect current views on, armong other things, our markels.
atlivilias, projections, objechwj. and prospects. Such ‘lorward-looking
slatements can s. but nol atways, be ideniilied by thair refarence
1o a date or point in the future ar the use of forward-looking” terminology.
including terms such as ‘believes’, ‘estimales’ “anticipates’. ‘expecls’.
Toreeasts’, Cintends’, “due’, plans’, projects’, goal’, sullpok schadule’
targat”, atm' . may’, Tikely w7, “will . Swoutd, ‘could”, ‘should” or similar
expressions or in each Case their Aegative or ather varialions or
comparable ierminology. By their nature, lorward-looking statements
mvolve inherent nsks, assumptions afid unceriainhes because Lhey relate
to future events and depend on circumstances which may or M3y not ooour
and mnay be beyand our ability to control or predici. Forward-tooking
slalements should be regandad wilh caution as actual results may difler
materially from those expressed in or implied by such stataments.

Important (actors that could cause aclual results, pasformance er
achievements of British Land to differ materially irom any aulcomes

. ar results expressed or impliad by such forwarnd-looking Statemems
include, among ather things: k3] general business and potitical, social and
econgmic conditions globally, (b] the @ 5 of the referendum on
Britain leaving the EU. {c] indusiry and market rends linctuding demand
in the property investment market and property prica volatitity). (d)
coenpztition, f2] the behaviour of other market participants. {ll changes in
governmen and other regulation. including in relatien 10 the environmeni.
health and safely and taxation {in particular, in respect of British Land's
stalus as a Raal Estate in t Trusy), Ig] inHakion and consumer
confidence, M labour relations and work steppages, (i} naturat disasters
and adverse waather conditions, {jl terrorism and acits of war, (k) British
Land’s overail business strategy. risk appelite and investment choices
in its porilolio management. [1j legal or other proceedings against or
affecting British Land, Iml reliable and sacuere 1T inlrastructure. {n)
changes in occupier d fandl t default, {o) changes in financial
and equity markels inciuding interest and exchange rate fluctuations,
[p} changes in accounling praclices and Lhe inlerpretation of accounting
standards and lg] the availability and cost of finance. The Company’s
principal risks are described in greater detailin the seclion of this Annual
Repoar | headed Risk Management and Principal Risks. Forward -looking
stalements in this Annuat Repaort, or the British Land wabsite or made
subsequenily, which are attributabte to British Land or persons acling
on its behalf should therelore be construed in light of alt such factors.

Information contained in this Annual Report relating ta British Land or
its share price or the yield an its shares are nol guarantees of, and shoutd
not he ralied upon as an indicator of, future performanca, and nothing
in this Annual Report should be construed as a prelit foracast or profit
eslimate. Any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of British
Lant speak only as of lhe date they are made. Such forward-tooking
slatements are expressly quakified in their entirety by the Factors refecred
10 shove and no representalion, assurance, guarantee or warranly is given
in relation to them fwhether by 8ritish Land or any ol its associates,
directors, ofticers, employees or advisers). including as to their
compleleness. accuracy of the basis on which they were prepared.

Other than in accordance wilh our legal and requlalory obligations
lincluding under the UK Financiat Conduct Autherity’s Listing Rules.
Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the Market Abuse Regulations),
Briush Land does not intend or underiake to updale or revise forward-
looking stalemenis 1o cellecl any changes in British Land's expectations
with regard thereto or any changes in information_ events, conditions

or circamstances on which any such stalement is based. This document
shall nol, under any Circumslances. créate any implication that there
has been no change in the business ar altairs of British Land since the
dale of this dogument or that the infermalion contained herein is (orrect
asatany lime subsequent o this dale.
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